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“To become the Bank of Your First Choice ”

“We are committed in providing full-�edged and best quality 
commercial banking services within the pertinent  regulatory 
requirement with due diligence to sustainable business while 
empowering the missing middle and  discharging social respon-
sibility by engaging highly quali�ed, skilled, motivated and disci-
plined employees and  state-of-the- art information technology, 
adding real value to the shareholders interest and win the public 
trust.”

 
 

Vision

Mission

Core Values
We value persistence, endurance and tenacity;   
We value customer satisfaction;   
We value transparency, integrity and con�dentiality;   
We uphold team spirit and grooming potential successor; 
We value total respect to customers and employees;
We value competitive and motivated human resource with ever gowing skills;   
We promote a learning and innovative organization;  
We value belongingness;   

We uphold corporate citizenship. 

growing skills;

Cardinal Values 
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Respected shareholders, Abbaa Gadaas, invited guests, observers from the National Bank of Ethiopia 
and Documents Authentication and Registration Agency, Ladies and Gentlemen;

On behalf of the Board of Directors and myself, I am honoured to welcome you all to the 10th Annual 
General Meeting of Shareholders being convened here today after the successful commemoration of 
our Bank’s 10th year founding Anniversary all that was decorated with continuous growth. It is also a 
great privilege for me to present the Annual Report of the Board of Directors on key performances of our 
Bank for the financial year ended June 30, 2019.

Respected Shareholders, Ladies and Gentlemen;

Before going on to present the main elements of the report, I would like to point out in a nutshell the 
global and local situations in which our Bank had been operating during the reporting financial year. The 
global economic growth, which peaked up to close to 3.8% in 2017, softened to 3.2% in 2019 due to, inter 
alia, heightened policy uncertainty including a recent trade tensions between major economies and a 
deceleration in global investment as well as the lingering Brexit and tariffs on the automobile industry. 
Locally, the chronic foreign currency shortage and stiff competition on critical resources (deposit 
mobilization, human resource and convenient buildings for branch offices, to name a few) coupled with 
limited basic infrastructures (such as power, telecom, Internet) as well as the sporadic public unrest that 
continued to crop up here and there in most parts of the country – particularly so in our major operation 
areas – were the major challenges the banking industry in general and our bank in particular had faced. 

Despite the challenges encountered, our Bank had managed to mobilize deposit of Birr 26.6 billion 
showing 33% growth relative to the previous year position. Similarly, the efforts made to deploy the 
resources have boosted the outstanding loans and IFB financing to Birr 17.4 billion recording 50% year-
on-year growth. The total income of the bank surged by 31% to Birr 3.2 billion.

MESSAGE FROM THE
CHAIRPERSON - BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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Ladies and Gentlemen; 

At this juncture, I have a great pleasure to announce 
to respected shareholders that our Bank has managed 
to attain a record high profit of Birr one billion (before 
tax); earning per share stood at Birr 374; thus Birr 307 
(30.7%) average dividend per share for the fiscal year is 
praiseworthy vis-à-vis the considerable growth (of  about 
49%) in paid up capital - during the period under review. 
The total assets of the Bank grew by 34% and reached Birr 
31.78 billion. The Bank’s paid up capital reached Birr 2.4 
billion, as per the planned move to attain the Birr 3.00 
billion paid up capital by the end of the current financial 
year.

With regard to branch expansion, OIB has reached a total 
of 265 branches adding 17 new branches during the 
reporting financial year. The total number of agents and 
ATMs reached 227 and 77, respectively, while the number 
of mobile users and ATM card holders reached 84,661 and 
121,831, respectively. A new Core Banking System, along 
with data centre facilities that commensurate with the 
growth of the Bank, has been launched and went fully 
operational. These IT infrastructures coupled with skilled 
human resources, we believe, will create an enabling 
environment in enhancing efficiency in our service 
delivery.

The Bank has created job opportunity for 5,212 
employees. In a move to building capacity of our 
human resource and enhancing productivity, different 
trainings (both local and overseas) were given for the 
employees during the reporting financial year in which 
some staff attended more than one trainings; our Bank 
has also effected a merit-based motivational initiatives 
(salary increment and bonus payment) with the view of 
rewarding best performers.

As the respected shareholders are well aware, our Bank 
had invested in nine different companies of financial 
and strategic importance. The Board would like to 
acknowledge that most of these investments in Oromia 
Insurance Company (S.Co.), Tsehay Industry (S.Co.), 
EthSwitch (S.Co.), among others, have continued to serve 
the purpose and are in a rewarding state. 

In the fiscal year under review, our Bank has acquired 15 
hectares of land from Oromia Regional State, Galan City 

Administration, for building modern convention and 
training centre which will greatly contribute to developing 
our human resources, which in turn contributes to the 
bottom line. We have also got a green light from Finfinne 
City Administration to acquire land for HQs construction 
at the area commonly known as future ‘financial hub’ 
(Senga Tera- Mexico locality). Moreover, the bid process 
for recruiting contractors for the planned construction at 
Goma Kuteba is underway even though it could not be 
expedited as desired due to different factors at work. 

As always, our Bank has continued discharging its 
corporate social responsibility mainly in response to calls 
for development initiatives and assistance for displaced 
citizens. To this effect, a total of Birr 22 million was donated 
over the financial year to the implementation of various 
projects of public interest (such as Ambo Development 
Fund Raising Program and Beautifying Sheger Project) 
and assistance to the internally displaced citizens.

During the reporting financial year, the Board of Directors 
has conducted fourteen full board meetings (including 
regular and urgent meetings); equivalent number of 
meetings were also held by each of the three Board 
sub-committees. Visits to selected branches as well as 
shareholders were conducted– all of which have served 
as effective instruments for closer follow up of the Bank’s 
operations as well as receiving constructive feedback and 
creating business relations with the shareholders and 
customers at large. In a way, the Board had passed various 
value-adding decisions as well as provided directions and 
guidance as per the policies and procedures of the Bank 
as well as regulatory organ’s directives; the Directors have 
also participated in various meetings convened by ad-hoc 
committees of the Board meant to advance operations of 
the Bank. 

Looking ahead, I am confident that the Board and the 
entire employees of OIB shall strive not only to uphold 
the record-high achievements thus far but also shall 
continue working together to take OIB to a much-greater 
height. To this end, preparations are underway to review 
the existing strategic plan and develop the third five years 
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strategic plan of the Bank in the coming few months so 
as to orientate the future course of actions and sustain 
the growth momentum. We shall continue to improving 
the quality of our services, properly utilizing modern IT 
infrastructures, strategically expanding branch network, 
mobilizing resources accompanied by proportionate 
loans and advances, NPLs management as well as 
prudent expense management and working on the 
mind set of our employees to create a much-elaborated 
team workspirit across the Bank thereby continue firmly 
positioning OIB among the leading banks in the industry 
against major performance measurement parameters; we 
will also make a cautious move in launching the different 
construction initiatives in the pipeline.

Finally, I would like to extend my heartfelt vote of thanks 
to our honourable shareholders for their confidence and 
extraordinary support; esteemed customers not only 
for banking with OIB but also for their intact confidence 
during difficult times; my fellow members of the Board of 
Directors for their dedication and successful leadership; 
the Sharia Advisory Committee for their advisory role in 
the IFB operations; the management and the staff for their 
strong ties, commitment and sense of ownership; my 
sincere appreciation also goes to our IFRS Project Team 
for its commitment in the preparation of our accounts, 
and the external Auditor, TAY Authorized Accountants 
and Auditors., for the professionalism it demonstrated in 
auditing accounts of our Bank. 

My heartfelt appreciation also goes to the National Bank 
of Ethiopia for its continued guidance and support. And 
I am grateful to other government organizations such 
as Documents Authentication and Registration Agency, 
Finfinne City Administration, and regional governments 
for their cooperation and steady support. Furthermore, 
I would like to thank different local Banks and 
correspondent Banks for their productive partnership 
and smooth working relationships. 

OIB shall remain Peoples’ Bank!

God Bless You All!

Gadissa Bultosa Bery

Chairperson, Board of Directors

November 24, 2019
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On behalf of all Management and employees 
of Oromia International Bank S.C.(OIB), I feel 
honored to kindly welcome our respected 

shareholders, distinguished invited guests, OIB 
Management and the stakeholders to this colorful 10th 
Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders 
and all interested readers of this report. 

Most of all, I would like to express my enormous 
delight to be exceptionally fortunate enough to be 
able to report to you all, for the last 10 successive 
General Assemblies including this one, the uniquely 
successive shining performances of your Bank during 
all  times of which we have managed to register only 
growths throughout all those reporting periods, 
in Deposit, Total Asset, Total Capital, Customers, 
branches and above all profit, against all odds in the 
market.

According to World Economic Outlook report (WEO 
July 2019), the global economic growth, which peaked 
up to 3.8 % in 2017, and softened to 3.6% in 2018 is 
estimated to further downcast to 3.2% mainly due to 
slowdown in global trade and escalation of US-China 
trade tensions. On the up side, Sub-Saharan Countries 
economic growth has been showing a marginal 
improvement as it grew from 2.9% to 3.1% growth 
in the year 2017 to 2018 while it is estimated to pick 
up to 3.4% in 2019.  According to Sub-Saharan Africa 
Regional Economic Outlook; April 2019, Ethiopia 
became the region’s third largest economy.

Despite the applauded significance of Ethiopia’s 
aggregate economy in the region which is attained 
by successive average double digit growth for over 

a decade, the chronic shortage in foreign currency 
which is suffocating the economy, the still unsettled 
public unrest, the soaring inflation and unemployment 
were shadowing the huge efforts being made by 
the government under the new leadership. The 
export sector was also not in favor of our major 
agricultural products such as coffee due to instability 
or fall in the commodities prices in the global market 
worsening our foreign currency earnings. Almost all 
industries were significantly affected by shortage of 
raw materials due to lack of the foreign exchange. 
This challenge to our international trade (import/
export) may cause significant credit default risk to 
the Banking Industry. Total merchandise export 
earning of Ethiopia declined for the continuous two 
years (2016/17-2018/19) which was 2.9 billion USD in 
2016/17 had declined to 2.84 billion USD in 2017/18 
and it further fall to 2.67 billion in 2018/19 according 
to Ministry of Trade and Industry. Inflation remained 
at double digit throughout the year striking 16.2%.
As a result of all of the above and many other factors, 
the banking industry was also characterized by stiff 
competition for critical resources such as deposit, 
foreign currency, skilled human resources, convenient 
branch offices, and other office materials. Still, lack of 
basic infrastructures (such as power, telecom services 
and in some areas roads) as well as the unpredictable 
public unrest that continued to occur at most parts of 
the country were the major challenges the banking 
industry had faced. 

MESSAGE FROM THE
PRESIDENT
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Dear Shareholders and Stakeholders

In the year under review, we harnessed the enormous po-
tential of our human capital, digital solutions, excellent 
customer service orientation, and cost control strategies 
to grow our business and enhance efficiency, which cul-
minated in a glorious performance. The bank has created 
job opportunities for 5,212 with 577 new additions during 
the just ended fiscal year. Moreover, the Bank had given 
various local and overseas training to 6,317 employees in 
an intention to have skilled and well-disciplined human 
resource. 

 Since its establishment, OIB had been expressing its com-
mitment to focus on innovation and endeavoring to de-
ploy advanced technologies to meet expectations of our 
customers. Our array of products, services and alternative 
channels that ensure convenience, speed and security of 
transactions, and our commitment to deploy the state-of-
the-art technology has assured that we maintain our lead-
ership in the digital space through ensuring the growth in 
our service outlets thereby significantly raising our out-
reach. To mention a few efforts: 

*	 Our new IT Systems Projects including complete CBS 
has gone live and is now enhancing the quality of our 
network system; 

*	 We have significantly expanded our service outlets to 
get closer to our customers and seize new target mar-
kets—our branches reached 265 and we had recruited 
227 Oro-agents for our agent banking service across the 
country while we have about 84,661 Oro cash (mobile 
banking) user customers. 

*	 We had deployed 77 ATM machines that joined the na-
tion’s ATM networks that connected thousands of ATMs 
via national switch by Ethswitch S.C and our Oro-card 
users reached 121,831 as at June 30, 2019.

Respected Shareholders,

During the reporting year, OIB has yet again managed to 
register positive results withstanding the ever-growing 
industry competition and the difficult business environ-
ment.  OIB’s total asset significantly grew by 34% to Birr 
31.8 billion as at June 30, 2019, compared to preceding 
year’s position of Birr 23.8 billion. Deposit balance reached 
Birr 26.6 billion as at June 30, 2019, showing 33% growth 
with a net increment of Birr 6.7 billion. Loans plus IFB fi-
nancing had climbed to Birr 17.4 billion as at June 30, 
2019, exhibiting a 50% growth.  The total foreign currency 
generated during the year was USD 342 million showing 
a modest growth of 9% compared to last year same peri-
od achievement against the decline in the national export 
earnings. 

During the year, Our Bank registered a total income of Birr 
3.2 billion growing at 31% compared to last year’s same 
period. In the same period, the Bank has incurred a total 
expense of Birr 2.2 billion to generate that revenue, show-
ing a growing rate of 46%. The jump in the expense growth 
rate was mainly due to significant growth in interest ex-
pense and General and Administrative expenses. OIB has, 
however, concluded the 2018/2019 fiscal year operation 
with a massive Profit before tax of Birr one billion, mod-
estly higher than last year same period by 7% which once 
again substantiates the Bank’s steadiness and strength of 
maintaining growth in profit even after extraordinary sig-
nificant profit of base year.

I am very proud to be part of this history making moment 
for OIB. I am also humbled by the continuous support of 
our shareholders, without whom our successes would not 
have been possible. The strong support, trust and loyalty of 
our customers is also priceless for which we would always 
remain grateful. I would like to extend my heartfelt grati-
tude to our Board of Directors whose unflinching support 
and leadership is irreplaceable.  Our on-going collective ef-
forts to deliver exemplary value will be paramount in guar-
anteeing our profitability and the long-term sustainability 
of our business. My fellow management members and the 
entire staff deserve my appreciation for the commitment 
and dedication they displayed at all operational fronts.  

Last, but not least, my sincere appreciation goes to the Na-
tional Bank of Ethiopia for their constructive supervisory 
supports which was complementary for our prudence. I 
am also grateful to our External Auditor (TAY Authorized 
Accountants and Auditors), KPMG East Africa, Oromia 
Regional State, Finfinne City Administration, Ethswitch, 
ECX, Ethio Telecom, Ethiopian Electric Power Corporation, 
Domestic Banks, Our Correspondent Banks, Remittance 
Agents, and all stakeholders for their trust in partnering 
with us and for their continued support and cooperation.

Finally, I would like to recommence our firm commitment 
that we, at OIB, will always endeavor diligently to ensure 
excellence in all our services with a bigger goal in our 
hearts to realizing our vision—To Become the Bank of 
Your First Choice.

I thank you all!

Abie Sano

President, OIB
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS of 2018/19 
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OIB’s Key Performance Trend as of June 2019   Amount In “million” 
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1.	 OVERVIEW OF  OPERATIONAL PER-
FORMANCE
 

In the midst of teetering global and local economy and industry’s stiffer competition, OIB 
continues registering laudable growth in almost all parameters. 

The pleasing result was due to unflinching efforts that had been exerted by the Board of Directors, Management and the 
entire staffs of the Bank. This part of the report hereby presents the high-level performance of the year with emphasis on 
achievements, challenges, and future overall directions of the business of the Bank. 



Annual Report 2018/19 17

1.OVERVIEW OF OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
 In the midst of teetering global and local economy and 
industry’s stiffer competition, OIB continues registering 
laudable growth in almost all parameters. The pleasing 
result was due to unflinching efforts that had been exert-
ed by the Board of Directors, Management and the entire 
staffs of the Bank. This part of the report hereby presents 
the high-level performance of the year with emphasis on 
achievements, challenges, and future overall directions of 
the business of the Bank. 

1.1	 Deposit Mobilization
Amid industry’s stiff competition especially in deposit 
area, the Bank keeps showing laudable growth in deposit 
performance. In the fiscal year 2018/19, OIB’s total depos-
it reached Birr 26.6 billion exceeding the preceding year’s 
similar period achievement by 33 percent with a net incre-
ment of Birr 6.7 billion. 

Chart 1: Deposit Composition by Type

As the deposit structure of the Bank indicates, share of 
fixed deposit and saving deposits grew by 2 and 1 percent-
age point respectively during the year under review while 
that of demand deposit declined by 3 percentage points 
from the last year similar period.

 Loans and Advances Including IFB Financing
The total outstanding loans and advances plus IFB financ-
ing of the Bank reached Birr 17.4 billion as at June 30, 2019, 
exhibiting a growth of 50% over the position attained at 
the end of the preceding year.

By its loans and advances plus IFB financing, OIB has 
reached all sectors of the economy despite difference on 
the share of the sectors. Regarding the composition of 
credit and financing, Domestic Trade and Services (DTS) 
is taking the highest share of 30.6% of the portfolio fol-
lowed by Export 23.4% share, Construction 12.1%, Indus-
try 10.4%, Import 7.0%, Hotel and Tourism 5.6% and mort-
gage also 5.3% share during the year. 

 

Chart-2: Loans and Advances plus IFB financing by Eco-
nomic Sector during 2018/19

1.2	 International Banking Services
 Foreign currency mobilization is one of the crucial com-
ponents of the overall resource mobilization strategy OIB 
has devised. Accordingly, the total foreign currency inflow 
including purchase and dealings during the year under 
review had reached USD 342 million. Earning from Export 
stood at USD 175 million while inward transfers were 134 
million USD. And the forex purchase and forex dealing al-
together generated USD 32 million.

Chart 3: Breakdown of Foreign currency generation in Million
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1.2 Loans and Advances Including IFB Financing 

The total outstanding loans and advances 

plus IFB financing of the Bank reached Birr 

17.4 billion as at June 30, 2019, exhibiting 

a growth of 50% over the position attained 
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By its loans and advances plus IFB 

financing, OIB has reached all sectors of 

the economy despite difference on the share 

of the sectors. Regarding the composition 

of credit and financing, Domestic Trade and 

Services (DTS) is taking the highest share 

of 30.6% of the portfolio followed by 

Export 23.4% share, Construction 12.1%, 

Industry 10.4%, Import 7.0%, Hotel and 

Tourism 5.6% and mortgage also 5.3% 

share during the year.  

Chart-2: Loans and Advances plus IFB financing by Economic Sector during 2018/19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

-=  

4,068.5 (23.4%) 

2,109.8 (12.1%) 

1,817.0 (10.4%) 

1,219.1 (7.0%) 

Export 

Construction 

Industry 

Import 

Hotel and tourism 

Transport and communication 

Mortgage loan  

Agriculture 

Consumer and Personal 

Emergency staff loans 

Microfinance institution 

975.4 (5.6%) 

922.4 (5.3%) 

357.3 (2.1%) 

327.2 (1.9%) 

126.4 (0.7%) 

123.5 (0.7%) 

42.5 (0.2%) 

5,329.5 (30.6%) 
Domestic trade and services 

Total = 17,418.6 Million 

 

Chart 3: Breakdown of Foreign currency generation in Million 

FCY Generation in 2017/18 FCY Generation in 2018/19 

  

  

Chart 4: Income composition for the financial year ended June 30, 2019 
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2. Financial Performance
2.1 Income

 

During the reporting year, OIB managed to generate total 
revenue of Birr 3.2 billion showing an increment of Birr 763 
million or 31% relative to the balance achieved in 2017/18 
fiscal year.

Chart 4: Income composition for the financial year ended 
June 30, 2019

2.2 Expense
 

In 2018/19 budget year, the total expense of OIB rose to 
Birr 2.2 billion, exhibiting 46% rise over the previous year’s 
level of Birr 1.5 billion. 

The jump in expense was mainly due to interest expense 
and general and administrative expenses. 

 

Chart 3: Breakdown of Foreign currency generation in Million 

FCY Generation in 2017/18 FCY Generation in 2018/19 
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61%20%

13%
6%

69%

20%

5%
6%

Interest income from Loans and 
advances
Fee and commission income

Other operating income

Income from IFB and 
investment products

Export Proceeds 

Inward Transfer 

Forex Purchase 

Forex Dealing 

1	

2	

3	

4	

66.2% 

31.3% 

2.1% 
0.4% 0.4% 

9.1% 

39.3% 

51.3% 

	

6	 OIB Annual Bulletin 2018/19 FY 

	

 

2.2 Expense 
In 2018/19 budget year, the total expense 

of OIB rose to Birr 2.2 billion, exhibiting 

46% rise over the previous year’s level of 

Birr 1.5 billion. The jump in expense was 

mainly due to interest expense and general 

and administrative expenses.  

Table 1: Composition of Expense by type as at June 2019 

 

2.3 Profit 
Profit before tax hit yet another record 

high and reached Birr 1.00 billion, higher 

by 7% compared to last year the same 

period of Birr 938 million. OIB has 

managed to generate a net profit of Birr 

740 million after holding provision of Birr 

261.3 million for income tax of the fiscal 

year.  

2.4 Return on Asset and Capital 
Return on asset (ROA) expressed as the 

ratio of profit before tax to average assets 

of OIB is 3.6% for the financial year 

2018/19, while return on Equity (ROE) 

expressed as the ratio of profit before tax 

to average capital is 31.8%. These ratios 

basically measure management efficiency 

in utilization of assets and capital in 

converting to profit and the higher ratio is 

better. Moreover, the net profit margin of 

the Bank (net profit after tax divided by 

total income) is 23.1% for the year ended 

June 30, 2019. Likewise, earning per share 

of the Bank (net profit divided by average 

number of shares outstanding) is Birr 374 

indicating a single share with par value of 

Birr one thousand earned a return of Birr 

374 on average.  

 

 

Table 2: Performance indicator for 2018/19

2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18
Interest expense 837               543             54             37.5          35.5      
Personnel expenses 799               623             28             35.8          40.7      
Other operating expenses 365               267             37             16.4          17.5      
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 69                 54               28             3.1            3.5        
Loan impairment charge 153               18               734           6.9            1.2        
Impairment losses on other assets 3                   11               (75)           0.1            0.7        
Amortisation of intangible assets 4                   13               (66)           0.2            0.9        
Distribution to depositors- IFB Products 0                   0.17            (92)           0.0            0.0        

Total 2,230            1,530          45.7          100.0        100.0    

Amount in Birr Million Share
GrowthExpense by Type

Table 1: Composition of Expense by type as at June 2019
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2.3 Profit

 Profit before tax hit yet another record high and exceed-
ed Birr one billion, higher by 7% compared to last year the 
same period of Birr 938 million. OIB has managed to gener-
ate a net profit of Birr 740 million after holding provision of 
Birr 261.3 million for income tax of the fiscal year. 

 2.4  Return on Asset and Capital

 Return on asset (ROA) expressed as the ratio of profit be-
fore tax to average assets of OIB is 3.6% for the financial 
year 2018/19, while return on Equity (ROE) expressed as 
the ratio of profit before tax to average capital is 31.8%. 
These ratios basically measure management efficiency in 
utilization of assets and capital in converting to profit and 
the higher ratio is better.

Table 2: Performance indicator for 2018/19 

Moreover, the net profit margin of the Bank (net profit af-
ter tax divided by total income) is 23.1% for the year ended 
June 30, 2019. Likewise, earning per share of the Bank (net 
profit divided by average number of shares outstanding) is 
Birr 374 indicating a single share with par value of Birr one 
thousand earned a return of Birr 374 on average.
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S/No Particulars 2018/19 2017/18 Percentage point/ 
Absolute change Growth 

1 Return on Asset (ROA) 3.6% 4.7% (1.1%) (23.4) 

2 Return on Capital (ROC) 31.8% 45.1% (13.3%) (29.5) 

3 Net Profit Margin 23.1% 29.5% (6.4%) (21.7) 

4 Average Earning Per Share 374 525 (151) (28.8) 

5 Average Dividend Per Share 307 277 30 10.8 

2.5 Distribution of Net Profit 
The Bank has secured net profit of Birr 

745.9 million after income tax provision of 

Birr 261.3 million. In accordance with the 

Articles of Association of the Bank and 

Proclamation No 592/2008 article 19 of 

the Licensing and Supervision of Banking, 

25% of the profit after tax (184.9 million) 

is transferred to legal reserve until the 

balance reaches 100% of the paid-up 

capital. 

Provision under prudential guidelines are 

determined using the time-based 

provisioning prescribed by the National 

Bank of Ethiopia (NBE) Directives. This is 

at variance with the expected credit loss 

model required by IFRS under IFRS-9. 

When the difference occurs between the 

two approaches, the IFRS provision should 

be compared with provisions determined 

under the NBE Directives and the 

difference is treated as follow; 

� If prudential provision is greater 

than IFRS provision; the excess 

provision resulting should be 

transferred from the retained 

earnings account to regulatory risk 

reserve. 

If prudential provision is less IFRS 

provision; IFRS determined 

provision is charged to the 

statement of comprehensive 

income. The cumulative balance in 

the regulatory risk reserve is 

thereafter reversed to the Retained 

Earning account. 

Accordingly, Birr 121.5 million is 

transferred from regulatory risk 

reserve to retained earning account 

as the provision computed as per 

IFRS is greater than the prudential 

provision under NBE directives by 

the same amount. 

Due to other IFRS-9 adjustments as 

indicated in the audited financial 

statement note 29, the overall net 

transferred to retained earnings is 

reduced to Birr 52 million from 

121.5 million.   

MULTIPLE CHOICE 
FOR WORLD WIDE 
TRANSFER

ORO CARD
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2.5 Distribution of Net Profit
 The Bank has secured net profit of Birr 740 million after 
income tax provision of Birr 261.3 million. In accordance 
with the Articles of Association of the Bank and Proclama-
tion No 592/2008 article 19 of the Licensing and Supervi-
sion of Banking, 25% of the profit after tax (184.9 million) is 
transferred to legal reserve until the balance reaches 100% 
of the paid-up capital.

Provisions under prudential guidelines are determined 
using the time-based provisioning prescribed by the Na-
tional Bank of Ethiopia (NBE) Directives. This is at variance 
with the expected credit loss model required by IFRS un-
der IFRS-9. When the difference occurs between the two 
approaches, the IFRS provision should be compared with 
provisions determined under the NBE Directives and the 
difference is treated as follow;

*	 If prudential provision is greater than IFRS provision; the 
excess provision resulting should be transferred from 
the retained earnings account to regulatory risk reserve.

*	 If prudential provision is less than IFRS provision; IFRS 
determined provision is charged to the statement of 
comprehensive income. The cumulative balance in the 
regulatory risk reserve is thereafter reversed to the Re-
tained Earning account.

Accordingly, Birr 121.5 million is transferred from regulato-
ry risk reserve to retained earning account as the provision 
computed as per IFRS is greater than the prudential provi-
sion under NBE directives by the same amount.

Due to other IFRS-9 adjustments as indicated in the au-
dited financial statement note 29, the overall net amount 
transferred to retained earnings is reduced to Birr 52 mil-
lion from 121.5 million.  

Thus, the Board of Directors requests the General Assem-
bly to approve distribution of Birr 613 million to the share-
holders.

3.RESOURCE BUILDING

3.1 Human Resources

Human capital remains the prime asset of the Bank who al-
ways orchestrates awe-inspiring success. The Bank is con-
tinuously working on improving the quality of its human 
resources, from the very top to the bottommost recruits. 
To further enrich their skills and strengthen their capacity 
through providing various trainings, the Bank invested 2% 
of its recurrent expenditure on staff training and develop-
ment during the just ended financial year.

OIB created employment opportunity for 5,212 citizens as 
at June 30, 2019.

3.2 Information Technology
Today, when the world is increasingly turning digital, it is 
really unthinkable to run businesses like Banks without en-
gaging state-of-the-art information technology. Technolo-
gy is enabling businesses to automate numerous process-
es, which thereby increases productivity. To this end, OIB is 
hugely investing on IT infrastructures and systems.

The Bank adopted new core-banking system which is now 
fully operational. OIB is qualitatively and quantitatively 
improving its Electronic banking services. As at June 30, 
2019, OIB has deployed 77 ATM machines and there are 
121,831 Oro -card users while the number of Oro-cash 
(mobile banking) users reached 84,661. The Bank also re-
cruited 227 Oro-Agents across the country. 

3.3 Branch Expansion  
The core focus of OIB is getting closer to its customers, ac-
cessing financial services to the society and reaching out 
new markets. For this, to be successful, therefore, further 
expanding branches is inevitable. Thus, OIB opened addi-
tional 17 new branches in the year under review and the 
Bank’s branches grew to 265 as at June 30, 2019.

4.INTEREST FREE BANKING (IFB) PERFORMANCE
Oromia International Bank S.C. (OIB), a private financial 
institution, becomes the first to implement Interest Free 
Banking Services in Ethiopia. By using a separate window 
along with the other banking services, the Bank offers a 
wide range of deposit, financing and various banking 
products and/or services.

In this section, OIB’s IFB financial and operational perfor-
mance is separately presented even though it was already 
included and presented in the corporate figures.
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portfolio of the Bank covered a wide range 

of sectors of the economy. Among these, 

Export Facility Financing took the lion’s 

share followed by Domestic Trade and 

Services.  

The IFB financing outstanding balance has 

reached 10.46% of the total corporate 

consolidated loans and advances plus IFB 

financing from its 13.6% of last year. 

Table 4: Composition of IFB financing by sector 

 

4.3 IFB Foreign Currency Generation 

At the end of the financial year under 

review, the IFB window has generated a 

total foreign currency of USD 24.4 million 

demonstrating a decline of 50% from last 

year similar period USD 48.4 million. 

During 2018/19, IFB’s window FCY 

generation has contributed 7.4% of 

aggregate corporate total FCY generation. 

	

4.4 IFB Income  

The IFB window has generated a total 

income of Birr 244 million during the 

financial year 2018/19 showing a growth 

of 9% from last year amount of Birr 223 

million. Out of the total corporate 

consolidated income, IFB income 

constitutes 7.6%.  

Table 5: IFB Income by type as AT June 30, 2019 

2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18
Interest Free Export Facility 208                        482                   (57)         11.4       30.4              
Domestic Trade and Services 648                        409                   59          35.6       25.8              
 Industry 330                        185                   78          18.1       11.7              
 Import 159                        169                   (6)           8.7         10.7              
 Construction 251                        123                   105        13.8       7.7                
 Transport and Communication 107                        118                   (9)           5.9         7.5                
 Agriculture 101                        87                     15          5.5         5.5                
 Hotel and Tourism 18                          12                     54          1.0         0.7                
Total 1,822                     1,586                15          100.0     100.0            

IFB Financing By Economic Sector
Amount in Birr Million

Growth
Share
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4.1 IFB Fund Mobilization

 During the year under review, OIB has intensified its de-
posit mobilization efforts by using different acquisition 
strategies and offering different kinds of IFB deposit prod-
ucts to its customers. As a result, the Bank mobilized Birr 
4.16 billion through Interest Free Banking Services which 
shows an absolute growth of Birr 1.14 billion or 38%, as 
compared to the balance of Birr 3.01 billion of the previous 
year. 

4.2  IFB Financing

At the close of the reporting period, the total IFB Financing 
availed to different economic sectors reached over Birr 

1.82 billion, up by Birr 237 million or 15% from the last year 
similar period. As a result, the financing to deposit ratio 
of the IFB of the Bank stood at 0.44:1; which happened to 
be less than the last year’s 0.52:1 of the same period. In 
terms of sector wise distribution, IFB financing portfolio of 
the Bank covered a wide range of sectors of the economy. 
Among these, Export Facility Financing took the lion’s

During the reporting period, IFB deposit by category re-
vealed that, Wadiah deposit accounted for 68.6% and 
Amana deposit took 31.4%. On the other hand, the IFB 
deposit of the Bank constituted 15.6% of the consolidated 
corporate deposit portfolio compared with 15.12% share 
of last year performance showing incremental progres-
sion.

share followed by Domestic Trade and Services. 

The IFB financing outstanding balance has reached 10.46% 
of the total corporate consolidated loans and advances 
plus IFB financing from its 13.6% of last year.
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Oromia International Bank S.C. (OIB), a 

private financial institution, becomes the 

first to implement Interest Free Banking 

Services in Ethiopia. By using a separate 

window along with the other banking 

services, the Bank offers a wide range of 

deposit, financing and various banking 

products and/or services. 

In this section, OIB’s IFB financial and 

operational performance is separately 

presented even though it was already 

included and presented in the corporate 

figures. 

 

4.1 IFB Fund Mobilization 

During the year under review, OIB has 

intensified its deposit mobilization efforts 

by using different acquisition strategies 

and offering different kinds of IFB deposit 

products to its customers. As a result, the 

Bank mobilized Birr 4.16 billion through 

Interest Free Banking Services which 

shows an absolute growth of Birr 1.14 

billion or 38%, as compared to the balance 

of Birr 3.01 billion of the previous year. 

During the reporting period, IFB deposit 

by category revealed that, Wadiah deposit 

accounted for 68.6% and Amana deposit 

took 31.4%. On the other hand, the IFB 

deposit of the Bank constituted 15.6% of 

the consolidated corporate deposit 

portfolio compared with 15.12% share of 

last year performance showing incremental 

progression. 

Table 3: IFB Deposit breakdown by type 

 

4.2 IFB Financing 

At the close of the reporting period, the 

total IFB Financing availed to different 

economic sectors reached over Birr 1.82 

billion, up by Birr 237 million or 15% 

from the last year similar period. As a 

result, the financing to deposit ratio of the 

IFB of the Bank stood at 0.44:1; which 

happened to be less than the last year’s 

0.52:1 of the same period. In terms of 

sector wise distribution, IFB financing 

2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18
Wadi'ah deposits 2,848            2,102          35            68.6        69.8        
Amana deposits 1,307            911             43            31.4        30.2        
Mudharaba deposits -               0.25            (100)         -          0.0          

Total 4,155            3,013          38            100.0      100.0      

IFB deposit By Type
Amount in Birr Million

Growth
Share
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The IFB financing outstanding balance has 
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4.3 IFB Foreign Currency Generation 

At the end of the financial year under 

review, the IFB window has generated a 

total foreign currency of USD 24.4 million 

demonstrating a decline of 50% from last 

year similar period USD 48.4 million. 

During 2018/19, IFB’s window FCY 

generation has contributed 7.4% of 

aggregate corporate total FCY generation. 

	

4.4 IFB Income  

The IFB window has generated a total 

income of Birr 244 million during the 

financial year 2018/19 showing a growth 

of 9% from last year amount of Birr 223 

million. Out of the total corporate 

consolidated income, IFB income 

constitutes 7.6%.  

Table 5: IFB Income by type as AT June 30, 2019 

2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18
Interest Free Export Facility 208                        482                   (57)         11.4       30.4              
Domestic Trade and Services 648                        409                   59          35.6       25.8              
 Industry 330                        185                   78          18.1       11.7              
 Import 159                        169                   (6)           8.7         10.7              
 Construction 251                        123                   105        13.8       7.7                
 Transport and Communication 107                        118                   (9)           5.9         7.5                
 Agriculture 101                        87                     15          5.5         5.5                
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IFB Financing By Economic Sector
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Table 4: Composition of IFB financing by sector

Table 3: IFB Deposit breakdown by type
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4.3 IFB Foreign Currency Generation
 

At the end of the financial year under review, the IFB win-
dow has generated a total foreign currency of USD 24.4 
million demonstrating a decline of 50% from last year sim-
ilar period USD 48.4 million. During 2018/19, IFB’s window 
FCY generation has contributed 7.4% of aggregate corpo-
rate total FCY generation.

4.4 IFB Income 
 The IFB window has generated a total income of Birr 244 
million during the financial year 2018/19 showing a growth 
of 9% from last year amount of Birr 223 million. Out of the 
total corporate consolidated income, IFB income consti-
tutes 7.6%. 

4.5	 IFB Expense
 

During the period under review, the expense of IFB win-
dow reached Birr 27 million showing 4% decline from last 
year similar period. Personnel expenses and other operat-
ing expenses constitutes 64.1% of the total IFB expenses 
followed by loan impairment charge of 35.8%. 

 

Table 6: IFB Expense by type as at June 30, 2019
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4.5 IFB Expense 

During the period under review, the 

expense of IFB window reached Birr 27 

million showing 4% decline from last year 

similar period. Personnel expenses and 

other operating expenses constitutes 64.1% 

of the total IFB expenses followed by loan 

impairment charge of 35.8%.  

Table 6: IFB Expense by type as at June 30, 2019 

	

4.6 IFB Profit  

During the financial year 2018/19, IFB 

window has generated profit of Birr 217 

million demonstrating a growth of 11% 

from last year level of Birr 195 million. It 

contributed 22% to the corporate profit of 

the Bank. 

 

Table 7: IFB Profit as at June 30, 2019 

4.7 Expansion of IFB Window and Customer Base 

2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18
Income from Muaraba Financing 181               137                33                   74.3            61.3          
Fee and commission income 63                 84                  (26)                 25.6            37.7          
Other operating income 0                   2.2                 (92)                 0.1              1.0            
Total 244               223                9                     100.0          100.0        

IFB Income
Amount in Birr Million

Growth
Share

2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18
Personnel expenses and other operating expense 18               15               15             64.1          53.5          
Loan impairment charge 10               9                 4               35.8          33.0          
Impairment losses on other assets -              4                 (100)          -            12.9          
Distribution to depositors- IFB Products 0.0              0                 (92)            0.0            0.6            

Total 27               28               (4)              100.0        100.0        

IFB Expense
Amount in Birr Million

Growth
Share

2018/19 2017/18 2018/19 2017/18
IFB Income 244             223             9.4            7.6% 9.0%
IFB Expense 27               28               (3.9)           1.2% 1.9%

Profit 217             195             11             22% 21%

IFB Profit Amount in Birr Million Growth Share From Corporate
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4.6	 IFB Profit 
 

During the financial year 2018/19, IFB window has gener-
ated profit of Birr 217 million demonstrating a growth of 
11% from last year level of Birr 195 million. It contributed 
22% to the corporate profit of the Bank.

Table 7: IFB Profit as at June 30, 2019

4.7 Expansion of IFB Window & Customer Base
OIB is providing a full-fledged Sharia-compliant Interest 
Free Banking Service at almost all of its branches, 263 out of 
265 branches. In view of customer base, the number of IFB 
customer is significantly increasing year-on-year in which 
it has reached 328,269 showing an incremental growth by 
32.04% from its last year customer base of 248,614. This 
indicates that the customers have big trust on our services 
for which we are dedicated in offering the products and/
or services that best fits our esteemed customers’ banking 
needs. Besides, consistent growth in the customer base of 
the IFB services has significantly increased transactional 
accounts and volumes strongly. Thus, the Bank believes 
that establishing customer relationships alongside acqui-
sition of new customers underpins the sustainable growth 
of its business. 

5.CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
5.1.	 Appointment, Composition, Size and 
Qualifications of Board of Directors

OIB’s members of the Board of Directors (BOD) were nom-
inated and elected among the shareholders through well 
established and transparent process handled by an inde-
pendently organized Nomination Committee. 

The General Assembly of Shareholders voted as per their 
respective shareholdings for preferred candidates from 
the proposed nominees and aggregate high voted candi-
dates in their sequence and in terms of earned votes had 

been submitted to the regulator for review and approval; 
and the regulator (NBE) gave final approval after checking 
the fulfillment of directors fit and proper requirement laid 
down in the relevant directive.

The BOD consists of 12 members fulfilling a mixture of 
gender and core competencies, representation of the in-
terest of non- influential shareholders and educational 
qualification as per the corporate governance directives 
of NBE.

5.2.	 Structure of the Board
 The BOD has a Chairperson, a Vice Chairperson, Secretary 
and three sub-committees namely Internal Audit, Risk and 
Compliance and Human Resources and Business Affairs.

 

5.3.	 The Functions of the Board
 The BOD has ultimate responsibility for the Bank’s business 
strategy and financial soundness, key personnel decisions, 
internal organization and governance structure and prac-
tices, and risk management and compliance obligations.
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5.4.	 Role of the Board of Directors-Committee
 Internal Audit Sub- committee
The Audit sub-committee is established to provide inde-
pendent oversight of the bank’s financial reporting and 
internal control system and ensuring check and balance 
within the Bank.

Risk Management and Compliance Sub- Committee
The BOD Risk and Compliance Sub-Committee oversees 
senior management’s activities in managing credit, mar-
ket, liquidity, operational, legal and other risks to ensure 
that the competent risk management process is in place 
and functioning.

Human Resources and Business Affairs Sub- Committee
The primary objective of this committee is to provide for-
mal and transparent proposal on the employment and 
removal of senior management members if he/she is inef-
fective, errant or negligent in discharging his/her responsi-
bilities and on the overall compensation /benefits systems 
of the Bank. The Sub-committee also reviews annual plan 
and budget and the Bank’s performances as well as other 
business affairs. 

5.5.	 Directors’ Allowance
The directors are entitled to monthly allowance of Birr 
10,000.00 as well as a maximum annual remuneration of 
Birr 150,000.00 each, which are effected in accordance 
with the provisions of NBE directive SBB/63/2016.

5.6	  Internal Audit, Risk Management and 
Compliance

OIB has well organized and properly resourced Internal 
Audit and Risk Management and Compliance units func-
tionally reporting to the BOD and administratively to the 
President. The BOD deliberates and takes proper actions 
on reports of these functions at least on monthly basis.

5.7	 The President and Senior Management 
Officers

OIB’s day to day operations are run by the President and 
members of Senior Management Officers nominated by 
the BOD and approved by NBE after checking fulfillment 
of requirements established as per relevant directive. The 
President has established a number of committees which 
are assisting him to discharge his responsibilities in effec-
tive and efficient manner.

6.	 EXTERNAL AUDITORS
TAY Authorized Accountants and Auditors are OIB’s audi-
tors nominated by the General Assembly of Shareholders 
and Approved by NBE.

7.	 FUTURE PLANS
 The Bank 10th anniversary has been colorfully celebrated 
through series of events and activities until June 2019. Giv-
en the rapid growth it has achieved, OIB has indeed every 
reason to celebrate. The Bank will be believed that the next 
10 years will be even more re-sounding than this. 

OIB will further strengthen and continued to investing, 
implementing, enhancing and modernizing technolo-
gy-based banking solution for the purposes of providing 
fast, efficient and modern banking services to its custom-
ers. Accordingly, the Bank has been undertaking ongoing 
projects on the core-banking upgrading. Most of the proj-
ects are finalized and very few are expected to be finalized 
during the upcoming financial year. Thus, the upgrading 
of its technology will enhance customer service; improve 
management information system, and the overall syn-
chronization of operational activities of the Bank. 

In the coming financial year, the Bank will open new 
branches at different outlets and introduce new prod-
ucts in order to improve the financial accessibility. Among 
these, we shall introduce some saving deposit and credit 
products, expanding new card banking products, mobile 
banking and agent banking which are operational. On the 
other hand, the internet banking and POS terminal are on 
pilot test and will be implemented in this fiscal year. Thus, 
OIB is focusing largely on creating convenience for the 
Bank’s customers.

In OIB, human resource development is one of the primary 
concerns. Accordingly, the Bank will continue to focus on 
staff development and capacity building at all echelons by 
providing up-to-date trainings (both locally and interna-
tionally). In effect, their capability on providing efficient 
and effective services to our esteemed customers using 
new technologies and systems shall be boosted.

The Bank has recently added certain position to its exist-
ing organizational structure which will play a prominent 
role in the fulfillment of OIB’s strategy. The newly added 
organizational structure has taken the financial and non-fi-
nancial future growth of the Bank into consideration. As 
a result, it is expected to alleviate the constraints in the 
existing structure and accommodate the huge expansion 
strategy of the Bank. 

 During the fiscal year under review, OIB has been in the 
forefront in discharging its corporate social responsibili-
ties. The Bank seeks to promote sustainable business, to 
increase transparency, and to avoid negative environmen-
tal and social impacts from its core businesses. In addition, 
the Bank strives to manage its business operations sus-
tainably and embraces its responsibilities as a corporate 
citizen. Thus, OIB will continue its exemplary duties in car-
rying out Corporate Social Responsibilities for the coming 
fiscal year.
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The Bank is also working to build its future headquarters at 
future financial hub of the city, Senga Tera. Accordingly, we 
are very near and committed to commence the construc-
tion during succeeding fiscal year. Moreover, the Bank 
secured land and finalized a precondition to construct a 
training center and conventional center at Oromia Special 
Zone, Gelan Town. Also, certain preconditions are being 
fulfilled to get a plot of land from Finfinne City Adminis-
tration.

 8. INTRODUCTION OF IFRS -9 
AND 15 WITH ITS IMPACTS
  IFRS 9: Financial Instruments

OIB has adopted IFRS 9 issued in July 2014 with a date of 
initial application of 1 July 2018. The requirements of IFRS 
9 represent a significant change from IAS 39 Financial In-
struments: Recognition and Measurement. The new stan-
dard brings fundamental changes to the accounting for 
financial assets and to certain aspects of the accounting 
for financial liabilities.

OIB has not restated comparative information for 2018 
for financial instruments in the scope of IFRS 9. Therefore, 
the comparative information for 2018 does not reflect 
the requirements of IFRS 9 and is not comparable to the 
information presented for 2019. Differences arising from 
the adoption of IFRS 9 have been recognized directly in 
retained earnings as of 1 July 2018 as indicated in the au-
dited financial statement.

IFRS 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

 IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and is effective for annual 
periods commencing on or after 1 July 2018. IFRS 15 es-
tablishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue 
arising from contracts with customers. The adoption of 
IFRS 15 and other amendments to IFRSs which are effec-
tive for annual accounting period starting from 1 July 2018 
did not have any material impact on the accounting poli-
cies, financial position or performance of OIB.

Other amendments to IFRSs which are effective for annual 
accounting period starting from 1 July 2018 did not have 
any material impact on the accounting policies, financial 
position or performance of OIB.
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Projects
Financed

Corporate Social Responsibility

Alpha Food complex

Dinsa Regasssa Co�ee Farm

2.8 mln worth exercise book 
donation to AA City Administration

Tree Planting event 
by OIB Sta�

Blood donation event 
by OIB Sta� 
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Events of the Bank held 
During the year

9th General Meeting of Shareholders

Symposium organized by OIB 10th Anniversary Closing Dinner

10th Anniversary Road Show
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OROMIA INTERNATIONAL BANK S.C
SHARIAH ADVISORY COMMITTEE (SAC) STATEMENT FOR 
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Dear Shareholders of Oromia International Bank S.C; 
Pursuant to the Oromia International Bank S.C corporate governance framework and its provisions associat-
ed to Interest Free Banking Window, and in accordance with the Accounting and Auditing Organization for 
Islamic Financial Institutions Shariah Standard and the Bank’s Shariah Advisory Committee Charter, the SAC 
presents the following report.
Interest Free Banking Window offers a wide range of deposits, financing and various banking products and 
services irrespective of race, religion or company. 

We are honoured to announce that Oromia International Bank S.C through its IFBW has mobilized deposit 
of Birr 4.16 billion, generated FCY of USD 24.4 million, and earned profit before tax of Birr 217 million from 
Interest Free Banking business during the budget year ended June 30, 2019.  

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our review of the Bank’s operation, and 
report to you. Our monitoring comprised of reviewing several questions and inquiries forwarded by the Bank 
on issues related to sharia compliance on which we delivered our opinion. We have also undertaken several 
consultation meetings and exchanged views, with OIB’s board members and management, on overall sharia 
compliance assurance mechanism. 
Based on review of various Interest Free Banking reports and to the best of our knowledge, we are of the 
opinion that:  

a) The mechanisms in place to ensure Shari’a compliance of the overall operations and transaction of 
IFBW is workable and up to the general standard of Interest Free Banking operational modalities;

b) The contracts, transactions and dealings entered into by the Bank during the year ended June 30, 
2019 are generally in compliance with the Shari’a standards; 

c) All amounts realized from sources like penalties were not incorporated to the bank’s revenue. It is 
placed and reported separately in the charity account;

d) The allocation of profit and charging of losses relating to investment accounts conform to the basis 
that had been approved by us in accordance with Islamic Shari’a Rules and Principles;

e) The responsibility of paying Zakat falls on the shareholders. The Bank’s management is not authorized 
to pay Zakat directly, as there is no law to that effect, and the Bank’s Articles of Association do 
not stipulate such an action nor do the decisions of the General Assembly or the shareholders’ 
authorization.

f ) The Sharia Board has been provided adequate resources enabling it to discharge its duties and 
responsibilities effectively.
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We hope and anticipate that IFBW will continue to contribute more by upholding similar Sharia compliance 
dedication, implementations and applications without undermining the never-ending quest of customers 
and by addressing banking needs of the unbanked, serving the missing middle and accommodating all 
those who are far from banks due to their value system. 

Finally, the Sharia Advisory Committee takes this opportunity to express its gratitude to the Board of Di-
rectors, the Bank’s management and staffs for their co-operation and their keenness in understanding and 
adherence to the rules of the noble Sharia Principles. 

Thank you!

Sheik Hajji Ebrahim Tufa

SAC Chairperson

Dr JeilanGeleta Mami

SAC  Vice Chairperson

Sheik Nuradin Abda Alo

SAC Member
Sheik Abdulaziz Mohammad Said

SAC Member

Dr Mohammad Kamal Tilmo

SAC Member

Sheik Hajji Ebrahim Tufa
SAC Chairperson

Dr JeilanGeleta Mami 
SAC  Vice chairperson

Dr Mohammad Kamal Tilmo
SAC Member

Sheik Nuradin Abda Alo	
SAC Member

Sheik Abdulaziz Mohammad Said
SAC Member

SHARIAH ADVISORY COMMITTEE (SAC) MEMBERS
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Oromia International Bank S.C.

For the year ended 30 June 2019
Report of the directors	

The directors submit their report together with the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019, to the members of Oro-
mia International Bank S.C. (“OIB or the Bank”). This report discloses the financial performance and state of affairs of the Bank.	

Incorporation

Oromia International Bank  share company has been established in Addis Ababa as per the Commercial Code of Ethiopia 1960, and it 
was licensed by the National Bank of Ethiopia in September 2008 with the objective to engage in banking service in accordance with 
the Banking Business Proclamation number 592/2008 . The Bank  started operation in October 2008.

Principal activities

Oromia International Bank S.C (OIB) engages in full-fledged banking business as per Banking Business Proclamation of Ethiopia 
number 592/2008. Accordingly, it accepts deposits in the form of current (demand) deposits, saving deposits and fixed time 
deposits. To address the need of certain types of its customers some features are added on those deposit types such as diaspora 
deposit accounts. It also extends different types of credit products based on the need of its customers. Some of its credit prod-
ucts have terms ranging from short term to long term while others have revolving nature such as over draft and pre-shipment 
facilities. International trade facilitation through letter of credit and other means of payment is the other major business of the 
Bank. The Bank also undertakes both local and international money remittance services. Moreover, it has specialized services 
such as interest free banking services, card banking services, mobile banking and agent banking services.

Results and dividends

The Bank’s results for the year ended 30 June 2019 are set out below. The profit for the year has been transferred to retained earnings. 
The summarised results are presented below.

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Birr'000 Birr'000

Interest income  2,218,072  1,505,568 

Profit / (loss) before tax  1,001,346  938,042 
Tax (charge) / credit  255,493  210,337 
Profit / (loss) for the year  745,853  727,705 
Other comprehensive income / (loss) net of taxes  6,549  (2,779)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year  6,549  (2,779)

Directors	

The directors who held office during the year and to the date of this report are set out on page 1.				  

Solomon Geda		
Company Secretary	 				  
Addis Ababa, Ethiopia					   
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Oromia International Bank S.C.

For the year ended 30 June 2019
Statement of directors’ responsibilities

In accordance with the Banking Business  Proclamation No. 592/2008, the National Bank of Ethiopia (NBE) may direct 
the Bank to prepare financial statements in accordance with international financial reporting standards, whether their 
designation changes or they are replaced, from time to time.  

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in conformity 
with reporting requirements in Ethiopia and in the manner required by the Commercial Code of Ethiopia of 1960, and 
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Bank is required to  keep such records as 
are necessary to:

a)	 exhibit clearly and correctly the state of its affairs;				  

b)	 explain its transactions and financial position; and				  

c)	 enable the National Bank to determine whether the Bank had complied with the provisions of the Banking 
Business Proclamation and regulations and directives issued for the implementation of the aforementioned  
Proclamation. 								      

The Directors accepts responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate 
accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity with Internation-
al Financial Reporting Standards, Banking Business Proclamation, Commercial code of 1960 and the relevant Direc-
tives issued by the National Bank of Ethiopia.

The Directors  are of the opinion that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial 
affairs of the company and of its profit or loss. 

The Directors  further accept responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records that may be relied upon in the 
preparation of financial statements, as well as adequate systems of internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the company will not remain a going concern for 
at least twelve months from the date of this statement.

Signed on behalf of the Directors by:			   		
					   
					   
					   
					   
					   
	 				  

Obbo Gadissa Bultosa				    Obbo Abie Sano		
Chairman of Board of Directors			   President	 	
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Oromia International Bank S.C.

For the year ended 30 June 2019
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Notes Birr’000 Birr’000

Interest income from Loans and advances 6  2,218,072  1,505,568 
Income from Interest free financing and investment products 7  181,386  136,825 
Less:Interest expense 8  836,803  543,432 
Less:Distribution to depositors- Interest Free Banking Products 9  13  166 

Net interest income and income from Interest Free Banking 
products net of distribution to depositors 1,562,642  1,098,795  

Fee and commission income 9  654,204  505,551 
Less:Fee and commission expense 9  -    -   

Net fees and commission income  654,204  505,551 
Other operating income 10  177,641  320,463 

Total operating income  2,394,487  1,924,809 

Loan impairment charge 11  152,921  18,345 
Impairment losses on other assets 12  2,881  11,378 

Net operating income  2,238,685  1,895,086 
Less:
Personnel expenses 13  798,704  622,671 
Amortisation of intangible assets 20  4,409  13,132 
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 21  68,802  53,866 
Other operating expenses 14  365,424  267,375 

Profit before tax  1,001,346  938,042 

Less:Income tax expense 15  255,493  210,337 

Profit after tax  745,853  727,705 

Other comprehensive income (OCI) net on income tax

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified into profit or loss:

Remeasurement gain/(loss) on retirement benefits obligations 26  (6,951)  (2,779)
Net change in equity investment at FVOCI 19  13,500  -   
Deferred tax (liability)/asset on remeasurement gain or loss 15  -  

Total other comprehensive income for the period 6,549  (2,779) 

Earnings per share of Ethiopian Birr 1000 28  374 525

The notes on pages 42 to 135 are an integral part of these financial statements.				  
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Oromia International Bank S.C.

For the year ended 30 June 2019
Statement of financial position

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Notes Birr'000 Birr'000

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 16  5,120,927  5,809,127 
Loans and advances to customers 17  15,323,833  9,968,573 
Interest Free Financing 18  1,890,738  1,621,293 
Investment securities:
     - Financial assets at fair value through 
OCI (2018-AFS) 19  95,478  68,705 

     -Financial assets at amortized cost 
(2018-Loans and Receivables) 19  7,073,001  4,855,817 

Other assets 20  1,466,746  791,474 
Intangible assets 20  3,556  6,964 
Property, plant and equipment 21  774,084  642,591 
Deferred tax assets 15  -    -   

 31,748,364  23,764,544 
Non-current assets held for sale 22  30,942  32,185 

Total assets  31,779,308  23,796,732 

LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers 23  22,434,183  16,913,738 
Interest Free customers' deposits 24  4,154,943  3,013,277 
Current tax liabilities 15  261,305  210,658 
Deferred tax liabilities 13  7,840  13,902 
Other liabilities 25  1,167,522  1,026,786 
Retirement benefit obligations 26  40,934  26,925 

Total liabilities  28,066,727  21,205,286 

EQUITY
Share capital 27  2,385,981  1,606,949 
Share premium  7,694  7,694 
Retained earnings 29  613,086  383,710 
Legal reserve 30  642,233  457,285 
Regulatory risk reserve 31  66,838  145,605 
Other Reserve 24  (3,248)  (9,797)

Total equity  3,712,583  2,591,446 

Total equity and liabilities  31,779,308  23,796,732 

The notes on pages 42 to 135 are an integral part of these financial statements.			 
			 
The financial statements on pages 42 to 135 were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 05 
November 2019 and were signed on its behalf by:			 

Obbo Gadissa Bultosa
Chairman of Board of Directors

Obbo Abie Sano
President
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Oromia International Bank S.C.

For the year ended 30 June 2019
Statement of changes in equity

Share  
capital

Share 
premium

Retained 
earnings

Legal  
reserve

Other 
reserve

Regulatory 
risk 

reserve
Total

Notes Birr’000 Birr’000 Birr’000 Birr’000 Birr’000 Birr’000 Birr’000

As at 1 July 2018  1,606,949  7,694  383,710  457,285  (9,797)  145,605  
2,591,446 

Profit for the year 29  -    -    745,853  -    -    -    745,853 
Reversal of loans and IFB 
financing loss allowance 
recoginzed as per IAS 39

29  -    -    133,426  -    -    -    133,426 

Day one IFRS 9 transition 
adjustment for loans and IFB 
financing

29  -    -    (172,762)  -    -    -    (172,762)

Reversal of other assets loss 
allowance recoginzed as per 
IAS 39

29  -    -    18,017  -    -    -    18,017 

Day one IFRS 9 transition 
adjustment for other assets 29  -    -    (3,756)  -    -    -    (3,756)

Other comprehensive income:  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Net change in equity 
investment at FVOCI 19  -    -    -    -    13,500  -    13,500 

Re-measurement gains on 
defined benefit plans (net of 
tax)

26  -    -    -    -    (6,951)  -    (6,951)

Prior year (over)/ under 
provision 29  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Directors' Share on Profit  -    -    (1,511)  -    -    -    (1,511)
Proceeds from issue of shares 29  468,334  -    -    -    -    -    468,334 
Dividend capitalised 29  310,698  -    (310,698)  -    -    -    -   
Transfer to legal reserve 29  -    -    (184,948)  184,948  -    -    -   
Dividends paid 29  -    -    (54,276)  -    -    -    (54,276)
Dividend held in payable 
account 29  -    (18,737)  -    -    -    (18,737)

Transfer to regulatory risk 
reserve 31  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Suspended Interest 
transferred to  regulatory risk 
reserve account

31  -    -    (41,351)  -    -    41,351  -   

Suspended Interest 
transferred to  Retained 
earnings being collected in 
cash 

31  -    -    14,586  -    -    (14,586)  -   

Transfer to  regulatory risk 
reserve for excess NBE 
Provision for other Assets

 (16,008)  16,008  -   

Transfer to retained earnings 
for excess NBE provisions for 
Loans and Advances no longer 
required on application of 
IFRS 9

31  -    -    121,540  -    -    (121,540)  -   

Total Change in equity for the 
year  779,032  -    229,376  184,948  6,549  (78,767)  

1,121,137 

As at 30 June 2019  2,385,981  7,694  613,086  642,233  (3,248)  66,838  3,712,583 
The notes on pages 42 to 135 are an integral part of these financial statements.



Annual Report 2018/19 41

Oromia International Bank S.C.

For the year ended 30 June 2019
Statement of cash flow

  30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Notes Birr'000 Birr'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 32  1,184,620  3,522,268 
Interest received  -    -   
Defined benefits paid  (581)  (354)
Income tax paid  (210,658)  (90,139)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities  973,382  3,431,775 

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investment securities 19  (2,243,957)  (1,399,070)
Purchase of intangible assets 20  (1,002)  (8,467)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 21  (199,166)  (105,246)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 32  -   
Proceed on disposal of Asset held for sale 22

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities  (2,444,124)  (1,512,783)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issues of shares 27  468,334  291,157 
Dividend paid  (54,276)  (39,443)
Directors' Share on Profit  (1,511)  (894)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities  412,548  250,820 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (1,058,195)  2,169,812 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 16  4,809,127  2,639,314 

Foreign exchange (losses)/ gains on cash and cash equivalents  -    -   

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 16  3,750,927  4,809,127 
 
The notes on pages 42 to 135 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Oromia International Bank S.C.

For the year ended 30 June 2019
Notes to the financial statements

1	 General information
Oromia International Bank S.C. (“ the Bank”) is a private commercial Bank domiciled in Ethiopia. The Bank was 
established on September 18,2008 in accordance with the provisions of the Commercial Code of Ethiopia of 
1960 and the Licensing and Supervision of Banking Business Proclamation No. 84/1994. The Bank registered 
office is at:					   

P.O.Box 27530/1000					   

Bole Road					   

Oromia International Bank Building					   

Addis Ababa					   

Ethiopia					   

The Bank is principally engaged in the provision of diverse range of financial products and services to a wholesale, 
retail and small and medium enterprise clients based in Ethiopian Market.			 

2	 Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1	 Introduction to summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. 
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.2	 Basis of preparation

a) Statement of  compliance 					   

The financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2019 have been prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). 
Additional information required by national regulations is included where appropriate. 		

The financial statements comprise the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the 
statement of financial position, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows and the notes to 
the financial statements.									      

b)  Basis of measurement 					   

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the going concern principle under the historical 
cost concept, except for the following;

•    Assets held for sale – measured at fair value less cost of disposal, and

•    The present value of the defined benefit obligation less the net total plan assets, plus unrecognized actuarial 
gains less unrecognized past service cost and unrecognized actuarial losses. 

•     Financial assets at FVTOCI are measured at fair value	

c)  Functional and Presentation of Currency					   

All values are rounded to the nearest thousands, except when otherwise indicated. The financial statements are 
presented in thousands of Ethiopian Birr (Birr’ 000).					   

d) Use of estimates and judgements					   

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting 
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Bank’s accounting 
policies. Changes in assumptions may have a significant impact on the financial statements in the period the 
assumptions changed. Management believes that the underlying assumptions are appropriate and that the 
Bank’s financial statements therefore present the financial position and results fairly. The areas involving a higher 
degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial 
statements, are disclosed in Note 3.
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Oromia International Bank S.C.

For the year ended 30 June 2019
Notes to the financial statements

2.2.1	 Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The management have no doubt that 
the Bank would remain in existence after 12 months.					   

2.2.2	 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years presented on these financial 
statements and have been applied consistently by the bank 					   

(a) New standards, amendments and interpretations					   

(i) New standards, amendments and interpretations and effective  adopted during the year			 
		

A number of new standards are also effective from 1 July 2018 but they do not have a material effect 
on the Bank’s financial statements. Due to the transition method chosen by the bank in applying IFRS 9, 
comparative information throughout these financial statements has not generally been restated to reflect its 
requirements.   	

The adoption of IFRS 15 did not impact the timing or amount of fee and commission income from contracts 
with customers and the related assets and liabilities recognized  by the bank. Accordingly, the impact 
on the comparative information is limited to new disclosure requirements.				  
	

The effect of initially applying these standards is mainly attributed to the following:

              • An increase in impairment losses recognized on financial assets;

              • Additional disclosures related to IFRS 9; and

              • Additional disclosures related to IFRS 15					   

Except for changes noted below, the bank has consistently applied the accounting policies to all periods 
presented in these financial statements

              • IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

This standard replaces IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue, IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes,  
IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers and SIC-31 
Revenue – Barter of Transactions Involving Advertising Services.                                                                                                                	
				  

The standard contains a single model that applies to contracts with customers and two approaches to recognizing 
revenue: at a point in time or over time. The standard specifies how and when the company will recognise 
revenue as well as requiring such entities to provide users of financial statements with more informative and  
relevant disclosures.					   

The Bank  applied IFRS 15 on 1 July 2018 using the modified retrospective approach in which the cumulative 
effect of initially applying this Standard is recognised at the date of initial application as an adjustment to the 
opening balance of retained earnings as at 1 July  2018 without restating comparative periods.

There was no material impact of application of IFRS 15 and no adjustment to retained earnings was required.

IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (2014)
On 24 July 2014 the IASB issued the final IFRS 9 Financial Instruments Standard, which replaces earlier versions of 
IFRS 9 and completes the IASB’s project to replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

The new standard brings fundamental changes to the accounting for financial assets and to certain aspects of 
the accounting for financial liabilities.					   

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 9, the bank  has adopted consequential amendments to IFRS 7 Financial 
Instruments: Disclosures that are applied to disclosures about 2018, but have not been applied to the comparative 
information.					   

The key changes to the Bank’s accounting policies resulting from its adoption of IFRS 9 are summarised below. 
The full impact of adopting the standard is set out in note 2.5.	
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2.2.3	 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities on the date of initial application of IFRS 9

The following table shows the original measurement categories in accordance with IAS 39 and the new 
measurement categories under IFRS 9 for the Bank’s financial assets and financial liabilities as at 1 July  2018.	
	

Financial assets IAS 39 carrying amount 
30 June 2018 Reclassification Remeasurement IFRS 9 carrying 

amount 1 July 2018
Cash and balances with cen-
tral Banks  5,809,127  -    (196)  5,808,931 

Loans and advances to banks  9,968,572  -    (37,194)  9,931,378 
Interest Free Financing  1,621,293  -    2,142  1,623,435 
Investment Securities: Availa-
bel for sale  68,705  -    21,147  89,852 

Investment Securities: Loans 
and receivables  4,855,817  -    243  4,856,060 

Other financial assets at 
amortized cost  218,291  -    (14,658)  203,633 

Total financial  assets  22,541,805  (28,516)  22,513,289 
Financial Liabilities
Deposits from customers  16,913,738  -    -    16,913,738 
Interest free customer deposit  3,013,277  -    -    3,013,277 
Other financial liabilities (in-
cluding ECL on loan commit-
ments and gurantees)  867,612  -    42  867,654 
Total financial  liabilities  20,794,627  -    42  20,794,669 

Financial assets and financial liablities	

2.2.3	 Classification of financial assets and financial liablities on the date of initial application of IFRS 
9 (continued)					  
The following table shows the original measurement catagories in accordance  with IAS 39 and the new 
measurement catagories under IFRS 9 for the bank financial assets and financial liabilites as at 1 July  2018.	
				  

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Classification Under 

IAS 39
Classification Under 

IFRS 9
Original carrying 

Amount
New Carrying 

Amount
Cash and balances with central Banks Loans & Receivables Amortised Cost  5,809,127  5,808,931 
Loans and advances to banks Loans & Receivables Amortised Cost  9,968,572  9,929,045 
Interest Free Financing Loans & Receivables Amortised Cost  1,621,293  1,621,436 
Investment Securities: Availabel for 
sale Availabel for sale FVOCI  68,705  89,852 

Investment Securities: Loans and 
receivables Loans & Receivables Amortised Cost  4,855,817  4,855,574 

Other financial assets at amortized 
cost Loans & Receivables Amortised Cost  218,291  233,261 

Total financial  assets  22,541,805  22,538,099 
Liabilities
Deposits from customers Amortised Cost Amortised Cost  16,913,738  16,913,738 
Interest free customer deposit Amortised Cost Amortised Cost  3,013,277  303,277 
Other financial liabilities (including 
ECL on loan commitments and 
gurantees)

Amortised Cost Amortised Cost  867,612  881,125 

Total financial  liabilities  20,794,627  18,098,140



Annual Report 2018/19 45

Oromia International Bank S.C.

For the year ended 30 June 2019
Notes to the financial statements

The Bank’s accounting policies on the classification of financial instruments under IFRS 9 are set out in Note 
2.5(ii). The application of these policies resulted in the reclassifications set out in the table above and explained 
below.	

• On the adoption of IFRS 9, certain financial assets such as cash and cash equivalents, loans and advances to 
customers – both interest bearing and interest free and treasury bills and bonds (NBE bills and government 
bonds) were reclassified out of the loans and receivable to amortized cost. The carrying amount of those assets 
was adjusted so that their amortised cost under IFRS 9 was as if those assets were accounted for at amortised 
cost from their inception.

•Further equity investment securities were reclassified out available-for-sale categories to FVOCI at their then fair 
values. The carrying amount of those assets was adjusted so that their amortised cost under IFRS 9 was as if those 
assets were accounted for at amortised cost from their inception.			 

• On the adoption of IFRS 9, other financial assets such accounts receivables, uncleared effects – both local and 
foreign and guarantee for overseas employment agencies were reclassified out of the loans and receivable to 
amortized cost. The carrying amount of those assets was adjusted so that their amortised cost under IFRS 9 was 
as if those assets were accounted for at amortised cost from their inception.				  
	

2	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES					   

	 a. New standards, amendements and interpretations 					   
i) New standards, amendments and interpretations effective and adopted during the year			 
		

	 IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (2014)					   

2.2.4	 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilites on the date of initial application of IFRS 9	

The following table summarizes the impact of transition to IFRS 9 on the opening balance of the provission and  
retained earnings . There is no impact on other components of equity.				  

Fair Value Reserve Impact of adopting IFRS 9 at 
1 July  2018

Closing balance under IAS 39 (30 June 2018)  -   
Reclassification of investment securities (equity) measured at cost from available-for- 
sale to FVOCI  21,147 

Related tax  -   
Adjusted opening balance under IFRS 9(1 July 2018)  21,147 
Regulatory risk reserve (difference between IFRS and NBE provissions)
Closing balance under IAS 39 (30 June 2018)  145,605 
Transfer to retained earnings for excess NBE Provissions no longer required on initial 
application of IFRS 9  (39,336)

Related tax  -   
Adjusted opening balance under IFRS 9 (1 July 2018)  106,269 
Retained Earnings
Closing balance under IAS 39 (30 June 2018)  383,710 
Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9  (25,075)
Transfer from regulatory risk reserve on application of IFRS 9  39,336 
Related tax  -   
Adjusted opening balance under IFRS 9(1 July 2018)  397,971 
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2	  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)				 
	

	 a. New standards, amendments and interpretations (continued)					   

	 (i) New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not adopted				  
	

	 The Bank does not plan to adopt these standards early. These are summarised below;			 
		

New Standard or amendments Effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after

IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 01-July-2019

IFRS 16 Leases 01-July-2019

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments 01-July-2019

Annual improvements cycle (2015-2017) 01-July-2019

IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments to IAS 19) 01-July-2019

Amendments to references to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards 01-July-2020

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material 01-July-2020

When All standards and interpretations will be adopted at their effective date (except for those standards and 
interpretations that are not applicable to the bank). Of those standards that are not yet effective, IFRS 16, IAS 
19, amendmentss to IAS 1 and IAS 8 and IFRIC 23 are expected to have a significant effect on the Bank’sfinancial 
statements in the period of initial application.					   

IFRS 16: Leases
On 13 January 2016 the IASB issued IFRS 16 Leases, completing the IASB’s project to improve the financial reporting 
of leases. IFRS 16 replaces the previous leases standard, IAS 17 Leases, and related interpretations.”	

IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both 
parties to a contract, i.e. the customer (‘lessee’) and the supplier (‘lessor’). The standard defines a lease as a contract 
that conveys to the customer (‘lessee’) the right to use an asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.	
				  

A Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease on the basis of whether the customer has the right to 
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time.					   

The standard eliminates the classification of leases as either operating leases or finance leases for a lessee and 
introduces a single lessee accounting model. All leases are treated in a similar way to finance leases.	

Applying that model significantly affects the accounting and presentation of leases and consequently, the lessee is 
required to recognise:

assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. 
A Company recognises the present value of the unavoidable lease payments and shows them either as lease assets 
(rightof- use assets) or together with property, plant and equipment. If lease payments are made over time, a 
Company also recognises a financial liability representing its obligation to make future lease payments.”	

(a) depreciation of lease assets and interest on lease liabilities in profit or loss over the lease term; and

(b) separate the total amount of cash paid into a principal portion (presented within financing activities) and interest 
(typically presented within either operating or financing activities) in the statement of cash flows”	

IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues 
to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases differently. 
However, compared to IAS 17, IFRS 16 requires a lessor to disclose additional information about how it manages the 
risks related to its residual interest in assets subject to leases.				  

The standard does not require a Company to recognise assets and liabilities for:
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(a) short-term leases (i.e. leases of 12 months or less) and;

(b) leases of low-value assets

The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is 
permitted insofar as the recently issued revenue Standard, IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers is 
also applied.				  

2	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)				  
a. New standards, amendments and interpretations (continued)				 

(ii) New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not adopted			 

The Bank is still assessing the potential impact on the amounts and disclosures of the Bank’s financial 
statements					   

IFRIC 23 Clarification on accounting for Income tax exposures					   

IFRIC 23 clarifies the accounting for income tax treatments that have yet to be accepted by tax authorities, whilst 
also aiming to enhance transparency.					   

IFRIC 23 explains how to recognise and measure deferred and current income tax assets and liabilities where 
there is uncertainty over a tax treatment.					   

An uncertain tax treatment is any tax treatment applied by an entity where there is uncertainty over whether 
that treatment will be accepted by the tax authority.					   

If an entity concludes that it is probable that the tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment that has 
been taken or is expected to be taken on a tax return, it should determine its accounting for income taxes 
consistently with that tax treatment. If an entity concludes that it is not probable that the treatment will be 
accepted, it should reflect the effect of the uncertainty in its income tax accounting in the period in which that 
determination is made. Uncertainty is reflected in the overall measurement of tax and separate provision is not 
allowed.					   

The entity is required to measure the impact of the uncertainty using the method that best predicts the resolution 
of the uncertainty (that is, the entity should use either the most likely amount method or the expected value 
method when measuring an uncertainty).					   

The entity will also need to provide disclosures, under existing disclosure

requirements, about

(a) judgments made;

(b) assumptions and other estimates used; and

(c) potential impact of uncertainties not reflected.					   

The new Standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July  2019.

The Bank is assessing the potential impact on its financial statements resulting from the application of IFRIC 23.

— IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments to IAS 19)				  
The amendments clarify that:

• On amendment, curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, a Company now uses updated actuarial 
assumptions to determine its

  current service cost and net interest for the period; and 

• The effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any settlement of the plan and 
is dealt with separately in other comprehensive income (OCI).

• Consistent with the calculation of a gain or loss on a plan amendment, entities will now use updated actuarial 
assumptions to determine the current service cost and net interest for the period. Previously, entities would not 
have updated the calculation of these costs until the year end.

• Further, if a defined benefit plan is settled, any asset ceiling would be disregarded when determining the plan 
assets as part of the calculation of gain or loss on settlement.
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• The amendments apply for plan amendments, curtailments or settlements that occur on or after 1 July  2019, 
or the date on which the amendments are first applied. Earlier application is permitted.

• The Bank is assessing the impact on the financial statements	

IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material	

The amendment refines the definition of Material to make it easier to understand and aligning the definition 
across IFRS Standards and the Conceptual Framework.					   

The amendment includes the concept of ‘obscuring’ to the definition, alongside the existing references to 
‘omitting’ and ‘misstating’. Additionally, the amendment also adds the increased threshold of ‘could influence’ to 
‘could reasonably be expected to influence’ as below.					   

Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions 
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, 
which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.				  

However, the amendment has also removed the definition of material omissions or misstatements from IAS 8 
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.				  

The amendments are effective from 1 July 2020 but may be applied earlier.

The Bank is assessing the potential impact on its financial statements resulting from the application of the 
refined definition of materiality.					   

Other Standards					   

The following amended standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the financial statements of 
the Bank.

• Annual improvement cycle (2015 – 2017) – various standards

• Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standard

2.3	 Functional and presentation Currency

	 (a) Transactions and balances

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the Bank operates (‘the functional currency’). The functional currency and presentation currency of the 
Bank is the Ethiopian Birr (Birr). 

	 (b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing 
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign 
currency transactions and from the translation at exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated 
in currencies other than the Bank’s functional currency are recognised in profit or loss within other (loss)/income. 
Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are translated using the closing rate as at the reporting date.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as available for sale 
are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the security and 
other changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation differences related to changes in amortised cost 
are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive 
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through 
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets measure at fair value, such as equities classified as available for sale, are included in 
other comprehensive income.

Recognition of income and expense

(i) Interest income and expenses
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Policy applicable after 1 July 2018

Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The ‘effective 
interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected 
life of the financial instrument to:

• the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

• the amortised cost of the financial liability.				  

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments other than purchased or originated 
credit-impaired assets, the Bank estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial 
instrument, but not ECL. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective 
interest rate is calculated using estimated future cash flows including ECL.			 

The calculation of the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees and points paid or received that 
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial liability

The ‘amortised cost’ of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial 
liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative 
amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity 
amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any expected credit loss allowance (or impairment allowance 
before 1 July 2018).					   

The ‘gross carrying amount of a financial asset’ is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any 
expected credit loss allowance.					   

The effective interest rate of a financial asset or financial liability is calculated on initial recognition of a financial 
asset or a financial liability. In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the 
gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. 
The effective interest rate is revised as a result of periodic re-estimation of cash flows of floating rate instruments 
to reflect movements in market rates of interest. The effective interest rate is also revised for fair value hedge 
adjustments at the date amortisation of the hedge adjustment begins.				  

However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income 
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no 
longer creditimpaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.			 
For financial assets that were credit-impaired on initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the 
credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the asset. The calculation of interest income does 
not revert to a gross basis, even if the credit risk of the asset improves.					   
For information on when financial assets are credit-impaired, see Note 2.5				  
Interest income calculated using the effective interest method presented in the statement of profit or loss and 
OCI includes:

• interest on financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost;

• interest on debt instruments measured at FVOCI;

• the effective portion of fair value changes in qualifying hedging derivatives designated in cash flow hedges of 
variability in interest cash flows, in the same period as the hedged cash flows affect interest income/expense; 
and

• the effective portion of fair value changes in qualifying hedging derivatives designated in fair value hedges of 
interest rate risk.

• Other interest income presented in the statement of profit or loss and OCI includes interest income on finance 
leases

• Interest expense presented in the statement of profit or loss and OCI includes:

• financial liabilities measured at amortised cost; and

• the effective portion of fair value changes in qualifying hedging derivatives designated in cash flow hedges of 
variability in interest cash flows, in the same period as the hedged cash flows affect interest income/expense.	
Interest income and expense on all trading assets and liabilities are considered incidental to the Bank’s trading 
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operations and are presented together with all other changes in the fair value of trading assets and liabilities in 
net trading income.					   

Interest income and expense on other financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are presented in net 
income from other financial instruments at FVTPL						    

Recognition of income and expenses (continued)					   
(ii) interest income and expense					   

Policy applicable before 1 July 2018					   

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and 
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured 
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of 
payment and excluding taxes or duty.

The Bank, earns income from interest on  loans given for domestic trade and services, building and construction, 
manufacturing, agriculture and personal loans. Other incomes includes margins on letter of credits and 
performance guarantees.					   

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest bearing financial assets classified as 
available– for–sale interest income or expense is recorded using the contractual rates. 

The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted if the Bank revises its estimates of 
payments or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the original contractual rate and the 
change in carrying amount is recorded as ‘Interest and similar income’ for financial assets and Interest and similar 
expense for financial liabilities.

Once the recorded value of a financial asset or a Bank of similar financial assets has been reduced due to an 
impairment loss, interest income continues to be recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future 
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.”					   

The Bank’s policy for recognition of income from Interest Free financing and investments products is described 
in Note 2.7 (iii).					  

2.4.1	 Fees and commission					   

Fees and commission income and expenses that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset or 
liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate. Other fees and commission income (for 
example commission on drafts, cash payment order (CPO),letter of credit (LC), guarantee etc) are recognised on 
an accrual basis as the related services are performed.					  

When a loan commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down of a loan, loan commitment fees are 
recognised on a straight-line basis over the commitment period.

Other fees and commission expenses relates mainly to transaction and service fees are expensed as the services 
are received.					   

2.4.2	 Dividend income 					  

This is recognised when the Bank’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when the 
shareholders approve and declare the dividend.					   

2.4.3	 Foreign Exchange revaluation gains and losses					   

These are gains and losses arising on settlement and translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated 
in foreign currencies at the functional currency’s spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.  This amount is 
recognised in the income statement and it is further broken down into realised and unrealised portion  if any.  

The monetary assets and liabilities include financial assets within the foreign currencies deposits received and 
held on behalf of third parties etc.  					   
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 2.5	 Financial assets and liabilities					   

(i) Recognition and initial measurement 					   

Policy applicable from 1 July 2018					   

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some 
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. This standard replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement.The requirements of IFRS 9 represent a significant change from IAS 39. The newstandard brings 
fundamental changes to the accounting for financial assets and to certain aspects of the accounting for financial 
liabilities.					   

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 9, the Bank has adopted consequential amendments to IAS 1.	

Presentation of Financial Statements, which require separate presentation in the statement of profit or loss 
and OCI of interest revenue calculated using the effective interest method. Previously, the Bank disclosed this 
amount in the notes to the financial statements.					   

Additionally, the Bank has adopted consequential amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures that 
are applied to disclosures about 2018, but have not been applied to the comparative information.		
The key changes to the Bank’s accounting policies resulting from its adoption of IFRS 9 are summarised below. 
The full impact of adopting the standard is set out in Note 2.2.4					  

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Bank’s statement of financial position sheet when 
the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.				  
Recognised financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial 
assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or 
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition 
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.		

If the transaction price differs from fair value at initial recognition, the Bank will account for such difference as 
follows:

• if fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability or based on a 
valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the difference is recognised in profit 
or loss on initial recognition (i.e. day 1 profit or loss);

• in all other cases, the fair value will be adjusted to bring it in line with the transaction price (i.e. day 1 profit or 
loss will be deferred by including it in the initial carrying amount of the asset or liability).

	 After initial recognition, the deferred gain or loss will be released to profit or loss on a rational basis, only to 
the extent that it arises from a change in a factor (including time) that market participants would take into 
account when pricing the asset or liability.					   

(ii) Classification and measurement of financial instruments Financial assets				  

All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of a financial 
asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe established by 
the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial 
assets classified as at FVTPL. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets classified 
as at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.					   

All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of a financial 
asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe established by 
the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial 
assets classified as at FVTPL. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets classified 
as at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss. For all financial assets the amount presented on the 
statement of financial position represent all amounts receivable including interest accruals.		

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at 
amortised cost or fair value on the basis of the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and 
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the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The standard eliminates the previous IAS 39 
categories of held to maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale. Under IFRS 9, derivatives embedded 
in contracts where the host is a financial asset in the scope of the standard are never bifurcated. Instead, the 
whole hybrid instrument is assessed for classification.					   

IFRS 9 specifically requires:

• debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, 
and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding (SPPI), are subsequently measured at amortised cost;

• debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the contractual cash 
flows and to sell the debt instruments, and that have contractual cash flows that are SPPI, are subsequently 
measured at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI);

• all other debt instruments (e.g. debt instruments managed on a fair value basis, or held for sale) and equity invest-
ments are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

• However, the Bank may make the following irrevocable election /designation at initial recognition of a financial 
asset on an asset- byasset basis:					   

(i) the Bank may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment that is 
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to 
which IFRS 3 applies, in OCI; and					   

(ii) the Bank may irrevocably designate a debt instrument that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria as 
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch (referred to as the fair 
value option).					   

Debt instruments at amortised cost or at FVTOCI 

The Bank assesses the classification and measurement of a financial asset based on the contractual cash flow 
characteristics of the asset and the Bank’s business model for managing the asset.

For an asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, its contractual terms should give rise 
to cash flows that are SPPI.					   

For the purpose of SPPI test, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition. That principal 
amount may change over the life of the financial asset (e.g. if there are repayments of principal). Interest consists 
of consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding 
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a profit margin. The SPPI 
assessment is made in the currency in which the financial asset is denominated.		

Contractual cash flows that are SPPI are consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Contractual terms that 
introduce exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending 
arrangement, such as exposure to changes in equity prices or commodity prices, do not give rise to contractual 
cash flows that are SPPI. An originated or an acquired financial asset can be a basic lending arrangement 
irrespective of whether it is a loan in its legal form.					   

An assessment of business models for managing financial assets is fundamental to the classification of a 
financial asset. The Bank determines the business models at a level that reflects how Banks of financial assets are 
managed together to achieve a particular business objective. The Bank’s business model does not depend on 
management’s intentions for an individual instrument, therefore the business model assessment is performed 
at a higher level of aggregation rather than on an instrument-by-instrument basis.			 

The Bank has more than one business model for managing its financial instruments which reflect how the Bank 
manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The Bank’s business models determine whether cash 
flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling financial assets or both.			 
The Bank considers all relevant information available when making the business model assessment. However 
this assessment is not performed on the basis of scenarios that the Bank does not reasonably expect to occur, 
such as so-called ‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios. The Bank takes into account all relevant evidence available 
such as:

• how the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are 
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evaluated and reported to the entity’s key management personnel;

• the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business 
model) and, in particular, the way in which those risks are managed; and

• how managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether the compensation is based on the fair value of 
the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected).”					  

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Bank determines whether newly recognised financial assets are part 
of an existing business model or whether they reflect the commencement of a new business model. The Bank 
reassess its business models each reporting period to determine whether the business models have changed 
since the preceding period. For the current and prior reporting period the Bank has not identified a change in its 
business models.					   

When a debt instrument measured at FVTOCI is derecognised, the cumulative

gain/loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. In contrast, for an equity 
investment designated as measured at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain/loss previously recognised in OCI is not 
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss but transferred within equity.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI are subject to impairment. 
See note 4.

Non-recourse loans					   

In some cases, loans made by the Bank that are secured by collateral of the borrower limit the Bank’s claim to 
cash flows of the underlying collateral (nonrecourse loans). The Bank applies judgment in assessing whether the 
nonrecourse loans meet the SPPI criterion. The Bank typically considers the following information when making 
this judgement:

• whether the contractual arrangement specifically defines the amounts and dates of the cash payments of the loan;

• the fair value of the collateral relative to the amount of the secured financial asset;

• the ability and willingness of the borrower to make contractual payments, notwithstanding a decline in the value of 
collateral;

• whether the borrower is an individual or a substantive operating entity or is a special-purpose entity;

• the Bank’s risk of loss on the asset relative to a full-recourse loan;

• the extent to which the collateral represents all or a substantial portion of the borrower’s assets; and

• whether the Bank will benefit from any upside from the underlying assets.				  

Financial assets at FVTPL					  

Financial assets at FVTPL are:

• assets with contractual cash flows that are not SPPI; or/and

• assets that are held in a business model other than held to collect contractual cash flows or held to collect and 
sell; or

• assets designated at FVTPL using the fair value option.

These assets are measured at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or 
loss. Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 6- Fair value of financial instruments.	

Reclassifications					   

If the business model under which the Bank holds financial assets changes, the financial assets affected are 
reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new category apply prospectively 
from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model that results in reclassifying 
the Bank’s financial assets. During the current financial year and previous accounting period there was no 
change in the business model under which the Bank holds financial assets and therefore no reclassifications 
were made. Changes in contractual cash flows are considered under the accounting policy on Modification and 
derecognition of financial assets described below.					   
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Impairment of financial assets					   

In line with IFRS 9, the Bank assesses the under listed financial instruments for impairment using Expected Credit 
Loss (ECL) approach:					   

•  Amortized cost financial assets;

•  Debt securities classified as at FVOCI;

• Off-balance sheet loan commitments; and

•  Financial guarantee contracts.					   

Equity instruments and financial assets measured at FVTPL are not subjected to impairment under the 
standard.					   

Expected Credit Loss Impairment Model					   

The Bank’s allowance for credit losses calculations are outputs of models with a number of underlying assumptions 
regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. The expected credit loss impairment 
model reflects the present value of all cash shortfalls related to default events either over the following twelve 
months or over the expected life of a financial instrument depending on credit deterioration from inception. 
The allowance for credit losses reflects an unbiased, probability-weighted outcome which considers multiple 
scenarios based on reasonable and supportable forecasts.					   

The Bank adopts a three-stage approach for impairment assesment based on changes in credit quality since 
initial recognition.	

•  Stage 1 – Where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition of a 
financial instrument, an amount equal to 12 months expected credit loss is recorded. The expected credit loss 
is computed using a probability of default occurring over the next 12 months. For those instruments with a 
remaining maturity of less than 12 months, a probability of default corresponding to remaining term to maturity 
is used.					   

• Stage 2 – When a financial instrument experiences a SICR subsequent to origination but is not considered to be 
in default, it is included in Stage 2. This requires the computation of expected credit loss based on the probability 
of default over the remaining estimated life of the financial instrument.					   
• Stage 3 – Financial instruments that are considered to be in default are included in this stage. Similar to Stage 2, 
the allowance for credit losses captures the lifetime expected credit losses.			 

The guiding principle for ECL model is to reflect the general pattern of deterioration or improvement in the credit 
quality of financial instruments since initial recognition. The ECL allowance is based on credit losses expected 
to arise over the life of the asset (life timeexpected credit loss), unless there has been no significant increase in 
credit risk since origination.		

Measurement of Expected Credit Losses					   

The probability of default (PD), exposure at default (EAD), and loss given default (LGD) inputs used to estimate 
expected credit losses are modelled based on macroeconomic variables that are most closely related with credit 
losses in the relevant portfolio.					   

Details of these statistical parameters/inputs are as follows:					   

PD – The probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default 
may only happen at a certain time over the remaining estimated life, if the facility has not been previously 
derecognized and is still in the portfolio.					   

•  12-month PDs – This is the estimated probability of default occurring within the next 12 months (or over the 
remaining life of the financial instrument if that is less than 12 months). This is used to calculate 12-month ECLs. 
The Bank obtains the constant and relevant coefficients for the various independent variables and computes the 
outcome by incorporating forward looking macroeconomic variables and computing the forward probability of 
default.					   

•  Lifetime PDs – This is the estimated probability of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial 
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instrument. This is used to calculate lifetime ECLs for ‘stage 2’ and ‘stage 3’ exposures. PDs are limited to 
the maximum period of exposure required by IFRS 9. The Bank obtains 3 years forecast for the relevant 
macroeconomic variables and adopts exponentiation method to compute cumulative PD for future time periods 
for each obligor.					   

•  EAD – The exposure at default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account 
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, 
whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities, and accrued interest 
from missed payments.					   

•  LGD – The loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given 
time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would 
expect to receive, including from the realization of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the 
EAD.	

To estimate expected credit loss for off balance sheet exposures, credit conversion factor (CCF) is usually 
computed. CCF is a modelled assumption which represents the proportion of any undrawn exposure that is 
expected to be drawn prior to a default event occurring.

It is a factor that converts an off balance sheet exposure to its credit exposure equivalent. In modelling CCF, the 
Bank considers its account monitoring and payment processing policies including its ability to prevent further 
drawings during periods of increased credit risk. CCF is applied on the off balance sheet exposures to determine 
the EAD and the ECL impairment model for financial assets is applied on the EAD to determine the ECL on the 
off balance sheet exposures.	

Forward-looking information					   

The measurement of expected credit losses for each stage and the assessment of significant increases in credit 
risk considers information about past events and current conditions as well as reasonable and supportable 
forecasts of future events and economic conditions. The estimation and application of forward-looking 
information requires significant judgement.					   

The measurement of expected credit losses for each stage and the assessment of significant increases in credit 
risk considers information about past events and current conditions as well as reasonable and supportable 
forecasts of future events and economic conditions. The estimation and application of forward-looking 
information requires that:					   

The Bank uses internal subject matter consultant  to consider a range of relevant forward looking data, including 
macro-economic forecasts and assumptions, for the determination of unbiased general economic adjustments 
in order to support the calculation of ECLs.					   

Macro-economic variables taken into consideration include, but are not limited to, inflation,Exchange rate, Gross 
Domestic Product,debt, stratification  and requires an evaluation of both the current and forecast direction of 
the macroeconomic

cycle.					  

Macro-economic variables considered have  strong statistical relationships with the risk parameters (LGD, EAD, 
CCF and PD) used in the estimation of the ECLs, and are capable of predicting future conditions that are not 
captured within the base ECL calculations.					   

Forward looking adjustments for both general macro-economic adjustments and more targeted at portfolio / 
industry levels. The methodologies and assumptions, including any forecasts of future economic conditions, are 
reviewed regularly.					   

Macroeconomic factors					   

The Bank relies on a broad range of forward looking information as economic inputs, such as: GDP growth, 
debt, household spending , consumer price index, inflation rates and foreign exchange rates. The inputs and 
models used for calculating expected credit losses may not always capture all characteristics of the market at the 
date of the financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative adjustments or overlays may be made as temporary 
adjustments using expert credit judgement.					  
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The macroeconomic variables and economic forecasts as well as other key inputs are reviewed and approved 
by management before incorporated in the ECL model. Any subsequent changes to the forward looking 
information are also approved before such are inputted in the ECL model.				  
The macro economic variables are obtained for 5 years in the future and are reassessed every 6 months to ensure 
that they reflect prevalent circumstances and are up to date.					   

Where there is a non-linear relationships, one forwardlooking scenario is never sufficient as it may result in the 
estimation of a worst-case scenario or a bestcase scenario. The Bank’s ECL methodology considers weighted 
average of multiple economic scenarios for the risk parameters (basically the forecast macroeconomic variables) 
in arriving at impairment figure for a particular reporting period. The model is structured in a manner that the 
final outcome, which is a probability cannot be negative.					   

SICR is assessed once there is an objective indicator of a deterioration in credit risk of customer. In addition, the 
Bank as part of its routine credit processes perform an assessment on a quarterly basis to identify instances of 
SICR.					   

Multiple forward-looking scenarios					   

The Bank determines allowance for credit losses using three probability-weighted forward-looking scenarios. 
The Bank considers both internal and external sources of information in order to achieve an unbiased measure 
of the scenarios used. The Bank prepares the scenarios using forecasts generated by credible sources such as 
Business Monitor International (BMI), International Monetary Fund (IMF), Ministry of Finance  (MF), World Bank 
(WB), Ethiopian Central statistical Agency (ECSA), and United nation conference on trade and development 
(UNCTAD)					   

The Bank estimates three scenarios for each risk parameter (LGD, EAD, CCF and PD) – Base, Upside and Downside, 
which in turn is used in the estimation of the multiple scenario ECLs. The ‘ Base case’ represents the most likely 
outcome and is aligned with information used by the Bank for other purposes such as strategic planning 
and budgeting. The other scenarios represent more optimistic and more pessimistic outcomes. The Bank has 
identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for each portfolio of financial instruments 
and, using an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationships between macro-economic variables, credit 
risk and credit losses.					   

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk (SICR)					   

At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures 
since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the remaining expected life from the 
reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The assessment considers borrower-specific quantitative and 
qualitative information without consideration of collateral, and the impact of forward-looking macroeconomic 
factors.The common assessments for SICR on retail and non-retail portfolios include macroeconomic outlook, 
management judgement, and delinquency and monitoring. Forward looking macroeconomic factors are a key 
component of the macroeconomic outlook. The importance and relevance of each specific macroeconomic 
factor depends on the type of product, characteristics of the financial instruments and the borrower and the 
geographical region.					   

The Bank adopts a multi factor approach in assessing changes in credit risk. This approach considers: Quantitative 
(primary), Qualitative (secondary) and Back stop indicators which are critical in allocating financial assets into 
stages.					   

The quantitative models considers deterioration in the credit rating of obligor/counterparty based on the 
Bank’s internal rating system or External Credit Assessment Institutions (ECAI) while qualitative factors considers 
information such as expected forbearance, restructuring, exposure classification by licensed credit bureau, 
etc.	

A backstop is typically used to ensure that in the (unlikely) event that the primary (quantitative) indicators do not 
change and there is no trigger from the secondary (qualitative) indicators, an account that has breached the 30 
days past due criteria for SICR and 90 days past due criteria for default is transferred to stage 2 or stage 3 as the 
case may be except there is a reasonable and supportable evidence available without undue cost to rebut the 
presumption.					   
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Definition of Default and Credit Impaired Financial Assets					   

At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt financial 
assets carried at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that 
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.		
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:		

*	 Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; Others include death, insolvency, breach of

*	 covenants, etc.

*	 A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

*	 The lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having 
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

*	 It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

*	 The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

*	 The purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses. “		
A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower’s condition is usually considered to be cred-
it-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and 
there are no other indicators of impairment. In addition, loans that are more than 90 days past due are considered 
impaired. 

Modification and derecognition of financial assets					   

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financial 
asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A 
modification affects the amount and/or timing of the contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future 
date. In addition, the introduction or adjustment of existing covenants of an existing loan would constitute a 
modification even if these new or adjusted covenants do not yet affect the cash flows immediately but may 
affect the cash flows depending on whether the covenant is or is not met (e.g. a change to the increase in the 
interest rate that arises when covenants are breached).					   

The Bank renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to maximise collection and minimise the risk 
of default. A loan forbearance is granted in cases where although the borrower made all reasonable efforts 
to pay under the original contractual terms, there is a high risk of default or default has already happened 
and the borrower is expected to be able to meet the revised terms. The revised terms in most of the cases 
include an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan (principal 
and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flows due (principal and interest forgiveness) and 
amendments to covenants. The Bank has an established forbearance policy which applies for corporate and 
retail lending.	

When a financial asset is modified the Bank assesses whether this modification results in derecognition. In 
accordance with the Bank’s policy a modification results in derecognition when it gives rise to substantially 
different terms. To determine if the modified terms are substantially different from the original contractual terms 
the Bank considers the following:					   

• Qualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows after modification are no longer SPPI, change in currency or when 
rights to cash flows between the original counterparties expire because a new debtor replaces the original debtor 
(unless both debtors are under common control), the extent of change in interest rates, and maturity. If these do not 
clearly indicate a substantial modification, then;

 • A quantitative assessment is performed to compare the present value of the remaining contractual cash flows under 
the original terms with the contractual cash flows under the revised terms, both amounts discounted at the original 
effective interest. If the difference in present value is greater than 10% the Bank deems the arrangement is substan-
tially different leading to derecognition. When performing a quantitative assessment of a modification or renegotia-
tion of a creditimpaired financial asset or a purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset that was subject to 
a write-off, the Bank considers the expected (rather than the contractual) cash flows before modification or renegoti-
ation and compares those with the contractual cash flows after modification or renegotiation.”		

In the case where the financial asset is derecognised the loss allowance for ECL is remeasured at the date of 
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derecognition to determine the net carrying amount of the asset at that date. The difference between this 
revised carrying amount and the fair value of the new financial asset with the new terms will lead to a gain or 
loss on derecognition. The new financial asset will have a loss allowance measured based on 12-month ECL 
except in the rare occasions where the new loan is considered to be originated- credit impaired. This applies 
only in the case where the fair value of the new loan is recognised at a significant discount to its revised par 
amount because there remains a high risk of default which has not been reduced by the modification. The Bank 
monitors credit risk of modified financial assets by evaluating qualitative and quantitative information, such as 
if the borrower is in past due status under the new terms.					   

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result in derecognition, 
the Bank determines if the financial asset’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition by 
comparing:

• the remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the original contractual terms; with

• the remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms.				  

For financial assets modified as part of the Bank’s forbearance policy, where modification did not result in 
derecognition, the estimate of PD reflects the Banks’s ability to collect the modified cash flows taking into 
account the Bank’s previous experience of similar forbearance action, as well as various behavioural indicators, 
including the borrower’s payment performance against the modified contractual terms. If the credit risk remains 
significantly higher than what was expected at initial recognition the loss allowance will continue to be measured 
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.					   

If a forborne loan is credit impaired due to the existence of evidence of credit impairment (see above), the 
Bank performs an ongoing assessment to ascertain if the problems of the exposure are cured, to determine 
if the loan is no longer creditimpaired. The loss allowance on forborne loans will generally only be measured 
based on 12-month ECL when there is evidence of the borrower’s improved repayment behaviour following 
modification leading to a reversal of the previous significant increase in credit risk.				  
Where a modification does not lead to derecognition the Bank calculates the modification loss by comparing 
the gross carrying amount before and after the modification (excluding the ECL allowance). Modification losses 
for financial assets are included in the profit or loss account in ‘Losses on modification of financial assets’. Then 
the Bank measures ECL for the modified asset, where the expected cash flows arising from the modified financial 
asset are included in calculating the expected cash shortfalls from the original asset.	

The Bank derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset’s cash flows expire 
(including expiry arising from a modification with substantially different terms), or when the financial asset and 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred to another entity. If the Bank 
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the 
transferred asset, the Bank recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it 
may have to pay. If the Bank retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial 
asset, the Bank continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the 
proceeds received.					   

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain/loss that had been recognised in OCI 
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss, with the exception of equity investment designated 
as measured at FVTOCI, where the cumulative gain/loss previously recognised in OCI is not subsequently 
reclassified to profit or loss.					   

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Bank retains an option to repurchase 
part of a transferred asset), the Bank allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the 
part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis 
of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount 
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no 
longer recognised and any cumulative gain/loss allocated to it that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in 
profit or loss.					   

A cumulative gain/loss that had been recognised in OCI is allocated between the part that continues to be 
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recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts. This 
does not apply for equity investments designated as measured at FVTOCI, as the cumulative gain/loss previously 
recognised in OCI is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.				  

Write off

Loans and debt securities are written off when the Bank has no reasonable expectations of recovering the financial 
asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Bank determines that the borrower does not 
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the 
write-off. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Bank may apply enforcement activities to financial 
assets written off. Recoveries resulting from the Bank’s enforcement activities will result in impairment gains, 
which will be presented in ‘net impairment loss on financial assets’ in the statement of profit or loss.	

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

*	 for financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets;

*	 for debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: no loss allowance is recognised in the statement of financial position as 
the carrying amount is at fair value. However, the loss allowance is included as part of the revaluation amount in the 
investments revaluation reserve. 

*	 for loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: as a provision; and 

*	 where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the Bank cannot identify the 
ECL on the loan commitment component separately from those on the drawn component: the Bank presents a com-
bined loss allowance for both components. The combined amount is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying 
amount of the drawn component. Any excess of the loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn component is 
presented as a provision.”					   

*	 “IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification of financial liabilities. However, although 
under IAS 39 all fair value changes of liabilities designated under the fair value option were recognised in profit or loss, 
under IFRS 9 fair value changes are generally presented as follows:

*	 the amount of change in the fair value that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability is presented in 
OCI; and

*	 the remaining amount of change in the fair value is presented in profit or loss				  

For an explanation of how the Bank classifies financial liabilities under IFRS 9, see below:

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL’ or ‘other financial liabilities’. For all financial 
liabilities the amount presented on the statement of financial position represent all amounts payable including 
interest accruals.					   

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is (i) held for trading, or (ii) it is designated 
as at FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

• it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Bank manages together and has 
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.				  

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration that may be paid 
by an acquirer as part of a business combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise 
arise; or

• the financial liability forms part of a Bank of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its 
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Bank’s documented risk management or invest-
ment strategy, and information about the banking is provided internally on that basis; or

• it forms part of a hybrid (combined) contract, containing one or more embedded derivatives that significantly modifies 
the cash flows of the contract, or it is clear with little or no analysis that separation of the embedded derivative is not 
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prohibited.					   

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on remeasurement recognised 
in profit or loss to the extent that they are not part of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain/loss 
recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘net 
income from other financial instruments at FVTPL’ line item in the profit or loss account.			 
However, for non-derivative financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the 
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in 
OCI, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an 
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is recognised 
in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in 
OCI are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are transferred to retained earnings upon 
derecognition of the financial liability.					   

For issued loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts that are designated as at FVTPL all gains and 
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

In making the determination of whether recognising changes in the liability’s credit risk in OCI will create 
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, the Bank assesses whether it expects that the effects of 
changes in the liability’s credit risk will be offset in profit or loss by a change in the fair value of another financial 
instrument measured at FVTPL. This determination is made at initial recognition. Such financial liabilities are 
detailed in note 2.2.4

Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 4.					   

Other financial liabilities					   

Other financial liabilities, including deposits and borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction 
costs. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating 
interest expense over the relevant period. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net 
carrying amount on initial recognition. For details on EIR see the “net interest income section” above.	

Modification and derecognition of financial liabilities					   

The Bank derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Bank’s obligations are discharged, cancelled 
or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the 
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.					   

When the Bank exchanges with the existing lender one debt instrument into another one with substantially 
different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the 
recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, the Bank accounts for substantial modification of terms of an 
existing liability or part of it as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new 
liability. To determine if the modified terms of a liability are substantially different to the original terms a similar 
process with modification of financial assets is followed. The modification is assessed at first on a qualitative 
basis, factors such as a change in currency or the introduction of a non-closely related embedded derivative that 
significantly modifies the cash flows are regarded as substantially different. If it is not clear from the qualitative 
assessment that a modification has resulted in a substantial change in a financial liability, a quantitative 
assessment is applied. It is assumed that the terms of the financial liability are substantially different if the 
discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received 
and discounted using the original effective rate is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present 
value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.				  

If the modification is not substantial, the Bank recalculates the amortised cost of the modified financial liability 
by discounting the modified contractual cash flows using the original effective interest rate. The Bank recognises 
any adjustment to the amortised cost of the financial liability in profit or loss as income or expense at the date of 
the modification. The financial liability modification gain/loss is not significant for the Bank Modification gains 
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are presented in ‘other income’ and modification losses are presented in ‘other expenses’ in the profit or loss 
account.

Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 have been applied retrospectively, except 
as described below.

Comparative periods generally have not been restated. Differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets 
and financial liabilities resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 are recognised in retained earnings and reserves as 
at 1 July 2018. Accordingly, the information presented for 2018 does not reflect the requirements of IFRS 9 and 
therefore is not comparable to the information presented for 2019 under IFRS 9.			 

• The following assessments have been made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that existed at the date of 
initial application.

• The determination of the business model within which a financial asset is held.

• The designation and revocation of previous designations of certain financial assets and financial liabilities as mea-
sured at FVTPL. 

• The designation of certain investments in equity instruments not held for trading as at FVOCI.

• For financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL, the determination of whether presenting the effects of changes in 
the financial liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.

• If a debt security had low credit risk at the date of initial application of IFRS 9, then the Bank has assumed that credit 
risk on the asset had not increased significantly since its initial recognition.				  

For more information and details on the changes and implications resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9, see note 2.2.4

2.5	 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)					   

Policy applicable before 1 July 2018					   

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.							     

(a) Financial instruments – key measurement terms

Depending on their classification financial instruments are carried at fair value or a mortised cost as described 
below.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The best evidence of fair value is the price in an active 
market. An active market is one in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency 
and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Fair value of financial instruments traded in an active market is measured as the product of the quoted price 
for the individual asset or liability and the number of instruments held by the entity. This is the case even if a 
market’s normal daily trading volume is not sufficient to absorb the quantity held and placing orders to sell the 
position in a single transaction might affect the quoted price.

Valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models or models based on recent arm’s length transactions 
or consideration of financial data of the investees are used to measure fair value of certain financial instruments 
for which external market pricing information is not available.

Fair value measurements are analyzed by level in the fair value hierarchy as follows: (i) level one are measurements 
at quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, (ii) level two measurements 
are valuations techniques with all material inputs observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as 
prices) or indirectly (that is , derived from prices), and (iii) level three measurements are valuations not based on 
solely observable market data (that is, the measurement requires significant unobservable inputs).

Transaction costs

Incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial instrument. An 
incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the transaction had not taken place. Transaction 
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costs include fees and comissions paid to agents (including employees acting as selling agents), advisors, brokers 
and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securities exchange and transfer taxes and duties. Transaction 
costs do not include debt premiums or discounts, financing costs or internal administrative or holding costs.

Amortized cost

Is the amount at which the financial instrument was recognized at initial recognition less any principal 
repayments, plus accrued interest, and for financial assets less any write – down for incurred impairment losses. 
Accrued interest includes amortization of transaction costs deferred at initial recognition and of any premium 
or discount to the maturity amount using the effective interest method. Accrued interest income and accrued 
interest expense, including both accrued coupon and amortized discount or premium (including fees deferred 
at origination, if any), are not presented separately and are included in the carrying values of the related items 
in the statement of financial position.

The effective interest method

Is a method of allocating interest income or interest expense over the relevant period, so as to achieve a constant 
periodic rate of interest (effective interest rate) on the carrying amount. The effective interest rate is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (excluding future credit losses) through the 
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, if appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the 
financial instrument. The effective interest rate discounts cash flows of variable interest instruments to the next 
interest reprising date, except for the premium or discount which reflects the credit spread over the floating rate 
specified in the instrument, or other variables that are not reset to market rates. Such premiums or discounts are 
amortized over the whole expected life of the instrument. The present value calculation includes all fees paid or 
received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

(b) Classification of financial assets

Financial assets have the following categories; (a) loans and receivables; (b) available – for – sale financial assets; 
(c) financial assets held to maturity and (d) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, Financial assets at 
fair value through profit or loss have two sub-categories: (i) assets designated as such upon initial recognition, 
and (ii) those classified as held for trading.

Loans and receivables are unquoted non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments other 
than those that the Bank intends to sell in the near term.

Financial assets other than loans and receivables are permitted to be reclassified out of the fair value through 
profit or loss category only in rare circumstances arising from a single event that is unusual and highly unlikely 
to reoccur in the near term. Financial assets that would meet the definition of loans and receivable may be 
reclassified if the Bank has the intention and ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable future or 
until maturity.

(c) Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities have the following measurement categories: (a) held for trading which also includes financial 
derivatives and (b) other financial liabilities, Liabilities held for trading are carried at fair value with changes in 
value recognized in profit or loss for the year (as finance income or finance costs) in the period in which they 
arise. Other financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost.

(d)  Financial assets	 							     

(i) Initial recognition and measurement					   

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation 
or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the  
Bank commits to purchase or sell the asset.					   

(ii) Subsequent measurement 					   

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into two categories:



Annual Report 2018/19 63

Oromia International Bank S.C.

For the year ended 30 June 2019
Notes to the financial statements

• Loans and receivables

• Available-for-sale financial investments		

(a) Loans and receivables	 						    

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by 
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest and similar income in income statement. The losses arising from 
impairment are recognised in income statement in loan impairment charge.

The Bank’s loans and receivables comprise of Agricultural loans, Interest-Free loans, Industry loans, Domestic 
Trade and Service loans, Export loans, Import loans, Construction loans, Transport and communication loans, 
Hotel and tourism loans, Mining, power and water resources loans, Microfinance institution loans, Mortgage 
loans, Consumer and personal loans and Staff loans. 				  

(b) Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets					   

AFS investments include equity and debt securities. Equity investments classified as AFS are those which are 
neither classified as held–for–trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this 
category are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in 
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions. 

After initial measurement, AFS financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value with unrealised 
gains or losses recognised in OCI and credited in the AFS reserve until the investment is derecognised, at which 
time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in other operating income, or the investment is determined to 
be impaired, when the cumulative loss is reclassified from the AFS reserve to income statement in impairment 
loss on financial investment. Interest earned whilst holding AFS financial investments is reported as interest and 
similar income using the EIR method. Unquoted equity securities whose fair value cannot be reliably measured 
are carried at cost. All other available-for-sale investments are carried at fair value.

The Bank evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its AFS financial assets in the near term is still 
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Bank is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive 
markets, the Bank may elect to reclassify these financial assets if the management has the ability and intention 
to hold the assets for foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the AFS category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification 
becomes its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on the asset that has been recognised in equity 
is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the EIR. Any difference between the 
new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the 
EIR. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to 
profit or loss. Refer to the information below under reclassification.

‘Day 1’ profit or loss					   

When the transaction price differs from the fair value of other observable current market transactions in the 
same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable markets, 
the Bank immediately recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ profit or 
loss) in ‘Other operating income’. In cases where fair value is determined using data which is not observable, the 
difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognised in the profit or loss when the inputs 
become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.					   

Reclassification of financial assets	 				  

Reclassification is at the election of management, and is determined on an instrument by instrument basis. The 
Bank does not reclassify any financial instrument into the fair value through profit or loss category after initial 
recognition.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the ’Available–for–sale’ category, any previous gain or loss on that asset 
that has been recognised in equity is amortised to income statement over the remaining life of the investment 
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using the EIR. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the expected cash flows is also amortised 
over the remaining life of the asset using the EIR. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired then the 
amount recorded in equity is reclassified to income statement.

The Bank may reclassify a non–derivative trading asset out of the ‘held–for–trading’ category and into the ‘loans 
and receivables’ category if it meets the definition of loans and receivables and the Bank has the intention and 
ability to hold the financial asset for the foreseeable future or until maturity. If a financial asset is reclassified, 
and if the Bank subsequently increases its estimates of future cash receipts as a result of increased recoverability 
of those cash receipts, the effect of that increase is recognised as an adjustment to the EIR from the date of the 
change in estimate.								      

Derecognition of financial assets	 				  

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a Bank of similar financial assets) is 
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Bank’s statement of financial position) when:

•  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

•  the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the 
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass–through’ arrangement; and either

 (a) the Bank has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

 (b) the Bank has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset.

When the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through 
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has 
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the 
asset, the Bank continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Bank’s continuing involvement. 
In that case, the Bank also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are 
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Bank has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower 
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Bank could be 
required to repay.”					   

Impairment of financial assets					   

The Bank assesses at each reporting date, whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a 
Bank of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that has occurred since the 
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’), has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the 
financial asset or the Bank of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include 
indications that the borrower or a Bank of borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty, the probability 
that they will enter Bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, default or delinquency in interest or principal 
payments and where observable data indicates that there is measurable decrease in the estimated future cash 
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.		

Financial assets carried at amortised cost					   

For financial assets carried at amortised cost (such as loans and receivables), the Bank first assesses individually 
whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or 
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Bank determines that no objective 
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, it includes the asset in a Bank of 
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that 
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are 
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured 
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows 
(excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is 
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in income statement. 
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Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest 
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.		

2.5	 Financial assets and at amount cost (continued)							     
The interest income is recorded as part of ‘Interest and similar income’. Loans together with the associated allowance 
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been 
transferred to the Bank. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases 
because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is 
increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write–off is later recovered, the recovery is cred-
ited to the ’loan impairment charge’.

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR. If a loan has 
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current EIR.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects 
the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not 
foreclosure is probable.					   

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are Banked on the basis of the Bank’s 
internal credit grading system, that considers credit risk characteristics such as asset type, industry, geographical 
location, collateral type, past–due status and other relevant factors.

Future cash flows on a Bank of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the 
basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the Bank. Historical 
loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions on 
which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that 
do not exist currently. Estimates of changes in future cash flows reflect, and are directionally consistent with, 
changes in related observable data from year to year (such as changes in unemployment rates, property prices, 
commodity prices, payment status, or other factors that are indicative of incurred losses in the Bank and their 
magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly to 
reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.		

In the estimation of credit risk, the Bank estimate the following parameters:			    

(a)Probability of Default					   

This is the probability that an obligor or counterparty will default over a given period, usually one year. This can 
be calculated on portfolio by portfolio basis or collectively depending on availability of historical data.

(b) Loss Given Default					   

Loss Given Default is defined as the portion of the loan determined to be irrecoverable at the time of loan default 
(1 – recovery rate). Our methods for estimating LGD includes both quantitative and qualitative factors.

(c) Exposure at Default	 				  

This represents the amount that is outstanding at the point of default. Its estimation includes the drawn amount 
and expected utilisation of the undrawn commitment at default.			 

Impairment assessment (continued)					   

The Bank assesses its impairment for the purpose of IFRS reporting using a two-way approach which are 
Individual assessment and portfolio assessment.					   

(d) Individual assessment	 				  

The Bank reviewed and revised existing impairment triggers for each loan asset portfolio to ensure that a trigger 
identifies a loss event as early as possible, which would result in the earliest possible recognition of losses within 
the IFRS framework. The Bank then estimated the impairment based on the shortfall between the present value 
of estimated future cash flows and the asset carrying amount.					   

(e) Collective assessment	 				  

Loans and receivables that are not specifically impaired are assessed under collective impairment. For the 
purpose of collective impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics 
that are indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to contractual terms.
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Collective assessment (Contd)					   

The Bank generally bases its analyses on historical experience. The collective assessment takes account of 
data from the loan portfolio (such as historical losses on the portfolio, levels of arrears, credit utilisation, loan 
to collateral ratios and expected receipts and recoveries once impaired) or economic data (such as current 
economic conditions, unemployment levels and local or industry–specific problems). The approximate delay 
between the time a loss is likely to have been incurred and the time it will be identified as requiring an individually 
assessed impairment allowance is also taken into consideration. The impairment allowance is reviewed by credit 
management to ensure alignment with the Bank’s overall policy.

(ii)Available-for-sale (AFS) financial instruments					   

Available-for-sale financial assets are impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment, resulting from one 
or more loss events that occurred after initial recognition but before the reporting date, that have an impact on 
the future cash flows of the asset. In addition, an available-for-sale equity instrument is generally considered 
impaired if a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the instrument below its cost has occurred. 
Where an available-for-sale asset, which has been remeasured to fair value directly through equity, is impaired, 
the impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. If any loss on the financial asset was previously recognised 
directly in equity as a reduction in fair value, the cumulative net loss that had been recognised in equity is 
transferred to profit or loss and is recognised as part of the impairment loss. The amount of the loss recognised 
in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any previously 
recognised impairment loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount relating to an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, where the instrument is a debt 
instrument, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. An impairment loss in respect of an equity 
instrument classified as available-for-sale is not reversed through profit or loss but accounted for directly in 
equity.								      

Renegotiated loans					   

Where possible, the Bank seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral. This may involve 
extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions. Once the terms have been 
renegotiated any impairment is measured using the original EIR as calculated before the modification of terms 
and the loan is no longer considered past due. Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that 
all criteria are met and that future payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual 
or collective impairment assessment, calculated using the loan’s original EIR.			 

Collateral valuation							     

The Bank seeks to use collateral, where possible, to mitigate its risks on financial assets. The collateral comes in 
various forms such as cash via Bank guarantees and real estate. The fair value of collateral is generally assessed, 
at a minimum, at inception and based on the Bank’s reporting schedule.

To the extent possible, the Bank uses active market data for valuing financial assets, held as collateral. Other 
financial assets which do not have a readily determinable market value are valued using models. The Bank 
revalues its property at least after every 3 years and revalues motor vehicles at least once in every 2 years.

Collateral repossessed								      

Repossessed collateral represents financial and non-financial assets acquired by the Bank in settlement 
of overdue loans. The Bank’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset is best used for its internal 
operations or should be sold. Assets determined to be used for internal operations are  initially recognised at 
the lower of their repossessed value or the carrying value of the original secured asset and included in the 
relevant assets depending on the nature and the Bank’s intention in respect of recovery of these assets, and are 
subsequently remeasured and accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies for these categories of 
assets. Assets that are determined better to be sold are immediately transferred to assets held for sale at their fair 
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value at the repossession date in line with the Bank’s policy.				  

Financial liabilities								      

Initial recognition and measurement							     

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and 
other financial liabilities.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of other financial liabilities, net of 
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Bank’s financial liabilities include customer deposits and other liabilities. Interest expenditure is recognised 
in interest and similar expense.					   

Subsequent measurement					   

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:	

Financial liabilities at amortised cost					   

Financial instruments issued by the Bank, that are not designated at fair value through profit or loss but are 
classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost, where the substance of the contractual arrangement results 
in the Bank having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy the 
obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of 
own equity shares. 

After initial measurement, financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate (EIR). Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on the issue and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

The Bank’s financial liabilities carried at amortised cost comprise of customer deposits, margin held on letter of 
credit and  long term deposits.							     

Derecognition of financial liabilities					     	

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from these assets have 
ceased to exist or the assets have been transferred and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of 
the assets are also transferred (that is, if substantially all the risks and rewards have not been transferred, the 
Bank tests control to ensure that continuing involvement on the basis of any retained powers of control does 
not prevent derecognition). 

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they have been redeemed or otherwise extinguished.	

2.6	 Offsetting financial instruments						    

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position 
where The Bank has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.The legal enforceable right must 
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in event of 
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Bank or the counterparty.				  

2.7	 Interest Free Financing and Investment products before and after 01 July 2018		

In addition to conventional banking products, the Bank  offers its customers certain non-interest based banking 
products which are approved by its Sharia’h Supervisory Committee.

All Interest Free banking products are accounted for in conformity with the accounting policies described below:

With regard to Interest free banking products except  impairment policy, no change is noted in adoption of IFRS 
9 . The impairment policy of  interest free financing  products are similar with the policy stated above before and 
after adoption of IFRS-9					   

(i)  Definition of Key Terms 

Murabaha

An agreement whereby the bank sells to a customer a commodity or a property which the bank has purchased 
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and acquired based on a promise received from the customer to buy the item purchased according to specific 
terms and conditions. The selling price comprises of the cost of the commodity and an agreed profit margin.

Istisna

An agreement between the bank and a customer, whereby the bank  develops and sells a property to the 
customer according to the specifications agreed upon. The bank  may develop the property on its own or 
through a subcontractor, and then hand it over to the customer on a pre-agreed date and against fixed price.

Ijarah

An agreement whereby the bank (lesser) leases an asset to a customer (lessee), for a specific period against 
certain rent installments. Ijarah could end in transferring the ownership of the asset to the lessee at the end of 
the lease period. Also, the bank transfers substantially all the risks and returns related to the ownership of the 
leased asset to the lessee.

Salam 

A contract whereby the bank purchases a fixed quantity of a specified commodity and pays the full Salam price 
of the commodity in advance, whereas the customer delivers the quantity of the commodities in accordance 
with an agreed delivery schedule. The bank makes profit on Salam transactions, when the Salam commodities 
are received from the Salam customer and subsequently sold to a third party at profit

Interest Free Export Financing Facility

A non-profit bearing financing  enables the borrower to use the borrowed amounts for a specific period of time, 
at the end of which the same borrowed amounts would be repaid free of any charges or profits.

Mudaraba

A contract between the bank  and a customer, whereby one party provides the funds (Rab Al Mal) and the other 
party (the Mudarib) invests the funds in a project or a particular activity and any generated profits are distributed 
between the parties according to the profit shares that were pre-agreed upon in the contract. The Mudarib is 
responsible of all losses caused by his misconduct, negligence or violation of the terms and conditions of the 
Mudaraba; otherwise, losses are borne by Rab Al Mal. 			

Musharaka 

A contract between the bank  and a customer to enter into a partnership in an existing project (or to be 
established), or in the ownership of a specific asset, either ongoing basis or for a limited time, during which the 
bank enters in particular arrangements with the customer to sell to him/her its share in this partnership until 
he/she becomes the sole owner of it (diminishing musharaka). Profits are distributed according to the mutual 
agreement of the parties as stipulated in the contract; however, losses are borne according to the exact shares 
in the Musharaka capital on a pro-rata basis.

Accounting policy for Interest Free Financing and Investment Products) 	 			 

a)  Murabaha financing 

Murabaha financing receivables are deferred sale agreements whereby the Bank sells to a customer a commodity 
or an asset, which the Bank has purchased and acquired based on a promise received from the customer to buy. 
The selling price comprises the cost plus an agreed profit margin.  Amounts receivable from Murabaha financing 
receivables are initially stated in the Statement of Financial Position at selling price. And  Subsequently, they 
shall be stated at selling price less unearned income and provision for impairment at the reporting date.

b)  Istisna

Istisna is an agreement between the Bank and a customer whereby the Bank sells to the customer an asset which 
is either constructed or manufactured by the purchaser on behalf of the Bank according with agreed-upon 
specifications, for an agreed-upon price.

 Istisna’a assets in progress represent disbursements made as well as the accrued income as of the date of the 
statement of financial position against assets being either constructed or manufactured. 
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After completion of the project, the Istisna asset is transferred to the Istisna receivable account and carried at 
the value of amounts disbursed, plus income accumulated over the manufacturing period, less provision for 
impairment.

c) Ijarah assets 

Ijarah assets are initially stated in the Financial Statement of the Bank at cost.Subsequently, they shall be stated 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.  Depreciation is charged from the date 
of recognition of ijarah assets on a straight line basis over the period of Ijarah. Impairment of Ijarah assets is 
determined on the same basis as that of operating fixed assets.				  

d)  Salam  Financing

Salam financings are reflected in the Financial Position of the Bank as receivables at the invoiced amount. Profit 
not due for payment is deferred and is recognized on a time proportion basis. 

e)  Interest Free Export Financing Facility 

Interest Free Export Financing Facility is a short term financing given to the borrower for three months  free 
of any charge or profit  and not subject to discounting being a short term facility. Interest Free Export Facility 
Financing is  stated  in the statement of financial Position of the bank at the fair value of the consideration given( 
amounts of disbursement). and Subsequently, they shall be stated at disbursement amount  less impairment (if 
any). 

f)  Mudaraba Investment

Mudaraba investment is based on the profit-sharing and loss-bearing Mudaraba contract where profits are 
shared between the parties based on the terms of the Mudaraba agreement. Initially Mudaraba contracts are 
stated  in the statement of financial Position of the bank at fair value of the consideration given (amount of 
disbursement)  and  Subsequently, they shall be stated at  fair value of the consideration given, less impairment.

g) Musharaka 

In Musharaka based financing, the Bank enters into a Musharaka based on partnership for financing an agreed 
share of fixed asset (e.g. house, land, plant or machinery) with its customers and enters into periodic rental 
payment agreement for the utilization of the Bank’s Musharaka share by the customer. Initially Musharaka and 
Diminishing Musharaka Financing are stated  in the statement of financial Position of the bank at fair value of the 
consideration given (amount of disbursement)  and  Subsequently, they shall be  stated in the financial Position 
of the Bank at disbursement amount less impairment.				 

Allowance for impairment is made against Interest Free financing and investment products when their recovery 
is in doubt taking into consideration IFRS requirements (as explained in Note 2.5.1). Interest Free financing and 
investment products are written off only when all possible courses of action to achieve recovery have proved 
unsuccessful.							     

(iii)  Revenue recognition policy

Income from the following financing and investing receivables is recognized on the as follows policy:

(i) Murabaha 

Murabaha income is recognized on a time apportioned basis over the period of the contract based on the 
outstanding  principal amounts. 

(ii) Istisna

Istisna revenue and the associated profit margin (difference between the cash price to the customer and the 
bank’s total Istisna cost) are accounted for on a time proportion basis.
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(iii) Ijara 

Ijara income is recognized on a time apportioned basis over the lease term. 

(V) Salam

Salam profit is internally accounted for on a time-apportioned basis over the period of the Salam contract based 
on the value of the outstanding Salam commodities.

(vi )Mudaraba 

Income or losses on Mudaraba financing are recognized on an accrual basis if they can be reliably estimated. 
Otherwise, income is recognized on distribution by the Mudarib, whereas the losses are charged to the Bank’s 
Statement of profit and loss  on their declaration by the Mudarib. 

(vi) Musharaka 

Income is accounted for on the basis of the reducing balance of Musharaka on a time apportioned basis that 
reflects the effective yield on the asset. 	

(vii) Forfeited income

According to the Bank’s Fatwa and Sharia’a Supervisory committee, the bank is required to identify any income 
deemed to be derived from transactions not acceptable under Sharia’a principles, as interpreted by Fatwa and 
Sharia’a Supervisory committee, and to set aside such amount in a separate account used to pay for charitable 
causes and activities.

 (iv) Interest Free Banking customers’ deposits and distributions to depositors

a) Interest Free Banking customers’ deposits 

Interest Free Banking customers’ deposits such as Amana, Wadiaha and Mudaraba and other deposits are initially 
measured at fair value which is normally consideration received net of directly attributable transaction costs 
incurred, and subsequently measured at their carrying value. 

b)   Profit distribution 

Profits or losses of Mudaraba based depositors’ accounts are calculated and distributed in accordance with the 
Banking Service Agreement between the Bank and the investment account holders.		

2.8	 Cash and cash equivalents					     			 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date of acquisition, 
including cash in hand, deposits held at call with Banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with 
original maturities of three months or less.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash and restricted balances 
with National Bank of Ethiopia.								      

2.9	 Property, plant and Equipment						      	

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment if the recognition 
criteria are met. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, 
the Bank recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. 
All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in income statement as incurred.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the bank and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.		
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Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost  to their residual values over their 
estimated useful lives, as follows:								      

2.10	 Property, plant and Equipment (continued)				  

Asset class				    Useful life (years)			 

					   
Buildings				    50			 
Furniture and fittings			   10-20			 
Equipment				    5-10			 
Motor Vehicles				    10			 

Computer and accessories			  7-10			 

The Bank commences depreciation when the asset is available for use. 

Capital work-in-progress is not depreciated as these assets are not yet available for use.  They are disclosed when 
reclassified during the year.								      

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use disposal. Any gain or loss arising on 
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset) is included in income statement when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at 
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.	

2.11	 Intangible assets					     	

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, 
if any. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the 
related expenditure is reflected in income statement in the period in which the expenditure is incurred .

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite 
lives are amortised over the useful economic life. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an 
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected 
useful life, or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset, are 
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, which are then treated as 
changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expenses on intangible assets with finite lives is presented 
as a separate line item in the income statement.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight–line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their 
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

   • Swift software – 6 years

   • Core Banking software – 6 years

   • Mobile and agent banking software – 6 years					   

2.12	 Investment property					     			 
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, are classified as investment 
properties. 

Recognition of investment properties takes place only when it is probable that the future economic benefits that 
are associated with the investment property will flow to the Bank and the cost can be reliably measured.  This is 
usually when all risks are transferred.							     

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The Bank has opted to 
subsequently carry investment property at cost and disclose fair value. Fair value is based on active market 
prices, adjusted if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If this 
information is not available, the Bank uses alternative valuation methods, such as recent prices on less active 
markets or discounted cash flow projections. Valuations are performed as of the reporting date by professional 
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valuers who hold recognised and relevant professional qualifications and have recent experience in the location 
and category of the investment property being valued. These valuations form the basis for the carrying amounts 
in the financial statements. 						    

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things, rental income from current leases and 
assumptions about rental income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

The fair value of investment property does not reflect future capital expenditure that will improve or enhance 
the property and does not reflect the related future benefits from this future expenditure other than those a 
rational market participant would take into account when determining the value of the property.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an 
investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.		

Investment properties are derecognised when they have been disposed. Where the Bank disposes of a property 
at fair value in an arm’s length transaction, the carrying value immediately prior to the sale is adjusted to the 
transaction price, and the adjustment is recorded in the statement of changes in net assets available for benefit.  

2.13	 Non-current assets (or disposal Banks) held for sale and discontinued operations			 

Non-current assets (or disposal Banks) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly 
probable. They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except 
for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and investment 
property that are carried at fair value and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are specifically 
exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal Bank) to fair 
value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset 
(or disposal Bank), but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not 
previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal Bank) is recognised at the date 
of derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal Bank) are not depreciated or amortised while 
they are classified as held for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal Bank 
classified as held for sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal Bank classified as held for sale are 
presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet. The liabilities of a disposal Bank classified as 
held for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the balance sheet.

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale 
and that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively 
with a view to resale. The results of discontinued operations are presented separately in the statement of profit 
or loss.

2.14	 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Bank assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Bank estimates the asset’s 
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) 
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, 
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Banks 
of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no 
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such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated 
by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Bank bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared 
separately for each of the Bank’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast 
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and 
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an 
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication 
exists, the Bank estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is 
reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount 
since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset 
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net 
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised 
in the income statement.						   

2.15	 Other assets			   			 

Other assets are generally defined as claims held against other entities for the future receipt of money. The other 
assets in the Bank’s financial statements include the following:					   

(a)	 Prepayment				  

Prepayments are payments made in advance for services to be enjoyed in future. The amount is initially 
capitalized in the reporting period in which the payment is made and subsequently amortised over the period 
in which the service is to be enjoyed.					   

(b)	 Other receivables					   

Other receivables are recognised upon the occurrence of event or transaction as they arise and cancelled when 
payment is received.

The Bank’s other receivables are rent receivables and other receivables from debtors.		

2.16	 Fair value measurement				  

The Bank measures financial instruments classified as available-for-sale at fair value at each statement of financial 
position date. Fair value related disclosures for financial instruments and non-financial assets that are measured 
at fair value or where fair values are disclosed are, summarised in the following notes:

•   Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions Notes 4 and Note 15.14.1

•   Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy Note 15.14.2

•   Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) Note 15.14.2”				  
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that 
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

•   In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

•   In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Bank.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Bank uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
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value measurement as a whole:

•  Level 1 —  Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

• Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is directly or indirectly observable.

• Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Bank determines 
whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting 
period.

The Bank’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, 
such as available-for-sale financial assets.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Bank has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of 
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained 
above.			 

2.17	 Employee benefits							     

The Bank operates various post-employment schemes, including both defined benefit and defined contribution 
pension plans and post employment benefits.						    

(a)	 Defined contribution plan				  

The Bank operates two defined contribution plans;

i)   pension scheme in line with the provisions of Ethiopian pension of private organisation employees 
proclamation 715/2011.  Funding under the scheme is 7% and 11% by employees and the Bank respectively;

ii)  provident fund contribution, funding under this scheme is 7% and 14% by employees and the Bank 
respectively;

Both schemes are based on the employees’ salary. Employer’s contributions to this scheme are charged to profit 
or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which they relate.			 

(b)	 Defined benefit plan					   

The liability or asset recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension plans 
is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan 
assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit 
credit method.				 

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan 
assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit 
credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated 
future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency 
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related 
pension obligation.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised in the income statement in employee benefit 
expense, except where included in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the defined benefit obligation 
resulting from employee service in the current year, benefit changes curtailments and settlements.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in income.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

(c )	 Termination benefits				 

Termination benefits are payable to executive directors when employment is terminated by the Bank before 
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the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these 
benefits. The Bank recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either: terminating 
the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal; or 
providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.	

2.18	 Provisions					   

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Bank expects some or 
all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised 
as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is 
presented in income statement net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate 
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as other operating expenses.			 

2.19	 Share capital					   

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options or to the acquisition of a business are 
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.					   

2.20	 Earnings per share					     	

The Bank presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares.  Basic earnings per share 
are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted 
average number of shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or 
loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the 
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.						    

2.21	 Government grants					   

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and 
all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as 
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are 
expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected 
useful life of the related asset.

When the Bank receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at nominal amounts 
and released to income statement over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the 
underlying asset by equal annual instalments.						    

2.22	 Leases 					     	

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the 
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use 
of a specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.		

Bank as a lessee					   

Leases that do not transfer to the Bank substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of 
the leased items are operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income 
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rental payable is recognised as an expense in 
the period in which they it is incurred.							     

Bank as a lessor									       

Leases where the Bank does not transfer substantially all of the risk and benefits of ownership of the asset are 
classified as operating leases. Rental income is recorded as earned based on the contractual terms of the lease 
in Other operating income. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating operating leases are added to the carrying 
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent 
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rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.				  

2.23	 Income taxation								      

(a)Current income tax					   

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based 
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities 
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at 
the end of the reporting period in Ethiopia. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns 
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions 
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.		

(b)Deferred tax					  

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they 
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition 
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction 
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax 
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available 
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied 
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an 
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset when they arise in the same tax reporting Bank and where 
there is both the legal right and the intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.					   

4	 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions				  
The preparation of the Bank’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying 
disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates 
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected 
in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Bank’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:

• Capital management Note 5                                                                                                                                                                                     

 • Financial risk management and policies Note 4.1

• Sensitivity analyses disclosures Note 5.6.2”								      

4.1	  Judgements	 				    	

In the process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, 
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:	

Operating lease commitments - Bank as lessee					     	

The Bank has entered into commercial property leases. The Bank has determined, based on an evaluation of 
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the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a substantial portion 
of the economic life of the commercial property, that it does not retain all the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.			 

4.2	 Estimates and assumptions								        	
		

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation at the reporting date, that have 
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year, are described below. The Bank based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when 
the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, 
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances beyond the control of the Bank. Such changes 
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.				  

Fair value  measurement of financial instruments					   

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position 
cannot be  measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation 
techniques including the discounted cash flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable 
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair 
values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in 
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 5.14  for 
further disclosures.									       

Defined benefit plans					   

The cost of the defined benefit pension plan, long service awards, gratuity scheme and post-employment medical 
benefits and the present value of these defined benefit obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. 
An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the 
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future 
pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit 
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting 
date.							     

Depreciation and carrying value of property, plant and equipment					   

The estimation of the useful lives of assets is based on management’s judgement. Any material adjustment to 
the estimated useful lives of items of property and equipment will have an impact on the carrying value of these 
items.									       

Impairment of non-financial assets					  

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, 
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal 
calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar 
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation 
is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include 
restructuring activities that the Bank is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance 
the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used 
for the discounted cash flow model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for 
extrapolation purposes. 			 

Taxes					  

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the 
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business relationships and 
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the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual 
results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments 
to tax income and expense already recorded. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as 
experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the 
responsible tax authority.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine 
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future 
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.						    
Development cost 					   

The Bank capitalises development costs for a project in accordance with the accounting policy. Initial 
capitalisation of costs is based on management’s judgement that technological and economic feasibility is 
confirmed, usually when a product development project has reached a defined milestone according to an 
established project management model. In determining the amounts to be capitalised, management makes 
assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of the project, discount rates to be applied and the 
expected period of benefits. The development costs that were capitalised by the Bank relates to those arising 
from the development of computer software.		

5	 Financial risk management					   

5.1	 Introduction					   

Risk is inherent in the Bank’s activities, but is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement 
and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Bank’s 
continuing profitability and each individual within the Bank is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his 
or her responsibilities. The Bank is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. It is also subject to country 
risk and various operating risks.

5.2	 Risk management structure					   

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk 
management strategies and principles. 

The Board of Directors Risk Management and Compliance Committee (BDRMCC) has the overall responsibility for 
the development of risk strategy and implementing principles, framework, polices and limit. This subcommittee 
is also responsible for managing risk decisions and monitoring risk levels and report on monthly and quarterly 
basis to regulatory organ and the management.

The Risk Management and Compliance unit is responsible for implementing and maintaining risk related 
procedures to ensure an independent control process is maintained. This unit closely works with BDRMCC to 
ensure that procedures are complaint with overall framework.

The risk management function is a carried out in respect of financial risks (credit, market, and liquidity risks) 
and operational risks. The primary objectives of the financial risk management function are to establish risk 
limits, and then ensure that exposure to risks stays within these limits. The Risk Management and Compliance 
Department is also responsible for ensuring that appropriate balance is established between risk and return, 
whilst minimizing any potential adverse effects on the Bank’s financial performance. The operational and legal 
risk management functions are intended to ensure proper functioning of internal policies and procedures to 
minimize operational and legal risks.

The Bank’s risk management methodology polices and assessment procedures are designed to identify, analyze, 
mitigate and manage the risk faced by the Bank. This is accomplished through setting of appropriate risk limits 
and controls, whilst ensuring suitable monitoring of risk levels and compliance with the limits and procedures 
on an ongoing basis. The risk management policies and procedures are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in 
market conditions, and new products and services offered, this is to ensure that “best practices” are implemented 
in the Bank.	
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Risk management policies and processes around the assessment, approval, monitoring and control of risks 
are performed by a number of specialized bodies within the Bank, including committees and departments to 
comply with the requirement of the pertinent laws and industry best practices.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the oversight of the risk management framework. This 
includes the management of key risks, along with the review and approval of risk management polices and key 
risk limits such as large exposures, economic and product sector limits. It also delegates certain risk supervision 
authority levels to the Management, the Risk Management Committee, the Credit Committee, the Audit 
Committee and the Asset and Liability Committee (“ALCO”).

The Risk Management and Compliance sub Committee is appointed by and reports directly to the Board of 
Directors.					   

5.2.1	 Risk measurement and reporting systems						    

The Bank’s risks are measured using a method that reflects both the expected loss likely to arise in normal 
circumstances and unexpected losses, which are an estimate of the ultimate actual loss based on statistical 
models. The models make use of probabilities derived from historical experience, adjusted to reflect the 
economic environment. The Bank also runs worst-case scenarios that would arise in the event that extreme 
events which are unlikely to occur do, in fact, occur.

Monitoring and controlling risks is primarily performed based on limits established by the Bank. These limits 
reflect the business strategy and market environment of the Bank as well as the level of risk that the Bank is 
willing to accept, with additional emphasis on selected regions. In addition, the Bank’s policy is to measure 
and monitor the overall risk bearing capacity in relation to the aggregate risk exposure across all risk types and 
activities.					   

5.2.2	 Risk mitigation					   

The bank uses board approved risk tolerance limit as a risk limit control. This risk tolerance limit composed of 
risk limit by economic sector, by credit product, by maturity, by geography and risk grade. There also limitation 
imposed by the regulatory organ such as single borrower limit, related party limit, off balance sheet exposure 
limit and connected counterparties limit to which all banks should comply.

As the credit risk mitigation, the bank established an appropriate risk environment, sound credit strategies, 
policies and procedures. In addition, there is active portfolio management, appropriate credit administration 
and monitoring and effective loan review function.

The other credit risk mitigation measures are obtaining sufficient collateral securities and guarantees for loans 
and advances as the second way out in case of default

5.3	 Financial instruments by category  					   
The Bank’s financial assets are classified into the following measurement categories: available-for-sale and loans 
and receivables and the financial liabilities are classified into other liabilities at amortised cost.

Financial instruments are classified in the statement of financial position in accordance with their legal form and 
substance. 				  

The Bank’s classification of its financial assets is summarised in the table below:			 
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FVOCI Amortized Cost Total
30 June 2019 Notes Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
Cash and cash equivalents 16  -    5,120,927  5,120,927 
Loans and advances to customers 17  -    15,323,833  15,323,833 
Interest Free Financing 18  -    1,890,738  1,890,738 
Investment securities:
     - Financial assets at fair value 
through OCI (2018-AFS) 19  95,478  -    95,478 

     -Financial assets at amortized cost 
(2018-Loans and Receivables) 19  -    7,073,001  7,073,001 

Other assets 20  -    837,537  837,537 

Total financial assets  95,478  30,246,036  30,341,514 

Available-For-Sale Loans and 
receivables Total

30 June 2018 Notes Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
Cash and cash equivalents 16  -    5,809,127  5,809,127 
Loans and advances to customers 17  -    9,968,573  9,968,573 
Interest Free Financing 18  -    1,621,293  1,621,293 
Investment securities:  -    -    -   
     - Financial assets at fair value 
through OCI (2018-AFS) 19  68,705  -    68,705 

     -Financial assets at amortized cost 
(2018-Loans and Receivables) 19  -    4,855,817  4,855,817 

Other assets 20  -    218,291  218,291 

Total financial assets  64,029  15,540,258  15,604,287 

5.4	 Credit Risk	
The Bank takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a 
financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge his/her/its obligation. Exposure to credit risk arises as a 
result of the Bank’s lending and other transactions with counterparties giving rise to financial assets including 
likelihood that borrower or counterparty fails to meet their obligations in accordance with agreed terms.

The bank manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to take or accept 
for individuals counterparties and for economic sector ,product and maturity concentration  and by monitoring 
exposures in relation to such limits.

The Bank’s maximum exposure to credit risk is reflected in the carrying amounts of financial assets on the 
statement of financial position. For guarantees and commitments to extend credit, the maximum exposure to 
credit risk is the amount of the commitment. 

The principal credit risk management methods used is described in the formal Credit Policy adopted and 
implemented by the Bank, These include  the setting of limits and the diversification of the credit portfolio based 
upon defined criterion (such as industry, duration, related persons, region, etc). Credits will also be classified at 
initiation and throughout the life of the loan based upon a risk level determined using best practice rating and 
scoring systems. Such tools will also be used to establish appropriate provisions for potential losses as necessary. 
All restrictions and norms issued by the National Bank of Ethiopia (NBE), related to lending operations, have also 
been carefully considered and embedded into the Bank’s credit policy.

The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in 
relation to one borrowers, or groups of  borrowers, and to geographical and industry segments. Limits on 
the level of credit risk by product and industry sector are approved regularly by management. Such risks are 
monitored on a revolving basis and are subject to an annual, or more frequent reviews.
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The Bank established control over authorization of the loans issued. The credit Committee reviews and approves 
all loans exceeding certain amount and or having exceptional terms. 

Loan applications originated by the relevant client relationship managers are passed on to the relevant credit 
committee for approval of the credit limit. Exposure to credit risk is also managed, kin part, by obtaining collateral 
and corporate and personal guarantees. In order to monitor credit risk exposures, regular reports are produced 
by the Credit management,Interest free banking and compliance and risk management department’s. Based 
on a structured analysis, deteriorating creditworthiness is reported to, and reviewed by, the Management and 
Board of Directors.

The Bank does not use formalized internal credit ratings for retail loans to monitor exposure to credit risk. 
Management monitors and follows up on past due balances on monthly basis.

The Bank’s credit monitoring and recovery office reviews the ageing analysis of outstanding loans and follows 
up on past due balances on monthly basis. Management therefore, considers it appropriate to provide ageing 
and other information about credit risk.

Credit risk for off-balance sheet financial instruments is defined as the possibility of sustaining a loss as the result 
of another party to a financial instrument failing to perform in accordance with the terms of the loan contract. 
The Bank uses the same credit policies in assuming conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet 
financial instruments, through established credit approvals, risk control limits and monitoring procedures.“

4.3.1	 Management of credit risk					   

In measuring credit risk of loans and receivables to various counterparties, the Bank considers the character and 
capacity of the obligor to pay or meet contractual obligations, current exposures to the counter party/obligor 
and its likely future developments, credit history of the counterparty/obligor; and the likely recovery ratio in case 
of default obligations-value of collateral and other ways out. Our credit exposure comprises wholesale and retail 
loans and receivables which are developed to reflect the needs of our customers. The Bank’s policy is to lend 
principally on the basis of our customer’s repayment capacity through quantitative and qualitative evaluation. 
However we ensure that our loans are backed by collateral to reflect the risk of the obligors and the nature of 
the facility.

5.4.2	 Credit related commitment risks					  
The Bank holds collateral against loans and receivables to customers in the form of bank guarantees and 
property. Estimates of fair value are based on the value of collateral assessed at the time of borrowing.	

5.4.3	 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or credit enhancements			 

(a)	 Types of credit exposure					   

The banks maximum exposure to credit risk at 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018 is represented by the net carrying 
amounts in the statement of financial position.

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Birr'000 Birr'000

Cash and cash equivalents 5,120,927 5,809,127
Loans and advances to customers 15,323,833 9,968,573
Interest Free Financing 1,890,738 1,621,293
Investment securities:
     - Financial assets at fair value through OCI (2018-AFS) 95,478 68,705
     -Financial assets at amortized cost (2018-Loans and Receiv-
ables) 7,073,001 4,855,817

Other assets 837,537 218,291
  

Total financial assets 30,341,514 22,541,806

Credit risk exposures relating to off balance sheets are as follows:
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Loan commitments 2,242,471 1,451,049

Financing commitment on Interest Free Banking 1,799,804 1,197,882
Letter of credit net of margin held 455,292 361,294
Commitment on letter of credit net of urbun held 39,800 105,350
Guarantees 1,365,208 855,316

Total off balance sheet exposure 5,902,575 3,970,891
Total maximum exposure  36,244,089 26,512,697

(b)	 Assets obtained by taking possession of collateral

Details of financial and non-financial assets obtained by the Bank during the year by taking possession of 
collaterals held as security against loans and receivables at the year end are shown below.

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Buildings  28,863  29,930 
Motor vehicles  -    -   

 28,863  29,930 

The Bank’s policy is to pursue timely realisation of the collateral in a timely manner. The Bank does not generally 
use the non-cash collateral for its own operations.

(c)	 Loans and advances to customers at amortised cost,

(i)	 Gross loans and receivables to customers per sector is analysed as follows:,

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 

Birr'000 Birr'000

Agriculture  226,738  206,345 
Industry  1,486,938  1,051,846 
Domestic trade and services  4,681,099  2,907,290 
Export  3,860,093  2,687,653 
Import  1,060,543  595,749 
Construction  1,858,505  1,016,354 
Transport and communication  250,135  264,832 
Hotel and tourism  957,211  681,631 
Mining, power and water resources  -    -   

Microfinance institution  42,535  42,514 

 Mortgage Loan- Staff  588,619  352,801 
 Mortgage  Loan- Customer  333,748  70,415 
Personal Loan -Staff loans  87,061  59,873 
Emergency staff loans  123,533  103,319 
Consumer Loans- Customer  39,332  19,867 

Gross Loans and advances  15,596,090  10,060,489 
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(ii) Interest free financing per sector is analysed as follows:

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Murahabah Financing- Agriculture  100,505  87,399 
Murahabah Financing- Construction  251,261  122,620 
Murahabah Financing- Agriculture Merchandize  -    -   
Murahabah Financing- Industry  330,038  185,195 
Murahabah Financing- DTS  648,393  408,963 
Murahabah Financing- Export  -    -   
Interest Free Export Facility Financing  208,425  481,990 
Murahabah Financing- Import  158,561  169,402 
Murahabah financing  -    -   
Murahabah Financing- Hotel and Tourism  18,177  11,796 
Murahabah Financing- Transport and Communication  107,117  118,309 
Muruhabah Financing-  Consumer and Personal  -   -

Gross Interest Free Financing  1,822,477  1,585,674 

(iii)	 Gross loans and receivables to customers per National Bank of Ethiopia’s impairment guidelines is analysed as 
follows:,

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Birr'000 Birr'000

Pass  14,651,264  9,359,467 
Special mention  389,441  311,619 
Substandard  254,324  219,973 
Doubtful  146,258  88,471 
Loss  154,803  80,958 

Gross Loans and Advances  15,596,090  10,060,488 

(iv)	 Interest Free Financing  per National Bank of Ethiopia’s impairment guidelines is analysed as follows:

30 June 2019 30 June 2018

Birr'000 Birr'000
Pass  1,554,596  1,106,606 
Special mention  162,779  401,619 
Substandard  54,275  28,351 
Doubtful  8,515  22,396 
Loss  42,312  26,703 

Gross Interest Free Financing  1,822,477  1,585,675 

5.4.4	 Credit quality analysis					   
The following table sets out information about the credit quality of financial assets measured at amortised 
cost, FVOCI debt investments (2019) and available-for-sale debt assets (2018). Unless specifically indicated, for 
financial assets, the amounts in the table represent gross carrying amounts. 

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the amounts in the table represent the amounts 
committed or guaranteed, respectively 					   

Explanation of the terms ‘Stage 1’, ‘Stage 2’ and ‘Stage 3’ is included in Note 2.5 		
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	 (i) Loans and advances to customers at amortized cost 					   

Birr'000 2019 2018
 Credit risk 
exposure

Stage 1                  
12 Month ECL

Stage 2                      
Life time ECL

Stage 3            
Life time ECL TOTAL Total

Stage  1 – Pass  14,651,264  -    -    14,651,264  9,359,467 
Stage 2 – special 
mention  -    389,441  -    389,441  311,619 

Stage 3 - Non 
performing  -    -    555,386  555,386  389,402 

Total gross expo-
sure  -    -    -    -    10,060,488 

Loss allowance  (127,455)  (11,819)  (132,982)  (272,257)  (91,916)
Net Carrying 
amount  14,523,809  377,622  422,404  15,323,833  9,968,573 

(ii) Interest Free Financing measured at amortized cost

Birr'000 2019 2018

Financing risk exposure Stage 1                  
12 Month ECL

Stage 2                      
Life time ECL

Stage 3            
Life time ECL

Total Total

Stage  1 – Pass  1,554,596  -    -    1,554,596  1,106,606 

Stage 2 – special mention  -    162,778.54  -    162,779  401,619 

Stage 3 - Non performing  -    -    105,102.28  105,102  77,450 

Total gross exposure  1,554,596  162,778.54  105,102.28  1,822,477  1,585,675 

Loss allowance  7,930  7,165  38,331  53,427  (41,509)

Net Carrying amount  1,546,666  155,613.21  66,771.34  1,769,051  1,544,165 

(iii)  Other financial assets

Birr'000 2019

Credit risk exposure Gross exposure  Loss allowance  Net carrying 
amount 

cash and cash equiv-
alents

 5,120,927  (181.00)  5,120,746 

Investment secuities 
(debt instruments)

 7,073,001  (354.00)  7,072,647 

Other receivables 
and financial assets

 837,537  (5,926.00)  831,611 

Totals  13,031,465  (6,461.00)  13,025,004 

(iv) other financial assets (continued)

Birr'000 2018

Credit risk exposure Gross exposure  Loss allowance  Net carrying 
amount 

cash and cash equiv-
alents

 5,809,127  -    5,809,127 

Investment secuities 
(debt instruments)

 4,855,817  -    4,855,817 

Other receivables 
and financial assets

 236,526  (18,235)  218,291 

Totals  10,901,470  (18,235.30)  10,883,235 
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v) Loans and advances to corporate customers  					   

The general creditworthiness of a corporate customer tends to be the most relevant indicator of credit quality 
of a loan extended to it. However, collateral provides additional security and the Bank generally requests that 
corporate borrowers provide it. The Bank may take collateral in the form of a first charge over real estate, floating 
charges over all corporate assets and other liens and guarantees.				  

Because of the Bank’s focus on corporate customers’ creditworthiness, the Bank does not routinely update the 
valuation of collateral held against all loans to corporate customers. Valuation of collateral is updated when the 
loan is put on a watch list and the loan is monitored more closely. For credit-impaired loans, the Bank obtains 
appraisals of collateral because it provides input into determining the management credit risk actions.	

vi) Investment securities designated as at FVTPL 					   

At 30 June 2019, the Bank had no exposure to credit risk of the investment securities designated as at FVTPL

5.4.4	   Amounts arising from ECL

i) inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairement 					   

See accounting policy in note  2.5					   

ii) Significant increase in credit risk					  

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased significantly since 
initial recognition, the Bank considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available 
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on 
the Bank’s historical experience and expert credit assessment and including forward-looking information.	
The objective of the assessment is to identify whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred for an 
exposure by comparing:					   

“• the remaining lifetime probability of default (PD) as at the reporting date; with

• the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated at the time of initial recognition of the 
exposure (adjusted where relevant  for changes in prepayment expectations).

• the Bank uses three criteria for determining whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk:

• quantitative test based on movement in PD;

•  qualitative indicators; and

•  a backstop of 30 days past due,				  

iii) Credit risk grades					   

The Bank allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a variety of data that is determined to be 
predictive of the risk of default and applying experienced credit judgement. Credit risk grades are defined using 
qualitative and quantitative factors that are indicative of risk of default. These factors vary depending on the 
nature of the exposure and the type of borrower.					   

Credit risk grades are defined and calibrated such that the risk of default occurring increases exponentially as 
the credit risk deteriorates so, for example, the difference in risk of default between credit risk grades 1 and 2 is 
smaller than the difference between credit risk grades 2 and 3.Each exposure is allocated to a credit risk grade 
on initial recognition based on available information about the borrower. Exposures are subject to ongoing 
monitoring, which may result in an exposure being moved to a different credit risk grade. The monitoring 
typically involves use of the following data;					   

a. Term loan exposures	 				  

• Information obtained during periodic review of customer files – e.g. audited financial statements, management 
accounts, budgets and projections. Examples of areas of particular focus are: gross profit margins, financial 
leverage ratios, debt service coverage, compliance
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•Data from credit reference agencies, press articles, changes in external credit ratings

•Actual and expected significant changes in the political, regulatory and technological environment of the 
borrower or in its business activities

•Internally collected data on customer behaviour – e.g. utilisation of credit card facilities

•Affordability metrics

b. Overdraft exposures	 				  

• Payment record – this includes overdue status as well as a range of variables about payment ratios

•  Utilisation of the granted limit

•  Requests for and granting of forbearance

•  Existing and forecast changes in business, financial and economic conditions			 

iv) Generating the term structure of PD					   

Credit risk grades are a primary input into the determination of the term structure of PD for exposures. The Bank 
collects performance and default information about its credit risk exposures analyzed by type of product and 
borrower as well as by credit risk grading. The Bank employs statistical models to analyse the data collected and 
generate estimates of the remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these are expected to change as a result 
of the passage of time.		

v) Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly

The Bank assesses whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition at each reporting date. 
Determining whether an increase in credit risk is significant depends on the characteristics of the financial 
instrument and the borrower. 

The credit risk may also be deemed to have increased significantly since initial recognition based on qualitative 
factors linked to the Bank’s credit risk management processes that may not otherwise be fully reflected in its 
quantitative analysis on a timely basis. This will be the case for exposures that meet certain heightened risk 
criteria, such as placement on a watch list. Such qualitative factors are based on its expert judgment and relevant 
historical experiences.					   

The credit risk may also be deemed to have increased significantly since initial recognition based on qualitative 
factors linked to the Bank’s credit risk management processes that may not otherwise be fully reflected in its 
quantitative analysis on a timely basis. This will be the case for exposures that meet certain heightened risk 
criteria, such as placement on a watch list. Such qualitative factors are based on its expert judgment and relevant 
historical experiences.					   

As a backstop, the Bank considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs no later than when an asset is 
more than 30 days past due. Days past due are determined by counting the number of days since the earliest 
elapsed due date in respect of which full payment has not been received. Due dates are determined without 
considering any grace period that might be available to the borrower.					   
If there is evidence that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk relative to initial recognition, then 
the loss allowance on an instrument returns to being measured as 12-month ECL. Some qualitative indicators of 
an increase in credit risk, such as delinquency or forbearance, may be indicative of an increased risk of default 
that persists after the indicator itself has ceased to exist. In these cases, the Bank determines a probation period 
during which the financial asset is required to demonstrate good behaviour to provide evidence that its credit 
risk has declined sufficiently. When contractual terms of a loan have been modified, evidence that the criteria for 
recognising lifetime ECL are no longer met includes a history of up-to-date payment performance against the 
modified contractual terms. 					   

The Bank monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify significant increases in credit risk by regular 
reviews to confirm that:

•   the criteria are capable of identifying significant increases in credit risk before an exposure is in default;
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•   the criteria do not align with the point in time when an asset becomes 30 days past due;

•   the average time between the identification of a significant increase in credit risk and default appears 
reasonable;

•  exposures are not generally transferred directly from 12-month ECL measurement to credit- impaired; and

•  there is no unwarranted volatility in loss allowance from transfers between 12-month PD (Stage 1) and lifetime 
PD (Stage 2).			 

vi) Definition of default

The Bank considers a financial asset to be in default when:

• the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Bank in full, without recourse by the Bank to actions 
such as realising security (if any is held);

•  the borrower is more than 90 days past due on any material credit obligation to the Bank.

• Overdrafts are considered as being past due once the customer has breached an advised limit or been advised 
of a limit smaller than the current amount outstanding; or

• it is becoming probable that the borrower will restructure the asset as a result of bankruptcy due to the 
borrower’s inability to pay its credit obligations.			 

In assessing whether a borrower is in default, the Bank considers indicators that are:

•   qualitative: e.g. breaches of covenant;

•  quantitative: e.g. overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same issuer to the Bank; and

•  based on data developed internally and obtained from external sources.

•   Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their significance may vary over 
time to reflect changes in circumstances.			 

The definition of default largely aligns with that applied by the Bank for regulatory capital purposes 	

vii) Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Bank incorporates forward-looking information into both the assessment of whether the credit risk of an 
instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and the measurement of ECL.

For each segment the Bank formulates three economic scenarios: a base case, which is the median scenario , 
and two less likely scenanios, one upside and one downside. for each sector, the base case is aligned with the 
macroecnomic molel’s information value output, ameasure of the predicive power of the predicitive power of 
the mode, as well as base macroeconmic projections for identified macroeconomic variables for each sector. 
The upside and downside scenarios are based on a combination of a measure of historical macroeconomic 
volatilites. 					   

External information considered includes economic data and forecasts published by Business Monitor 
International, an external and independent macroeconmic date body, This is in addition to industry-level, semi 
annual NPL trends across statically comparable sectors.					   

Periodically, the Bank carries out stress testing of more extreme shocks to calibrate its determination of the 
upside and downside representative scenarios. A comprehensive review is performed at least annually on the 
design of the scenarios by a panel of experts that advises the Bank’s senior management.			 
The Bank has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses foreach portfolio of financial 
instruments and, using an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationships between macro-economic 
variables and credit risk and credit losses.					   

The key drivers for credit risk for each of the Bank’s economic sectors is summarized below:		
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Sector/Product Macroeconomic factors

Agriculture and 
Consumer loans

INFLATION: Con-
sumer price index, 
2010 = 100, ave

EXCHANGE 
RATE: ETB/USD, 
ave

GDP EXPENDI-
TURE: Exports 
of goods and 
services, USDbn

DEBT: Govern-
ment domestic 
debt, ETBbn

STRATIFICA-
TION: House-
hold Spending, 
ETBbn

Domestic Trade & 
Services, Transport 
& Communication, 
Financial Institu-
tions

GDP: GDP per 
capita, USD

GDP EXPENDI-
TURE: Imports 
of goods and 
services, USDbn

INFLATION: Con-
sumer price index, 
2010 = 100, eop

EXCHANGE 
RATE: ETB/
USD, ave

FISCAL: Total 
revenue, USDbn

Housing& Con-
struction, Industry 
&Manufactur-
ing,  and Hotel & 
Tourism

GDP EXPENDI-
TURE: Exports 
of goods and 
services, USD per 
capita

FISCAL: Current 
expenditure, 
USDbn

DEBT: Govern-
ment domestic 
debt, ETBbn

- -

Export and Import GDP EXPENDI-
TURE: Exports 
of goods and 
services, ETBbn

GDP EXPENDI-
TURE: Imports 
of goods and 
services, ETBbn

EXCHANGE 
RATE: Real ef-
fective exchange 
rate, index

GDP EX-
PENDITURE: 
Private final 
consumption, 
USDbn

DEBT: Total gov-
ernment debt, 
USDbn

The economic scenarios used as at 30 June 2019 included the following key indicators for Ethiopia for the years 
2019 to 2023:						    

Macro-economic factor 2019 2020 2021

INFLATION: Consumer price index, 2010 = 100 317.4 349.1 384

GDP: GDP per capita, USD 836 928 1019

GDP EXPENDITURE: Exports of goods and services, 
USD per capita

54.9 59.8 66.6

GDP EXPENDITURE: Exports of goods and services, 
ETBbn

179.8 213.8 260.3

EXCHANGE RATE: ETB/USD 29.23 31.1 33.15

GDP EXPENDITURE: Imports of goods and services, 
USDbn

16.6 16.9 17.1

FISCAL: Current expenditure, USDbn 7.8 8.3 8.9

GDP EXPENDITURE: Imports of goods and services, 
ETBbn

485.3 526.5 568.4

INFLATION: Consumer price index, 2010 = 100 296.3 326 358.6

DEBT: Government domestic debt, ETBbn 642.7 752 872.3

EXCHANGE RATE: Real effective exchange rate, index 123.13 121.01 117.74

GDP EXPENDITURE: Private final consumption, 
USDbn

58.9 66.2 73.5

STRATIFICATION: Household Spending, ETBbn 1707.6 1926.3 2149.3

FISCAL: Total revenue, USDbn 10.5 10.9 11.4

DEBT: Total government debt, USDbn 57 65.2 75.4

Predicted relationships between the key indicators and default rates on various portfolios of financial assets 
have been developed based on analysing semi – annual historical data over the past 5 years.		

viii) Modified financial assets

The contractual terms of a loan may be modified for a number of reasons, including changing market conditions, 
customer retention and other factors not related to a current or potential credit deterioration of the customer. 
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An existing loan whose terms have been modified may be derecognised and the renegotiated loan recognised 
as a new loan at fair value in accordance with the accounting policy set out.			 

When the terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result in derecognition, the 
determination of whether the asset’s credit risk has increased significantly reflects comparison of: its remaining 
lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms; withthe remaining lifetime PD estimated based on 
data on initial recognition and the original contractual terms.					   

When modification results in derecognition, a new loan is recognised and allocated to Stage 1 (assuming it is not 
credit-impaired at that time).					   

The Bank renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulties (referred to as ‘forbearance activities’) to 
maximise collection opportunities and minimise the risk of default. Under the Bank’s forbearance policy, loan 
forbearance is granted on a selective basis if the debtor is currently in default on its debt or if there is a high risk 
of default, there is evidence that the debtor made all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual 
terms and the debtor is expected to be able to meet the revised terms.				  

The revised terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing of interest payments and 
amending the terms of loan covenants. Both retail and corporate loans are subject to the forbearance policy. 
The Bank Credit Committee regularly reviews reports on forbearance activities.			 

For financial assets modified as part of the Bank’s forbearance policy, the estimate of PD reflects whether the 
modification has improved or restored the Bank’s ability to collect interest and principal and the Bank’s previous 
experience of similar forbearance action. As part of this process, the Bank evaluates the borrower’s payment 
performance against the modified contractual terms and considers various behavioural indicators.	

Generally, forbearance is a qualitative indicator of a significant increase in credit risk and an expectation of 
forbearance may constitute evidence that an exposure is credit-impaired. A customer needs to demonstrate 
consistently good payment behaviour over a period of time before the exposure is no longer considered to 
be credit-impaired/in default or the PD is considered to have decreased such that the loss allowance reverts to 
being measured at an amount equal to Stage 1.					   

ix) Measurement of ECL					   

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables:

•    probability of default (PD);

•    loss given default (LGD); and

•    exposure at default (EAD).					  

ECL for exposures in Stage 1 is calculated by multiplying the 12-month PD by LGD and EAD. Lifetime ECL is 
calculated by multiplying the lifetime PD by LGD and EAD.					   

The methodology of estimating PDs is discussed above under the heading ‘Generating the term structure of PD’.

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Bank estimates LGD parameters based on the 
history of recovery rates of claims against defaulted counterparties. The LGD models consider the structure, 
collateral, seniority of the claim, counterparty industry and recoverycosts of any collateral that is integral to the 
financial asset. 			

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Bank derives the EAD from the current 
exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the current amount allowed under the contract and 
arising from amortisation. The EAD of a financial asset is its gross carrying amount at the time of default. For 
lending commitments, the EADs are potential future amounts that may be drawn under the contract, which 
are estimated based on historical observationsand forward-looking forecasts. For financial guarantees, the EAD 
represents the amount of the guaranteed exposure when the financial guarantee becomes payable. For some 
financial assets, EAD is determined by modelling the range of possible exposure outcomes at various points in 
time using scenario and statistical techniques.					   

As described above, and subject to using a maximum of a 12-month PD for Stage 1 financial assets, the Bank 
measures ECL considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual period (including any borrower’s 
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extension options) over which it is exposed to credit risk, even if, for credit risk management purposes, the Bank 
considers a longer period. 					   

The maximum contractual period extends to the date at which the Bank has the right to require repayment of 
an advance or terminate a loan commitment or guarantee.

However, for overdrafts that include both a loan and an undrawn commitment component, the Bank measures 
ECL over a period longer than the maximum contractual period if the Bank’s contractual ability to demand 
repayment and cancel the undrawn commitment does not limit the Bank’s exposure to credit losses to the 
contractual notice period. These facilities do not have a fixed term or repayment structure and are managed 
on a collective basis. The Bank can cancel them with immediate effect but this contractual right is not enforced 
in the normal day-to-day management, but only when the Bank becomes aware of an increasein credit risk at 
the facility level. This longer period is estimated taking into account the credit risk management actions that 
the Bank expects to take, and that serve to mitigate ECL. These include a reduction in limits, cancellation of the 
facility and/or turning the outstanding balance into a loan with fixed repayment terms. 

Where modelling of a parameter is carried out on a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped on the 
basis of shared risk characteristics that include:

*	 instrument type;

*	 credit risk grading;

*	 collateral type;

*	 LTV ratio for retail mortgages;

*	 date of initial recognition;

*	 remaining term to maturity;

*	 industry; and

*	 geographic location of the borrower.			 

“The groupings are subject to regular review to ensure that exposures within a particular group remain 
appropriately homogeneous.				  

x) Loss allowance  					   

The following tables show reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of the loss allowance by class 
of financial instrument. Comparative amounts for 2018 represent the allowance account for credit losses and 
reflect the measurement basis under IAS 39.				 

2019

Birr'000 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Loans and advances to customers and 
Interest Free Financing  at amortised 
cost (on balance sheet exposures) 

 -    -    -    133,426 

Balance as at 1 July 2018  57,359  7,313  94,626  25,872 

Day one IFRS 9 transition adjustment  13,507  (2,408)  (11,098)  -   

Adjusted balance at 1 July 2018  70,866  4,905  83,527  159,298 

Transfer to stage 1  13,507  (2,408)  (11,098)  -   

Transfer to stage 2  (816)  1,575  (759)  -   

Transfer to stage 3  (1,345)  (459)  1,804  -   

Net remeasurement of loss allowance  2,324  2,373  80,691  85,388 

New financial assets originated  56,723  8,656  36,997  102,376 

Financial assets derecognised  (17,719)  (4,158)  (36,688)  (58,566)

Balance as at 30 June 2019  110,031  12,891  165,573  288,496 

2019
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Birr'000 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Loan commitments and financial 
guarantee contracts (off balance 
sheet exposures)

Balance as at 1 July 2018  -    -    -    -   

Day one IFRS 9 transition adjust-
ment

 11,980  -    1,533  13,513 

Adjusted balance at 1 July  11,980  -    1,533  13,513 

Transfer to stage 1  -    -    -    -   

Transfer to stage 2  (354)  354  -    -   

Transfer to stage 3  -    -    -    -   

Net remeasurement of loss 
allowance

 4,664  223  3,418  8,305 

New financial assets originated  15,230  5,517  809  21,555 

Financial assets derecoginzed  (6,131)  (0)  (159)  (6,291)

Balance as at 30 June 2019  25,389  6,093  5,740  37,083 

2019

In Birr'000 Cash and balances 
with banks

Investment securi-
ties (debt instru-

ments)
Other receivables 

and financial assets Total

Other financial assets (debt 
instruments)  -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 1 July 2018  -    -    18,235  18,235 
Day one IFRS 9 transition 
adjustment  196  243  (14,970)  (14,530)

Adjusted balance at 1 July 2018  196  243  3,265  3,705 
Net remeasurement of loss 
allowance  (15)  111  2,661  2,757 

Balance as at 30 June 2019  181  354  5,926  6,461 
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Credit quality analysis for loans and advances comparative information under IAS 39 summarized as 
follows;	

(a) credit quality of loans and receivables					   

Neither past due 
nor impaired

Past due but not 
impaired

Collectively Im-
paired 

Individually 
impaired Total

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
30 June 2018
Agriculture  152,433  30,251  12,355  11,306  206,345 
Industry  1,016,749  6,154  6,484  22,459  1,051,846 
Domestic trade and 
services  2,617,169  106,606  114,269  69,246  2,907,290 

Export  2,630,270  22,321  9,023  26,039  2,687,653 
Import  545,574  33,050  17,125  -    595,749 
Construction  927,466  53,367  17,224  18,297  1,016,354 
Transport and communi-
cation  237,623  11,648  15,560  -    264,832 

Hotel and tourism  588,918  45,525  9,327  37,861  681,631 
Mining, power and water 
resources  -    -    -    -    -   

Microfinance institution  42,514  -    -    -    42,514 

Mortgage Loan- Staff  350,386  1,160  1,255  -    352,801 

Mortgage Loan- Customer  69,382  1,033  -    70,415 
Personal Loan-Staff  59,482  391  -    -    59,873 
Emergency staff loans  103,319  -    -    -    103,319 
Consumer loans- Cus-
tomer  18,182  1,147  538  -    19,867 

Gross  9,359,467  311,619  204,193  185,209  10,060,489 
Less: Impairment allow-
ance   (41,462)  (1,457)  (24,111)  (24,885)  (91,916)
Net  9,318,005  310,162  180,082  160,324  9,968,573 

(i) Loans and receivables - neither past due nor impaired					   

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and receivables that were neither past due nor impaired can be 
assessed by reference to the customer’s ability to pay based on loss experience.  Loans and receivables in this 
category are short term loans past due for less than 30 (thirty) loans and medium and long term loans past due 
for less than 180 (one hundred eighty) days.					  

 30 June 2018 
 Birr'000 

Neither past due nor 
impaired

 9,359,467 

Collective impairment  (41,462)
Loan and receivables (net)  9,318,005 
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(b) credit quality of loans and receivables (continued)					   

(ii) Loans and receivables - past due but not impaired	

30 June 2018

Birr'000

Past due up to 90 days  311,619 

Collective impairment  (1,457)

Loan and receivables 
(net)  310,162 

(iii) Loans and receivables - collectively impaired 					   

Past due by 90 - 180 days  122,677 
Past due by 180- 360 days  58,182 
Past due  by more than 360 days  23,334 
Collective impairment  (24,111)
Loan and receivables (net)  180,082 

Loans and receivables that have been classified as neither past due nor impaired or past due but not impaired 
and collectively impaired  are assessed on a collective basis.					   

(iv) Loans and receivables -individually impaired loans 					   

30 June 2018
Birr'000

Substandard  97,297 
Doubtful  30,289 
Loss  57,623 
Specific impairment  (24,885)
Loan and receivables (net)  160,324 

(v) Allowance for impairement

 30 June 2018 
 Birr'000 

Specific impairment  24,885 
Collective impairment  67,031 
Total allowance for impair-
ment  91,916 

(c) credit quality analyis of interest free financing  products comparative information under IAS 39 summarized as 
follows;					   

 Neither past due 
nor impaired 

 Past due but not 
impaired 

 Collectively 
Impaired  

 Individually 
impaired  Total 

 30 June 2018  Birr'000  Birr'000  Birr'000  Birr'000  Birr'000 

 Murahabah Financing- Agri-
culture  59,317  24,304  3,777  -    87,399 

 Murahabah Financing- Con-
struction  104,763  17,856  -    -    122,620 

 Murahabah Financing- Industry  168,352  16,841  2  -    185,195 
 Murahabah Financing- DTS  300,396  97,560  11,008  -    408,963 
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 Interest Free Export Facility 
Financing  221,542  218,826  8,075  33,546  481,990 

 Murahabah Financing- Import  134,319  19,428  319  15,336  169,402 
 Murahabah financing  -    -    -    -    -   
 Murahabah Financing- Hotel 
and Tourism  11,796  -    -    -    11,796 

 Murahabah Financing- Trans-
port and Communication  106,120  6,803  5,386  -    118,309 

 Muruhabah Financing-  Con-
sumer and Personal  -    -    -    -   

 Gross Financing   1,106,606  401,619  28,569  48,882  1,585,674 
 Profit receivable from Murubaha Financing  262,420 
 Less: Deferred profit  (185,291)
 Less: Impairment allowance  (5,167)  (2,205)  (3,194)  (30,944)  (41,509)
 Net carrying amount  1,101,439  399,413  25,375  17,938  1,621,294 

(i) Interest Free Financing - neither past due nor impaired					   

The credit quality of the portfolio of Interest Free Financing and receivables that were neither past due nor 
impaired can be assessed by reference to the customer’s ability to pay based on loss experience.Interest Free 
financing and receivables in this category are short term Financing  past due for less than 30 (thirty) Interest Free 
financing and medium and long term financing  past due for less than 180 (one hundred eighty) days.	

 30 June 2018 
 Birr'000 

 Neither past due nor 
impaired 

 1,106,606 

 Collective impairment  (5,167)

 Net carrying amount  1,101,439 

(c) credit quality analyis of interest free financing  products (continued)				  

(ii) Interest free financing -past due but not impaired					   

30 June 2018
Birr'000

Past due up to 90 days  401,619 
Collective impairment  (2,205)
Interest Free Financing 
(net)  399,413 

(iii) Interest free financing- collectively impaired					   

Past due by 90 - 180 
days  11,083 

Past due by 180- 360 
days  15,782 

Past due by More than 
360 days  1,703 

Gross  28,569 
Collective impairment  (3,194)
Interest Free Financing 
(net)  25,375 
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(iv) Interest Free Financing -individually impaired financing 	

 30 June 2018 
 Birr'000 

Substandard  17,268 
Doubtful  6,614 
Loss  25,000 
Specific impairment  (30,944)
Interest Free Financing (net)  -    17,938 

(v) Allowance for impairment 					   

 30 June 2018 
 Birr'000 

Specific impairment  30,944 

Collective impairment  10,566 

Total allowance for 
impairment  -    41,509 

5.4.5	 Credit quality analysis					     				  

(a)	 Credit quality of cash and cash equivalents 							     

The credit quality of cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments  that were neither past due nor 
impaired at as 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018 and are held in Ethiopian banks have been classified as  non-
rated as there are no credit rating agencies in Ethiopia. However, cash and cash equivalents that held in 
foreign banks can be assessed by reference to credit rating agency designation as shown in the table below;	
	

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

AAA+  -    -   
AA  -    -   
B  -    -   
BBB  1,291,200  1,287,479 
Not rated  3,829,727  4,521,648 
Total  5,120,927  5,809,127 

5.4.6	 Statement of Prudential adjustments					     		
	

Provisions under prudential guidelines are determined using the time based provisioning prescribed by the 
National Bank of Ethiopia (NBE) Directives. This is at variance with the forward looking model required by 
IFRS-9. As a result of the differences in the methodology/provision, there will be variances in the impairments 
allowances required under the two methodologies.

The proclamation ‘Financial Reporting Proclamation No.847/2014 stipulates that Banks would be required to 
make provisions for loans as prescribed in the relevant IFRS Standards when IFRS is adopted.

However, Banks would be required to comply with the following:

(a) Provisions for loans recognised in the income statement should be determined based on the requirements of IFRS. 
However, the IFRS provision should be compared with provisions determined under the NBE Directives and the 
expected impact/changes in other reserves should be treated as follows:

• Prudential provisions is greater than IFRS provisions; the excess provision resulting should be transferred from 
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the general reserve (retained earnings) account to a “regulatory risk reserve”.

• Prudential provisions is less than IFRS provisions; IFRS determined provision is charged to the statement of 
comprehensive income. The cumulative balance in the regulatory risk reserve is thereafter reversed to the 
general reserve( retained earnings) account

(b) The non-distributable reserve should be classified under Tier 1 as part of the core capital.”			 

During the period  ended 30 June 2018, the Bank transferred an amount of Birr 121,540 million to the regulatory 
risk reserve. This amount represents the difference between the provisions for credit and other known losses as 
determined under the NBE Directives, and the impairment reserve as determined in line with IAS 39 as at year 
end.

In line with the same directive of the NBE, the Bank compared the provision based on the Directive with 
impairment under IFRS-9 for comparative periods and hence the bank transfered an amount of Birr 121,540 
million to retained earnings from the regulatory risk reserve as the impairment balance under IFRS was higher 
for the year 30 June 2019.					   

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Total impairment based on IFRS  325,683  133,426 
Total impairment based on NBE 
Directives  302,422  254,966 
Variation  23,261  (121,540)

In line with the directive of the NBE, the Bank compared the provision for other assets  based on the Directive 
with impairment for other assets under IFRS-9 for same period and hence the bank transfered an amount of Birr 
16,008  million from  retained earnings to  the regulatory risk reserve as the impairment balance under IFRS was 
lower for the year 30 June 2019.					   

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Total Impairment for other Assets 
Based on IFRS  6,637  -   

Total Impairement for other Assets 
Based on NBE directives  45,906  -   

Excess amount for Other Assets 
Provission  (39,269)  -   
Amount Transferred to Regulatory 
Risk Reserve  (16,008)  -   

As per the requirements of IFRS , banks should recognize interest income on the written down amount of the loan 
after the impairment loss, on an accrual basis, using the EIR. However,  As per the requirement of National Bank 
of Ethiopia, banks should derecognized  interest income on impaired exposures, special attention should be 
paid to impaired exposures with a higher number of days past due (e.g. more than 90 days past due).	

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 

Birr'000 Birr'000

Write backed Suspended interest  41,351  24,065 
Realized interest from last year Non impaired 
loans and advances  (14,586)  -   
Net amount transferred to regulatory risk resrve  26,764  24,065 
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5.4.7	 Credit concentrations					     				  

The Bank monitors concentrations of credit risk by economic sector. An analysis of concentrations of credit 
risk at 30 June 2019 and  30 June 2018. The Bank concentrates all its financial assets in Ethiopia.		
	

Domestic and 
Trade Services Export  Housing and 

construction  Others 

 30 June 2019 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Cash and cash equivalents  5,120,927 
Loans and receivables  4,681,099  3,860,093  1,858,505  5,196,393 
Interest Free Financing  648,393  208,425  251,261  714,398 
Investment securities:
  - Financial assets at fair value through OCI 
(2018-AFS)  -    -    -    95,478 

     -Financial assets at amortized cost 
(2018-Loans and Receivables)  -    -    -    7,073,001 

Other financial assets  -    -    -    837,537 
Total financial assets  5,329,492  4,068,518  2,109,766  19,037,734 

Domestic and 
Trade Services Export  Housing and 

construction  Others 

 30 June 2018 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Cash and cash 
equivalents  -    -    -    5,809,127 

Loans and receivables  2,907,290  2,687,653  1,016,354  3,449,192 
Interest Free Financing  408,963  481,990  122,620  572,102 

Investment securities:  -    -    -   

 - Financial assets at fair value through 
OCI (2018-AFS)  -    -    -    68,705 

     -Financial assets at amortized cost 
(2018-Loans and Receivables)  -    -    -    4,855,817 

Other financial assets  -    -    -    218,291 

Total financial 
assets  3,316,253  3,169,643  1,138,974  14,973,234 

5.4.8	Nature of security in respect of loans and advances to customers				  
	

 Secured against 
real estate  Cash  Machinery Vehicles Others

30 June 2019 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Agriculture  526,113  -    4,493  -    -   
Domestic trade  8,716,190  852  16,620  62,526  6,652 
Export  4,016,838  3,000  77,077  193,088  146,615 
Financial Institution  33,049  2,100  -    -    -   
Hotel and tourism  2,694,872  -    -    -    15,918 
Housing and construc-
tion  3,784,579  -    148,122  89,738  -   

Import  1,529,263  500  7,500  77,249  -   
Industry  2,507,733  12,647  -    2,350  72,253 
Mines, Power and Water 
Resource  -    -    -    -    -   
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Mortgage Consumer 
Loan  549,772  -    740  -    -   

Mortgage Staff Loan  1,438,248  -    -    500  -   
Personal Consumer Loan  147,127  -    -    11,565  357 
Personal Staff Loan  196,047  -    -    2,365  -   
Transport and communi-
cation  514,404  -    -    171,376  -   

Total  26,654,235  19,099  254,552  610,757  241,796 

 Secured against 
real estate  Cash  Machinery Vehicles Others

30 June 2018 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Agriculture  228,769  -    7,710  154,170  -   
Domestic trade  6,230,866  -    2,076  276,288  66,610 
Export  2,865,362  3,000  3,333  153,491  389,043 
Financial Institution  19,972  -    -    -    -   
Hotel and tourism  2,512,490  -    -    4,533  25,428 
Housing and construction  2,362,172  -    66,988  100,212  10,622 
Import  1,939,451  -    15,267  150,249  15,609 
Industry  2,307,086  100,050  20,271  26,991  272,371 
Mines, Power and Water 
Resource  -    -    -    -    -   

Mortgage Consumer Loan  231,891  -    -    3,757 
Mortgage Staff Loan  921,874  -    -    2,921  112 
Personal Consumer Loan  88,904  -    -    2,550  -   
Personal Staff Loan  253,139  -    -    1,250  -   
Transport and communication  729,804  -    9,099  248,665  103 

Total  20,691,779  103,050  124,744  1,125,077  779,898 

5.4.9	 Nature of security in respect of Interest Free Financing

 Secured against 
real estate  Cash  Machinery Vehicles Others

30 June 2019 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Agriculture  238,123  -    -    -    -   
Construction  1,218,092  -    -    -    -   
Domestic Trade  Services  1,263,908  -    -    -    -   
Export  621,725  -    -    -    30,000 
Hotel and Tourism  2,776  -    -    -    -   
Import  580,641  -    -    -    -   
Industry  748,009  -    -    -    -   
Mortagage  18,619  -    -    -    -   
Transport and Communication  322,964  -    -    3,375  -   

Total  5,014,858  -    -    3,375  30,000 
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 Secured against 
real estate  Cash  Machinery Vehicles Others

30 June 2018 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Agriculture  158,766  -    -    -    -   
Construction  550,037  -    -    -    -   
Domestic Trade  Services  1,177,605  -    -    -    10,000 
Export  704,283  12,831  3,075  17,409  -   
Hotel and Tourism  29,059  -    -    -    -   
Import  108,258  -    -    -    -   
Industry  255,098  -    -    -    -   
Transport and Communication  143,227  -    -    -    -   

Total  3,126,334  12,831  3,075  17,409  10,000 

5.4.10	 Collateral held and their financial effect					   
The general creditworthiness of a customer tends to be the most relevant indicator of credit quality of a loan 
extended to it. However, collateral provides additional security and the Bank generally requests that corporate 
borrowers provide it. Staff loans are secured to the extent of the employee’s continued employment in the Bank.

The Bank may take collateral in the form of a first charge over real estate, liens and guarantees. The Bank does not 
sell or repledge the collateral in the absence of default by the owner of the collateral. In addition to the Bank’s 
focus on creditworthiness, the Bank aligns with its credit policy guide to periodically update the validation of 
collaterals held against all loans to customers. 

For impaired loans, the Bank obtains appraisals of collateral because the fair value of the collateral is an input to 
the impairment measurement.

The fair value of the collaterals are based on the last revaluations carried out by the Bank’s in-house engineers. 
The valuation technique adopted for properties is in line with the Bank’s  valuation manual and the revalued 
amount is similar to fair values of properties with similar size and location.

The fair value of collaterals other than properties such as share certificates, cash, NBE bills etc.  as disclosed at the 
carrying amount as management is of the opinion that the cost of the process of establishing the fair value of 
the collateral exceeds benefits accruable from the exercise. 	

5.4.11 	 Write-off policy 

The Bank writes off Loans and Advance balance, and any related allowances for impairment losses, when 
Bank determines that the Loans and advances or security is uncollectible and after approval is obtained. This 
determination is made after considering information such as the occurrence of significant changes in the 
borrower’s / issuer’s financial position such that the borrower / issuer can no longer pay the obligation, or that 
proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay back the entire exposure. For smaller balance standardized 
loans and advances, write-off decisions generally are based on a product-specific past due status. There was no 
amount write off during the year.

5.5.1	 Management of liquidity risk
The day-to-day liquidity management is performed by the Accounting and Treasury Department with in a 
comprehensive framework set by the Assets and Liabilities Committee, and monitored independently by the 
Risk Management and Compliance Department. The Bank monitors and reports liquidity risk daily, paying 
particular attention to ensuring that there are optimal levels of cash and cash equivalent instruments to fund 
increases in assets, unexpected decreases in liabilities, as well as meeting legal requirements, while optimizing 
the cost of carrying any excess liquidity.
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To manage liquidity risk, the Bank performs daily monitoring of future expected cash flows on clients’ and 
banking operations’ which forms part of the asset and liability management process. The Bank also has to 
comply with minimum levels of liquidity required by the National Bank of Ethiopia (NBE). This ratio is calculated 
as the ratio of highly-liquid assets to liabilities payable on demand. The ratio was  19.72% as at 30 June 2019 and 
31.02% as at June 30,2018 whereas the minimum percentage required by the NBE is 15%.

The Bank seeks to maintain a stable funding base primarily consisting of amounts due to other banks, corporate 
and retail customer deposits. The Bank invests the funds in diversified portfolios of liquid assets, in order to 
be able to respond quickly and smoothly to unforeseen liquidity requirements. The liquidity management of 
the Bank requires consideration of the level of liquid assets necessary to settle obligations as they fall due, 
maintaining access to a range of funding sources, maintaining funding contingency plans, and monitoring 
liquidity ratios against regulatory requirements including minimum levels of liquidity required by the NBE.

The Accounting and Treasury Department receives information about the liquidity profile of the financial assets 
and liabilities. The Accounting and Treasury Department then provides for an adequate portfolio of short-term 
liquid assets, made up of short-term deposits with banks to ensure that sufficient liquidity is maintained within 
the Bank as a whole.

5.5.2	 Maturity analysis of financial liabilities

The table below analyses the Bank’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining 
period at the statement of financial position date to the contractual maturity date. The cash flows presented are 
the undiscounted amounts to be settled in future.

0 - 30 days 31 - 90 days 91 - 180 days 181 - 365 days Over 1 year 
 30 June 2019 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Deposits from customers  16,825,637  3,365,127  1,121,709  673,025  448,684 
Interest Free customers' 
deposits  3,116,207  623,241  207,747  124,648  83,099 

Debt securities issued  -    -    -    -    -   
Borrowings  -    -    -    -    -   
Other liabilities  1,002,263  -    -    -    -   

Total financial liabilities  20,944,108  3,988,369  1,329,456  797,674  531,783 

0 - 30 days 31 - 90 days 91 - 180 days 181 - 365 days Over 1 year 
 30 June 2018 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Deposits from customers  12,685,304  2,537,061  845,687  507,412  338,275 
Interest Free customers' 
deposits  2,259,958  451,992  150,664  90,398  60,266 

Debt securities issued  -    -    -    -    -   
Borrowings  -    -    -    -    -   
Other liabilities  870,061  -    -    -    -   

Total financial liabilities  15,815,322  2,989,052  996,351  597,810  398,540 

5.6	 Market risk					   
Market risk is defined as the risk of loss risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market risk factors  such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices, 
credit spreads and their volatilities. Market risk can arise in conjunction with trading and non-trading activities 
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of a financial institutions. 

The Bank does not ordinarily engage in trading activities as there are no active markets in Ethiopia. 

5.6.1	 Management of market risk
The bank manages and control market risk exposures within acceptable limits, while optimizing the return 
on risk. The Risk Management and Compliance Department is in charge of managing market risk, regularly, to 
identify any adverse movement in interest rate and foreign currency exchange rate. 

(i)	 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the potential loss on the bank arising from mismatch between positions, which are subject to 
interest rate adjustment within a specified period, or in any other interest rate relationship.  The Bank’s lending, 
funding and investment activities give rise to interest rate risk. The bank conduct thorough and stress testing on 
unexpected changes in the general level of interest rate, market interest rate, key assumptions and parameters, 
and monitor interest rate risk factor on ongoing basis. 

The table below sets out information on the exposures to fixed and variable interest instruments.	

 30 June 2019 Fixed Floating Non-interest 
bearing Total

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
Assets
Cash and balances with 
banks  1,793,437  -    3,327,490  5,120,927 

Loans and advances to 
customers  15,323,833  -    -    15,323,833 

Interest Free Financing  -    -    1,890,738  1,890,738 
Investment securities  7,073,001  -    -    7,073,001 
Total  24,190,271  -    5,218,228  29,408,499 

Liabilities
Deposits from customers  22,434,183  -    -    22,434,183 
Interest Free customers' 
deposits  -    -    4,154,943  4,154,943 

Debt securities issued  -    -    -    -   
Borrowings  -    -    -    -   
Other liabilities  -    -    1,002,263  1,002,263 
Total  22,434,183  -    5,157,206  27,591,389 

5.6.2	 Management of market risk (continued)	

 30 June 2018 Fixed Floating Non-interest 
bearing Total

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
Assets
Cash and balances 
with banks  2,076,501  -    3,732,626  5,809,127 

Loans and advances 
to customers  9,968,573  -    -    9,968,573 

Interest Free Fi-
nancing  -    -    1,621,293  1,621,293 

Investment secu-
rities  4,855,817  -    -    4,855,817 
Total  16,900,891  -    5,353,919  22,254,810 
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Liabilities
Deposits from 
customers  16,913,738  -    -    16,913,738 

Interest Free cus-
tomers' deposits  -    -    3,013,277  3,013,277 

Other liabilities  -    -    870,061  870,061 
Total  16,913,738  -    3,883,338  20,797,076 

			 

The sensitivity of the income statement is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the profit or loss 
for a year, based on the floating rate non–trading financial assets and financial liabilities held at 30 June 2019 
and  30 June 2018 . The total sensitivity of equity is based on the assumption that there are parallel shifts in the 
yield curve.	

“Increase
(decrease)

in basis points”
“Sensitivity of
profit or loss”

“Sensitivity of
equity”

 30 June 2019 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
10%  (6)  (6)

-10%  6  6 

Increase
(decrease)

in basis points
“Sensitivity of
profit or loss”

“Sensitivity of
equity”

 30 June 2018 Birr’000 Birr'000 Birr'000
10%  (144)  (144)

-10%  144  144 
(ii)	 Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due 
to the changes in foreign exchange rates. 

The Bank is exposed to exchange rate risks to the extent of balances and transactions denominated in a currency 
other than the Ethiopian Birr. The Bank’s foreign currency bank accounts act as a natural hedge for these 
transactions. Management has set up a policy  to manage the Bank’s foreign exchange risk against its functional 
currency.

The table below summarises the impact of increases/decreases of 10% on equity and profit or loss arising from 
the Bank’s foreign denominated deposits and cash and bank balances.

The total foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities exposed to risk as at year end was Birr 708,888 
million  (30 June 2018: Birr 807,346 million).

	 Foreign currency denominated balances

30 June 2019
USD EURO  GBP Total

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
Financial assets

Cash and bank balances  1,365,000  17,502  3,777  1,386,279 

Financial liabilities

Deposit from customers  666,072  11,203  117  677,391 
Net foreign currency 
denominated balances  698,928  6,299  3,660  708,888 
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30 June 2018
USD EURO  GBP Total

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
Financial assets

Cash and bank balances  1,231,763  106,580  1,250  1,339,593 

Financial liabilities

Deposit from customers  525,328  6,680  239  532,247 
Net foreign currency 
denominated balances  706,435  99,900  1,011  807,346 

Sensitivity analysis for foreign exchange risk
The sensitivity analysis for currency rate risk shows how changes in the fair value or future cash flows of a 
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market rates at the reporting date.

The sensitivity of the Bank’s earnings to fluctuations in exchange rates is reflected by varying the exchange rates 
at 10% and its impact on Profit and Loss as shown below:

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

10% appreciation  in exchange rate for USD  69,893  70,643 
10%  depreciation in exchange rate for USD  (69,893)  (70,643)

10% appreciation  in exchange rate for 
EURO  630  9,990 

10%  depreciation in exchange rate for 
EURO  (630)  (9,990)

10% appreciation  in exchange rate for GBP  366  101 
10%  depreciation in exchange rate for GBP  (366)  (101)

5.7	 Capital management
The Bank’s objectives when managing capital are (i) To ensure that the bank has adequate capital and effective 
plans to prudently manage its capital and meets regulatory requirements; (ii) To ensure that the Bank’s risk 
appetite is based on a capital adequacy ratio sufficient for the Bank to continue its business activities;(iii)  To 
ensure that Bank’s capital is adequate to absorb unforeseen losses and thus provide a source of protection 
to depositors and other creditors in the event of difficulties; (v) Establishing and implementing sound and 
prudent policies governing the quantity and quality of capital required to support the bank (vi) Developing and 
implementing appropriate and effective policies to monitor, on an ongoing basis, bank’s capital requirements 
and capital position to ensure that the institution meets its capital requirements and will continue to meet its 
future capital requirements.

5.7.1	 Capital adequacy ratio
According to the Licensing & Supervision of Banking Business Directive No. SBB/50/2011 of the National Bank 
of Ethiopia, the Bank has to maintain capital to risk weighted assets ratio of 8% at all times, the risk weighted 
assets being calculated as per the provisions of Directive No SBB/9/95 issued on August 18, 1995.		
The capital adequacy ratio is the quotient of the capital base of the Bank and the Bank’s risk weighted asset 
base.	
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Capital includes capital contribution, retained earnings, legal reserve and other reserves to be approved by the 
National Bank of Ethiopia.

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Capital
Capital contribution  2,393,675  1,614,643 
Retained earnings  613,086  383,233 
Legal reserves  642,233  457,285 
Regulatory Risk Reserve  66,838  145,605 

 3,715,832  2,600,766 

Risk weighted assets
Risk weighted balance for on-balance sheet 
items  27,370,016  20,258,258 

Credit equivalents for off-balance Sheet 
Items  1,793,153  1,177,753 

 29,163,169  21,436,011 

Risk-weighted Capital Adequacy Ratio 
(CAR) 13% 12.13%

TIER 1 CARMinimum required capital 8% 8%
Excess 4.74% 4.13%

5.8	 Operational risks 
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the banks 
processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and 
liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards 
of corporate behaviour. Operational risks arise from all of the bank’s operations and are faced by all business 
entities.  

The bank’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage 
to the bank’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that restrict initiative 
and creativity. 

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational risk is 
assigned to senior management within each business unit. This responsibility is supported by the development 
of overall bank standards for the management of operational risk in the following areas: 

a) Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorization of transactions 

b) Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions, 

c) Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements ,

d) Documentation of controls and procedures ,

e) Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and 
procedures to address the risks identified, 

f ) Requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action,

g) Development of contingency plans,

h) Training and professional development, 

i) Ethical and business standards ,

j) Risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective. 
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Compliance with bank standards is supported by a programme of periodic reviews undertaken by Internal 
Audit. The results of Internal Audit reviews are discussed with the management of the business unit to which 
they relate, with summaries submitted to the Audit Committee and senior management of the bank. 

5.9	 Strategic risk 					   
Strategic risk arises from choosing a wrong strategy, unsuccessful implementation of strategy, changes in 
the competitive environment or responding too slowly to changes. Strategic risks are minimized by means of 
regular updates of strategic and annual plans. Analyses of the condition and development of the OIB, as well as 
other analyses and estimates concerning the development of the sector, competition and financial operating 
environment are utilized in the planning.

5.10	 Sharia Non-compliance Risk
This potential loss is arising from the failure to comply with the Sharia rules and principles. The bank manages 
this risk by strictly adhering to Sharia rules and principles, own policy and procedures and NBE directives.

5.11	 Rate of return
A variable rate of return on investment account holders introduces uncertainty regarding the real value of 
deposit. Asset preservation in terms of minimizing the risk of loss due to a lower rate of return may be important 
factors in depositors’ withdrawal decisions. From the bank perspective, this introduces a “withdrawal risk” that is 
linked to the lower rate of return relative to other financial institution.

The bank will manage the rate of return risk  by putting in place appropriate systems for identifying and 
measuring  the factors  which give raise  to rate of return risk.

5.12	 Displaced Commercial Risk
It is the risk that the bank may confront commercial pressure to pay returns that exceeds the rate that has been 
earned on its assets financed by investment account holders. The bank forgoes part or its entire share of profit in 
order to retain its fund providers and dissuade them from withdrawing their funds

5.13	 Equity investment risk
This is the risk arising from entering in to a parternership for the purpose of undertaking or participating in 
a particular financing or general business activity as described in the contract, and in which the provider of 
finance shares in the business risk. This risk type is relevant under Mudharabah and Musharakah contract. 
While investment made via Mudharabah and Musharakah instruments may contribute substantially to IFBWS 
earnings, they entail significant counterparty, market, liquidity, credit and other risks, potentially raising giving 
rise to volatility in earning and capital.

As the risk mitigation instrument IFBW may require the Mudarib or Musharakah partner to provide collateral or 
guarantee.  

5.14	 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
IFRS 13 requires an entity to classify measured or disclosed fair values according to a hierarchy that reflects the 
significance of observable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, which comprises of three levels as described below, based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

15.14.1	 Valuation models
IFRS 13 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques 
are observable or unobservable. Observable input reflect market data obtained from independent sources; 
unobservable inputs reflect the Bank’s market assumptions.
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole.

Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) .This category includes instruments valued using: 
quoted market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments 
in markets that are considered less than active, or other valuation technique in which all significant inputs are 
directly or indirectly observable from market data.

In conclusion, this category is for valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to 
the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). This 
category includes all assets and liabilities for which the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observ-
able data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the asset or liability’s valuation. This category 
includes instruments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments for which significant unob-
servable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

5.14.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair value - Fair value hierarchy	
The following table summarises the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities at the reporting date by 
the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised. The amounts are based 
on the values recognised in the statement of financial position.

Carrying 
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

 30 June 2019 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
Financial assets
Cash and balances with banks  5,120,927  5,120,927  -    -    5,120,927 
Loans and advances to custom-
ers  15,323,833  -    -    15,323,833  15,323,833 

Interest Free Financing  1,890,738  -    -    1,890,738  1,890,738 
Investment securities  7,168,479  -    -    7,168,479  7,168,479 
Total  29,503,977  5,120,927  -    24,383,050  29,503,977 

Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers  22,434,183  -    -    22,434,183  22,434,183 
Interest Free customers' de-
posits  4,154,943  -    -    4,154,943  4,154,943 

Other liabilities  1,002,263  -    -    1,002,263  1,002,263 
Total  27,591,389  -    -    27,591,389  27,591,389 

Carrying
 amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

 30 June 2018 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
Financial assets
Cash and balances 
with banks  5,809,127  5,809,127  -    -    5,809,127 

Loans and advances to 
customers  9,968,573  -    -    9,968,573  9,968,573 

Interest Free Financing  1,621,293  -    -    1,621,293  1,621,293 
Investment securities  4,924,522  -    -    4,924,522  4,924,522 
Total  22,323,515  5,809,127  -    16,514,388  22,323,515 
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5.14.3	 Financial instruments not measured at fair value - Fair value hierarchy

Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 16,913,738  -    -   16,913,738 16,913,738
Interest Free customers' 
deposits 3,013,277  -    -   3,013,277 3,013,277

Other liabilities 870,061  -    -   870,061 870,061
Total  20,797,076  -    -    20,797,076  20,797,076 

15.14.4	 Valuation technique using significant unobservable inputs – Level 3
The Bank has no financial asset measured at fair value on subsequent recognition.

15.14.5	 Transfers between the fair value hierarchy categories
During the three reporting periods covered by these annual financial statements, there were no movements 
between levels as a result of significant inputs to the fair valuation process becoming observable or 
unobservable.	

5.15	 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities	
There are no offsetting arrangements. Financial assets and liabilities are settled and disclosed on a gross 
basis.	

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

6 Interest income from Loans and advances

Interest income earned on deposits  62,107  40,218 
Interest on Investment securities  179,421  124,948 
Interest on Agriculture loans  36,485  33,304 
Interest on Industry loans  202,572  108,578 
Interest on Domestic loans  602,160  459,708 
Interest on Export loans  424,539  233,139 
Interest on Import loans  136,115  107,003 
Interest on Import Bills  -    8,276 
Interest on Construction loans  237,467  169,975 
Interest on Mortgage loans  56,956  31,603 
Interest on Personal loans  9,879  5,950 
Interest on Transport loans  45,401  52,972 
Interest on Hotel and Tourism loans  134,535  112,790 
Interest on Microfinance loans  6,848  4,817 
Interest on Mines, Power and Water loans  -    -   
Interest Earned -on Non- Performing Loan  41,383  3,345 
Interest On Staff Loans  42,204  8,942 

Total  2,218,072  1,505,568 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

7 Income from Interest free financing and invest-
ment products

 -   
Income From Murabaha Financing  163,133  115,675 
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Income from Interest Free Banking-Agriculture  928  1,481 
Income from Interest Free Banking-Industry  4,502  2,328 
Income from Interest Free Banking-DTS  5,194  6,640 
Income from Interest Free Banking-Import  1,227  (1,909)
Income from Interest Free Banking-Construc-
tion  3,985  6,132 

Income from Interest Free Banking-Transport 
and communication  857  2,638 

Income from Interest Free Banking-Hotel and 
Tourism  1,338  3,840 

Income from Interest Free Banking-Export  159  -   
Income from Interest Free Banking-Mines 
,Power & Water  63  -   

Total  181,386  136,825 

Included within various line items under interest income for the year ended 30 June 2019 is a total of Birr 24,512 
million (30 June 2018: Birr 3,256 million) relating to impaired financial assets.

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

8 Interest expense

Interest on fixed time deposits  191,942  133,525 
Interest on saving deposits  644,568  409,217 
Interest on demand deposits  293  690 
Interest on NBE Borrowing  -    -   
Interest due to local banks  -    -   

 -   

Total  836,803  543,432 

9 Distribution to depositors- Interest Free Banking Products
Profit share on Mudharaba deposits  13  166 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Net fees and commission income

Fee and commission income

Miscellaneous income  28,675  23,706 
Commission on letters of credit  36,544  30,158 
Inspection and estimation income  25,027  15,339 
Service charge  3,443  4,379 
Commitment fee  12,054  3,049 
Opening commission  127,517  100,210 
Extension commission  30,254  29,887 
Confirmation commission  14,988  15,006 
Service charge- Foreign  372,323  280,379 
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Swift charges  3,379  3,438 
Interest free banking commissions  -    -   

 654,204  505,551 
Fee and commission expense

 -    -   

Net fees and commission income  654,204  505,551 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

10 Other operating income

Dividend income  6,572  5,038 
Gain on disposal of assets  1,572  133 
Sundry income  8,815  110,246 
Rental income  14,272  16,502 
Gain on foreign exchange  146,410  188,544 

Total  177,641  320,463 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

11 Loan impairment charge 

Loans and receivables - charge for the year 
(Conventional Banking)  143,146  8,971 

Interest Free Financing - charge for the 
year (Interest Free Banking)  9,775  9,374 

Loans and receivables - reversal of provi-
sion (note 15a)  -   

Total  152,921  18,345 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

12 Impairment losses on other assets

Other assets - charge for the year (note 17)  2,881  11,378 

Interest free financing-charge for the year  -    -   

Other assets - reversal of impairment losses (note 
17)  -   

Total  2,881  11,378 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

13 Personnel expenses

Salaries and wages  497,981  405,059 
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Pension costs – Defined 
contribution plan  64,030  51,193 

Bonus  75,539  78,105 
Other staff expenses  100,779  72,348 
Prepaid staff benefit expense  42,204  8,942 
Leave expense  18,171  7,024 

Total  798,704  622,671 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

14 Other operating expenses

Insurance  7,449  6,392 
Repair and maintenance  14,652  12,524 
Sundry Expenses  37,973  22,442 
Professional Expenses  982  2,168 
Occupancy Cost  140,146  104,085 
Promotional  and Related Ex-
penses  49,952  29,481 

Office Expenses  45,124  39,248 
Employee Travel Expenses  19,323  14,300 
Wages  32,858  22,006 
Water  3,901  2,901 
Bank  2,491  2,493 
Bonus expense  -    -   
Severence pay  7,639  6,212 
Legal  -    -   
Impairment on non-current assets  -    -   
Transport  2,461  1,776 
Loss on disposal of assets  143  1,220 
Amortization of lease  330  127 

Total  365,424  267,375 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

15 Company income and deferred  tax

15 (a)	Current income tax

Company income tax  261,555  212,313 
Prior year (over)/ under provision  -    1,391 
Deferred income tax/(credit) to 
profit or loss  (6,062)  (3,368)

Total charge to profit or loss  255,493  210,337 
Tax (credit) on other comprehensive 
income  -    -   

Total tax in statement of compre-
hensive income  255,493  210,337 
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15(b)	Reconciliation of effective tax to statutory tax
The tax on the Bank’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the 
statutory income tax rate as follows:

 30 June 2019  30 June 
2018 

Birr'000 Birr'000
Profit before tax  1,001,346  938,042 

Add :   Disallowed expenses
Entertainment  2,584  1,764 
Donation  260  229 
Penalty  -    229 
Sponsorship  3,529  426 
General Assembly  1,214  1,007 
Management Meeting and Promotion  2,329  1,552 
Severance Expense  7,990  6,212 
Legal Case  83  -   
10th Year Anniversary  4,735  -   
Third Party Payment for Motor 
Vehicle  246  -   

Adjustment for Inter branch Trans-
action  69  -   

Provision for Other Asset  7,666  -   
Provision for loans and advances as 
per IFRs  155,802  21,741 

Depreciation for accounting purpose  73,211  66,998 
Amortization for accounting purpose  -    -   

Total disallowable expenses  259,718  100,158 

Less  : 
 Depreciation for tax purpose  80,958  73,573 
 Provision for loans and advances for 
tax as per NBE (80%)  60,155  76,827 

Interest income taxed at source 
foreign  -    -   

Dividend income taxed at source  6,572  5,038 
Interest income taxed at source-NBE 
Bills  179,421  124,948 

Interest income taxed at source-Local 
Deposit  62,107  40,218 

Legal Provission taxed last year  -    115 
Write back suspended Interest Taxed 
previous year  -    9,770 

 389,215  330,490 
Taxable profit  871,850  707,710 
Current tax at 30%  261,555  212,313 
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15 (c) Current income tax liability Birr'000 Birr'000

Balance at the beginning of the year  210,658  88,748 
Current year provision  261,555  212,313 
Prior year (over)/ under provision  -   
WHT Notes utilised  250  264 
Payment during the year  210,658  90,139 

Balance at the end of the year  261,305  210,658 

15(d)	Deferred income tax					     				  

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be 
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

The analysis of deferred tax 
assets/(liabilities) is as follows:

To be recovered after more than 
12 months  (7,840)  (13,902)

To be recovered within 12 
months  -    -   

Total  (7,840)  (13,902)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities, deferred income tax charge/(credit) in profit or loss (“P/L), in equity 
and other comprehensive income are attributable to the following items:	

Deferred income tax assets/
(liabilities):  “ At 30 June 

2018 “ 
 Credit/ (charge) 

to P/L
Credit/ (charge) to 

equity 30 June 2019

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Property, plant and equipment  (21,980)  1,860  -    (20,120)
Provisions  -    -    -    -   
Unrealised exchange gain  -    -    -    -   
Tax losses charged to profit 
or loss  -    -    -    -   

Post employment benefit 
obligation  8,078  4,202  -    12,280 
Total deferred tax assets/
(liabilities)  (13,902)  6,062  -    (7,840)

Deferred income tax assets/
(liabilities):

“ At 30 June 
2017 ”

Credit/ (charge) 
to P/L

Credit/ (charge) to 
equity

 “ 30 June 
2018 “

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Property, plant and equipment  (22,756)  776  -    (21,980)
Provisions  -    -    -    -   
Unrealised exchange gain  -    -    -    -   
Tax losses charged to profit or 
loss  -    -    -    -   

Post employment benefit 
obligation  5,486  2,592  -    8,078 
Total deferred tax assets/(lia-
bilities)  (17,270)  3,368  -    (13,902)
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 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

16  Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash in hand  1,503,709  1,887,786 
Balance held with National 
Bank of Ethiopia  1,823,781  1,844,840 

Deposits with local banks  502,237  789,022 
Deposits with foreign banks  1,291,200  1,287,479 

Total  5,120,927  5,809,127 

Maturity analysis  30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Current  3,750,927  4,809,127 
Non-Current  1,370,000  1,000,000 

Total  5,120,927  5,809,127 

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows are the same as on the statement of financial position 
as the Bank had no bank overdrafts at the end of each reporting period.				  

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

17 Loans and advances to customers

Agriculture  226,738  206,345 
Industry  1,486,938  1,051,846 
Domestic trade and services  4,681,099  2,907,290 
Export  3,860,093  2,687,653 
Import  1,060,543  595,749 
Construction  1,858,505  1,016,354 
Transport and communication  250,135  264,832 
Hotel and tourism  957,211  681,631 
Mining, power and water resources  -    -   
Microfinance institution  42,535  42,514 
Mortgage loan staff   588,619  352,801 
Mortgage Loan Customer  333,748  70,415 
Personal Loan Staff  87,061  59,873 
Emergency staff loans  123,533  103,319 
Consumer loans  39,332  19,867 

 -    -   
Gross amount  15,596,090  10,060,489 

Less: Impairment allowance (note 15a)  -   
 - Specific impairment  -    (24,885)
 - Collective impairment  -    (67,031)
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 - Stage 1  12 month ECL  (127,455)  -   
 - Stage 2  Life time ECL  (11,819)  -   
 - Stage 3  Life time ECL  (132,982)  -   
Total Loss allowance  (272,257)  (91,916)
Total carrying amount  15,323,833  9,968,573 

Maturity analysis  30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Current  10,420,207  6,736,302 
Non-Current  4,903,627  3,232,271 

Total  15,323,833  9,968,573 

17(a)	 Impairment allowance on loans and advances to customers				  
A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses for loans and receivables as at  01 July 2018 is as follows: 

 30 June 2018  Stage 1                               
12 month ECL 

 Stage 2                               
Life time ECL 

 Stage 3                               
Life time ECL 

Day 1 change in 
ECL  allowance

Specific allowance for 
impairment  24,885  -    -    -   (24,885)

Collective allowance for 
impairment  67,031  -    -    -   (67,031)

Stage 1  12 month ECL  -    60,285  -    -   60,285
Stage 2  Life time ECL  -    -    5,023  -   5,023
Stage 3  Life time ECL  -    -    -    63,803 63,803

Total  91,917  60,285  5,023  63,803  37,194 

 A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses for loans and receivables as at 30 June 2019 is as 
follows: 	

As at 01 July 2018  Charge for the 
year 

As at 30 June 
2019

Stage 1  12 month ECL  60,285  67,170 127,455
Stage 2  Life time ECL  5,023  6,797 11,819
Stage 3  Life time ECL  63,803  69,179 132,982

Total  129,111  143,146  272,257 

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses for loans and receivables by class as at 30 June 2018 is as 
follows:

Specific allowance for impair-
ment

 As at 30 June 
2017 

Charge for the 
year

As at 30 June 
2018

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Transport and communication  59  (59)  -   
Housing and construction loans  749  (160)  590 
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Hotel and tourism loans  30,416  (29,707)  710 
Export loans  12,659  4,466  17,125 
Domestic trade loans  7,282  (5,145)  2,137 
Mortgage  494  (494)  -   
Staff loans  337  (337)  -   
Industry  853  1,986  2,839 
Import  1,660  (1,660)  -   
Agriculture  -    1,485  1,485 

Total  54,509  (29,624)  24,885 

Collective allowance for impairment  As at 30 June 
2017 

Charge for the 
year

As at 30 June 
2018

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Agriculture  7,097  (4,235)  2,863 
Industry  2,748  789  3,537 
Domestic Trade & Service  35,864  (14,217)  21,647 
Export  45,198  (24,948)  20,251 
Import  5,158  (1,022)  4,136 
Construction  13,512  (6,199)  7,314 
Transport and Communication  3,917  (762)  3,154 
Hotel and Toursim  6,923  (3,392)  3,532 
Microfinance  -    -    -   
Mines, Power,and Water  -    -    -   
Mortgage Loan Customer  80  (44)  36 
Mortgage Loan Staff  157  197  354 
Personal and Consumer - Customer  22  48  70 
Personal and Consumer - Staff  53  (22)  31 
Emergency  Staff Loan  125  (15)  110 

Total  120,855  (53,823)  67,031 

18 Interest Free Financing  30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Murahabah Financing- Agriculture  100,505  87,399 
Murahabah Financing- Construction  251,261  122,620 
Murahabah Financing- Agriculture 
Merchandize  -    -   

Murahabah Financing- Industry  330,038  185,195 
Murahabah Financing- DTS  648,393  408,963 
Murahabah Financing- Export  -    -   
Interest Free Export Facility Financing  208,425  481,990 
Murahabah Financing- Import  158,561  169,402 
Murahabah financing  -    -   
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Murahabah Financing- Hotel and 
Tourism  18,177  11,796 

Murahabah Financing- Transport and 
Communication  107,117  118,309 

Muruhabah Financing-  Consumer 
and Personal  -    -   

 -    -   
Gross amount  1,822,477  1,585,674 

Profit receivable from Murubaha 
Financing  399,065  262,420 

Less: Deferred profit  (277,377)  (185,291)
Less: Impairment allowance (note 
15a)
 - Specific impairment  -    (30,944)
 - Collective impairment  -    (10,566)
 - Stage 1  12 month ECL  (7,930)
 - Stage 2  Life time ECL  (7,165)
 - Stage 3  Life time ECL  (38,331)
 Total Loss allowance  (53,427)  (41,509)
Total carrying amount  1,890,738  1,621,293 

Maturity analysis  30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Current  1,247,887  1,206,889 
Non-Current  642,851  414,404 

Total  1,890,738  1,621,293 

18(a)	 Impairment allowance on Interest Free Financing 	
A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses for Interest free financing as at  01 July 2018 is as follows: 

 30 June 2018  Stage 1                               
12 month ECL 

 Stage 2                               
Life time ECL 

 Stage 3                               
Life time ECL 

Day 1 change 
in impairment 

allowance

Specific allowance for 
impairment  30,944  -    -    -   ( 30,944 )

Collective allowance for 
impairment  10,566  -    -    -   ( 10,566 )

Stage 1  12 month ECL  -    9,005  -    -   9,005
Stage 2  Life time ECL  -    -    2,291  -   2,291
Stage 3  Life time ECL  -    -    -    32,356 32,356

Total  41,509  9,005  2,291  32,356  2,142 

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses for Interest free financing as at 30 June 2019 is as follows: 
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As at 01 July 2018  Charge for the 
year 

As at 30 June 
2019

Stage 1  12 month ECL  9,005  (1,075) 7,930
Stage 2  Life time ECL  2,291  4,875 7,165
Stage 3  Life time ECL  32,356  5,975 38,331

Total  43,651  9,775  53,427 

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses for interest free financing as at 30 june 2018 by class is 
as follows:

Specific allowance for impair-
ment

 As at 30 June 
2017 

Charge for the 
year

As at 30 June 
2018

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Murahabah Financing- Export  21,627  2,408  24,035 
Murahabah Financing- Import  -    6,909  6,909 

Total  21,627  9,317.08  30,944 

Collective allowance for 
impairment

 As at 30 June 
2017 

Charge for the 
year

As at 30 June 
2018

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Murubaha Financing -Agri-
culture  1,120  (20)  1,100 

Murubaha Financing- Industry  452  57  509 
Murubaha Financing -DTS  3,407  (880)  2,527 
Murubaha Financing -Export  8,427  (4,647)  3,779 
Murubaha Financing- Import  1,022  (392)  630 
Murubaha Financing - Con-
struction  1,077  (404)  674 

Murubaha Financing - Trans-
port and Comm.  1,721  (428)  1,293 

Murubaha Financing- Hotel 
and Toursim  156  (102)  54 

Murubaha Financing -Personal  6  (6)

Total  17,388  (6,823)  10,566 

  30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

19 Investment securities

Financial assets at fair value 
through OCI
Financial assets at fair value 
through OCI (2018-AFS)  95,478  68,705 
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 95,478  68,705 
Financial assets at amortized 
cost (2018-Loans and Receiv-
ables)
NBE Bills  7,062,601  4,845,419 
Ethiopian Government bonds  10,400  10,398 
Gross amount  7,073,001  4,855,817 
Less individual allowance for 
impairment  -    -   

Carrying amount  7,073,001  4,855,817 

The equity investments made by the Bank is as summarised below:

The primary valuation technique adopted  by the bank in undertaking the valuation of the investee companies 
is the market approach. This is because the financial information available on the investee companies consists of 
historical audited financial statements.

As at 30 June 
2019

Investment Number of shares 
'000

Net changes in 
equity invest-

ments at FVOCI
Balance of FVOCI

 Percentage 
shareholding ( at 

FV ) 
Oromia Insurance S.C  12,500  5,179  17,679 18.5%
Gutu Oromia Business 
S.C  3,250  -    3,250 3.4%

Elemtu Integrated 
Dairy Industry S.C  10,000  (10,000)  -   0.0%

Elemo Kiltu House 
Buliding  500  268  768 0.8%

OIB ODA Real Estate 
PLC  10,000  (4,205)  5,795 6.1%

Ethio Switch S.C  12,002  14,800  26,802 28.1%
TPO Printing and 
Publishing S.C  15,000  -    15,000 15.7%

Tsehay Industry S.C  15,526  7,565  23,091 24.2%
Sheger Micro Finance  3,200  (107)  3,093 3.2%

Grand Total  81,978  13,500  95,478 100%

As at 30 June 
2018 As at 01 July 2018

Investment Number of shares 
'000

FV day 1 adjust-
ment gain/(loss) Balance of FVOCI

 Percentage 
shareholding ( at 

FV ) 
Oromia Insurance S.C  12,500  7,269  19,769 22.0%
Gutu Oromia Business 
S.C  3,250  -    3,250 3.6%

Elemtu Integrated 
Dairy Industry S.C  10,000  (10,000)  -   0.0%

Elemo Kiltu House 
Buliding  500  47  547 0.6%
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OIB ODA Real Estate 
PLC  10,000  (3,413)  6,587 7.3%

Ethio Switch S.C  11,370  (2,118)  9,252 10.3%
TPO Printing and 
Publishing S.C  7,500  -    7,500 8.3%

Tsehay Industry S.C  12,572  29,361  41,933 46.7%
Sheger Micro Finance  1,013  -    1,013 1.1%

Grand Total  68,705  21,147  89,852 100%

Investment Balance of FVOCI 
01 July 2018

Balance of FVOCI 
30 June 2019

Net changes in 
equity invest-

ments during the 
year

Oromia Insurance S.C  19,769  17,679  (2,090)
Gutu Oromia Business 
S.C  3,250  3,250  -   

Elemtu Integrated Dairy 
Industry S.C  -    -    -   

Elemo Kiltu House 
Buliding  547  768  221 

OIB ODA Real Estate 
PLC  6,587  5,795  (792)

Ethio Switch S.C  9,252  26,802  17,549 
TPO Printing and Pub-
lishing S.C  7,500  15,000  7,500 

Tsehay Industry S.C  41,933  23,091  (18,842)
Sheger Micro Finance  1,013  3,093  2,080 

Grand Total  89,852  95,478  5,626 
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Additional investment during the year

Investment 30 June 2018 Addition for the 
year 30 June 2019

Oromia Insurance S.C  12,500  -    12,500 
Gutu Oromia Business 
S.C  3,250  -    3,250 

Elemtu Integrated 
Dairy Industry S.C  10,000  -    10,000 

Elemo Kiltu House 
Buliding  500  -    500 

OIB ODA Real Estate 
PLC  10,000  -    10,000 

Ethio Switch S.C  11,370  632  12,002 
TPO Printing and 
Publishing S.C  7,500  7,500  15,000 

Tsehay Industry S.C  12,572  2,954  15,526 
Sheger Micro Finance  1,013  2,187  3,200 

Grand Total  68,705  13,273  81,978 

As at 30 June 
2018

Investment Number of shares 
'000

 Percentage 
shareholding 

Oromia Insurance 
S.C  12,500 18.2%

Gutu Oromia 
Business S.C  3,250 4.7%

Elemtu Integrated 
Dairy Industry S.C  10,000 14.6%

Elemo Kiltu House 
Buliding  500 0.7%

OIB ODA Real 
Estate PLC  10,000 14.6%

Ethio Switch S.C  11,370 16.5%
TPO Printing and 
Publishing S.C  7,500 10.9%

Tsehay Industry 
S.C  12,572 18.3%

Sheger Micro 
Finance  1,013 1.5%

Grand Total  68,705 100%

Maturity analysis  30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Current  837,369  392,628 
Non-Current  6,235,632  4,463,189 

Total  7,073,001  4,855,817 
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 30 June 2019  30 June 
2018 

Birr'000 Birr'000
20 Other assets

Financial assets

Accounts receivables  (1,198)  508 
Uncleared effects- Local  57,806  43,465 
Uncleared effects-Foreign  70,484  60,427 
Accrued interest receivable on Gov-
ernment Bonds  -    -   

Accrued interest receivable on NBE 
Bills  -    -   

Accrued receivables-Share compa-
nies  -    -   

Miscellaneous  97,429  66,577 
Guarantee for Overseas Employment 
Agencies  619,653  65,549 
Gross amount  844,174  236,526 

Less: Specific impairment allowance ( note 17a)
          ECL for other financial asset

 -    (18,235)
 (6,637)  -   

Carrying amount  837,537  218,291 

Non-financial assets

Prepayments  443,305  437,750 
Prepaid staff asset  156,751  92,697 
Prepaid staff loans  -    -   
Branches under opening  8,771  30,947 
Inventory  20,382  11,790 
Total  629,209  573,184 

Gross amount  1,466,746  791,474 

Maturity analysis  30 June 2019  30 June 
2018 

Birr'000 Birr'000

Current  1,020,769  372,013 
Non-Current  445,977  419,462 

Total  1,466,746  791,474 
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20(a)	 Impairment allowance on other assets
A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses for other assets is as follows:

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Balance at the 
beginning of the 
year

 18,235  6,858 

(Reversal)/charge 
for the year (note 
10)

 (18,235)  11,377 

Balance at the 
end of the year  -    18,235 

20(b)	Inventory
A breakdown of the items included within inventory is as follows:

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Fixed asset in 
store  -    -   

Supplies stock 
account- IFB  -    -   

Supplies stock 
account  20,382  11,790 

 20,382  11,790 

Swift Software Core Banking 
Software

Mobile and agent 
banking software Total

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
20 Intangible Assets

Cost:

As at 30 June  2018  -    40,703  -    40,703 
Acquisitions  1,002  1,002 
Internal development  -   
Transfer from 
property, plant and 
equipment

 -   

As at 30 June 2019  -    41,704  -    41,704 

Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment Losses

As at 30 June  2018  -    33,739  -    33,739 
Amortisation for the 
year  4,409  4,409 

Impairment losses  -   
As at 30 June 2019  -    38,148  -    38,148 
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20	 Intangible Assets (Contd)

Net book value
As at 30 June  2018  6,964  6,964 
As at 30 June 2019  3,556  -    3,556 

Property, plant 
and equipment Buildings  Motor 

vehicles 
 Furniture 

and fittings 
 Computer and 

accessories 
 Office 

equipment 
 Construction 

in progress  Total 

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
21 Cost:

As at 30 June  
2018  334,027  188,268  94,348  138,485  98,328  3,031  856,487 

Additions  101,228  301  18,247  61,761  17,629  199,166 
Disposals  -    -    -    -    -   
Reclassification  -    -    -    -    -   
As at 30 June 
2019  435,255  188,569  112,595  200,246  115,957  3,140  1,055,762 

Accumulated 
depreciation

As at 1 July 2018  18,401  73,530  28,589  51,001  42,375  -    213,896 
Charge for the 
year  7,990  17,515  9,361  20,119  13,817  -    68,802 

Impairement  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Disposals  -    -    417  475  127  -    1,019 
As at 30 June 
2019  26,391  91,045  38,367  71,595  56,319  -    281,678 

Net book value
As at 01 July  
2018  315,627  114,738  65,759  87,484  55,953  3,031  642,591 
As at 30 June 
2019  408,864  97,524  74,228  128,651  59,638  3,140  774,084 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

22 Non-current assets held for sale

Balance  at the beginning of the year  32,185  27,813 
Additional Repossessed collateral 
from the borrower  for the year  -    6,860 

Transfer  to  property, plant and 
equipment  -    (507)

Transfer from  property, plant and 
equipment  -    -   

Disposals of  Repossessed collateral  (1,067)  (141)
Disposals of   property, plant and 
equipment  (176)  (1,839)

Fair value gain/(loss) on assets held 
for sale  -    -   

Balance at the end of the year  30,942  32,185 
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Oromia International Bank S.C. took over collateral of some customers and these were recorded in the books as 
Assets classified as held for sale as the Bank had no intention to make use of the property for administrative use. 
Management initiated a plan to dispose of these assets to willing buyers and expects to have completed the 
transaction before the end of the next financial period.

These assets have been valued by in-house engineers responsible for collateral valuation using the market 
approach determined using Level 3 inputs.

There is no cumulative income or expenses in OCI relating to assets held for sale.

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

23 Deposits from customers

Demand deposits  7,223,812  6,080,985 
Saving deposits  12,830,259  9,474,568 
Fixed Time deposits  2,380,112  1,358,185 
Foreign Currency Ac-
counts  -    -   

Gross amount  22,434,183  16,913,738 

Maturity analysis  30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Current  21,985,499  16,575,463 
Non-Current  448,684  338,275 

 22,434,183  16,913,738 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

25 Other liabilities

Financial liabilities

TT payable  10,647  11,862 
CPO & Certified Cheques issued  237,678  234,787 
Account Payable Miscellaneous  27,376  17,574 
Income tax payable  5,575  4,316 
Tax payable on interest  7,176  4,984 
Pension payable  3,037  2,238 
Tax on capital gain  94  107 
VAT payable  51  137 
Withholding tax payable  1,308  1,136 
Stamp duty charges  3,416  1,313 
Exchange payable to NBE  8,950  8,030 
Accrued Interest On Fixed Time 
Deposit  -    -   
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Audit fee  413  328 
Dividend Payable  36,601  49,531 
Letter of credit margin payables  642,689  523,770 
Hamish Jiddya Payable  8,722  6,274 
Charity Fund Payable  6,992  2,727 
Uncleared effects- Foreign  -    -   
Uncleared effects-Local  -    -   
Deferred Murabaha profit
Cost Sharing Payable  27  53 
Legal provisions  -    -   
Directors Share on Profit  1,511  894 

 1,002,263  870,061 
Non-financial liabilities

Other provisions  -    -   
Accrued leave payable  55,547  41,771 
Deferred Income-rent  4,643  4,393 
Unearned income  30,667  32,456 
Bonus provision  74,402  78,105 

 165,259  156,725 

Gross amount  1,167,522  1,026,786 

25  Other liabilities       
(confirmed)

Maturity analysis  30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Current  1,167,522  1,026,786 
Non-Current  -    -   

 1,167,522  1,026,786 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Retirement benefit obligations

Defined benefits liabilities:
– Severance pay  40,934  26,925 
Liability in the statement of 
financial position  40,934  26,925 

Income statement charge in-
cluded in personnel expenses:
– Severance pay 7,058 5,858
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– Long service awards 
Total defined benefit expenses  7,058  5,858 

Remeasurements for:
– Severance pay  6,951  2,779 

 6,951  2,779 

The income statement charge included within personnel expenses includes current service cost, interest cost, past 
service costs on the defined benefit schemes.

Maturity analysis  30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Current  7,058  5,858 
Non-Current  33,876  21,067 

 40,934  26,925 

Severance pay
The Bank operates an unfunded severance pay plan for its employees who have served the Bank for 5 years and 
above and are below the retirement age (i.e. has not met the requirement to access the pension fund). The final 
pay-out is determined by reference to current benefit’s level (monthly salary) and number of years in service and 
is calculated as 1 month salary for the first year in employment plus 1/3 of monthly salary for each subsequent 
in employment to a maximum of 12 months final monthly salary.

Below are the details of movements and amounts recognised in the financial statements:

24 Retirement benefit obligations (contin-
ued)

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

A Liability recognised in the financial 
position  14,009  8,637 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
B Amount recognised in the profit or loss Birr'000 Birr'000

Current service cost  4,214  3,195 
Interest cost  3,776  3,017 

 7,990  6,212 

C Amount recognised in other comprehen-
sive income:
Remeasurement (gains)/losses arising 
from changes in demographic assump-
tions

 -    -   

Remeasurement (gains)/losses arising 
from changes in the economic assump-
tions

 2,633  2,949 

Remeasurement (gains)/losses arising 
from experience  4,318  (170)
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Tax credit /(charge)

 6,951  2,779 

The movement in the defined benefit obligation over the years is as follows: 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

At the beginning of the year  26,925  18,288 
Current service cost  4,214  3,195 
Interest cost  3,776  3,017 
Remeasurement (gains)/ losses  6,951  2,779 
Benefits paid  (932)  (354)

At the end of the year  40,934  26,925 

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:	

i) Financial Assumption Long term 
Average

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Discount Rate (p.a) 11.25% 12.31%
Long term Salary Increases(p.a) 12.00% 12.00%
Inflation Rate 10.00% 10.00%
Net pre-retirement rate -0.67% 0.28%

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

27 Ordinary share capital

Authorised:
 Ordinary shares of Birr 
1000 each  3,000,000  3,000,000 

Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of Birr 
1000 each  2,385,981  1,606,949 

28	 Earnings per share					   
Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the profit after taxation by the weighted average number 
of ordinary shares in issue during the year.					   

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Profit after tax  745,853  727,705 

Weighted average number 
of ordinary shares in issue  1,996,465  1 ,387,385 

Basic & diluted earnings per 
share (Birr)  0.374 0.525 
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28	 Earnings per share (Contd)
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. There were no potentially dilutive 
shares at the reporting date ( 30 June 2019:nil and 30 June 2018: nil), hence the basic and diluted loss per share 
have the same value.

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

29 Retained earnings

At the beginning of the year  383,710  173,760 
Profit/ (Loss) for the year  745,853  727,705 
Prior year (over)/ under pro-
vision  -    1,391 

Reversal of loans and IFB 
financing loss allowance rec-
oginzed as per IAS 39

 133,426  -   

Day one IFRS 9 transition 
adjustment for loans and IFB 
financing

 (172,762)  -   

Reversal of other assets loss 
allowance recoginzed as per 
IAS 39

 18,017  -   

Day one IFRS 9 transition 
adjustment for other assets  (3,756)  -   

Directors share on Profit  (1,511)  (894)
Transfer to legal reserve  (184,948)  (181,926)
Dividends paid  (54,276)  (39,443)
Dividends held in payable 
account  (18,737)  (27,370)

Dividend capitalised  (310,698)  (147,971)
Transfer to regulatory risk 
reserve  (41,351)  (121,540)

Transfer from regulatory risk 
reserve - Suspended interest  14,586  -   

Transfer to regulatory risk re-
serve- Provission other Assets  (16,008)

Transfer from  regulatory risk 
reserve for excess NBE pro-
vissions no longer required on 
application of IFRS 9

 121,540  -   

 -    -   

At the end of the year  613,086  383,710 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

30 Legal reserve

The NBE Directive No. SBB/4/95 requires the Bank to transfer annually 25% of its annual net profit to its legal 
reserve account until such account equals its capital. When the legal reserve account equals the capital of the 
Bank, the amount to be transferred to the legal reserve account will be 10% (ten percent) of the annual net profit.
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 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

At the beginning of the year  457,285  275,359 
Transfer from profit or loss  184,948  181,926 

At the end of the year  642,233  457,285 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

31 Regulatory risk reserve

At the beginning of the year  145,605  33,835 
Transfer to retained earnings 
for excess NBE provissions no 
longer required on application 
of IFRS 9

 (121,540)  121,540 

Transfer from retained earnings- 
write backed suspended Interest  41,351  -   

Transfer to retained earnings  (14,586)  -   
Transfer from retained earnings- 
Provission for Other Assets  16,008 

Adjustment of Regulatory risk 
reserve against loan account  -    (9,770)

At the end of the year  66,838  145,605 

31	 Regulatory risk reserve (Contd)
The Regulatory risk reserve is a non-distributable reserves required by the regulations of the National Bank of 
Ethiopia(NBE) to be kept for impairment losses on loans and receivables in excess of IFRS charge as derived using 
the expected credit loss model.

Where the loan loss impairment determined using the  National Bank of Ethiopia (NBE) guidelines is higher 
than the loan loss impairment determined using the expected credit loss model under IFRS, the difference is 
transferred to regulatory risk reserve and it is non-distributable to the owners of the Bank.

Where the loan loss impairment determined using the National Bank of Ethiopia (NBE) guidelines is less than 
the loan loss impairment determined using expected credit loss model under IFRS, the difference is transferred 
from regulatory risk reserve to the retained earning to the extent of the non-distributable reserve previously 
recognised.

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Notes Birr'000 Birr'000

32 Cash generated from operating 
activities

Profit before tax  1,001,346  938,042 

Adjustments for non-cash 
items:
Depreciation of property, plant 
and equipment 21  68,802  53,866 
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Amortisation of intangible 
assets 20  4,409  13,132 

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of prop-
erty, plant and equipment 21

Impairment on loans and 
advances 17  180,340  (83,448)

Impairment on interest free 
financing 16  11,917  2,494 

Impairment losses on other 
assets 20  (11,598)  11,378 

Retirement benefit obligations 26  (6,951)  (2,779)
Adjustment on De-Recognised 
Property, Plant and equipment  1,129  -   

Adjustment of Property, Plant 
and equipment  -    -   

Fair Value adjustment for equity 
investment 18  (13,500)  -   

Adjustment of  Provision for 
Legal 
Prior Period Adjustment  (9,770)
Changes in working capital:
-Decrease/ (Increase) in loans 
and advances to customers 17  (5,535,601)  (2,839,955)

-Decrease/ (Increase) in interest 
free financing 18  (281,362)  (565,376)

-Decrease/ (Increase) in other 
assets 20  (663,674)  (146,913)

-Decrease/ (Increase) in non 
current assets held for sale 20  1,243  (4,372)

-Increase/ (Decrease) in deposits 
from customers 23  5,520,445  5,482,191 

-Increase/ (Decrease) in Interest 
Free customers' deposits 24  1,141,666  983,195 

-Increase/ (Decrease) in Other 
liabilities 22  121,999  1,945 

-Increase/ (Decrease) in Retire-
ment benefit obligations 24  14,009  8,637 

-Decrease/ (Increase) in Re-
stricted Deposit 15  (370,000)  (320,000)

 1,184,620  3,522,268 

In the statement of cash flows, profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (PPE) comprise:
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 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Proceeds on disposal  -    -   
Net book value of property, 
plant and equipment disposed 
(Note 19)

 -    -   

Gain/(loss) on sale of property, 
plant and equipment  -    -   

33	 Related party transactions
Oromia International Bank S.C. is a wholly owned private financial institution. A number of transactions were 
entered into with related parties in the normal course of business. These are disclosed below:

31a Transactions with 
related parties

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Deposits  152,035  10,684 
Loans  17,358  16,440 

Total  169,393  27,124 

31b	 Key management compensation	
Key management has been determined to be the members of the Board of Directors  and the Executive 
Management of the Bank.  The compensation paid or payable to key management for is shown.  There were 
no sales or purchase of goods and services between the Bank and key management personnel as at 30 June 
2019	

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

 Basic Salary (short term employee 
benefit)  5,802  5,608 

Representation Allowance (short 
term employee benefit)  330  342 

Provident fund (short term em-
ployee benefit)  804  722 

Bonus (short term employee 
benefit)  707  1,418 

Directors Allowance  1,008  607 
Directors' Share on profit  1,511  894 

Total  10,162  9,590 

Compensation of the Bank’s key management personnel includes salaries, non-cash benefits and contributions 
to the post-employment defined benefits plans.
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32	 Contingent liabilities

32a	 Claims and litigation
The Bank is a party to numerous legal actions brought by different organizations and individuals arising from 
its normal business operations. The maximum exposure of the Bank to these legal cases as at 30 June 2019 is 
Birr 59,246,553 . No provision has been made in the financial statements as the Directors believe that it is not 
probable that the economic benefits would flow out of the Bank in respect of these legal actions.

32b	 Guarantees and letters of credit
The Bank conducts business involving performance bonds and guarantees. These instruments are given as a 
security to support the performance of a customer to third parties. As the Bank will only be required to

meet these obligations in the event of the customer’s default, the cash requirements of these instruments are 
expected to be considerably below their nominal amounts.

The table below summarises the fair value amount of contingent liabilities for the account of customers:

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Guarantees Issued and Outstanding  1,321,037  812,261 
Commitments on Letter of Credit 
net of Margin Paid  455,292  361,294 

Commitments on Letter of Credit 
net of Urbun Held  39,800  105,350 

TCG Issued and Outstanding  44,171  43,055 
"Loan Approved but not Disbursed 
and 
IFB Financing approved but not yet 
Financed"  1,618,896  841,079 

Unutilized Overdraft and Other 
Facility  1,478,840  1,129,592 

Undrawn IFB Export Facility 
Financing  944,539  678,260 

Total  5,902,575  3,970,891 

33 Commitments
 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 

Birr'000 Birr'000

Share Subscribed but not paid  -    9,615 
Capital projects  68,943  67,080 

Total  68,943  76,695 

34	 Operating lease commitments - Bank as lessee

The Bank leases various properties under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease terms are between 
two and five years, and majority of these lease agreements are renewable at the end of the each lease period at 
market rate.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:	
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 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

No later than 1 year  14,802  15,821 
Later than 1 year and no 
later than 2 years  32,355  155,027 

Later than 2 years but not 
later than 5 years  139,000  54,509 

Total  186,157  225,358 

35	 Events after reporting period
In the opinion of the Directors, there were no significant post balance sheet events which could have a material 
effect on the state of affairs of the Bank as at 30 June 2019 and on the profit for the period ended on that date, 
which have not been adequately provided for or disclosed.

37	 Segment reporting
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Bank that is engaged in providing products or services within 
a particular economic environment which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other 
segments . Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the 
chief operating decision maker. 

The chief operating decision maker is the person or Bank that allocates resources to and assesses the performance 
of the operating segments of an entity. 

The Bank has determined the Board of Directors as its chief operating decision maker. All transactions between 
business segments are conducted on commercial terms  basis with intra-segment revenue and costs being 
eliminated at Bank level.

Segment information

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the 
Bank that are regularly reviewed by the Board of Directors in order to allocate resources to the segment and to 
assess its performance. 						    

Information reported to the Bank’s Board of Directors for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of 
segment performance is focused on products and services. 

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Bank’s accounting policies described in 
note 2.

 For management purposes, the Bank has been organised into two operating segments based on products and 
services, as follows:

1. Interest Free Banking- All Islamic banking products offered to customers are included under the Islamic Banking 
segment. These products include  Wadiah deposits, Amanah deposits and mudarabah investments.	

2. Conventional Banking- The conventional banking segment comprises of corporate and commercial banking 
customers in various sectors which include agriculture, manufacturing, domestic trade, construction, hotel and 
tourism, microfinance institutions, mortgage loans and personal loans

37	 Segment reporting (continued)
The Executive Management Committee monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the 
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance 
is evaluated based on operating profits or losses and is measured consistently with operating profits or losses 
in the consolidated financial statements. However, income taxes are managed on a group basis and are not 
allocated to operating segments.
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Transfer prices between operating segments are based on the Bank’s internal pricing framework.

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or counterparty amounted to 10% or more of the 
Bank’s total revenue in 2019 or 2018.

Profit segments

At 30 June 2019

Conventional 
Banking

Interest Free 
Banking

Segment adjust-
ments Bank

Birr "000 Birr "000 Birr "000 Birr "000
Interest income  2,218,072  -    -    2,218,072 
Income from Interest free 
financing and investment 
products

 -    181,386  -    181,386 

Interest expense  836,803  836,803 
Distribution to depositors- In-
terest Free Banking Products 13 13

Net interest income and 
income from Interest Free 
Banking products net of distri-
bution to depositors

 1,381,269  181,373  -    1,562,642 

Fee and commission income  591,682  62,522  -    654,204 
Fee and commission expense  -    -    -    -   
Net fees and commission 
income  591,682  62,522  -    654,204 

Other operating income  177,460  181  -    177,641 
Loan impairment charge  143,146  9,775  -    152,921 
Impairment losses on other 
assets  2,881  -    -    2,881 

Inter–segment revenues/ex-
penses

Net operating income  31,433  (9,594)  -    21,839 
Amortisation of intangible 
assets  4,409  -    -    4,409 

Depreciation of property and 
equipment  68,802  -    -    68,802 

Personal and Other operating 
expenses  1,146,621  17,507  1,164,128 

Segment Profit before tax  784,552  216,794  1,001,346 

Income tax expense  190,455  65,038  255,493 
Segment profit after tax  594,097  151,756  745,853 

Assets
"Additions to property and
equipment"  199,166  -    199,166 
"Additions to other
intangible assets"  1,002  -    1,002 
Total assets  27,335,836  4,443,472  31,779,308 
Total liabilities  23,842,837  4,223,890  28,066,727 
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37	 Segment reporting (continued)

At 30 June 2018

Conventional 
Banking

Interest Free 
Banking

Segment adjust-
ments Bank

Birr "000 Birr "000 Birr "000 Birr "000
Interest income  1,505,568  -    -    1,505,568 
Income from Interest free 
financing and investment 
products

 -    136,825  -    136,825 

Interest expense  543,432  -    -    543,432 
Distribution to depositors- In-
terest Free Banking Products  -    166  -    166 

Net interest income and 
income from Interest Free 
Banking products net of distri-
bution to depositors

 962,136  136,659  -    1,098,795 

Fee and commission income  421,539  84,012  -    505,551 
Fee and commission expense  -    -    -    -   
Net fees and commission 
income  421,539  84,012  -    505,551 

Other operating income  318,246  2,217  -    320,463 
Loan impairment charge  8,971  9,374  -    18,345 
Impairment losses on other 
assets  7,729  3,649  -    11,378 

Inter–segment revenues/ex-
penses  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   
Net operating income  301,547  (10,807)  -    290,740 
Amortisation of intangible 
assets  13,132  -    -    13,132 

Depreciation of property and 
equipment  53,866  -    -    53,866 

Personal and Other operating 
expenses  874,845  15,201  -    890,046 

 -    -    -    -   
Segment Profit before tax  743,379  194,663  -    938,042 

 -    -    -    -   
Income tax expense  151,938  58,399  -    210,337 
Segment profit after tax  591,440  136,264  -    727,705 

Assets
Additions to property and
equipment"  105,246  -    -    105,246 
Additions to other
intangible assets"  8,467  -    -    8,467 
Total assets  20,514,270  3,282,462  -    23,796,732 
Total liabilities  18,047,097  3,158,667  -    21,205,764 
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Report of the directors	

The directors submit their report together with the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019, to the members of Oro-
mia International Bank S.C. (“OIB or the Bank”). This report discloses the financial performance and state of affairs of the Bank.	

Incorporation

Oromia International Bank  share company has been established in Addis Ababa as per the Commercial Code of Ethiopia 1960, and it 
was licensed by the National Bank of Ethiopia in September 2008 with the objective to engage in banking service in accordance with 
the Banking Business Proclamation number 592/2008 . The Bank  started operation in October 2008.

Principal activities

Oromia International Bank S.C (OIB) engages in full-fledged banking business as per Banking Business Proclamation of Ethiopia 
number 592/2008. Accordingly, it accepts deposits in the form of current (demand) deposits, saving deposits and fixed time 
deposits. To address the need of certain types of its customers some features are added on those deposit types such as diaspora 
deposit accounts. It also extends different types of credit products based on the need of its customers. Some of its credit prod-
ucts have terms ranging from short term to long term while others have revolving nature such as over draft and pre-shipment 
facilities. International trade facilitation through letter of credit and other means of payment is the other major business of the 
Bank. The Bank also undertakes both local and international money remittance services. Moreover, it has specialized services 
such as interest free banking services, card banking services, mobile banking and agent banking services.

Results and dividends

The Bank’s results for the year ended 30 June 2019 are set out below. The profit for the year has been transferred to retained earnings. 
The summarised results are presented below.

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Birr'000 Birr'000

Interest income  2,218,072  1,505,568 

Profit / (loss) before tax  1,001,346  938,042 
Tax (charge) / credit  255,493  210,337 
Profit / (loss) for the year  745,853  727,705 
Other comprehensive income / (loss) net of taxes  6,549  (2,779)
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year  6,549  (2,779)

Directors	

The directors who held office during the year and to the date of this report are set out on page 1.				  

Solomon Geda		
Company Secretary	 				  
Addis Ababa, Ethiopia					   
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In accordance with the Banking Business  Proclamation No. 592/2008, the National Bank of Ethiopia (NBE) may direct 
the Bank to prepare financial statements in accordance with international financial reporting standards, whether their 
designation changes or they are replaced, from time to time.  

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in conformity 
with reporting requirements in Ethiopia and in the manner required by the Commercial Code of Ethiopia of 1960, and 
for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. The Bank is required to  keep such records as 
are necessary to:

a)	 exhibit clearly and correctly the state of its affairs;				  

b)	 explain its transactions and financial position; and				  

c)	 enable the National Bank to determine whether the Bank had complied with the provisions of the Banking 
Business Proclamation and regulations and directives issued for the implementation of the aforementioned  
Proclamation. 								      

The Directors accepts responsibility for the annual financial statements, which have been prepared using appropriate 
accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in conformity with Internation-
al Financial Reporting Standards, Banking Business Proclamation, Commercial code of 1960 and the relevant Direc-
tives issued by the National Bank of Ethiopia.

The Directors  are of the opinion that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the financial 
affairs of the company and of its profit or loss. 

The Directors  further accept responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records that may be relied upon in the 
preparation of financial statements, as well as adequate systems of internal financial control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the company will not remain a going concern for 
at least twelve months from the date of this statement.

Signed on behalf of the Directors by:			   		
					   
					   
					   
					   
					   
	 				  

Obbo Gadissa Bultosa				    Obbo Abie Sano		
Chairman of Board of Directors			   President	 	
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 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Notes Birr’000 Birr’000

Interest income from Loans and advances 6  2,218,072  1,505,568 
Income from Interest free financing and investment products 7  181,386  136,825 
Less:Interest expense 8  836,803  543,432 
Less:Distribution to depositors- Interest Free Banking Products 9  13  166 

Net interest income and income from Interest Free Banking 
products net of distribution to depositors 1,562,642  1,098,795  

Fee and commission income 9  654,204  505,551 
Less:Fee and commission expense 9  -    -   

Net fees and commission income  654,204  505,551 
Other operating income 10  177,641  320,463 

Total operating income  2,394,487  1,924,809 

Loan impairment charge 11  152,921  18,345 
Impairment losses on other assets 12  2,881  11,378 

Net operating income  2,238,685  1,895,086 
Less:
Personnel expenses 13  798,704  622,671 
Amortisation of intangible assets 20  4,409  13,132 
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and equipment 21  68,802  53,866 
Other operating expenses 14  365,424  267,375 

Profit before tax  1,001,346  938,042 

Less:Income tax expense 15  255,493  210,337 

Profit after tax  745,853  727,705 

Other comprehensive income (OCI) net on income tax

Items that will not be subsequently reclassified into profit or loss:

Remeasurement gain/(loss) on retirement benefits obligations 26  (6,951)  (2,779)
Net change in equity investment at FVOCI 19  13,500  -   
Deferred tax (liability)/asset on remeasurement gain or loss 15  -  

Total other comprehensive income for the period 6,549  (2,779) 

Earnings per share of Ethiopian Birr 1000 28  374 52 5

The notes on pages 12 to 92 are an integral part of these financial statements.				  
				  
 Dividend Pay out  			    307 	



Annual Report 2018/1982

Oromia International Bank S.C.

For the year ended 30 June 2019
Statement of financial position

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Notes Birr'000 Birr'000

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 16  5,120,927  5,809,127 
Loans and advances to customers 17  15,323,833  9,968,573 
Interest Free Financing 18  1,890,738  1,621,293 
Investment securities:
     - Financial assets at fair value through 
OCI (2018-AFS) 19  95,478  68,705 

     -Financial assets at amortized cost 
(2018-Loans and Receivables) 19  7,073,001  4,855,817 

Other assets 20  1,466,746  791,474 
Intangible assets 20  3,556  6,964 
Property, plant and equipment 21  774,084  642,591 
Deferred tax assets 15  -    -   

 31,748,364  23,764,544 
Non-current assets held for sale 22  30,942  32,185 

Total assets  31,779,308  23,796,732 

LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers 23  22,434,183  16,913,738 
Interest Free customers' deposits 24  4,154,943  3,013,277 
Current tax liabilities 15  261,305  210,658 
Deferred tax liabilities 13  7,840  13,902 
Other liabilities 25  1,167,522  1,026,786 
Retirement benefit obligations 26  40,934  26,925 

Total liabilities  28,066,727  21,205,286 

EQUITY
Share capital 27  2,385,981  1,606,949 
Share premium  7,694  7,694 
Retained earnings 29  613,086  383,710 
Legal reserve 30  642,233  457,285 
Regulatory risk reserve 31  66,838  145,605 
Other Reserve 24  (3,248)  (9,797)

Total equity  3,712,583  2,591,446 

Total equity and liabilities  31,779,308  23,796,732 

The notes on pages 12 to 92 are an integral part of these financial statements.			 
			 
The financial statements on pages 12 to 92 were approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 05 
November 2019 and were signed on its behalf by:			 

Obbo Gadissa Bultosa
Chairman of Board of Directors

Obbo Abie Sano
President
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Share  
capital

Share 
premium

Retained 
earnings

Legal  
reserve

Other 
Reserve

Regulatory 
risk 

reserve
Total

Notes Birr’000 Birr’000 Birr’000 Birr’000 Birr’000 Birr’000 Birr’000

As at 1 July 2018  1,606,949  7,694  383,710  457,285  (9,797)  145,605  
2,591,446 

Profit for the year 29  -    -    745,853  -    -    -    745,853 
Reversal of loans and IFB 
financing loss allowance 
recoginzed as per IAS 39

29  -    -    133,426  -    -    -    133,426 

Day one IFRS 9 transition 
adjustment for loans and IFB 
financing

29  -    -    (172,762)  -    -    -    (172,762)

Reversal of other assets loss 
allowance recoginzed as per 
IAS 39

29  -    -    18,017  -    -    -    18,017 

Day one IFRS 9 transition 
adjustment for other assets 29  -    -    (3,756)  -    -    -    (3,756)

Other comprehensive income:  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Net change in equity 
investment at FVOCI 19  -    -    -    -    13,500  -    13,500 

Re-measurement gains on 
defined benefit plans (net of 
tax)

26  -    -    -    -    (6,951)  -    (6,951)

Prior year (over)/ under 
provision 29  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Directors' Share on Profit  -    -    (1,511)  -    -    -    (1,511)
Proceeds from issue of shares 29  468,334  -    -    -    -    -    468,334 
Dividend capitalised 29  310,698  -    (310,698)  -    -    -    -   
Transfer to legal reserve 29  -    -    (184,948)  184,948  -    -    -   
Dividends paid 29  -    -    (54,276)  -    -    -    (54,276)
Dividend held in payable 
account 29  -    (18,737)  -    -    -    (18,737)

Transfer to regulatory risk 
reserve 31  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Suspended Interest 
transferred to  regulatory risk 
reserve account

31  -    -    (41,351)  -    -    41,351  -   

Suspended Interest 
transferred to  Retained 
earnings being collected in 
cash 

31  -    -    14,586  -    -    (14,586)  -   

Transfer to  regulatory risk 
reserve for excess NBE 
Provission for other Assets

 (16,008)  16,008  -   

Transfer to retained earnings 
for excess NBE provissions 
for Loans and Advances no 
longer required on application 
of IFRS 9

31  -    -    121,540  -    -    (121,540)  -   

Total Change in equity for the 
year  779,032  -    229,376  184,948  6,549  (78,767)  

1,121,137 

As at 30 June 2019  2,385,981  7,694  613,086  642,233  (3,248)  66,838  3,712,583 
The notes on pages 12 to 92 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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  30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Notes Birr'000 Birr'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 32  1,184,620  3,522,268 
Interest received  -    -   
Defined benefits paid  (581)  (354)
Income tax paid  (210,658)  (90,139)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities  973,382  3,431,775 

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of investment securities 19  (2,243,957)  (1,399,070)
Purchase of intangible assets 20  (1,002)  (8,467)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 21  (199,166)  (105,246)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 32  -   
Proceed on disposal of Asset held for sale 22

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities  (2,444,124)  (1,512,783)

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issues of shares 27  468,334  291,157 
Dividend paid  (54,276)  (39,443)
Directors' Share on Profit  (1,511)  (894)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities  412,548  250,820 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (1,058,195)  2,169,812 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 16  4,809,127  2,639,314 

Foreign exchange (losses)/ gains on cash and cash equivalents  -    -   

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 16  3,750,927  4,809,127 
 
The notes on pages 12 to 92 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1	 General information
Oromia International Bank S.C. (“ the Bank”) is a private commercial Bank domiciled in Ethiopia. The Bank was 
established on September 18,2008 in accordance with the provisions of the Commercial Code of Ethiopia of 
1960 and the Licensing and Supervision of Banking Business Proclamation No. 84/1994. The Bank registered 
office is at:					   

P.O.Box 27530/1000					   

Bole Road					   

Oromia International Bank Building					   

Addis Ababa					   

Ethiopia					   

The Bank is principally engaged in the provision of diverse range of financial products and services to a wholesale, 
retail and small and medium enterprise clients based in Ethiopian Market.			 

2	 Summary of significant accounting policies

2.1	 Introduction to summary of significant accounting policies
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. 
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.2	 Basis of preparation

a) Statement of  compliance 					   

The financial statements for the period ended 30 June 2019 have been prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). 
Additional information required by national regulations is included where appropriate. 		

The financial statements comprise the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the 
statement of financial position, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows and the notes to 
the financial statements.									      

b)  Basis of measurement 					   

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the going concern principle under the historical 
cost concept, except for the following;

•    Assets held for sale – measured at fair value less cost of disposal, and

•    The present value of the defined benefit obligation less the net total plan assets, plus unrecognized actuarial gains less 
unrecognized past service cost and unrecognized actuarial losses. 

•     Financial assets at FVTOCI are measured at fair value	

c)  Functional and Presentation of Currency					   

All values are rounded to the nearest thousands, except when otherwise indicated. The financial statements are 
presented in thousands of Ethiopian Birr (Birr’ 000).					   

d) Use of estimates and judgements					   

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting 
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Bank’s accounting 
policies. Changes in assumptions may have a significant impact on the financial statements in the period the 
assumptions changed. Management believes that the underlying assumptions are appropriate and that the 
Bank’s financial statements therefore present the financial position and results fairly. The areas involving a higher 
degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial 
statements, are disclosed in Note 3.

					   



Annual Report 2018/1986

Oromia International Bank S.C.

For the year ended 30 June 2019
Notes to the financial statements

2.2.1	 Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The management have no doubt that 
the Bank would remain in existence after 12 months.					   

2.2.2	 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all years presented on these financial 
statements and have been applied consistently by the bank 					   

(a) New standards, amendments and interpretations					   

(i) New standards, amendments and interpretations and effective  adopted during the year			 
		

A number of new standards are also effective from 1 July 2018 but they do not have a material effect on 
the Banks’s financial statements. Due to the transition method chosen by the bank in applying IFRS 9, 
comparative information throughout these financial statements has not generally been restated to reflect its 
requirements.   	

The adoption of IFRS 15 did not impact the timing or amount of fee and commission income from contracts 
with customers and the related assets and liabilities recognized  by the bank. Accordingly, the impact 
on the comparative information is limited to new disclosure requirements.				  
	

The effect of initially applying these standards is mainly attributed to the following:

              • An increase in impairment losses recognized on financial assets;

              • Additional disclosures related to IFRS 9; and

              • Additional disclosures related to IFRS 15					   

Except for changes noted below, the bank has consistently applied the accounting policies to all periods 
presented in these financial statements

              • IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

This standard replaces IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue, IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes,  
IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC 18 Transfer of Assets from Customers and SIC-31 
Revenue – Barter of Transactions Involving Advertising Services.                                                                                                                	
				  

The standard contains a single model that applies to contracts with customers and two approaches to recognizing 
revenue: at a point in time or over time. The standard specifies how and when the company will recognise 
revenue as well as requiring such entities to provide users of financial statements with more informative and  
relevant disclosures.					   

The Bank  applied IFRS 15 on 1 July 2018 using the modified retrospective approach in which the cumulative 
effect of initially applying this Standard is recognised at the date of initial application as an adjustment to the 
opening balance of retained earnings as at 1 July  2018 without restating comparative periods.

There was no material impact of application of IFRS 15 and no adjustment to retained earnings was required.

IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (2014)
On 24 July 2014 the IASB issued the final IFRS 9 Financial Instruments Standard, which replaces earlier versions of 
IFRS 9 and completes the IASB’s project to replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

The new standard brings fundamental changes to the accounting for financial assets and to certain aspects of 
the accounting for financial liabilities.					   

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 9, the bank  has adopted consequential amendments to IFRS 7 Financial 
Instruments: Disclosures that are applied to disclosures about 2018, but have not been applied to the comparative 
information.					   

The key changes to the Bank’s accounting policies resulting from its adoption of IFRS 9 are summarised below. 
The full impact of adopting the standard is set out in note 2.5.	
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2.2.3	 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities on the date of initial application of IFRS 9

The following table shows the original measurement categories in accordance with IAS 39 and the new 
measurement categories under IFRS 9 for the Bank’s financial assets and financial liabilities as at 1 July  2018.	
	

Financial assets IAS 39 carrying amount 
30 June 2018 Reclassification Remeasurement IFRS 9 carrying 

amount 1 July 2018
Cash and balances with cen-
tral Banks  5,809,127  -    (196)  5,808,931 

Loans and advances to banks  9,968,572  -    (37,194)  9,931,378 
Interest Free Financing  1,621,293  -    2,142  1,623,435 
Investment Securities: Availa-
bel for sale  68,705  -    21,147  89,852 

Investment Securities: Loans 
and receivables  4,855,817  -    243  4,856,060 

Other financial assets at 
amortized cost  218,291  -    (14,658)  203,633 

Total financial  assets  22,541,805  (28,516)  22,513,289 
Financial Liabilities
Deposits from customers  16,913,738  -    -    16,913,738 
Interest free customer 
deposit  3,013,277  -    -    3,013,277 

Other financial liabilities (in-
cluding ECL on loan commit-
ments and gurantees)  867,612  -    42  867,654 
Total financial  liabilities  20,794,627  -    42  20,794,669 

Financial assets and financial liablities	

2.2.3	 Classfication of financial assets and financial liablities on the date of initial application of IFRS 9 
(continued)					   
The following table shows the original measurement catagories in accordance  with IAS 39 and the new 
measurement catagories under IFRS 9 for the bank financial assets and financial liabilites as at 1 July  2018.”	
				  

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Classification Under 
IAS 39

Classification Under 
IFRS 9

Original carrying 
Amount

New Carrying 
Amount

Cash and balances with central 
Banks

Loans & Receivables Amortised Cost  5,809,127  5,808,931 

Loans and advances to banks Loans & Receivables Amortised Cost  9,968,572  9,929,045 
Interest Free Financing Loans & Receivables Amortised Cost  1,621,293  1,621,436 
Investment Securities: Availabel for 
sale

Availabel for sale FVOCI  68,705  89,852 

Investment Securities: Loans and 
receivables 

Loans & Receivables Amortised Cost  4,855,817  4,855,574 

Other financial assets at amortized 
cost 

Loans & Receivables Amortised Cost  218,291  233,261 

Total financial  assets  22,541,805  22,538,099 
Liabilities
Deposits from customers Amortised Cost Amortised Cost  16,913,738  16,913,738 
Interest free customer deposit Amortised Cost Amortised Cost  3,013,277  303,277 
Other financial liabilities (including 
ECL on loan commitments and 
gurantees)

Amortised Cost Amortised Cost  867,612  881,125 

Total financial  liabilities  20,794,627  18,098,140
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TThe Bank’s accounting policies on the classification of financial instruments under IFRS 9 are set out in Note 
2.5(ii). The application of these policies resulted in the reclassifications set out in the table above and explained 
below.	

• On the adoption of IFRS 9, certain financial assets such as cash and cash equivalents, loans and advances to customers 
– both interest bearing and interest free and treasury bills and bonds (NBE bills and government bonds) were reclassi-
fied out of the loans and receivable to amortized cost. The carrying amount of those assets was adjusted so that their 
amortised cost under IFRS 9 was as if those assets were accounted for at amortised cost from their inception.		
			 

•Further equity investment securities were reclassified out available-for-sale categories to FVOCI at their then fair values. 
The carrying amount of those assets was adjusted so that their amortised cost under IFRS 9 was as if those assets were 
accounted for at amortised cost from their inception.					   

• On the adoption of IFRS 9, other financial assets such accounts receivables, uncleared effects – both local and foreign 
and guarantee for overseas employment agencies were reclassified out of the loans and receivable to amortized cost. 
The carrying amount of those assets was adjusted so that their amortised cost under IFRS 9 was as if those assets were 
accounted for at amortised cost from their inception.					   

2	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICES					   

	 a. New standards, amendements and interpretations 					   
i) New standards, amendments and interpretations effective and adopted during the year			 
		

	 IFRS 9: Financial Instruments (2014)					   

2.2.4	 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilites on the date of initial application of IFRS 9	

The following table summarieses the impact of transition to IFRS 9 on the opening balance of the provission and  
retained earnings . There is no impact on other components of equity.				  

Fair Value Reserve Impact of adopting IFRS 9 at 
1 July  2018

Closing balance under IAS 39 (30 June 2018)  -   
Reclassification of investment securities (equity) measured at cost from available-for- 
sale to FVOCI  21,147 

Related tax  -   
Adjusted opening balance under IFRS 9(1 July 2018)  21,147 
Regulatory risk reserve (difference between IFRS and NBE provissions)
Closing balance under IAS 39 (30 June 2018)  145,605 
Transfer to retained earnings for excess NBE Provissions no longer required on intial 
application of IFRS 9  (39,336)

Related tax  -   
Adjusted opening balance under IFRS 9 (1 July 2018)  106,269 
Retained Earnings
Closing balance under IAS 39 (30 June 2018)  383,710 
Adjustment on initial application of IFRS 9  (25,075)
Transfer from regultory risk resrve on application of IFRS 9  39,336 
Related tax  -   
Adjusted opening balance under IFRS 9(1 July 2018)  397,971 
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2	  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)				 
	

	 a. New standards, amendments and interpretations (continued)					   

	 (i) New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not adopted				  
	

	 The Bank does not plan to adopt these standards early. These are summarised below;			 
		

New Standard or amendments Effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after

IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation 01-July-2019

IFRS 16 Leases 01-July-2019

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments 01-July-2019

Annual improvements cycle (2015-2017) 01-July-2019

IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments to IAS 19) 01-July-2019

Amendments to references to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards 01-July-2020

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material 01-July-2020

When All standards and interpretations will be adopted at their effective date (except for those standards and 
interpretations that are not applicable to the bank). Of those standards that are not yet effective, IFRS 16, IAS 
19, amendmentss to IAS 1 and IAS 8 and IFRIC 23 are expected to have a significant effect on the Bank’sfinancial 
statements in the period of initial application.					   

IFRS 16: Leases
On 13 January 2016 the IASB issued IFRS 16 Leases, completing the IASB’s project to improve the financial reporting 
of leases. IFRS 16 replaces the previous leases standard, IAS 17 Leases, and related interpretations.”	

IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both 
parties to a contract, i.e. the customer (‘lessee’) and the supplier (‘lessor’). The standard defines a lease as a contract 
that conveys to the customer (‘lessee’) the right to use an asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.	
				  

A Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease on the basis of whether the customer has the right to 
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time.					   

The standard eliminates the classification of leases as either operating leases or finance leases for a lessee and 
introduces a single lessee accounting model. All leases are treated in a similar way to finance leases.	

Applying that model significantly affects the accounting and presentation of leases and consequently, the lessee is 
required to recognise:

assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. 
A Company recognises the present value of the unavoidable lease payments and shows them either as lease assets 
(rightof- use assets) or together with property, plant and equipment. If lease payments are made over time, a 
Company also recognises a financial liability representing its obligation to make future lease payments.”	

(a) depreciation of lease assets and interest on lease liabilities in profit or loss over the lease term; and

(b) separate the total amount of cash paid into a principal portion (presented within financing activities) and interest 
(typically presented within either operating or financing activities) in the statement of cash flows”	

IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues 
to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases differently. 
However, compared to IAS 17, IFRS 16 requires a lessor to disclose additional information about how it manages the 
risks related to its residual interest in assets subject to leases.				  

The standard does not require a Company to recognise assets and liabilities for:

(a) short-term leases (i.e. leases of 12 months or less) and;
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(b) leases of low-value assets

The new standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is 
permitted insofar as the recently issued revenue Standard, IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers is 
also applied.				  

2	 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)				  
a. New standards, amendments and interpretations (continued)				 

(ii) New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but not adopted			 

The Bank is still assessing the potential impact on the amounts and disclosures of the Bank’s financial 
statements					   

IFRIC 23 Clarification on accounting for Income tax exposures					   

IFRIC 23 clarifies the accounting for income tax treatments that have yet to be accepted by tax authorities, whilst 
also aiming to enhance transparency.					   

IFRIC 23 explains how to recognise and measure deferred and current income tax assets and liabilities where 
there is uncertainty over a tax treatment.					   

An uncertain tax treatment is any tax treatment applied by an entity where there is uncertainty over whether 
that treatment will be accepted by the tax authority.					   

If an entity concludes that it is probable that the tax authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment that has 
been taken or is expected to be taken on a tax return, it should determine its accounting for income taxes 
consistently with that tax treatment. If an entity concludes that it is not probable that the treatment will be 
accepted, it should reflect the effect of the uncertainty in its income tax accounting in the period in which that 
determination is made. Uncertainty is reflected in the overall measurement of tax and separate provision is not 
allowed.					   

The entity is required to measure the impact of the uncertainty using the method that best predicts the resolution 
of the uncertainty (that is, the entity should use either the most likely amount method or the expected value 
method when measuring an uncertainty).					   

The entity will also need to provide disclosures, under existing disclosure

requirements, about

(a) judgments made;

(b) assumptions and other estimates used; and

(c) potential impact of uncertainties not reflected.					   

“The new Standard is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July  2019.

The Bank is assessing the potential impact on its financial statements resulting from the application of IFRIC 23.

— IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments to IAS 19)”				  
	

The amendments clarify that:

• on amendment, curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, a Company now uses updated actuarial 
assumptions to determine its

  current service cost and net interest for the period; and 

• the effect of the asset ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any settlement of the plan and 
is dealt with separately in other comprehensive income (OCI).

• Consistent with the calculation of a gain or loss on a plan amendment, entities will now use updated actuarial 
assumptions to determine the current service cost and net interest for the period. Previously, entities would not 
have updated the calculation of these costs until the year end.

• Further, if a defined benefit plan is settled, any asset ceiling would be disregarded when determining the plan 
assets as part of the calculation of gain or loss on settlement.

• The amendments apply for plan amendments, curtailments or settlements that occur on or after 1 July  2019, 
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or the date on which the amendments are first applied. Earlier application is permitted.

• The Bank is asssesssing the impact on the financial statements	IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material	

The amendment refines the definition of Material to make it easier to understand and aligning the definition 
across IFRS Standards and the Conceptual Framework.					   

The amendment includes the concept of ‘obscuring’ to the definition, alongside the existing references to 
‘omitting’ and ‘misstating’. Additionally, the amendment also adds the increased threshold of ‘could influence’ to 
‘could reasonably be expected to influence’ as below.					   

Information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions 
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, 
which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.				  

However, the amendment has also removed the definition of material omissions or misstatements from IAS 8 
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.				  

The amendments are effective from 1 July 2020 but may be applied earlier.

The Bank is assessing the potential impact on its financial statements resulting from the application of the 
refined definition of materiality.					   

Other Standards					   

The following amended standards are not expected to have a significant impact on the financial statements of 
the Bank.

• Annual improvement cycle (2015 – 2017) – various standards

• Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standard

2.3	 Functional and presentation Currency

	 (a) Transactions and balances

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the Bank operates (‘the functional currency’). The functional currency and presentation currency of the 
Bank is the Ethiopian Birr (Birr). 

	 (b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing 
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign 
currency transactions and from the translation at exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated 
in currencies other than the Bank’s functional currency are recognised in profit or loss within other (loss)/income. 
Monetary items denominated in foreign currency are translated using the closing rate as at the reporting date.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as available for sale 
are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the security and 
other changes in the carrying amount of the security. Translation differences related to changes in amortised cost 
are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive 
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through 
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets measure at fair value, such as equities classified as available for sale, are included in 
other comprehensive income.

Recognition of income and expense

(i) Interest income and expenses

Policy applicable after 1 July 2018

Interest income and expense are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The ‘effective 
interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected 
life of the financial instrument to:
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• the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

• the amortised cost of the financial liability.”					  

When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-
impaired assets, the Bank estimates future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument, 
but not ECL. For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate 
is calculated using estimated future cash flows including ECL.				    The calculation of 
the effective interest rate includes transaction costs and fees and points paid or received that are an integral 
part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs include incremental costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of a financial asset or financial liability				  

The ‘amortised cost’ of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial 
liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative 
amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity 
amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any expected credit loss allowance (or impairment allowance 
before 1 July 2018).					   

The ‘gross carrying amount of a financial asset’ is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any 
expected credit loss allowance.					   

The effective interest rate of a financial asset or financial liability is calculated on initial recognition of a financial 
asset or a financial liability. In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to 
the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortised cost of the 
liability. The effective interest rate is revised as a result of periodic re-estimation of cash flows of floating rate 
instruments to reflect movements in market rates of interest. The effective interest rate is also revised for fair 
value hedge adjustments at the date amortisation of the hedge adjustment begins.			 
		

However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income 
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the asset is no 
longer creditimpaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.			 
		

For financial assets that were credit-impaired on initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying 
the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the asset. The calculation of interest income 
does not revert to a gross basis, even if the credit risk of the asset improves.				  
	

For information on when financial assets are credit-impaired, see Note 2.5				  
	

Interest income calculated using the effective interest method presented in the statement of profit or loss and 
OCI includes:

• interest on financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost;

• interest on debt instruments measured at FVOCI;

• the effective portion of fair value changes in qualifying hedging derivatives designated in cash flow hedges of 
variability in interest cash flows, in the same period as the hedged cash flows affect interest income/expense; 
and

• the effective portion of fair value changes in qualifying hedging derivatives designated in fair value hedges of 
interest rate risk.

• Other interest income presented in the statement of profit or loss and OCI includes interest income on finance 
leases

• Interest expense presented in the statement of profit or loss and OCI includes:

• financial liabilities measured at amortised cost; and

• the effective portion of fair value changes in qualifying hedging derivatives designated in cash flow hedges of 
variability in interest cash flows, in the same period as the hedged cash flows affect interest income/expense.	
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Interest income and expense on all trading assets and liabilities are considered incidental to the Bank’s trading 
operations and are presented together with all other changes in the fair value of trading assets and liabilities in 
net trading income.					   

Interest income and expense on other financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are presented in net 
income from other financial instruments at FVTPL						    

Recognition of income and expenses (continued)					   
(ii) interest income and expense					   

Policy applicable before 1 July 2018					   

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and 
the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured 
at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of 
payment and excluding taxes or duty.

The Bank, earns income from interest on  loans given for domestic trade and services, building and construction, 
manufacturing, agriculture and personal loans. Other incomes includes margins on letter of credits and 
performance guarantees.					   

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest bearing financial assets classified as 
available– for–sale interest income or expense is recorded using the contractual rates. 

The carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted if the Bank revises its estimates of 
payments or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on the original contractual rate and the 
change in carrying amount is recorded as ‘Interest and similar income’ for financial assets and Interest and similar 
expense for financial liabilities.

Once the recorded value of a financial asset or a Bank of similar financial assets has been reduced due to an 
impairment loss, interest income continues to be recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future 
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.”					   

The Bank’s policy for recognition of income from Interest Free financing and investments products is described 
in Note 2.7 (iii).					  

2.4.1	 Fees and commission					   

Fees and commission income and expenses that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset or 
liability are included in the measurement of the effective interest rate. Other fees and commission income (for 
example commission on drafts, cash payment order (CPO),letter of credit (LC), guarantee etc) are recognised on 
an accrual basis as the related services are performed.					  

When a loan commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down of a loan, loan commitment fees are 
recognised on a straight-line basis over the commitment period.

Other fees and commission expenses relates mainly to transaction and service fees are expensed as the services 
are received.					   

2.4.2	 Dividend income 					  

This is recognised when the Bank’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when the 
shareholders approve and declare the dividend.					   

2.4.3	 Foreign Exchange revaluation gains and losses					   

These are gains and losses arising on settlement and translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated 
in foreign currencies at the functional currency’s spot rate of exchange at the reporting date.  This amount is 
recognised in the income statement and it is further broken down into realised and unrealised portion  if any.  

The monetary assets and liabilities include financial assets within the foreign currencies deposits received and 
held on behalf of third parties etc.  					   
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 2.5	 Financial assets and liabilities					   

(i) Recognition and intial measurement 					   

Policy applicable from 1 July 2018					   

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some 
contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. This standard replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and 
Measurement.The requirements of IFRS 9 represent a significant change from IAS 39. The newstandard brings 
fundamental changes to the accounting for financial assets and to certain aspects of the accounting for financial 
liabilities.					   

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 9, the Bank has adopted consequential amendments to IAS 1.	

Presentation of Financial Statements, which require separate presentation in the statement of profit or loss 
and OCI of interest revenue calculated using the effective interest method. Previously, the Bank disclosed this 
amount in the notes to the financial statements.					   

Additionally, the Bank has adopted consequential amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures that 
are applied to disclosures about 2018, but have not been applied to the comparative information.		
The key changes to the Bank’s accounting policies resulting from its adoption of IFRS 9 are summarised below. 
The full impact of adopting the standard is set out in Note 2.2.4					  

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Banks’s statement of financial position sheet when 
the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.				  
Recognised financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial 
assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or 
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition 
of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.		

If the transaction price differs from fair value at initial recognition, the Bank will account for such difference as 
follows:

• if fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation 
technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the difference is recognised in profit or loss on initial 
recognition (i.e. day 1 profit or loss);

• in all other cases, the fair value will be adjusted to bring it in line with the transaction price (i.e. day 1 profit or loss will 
be deferred by including it in the initial carrying amount of the asset or liability).

	 After initial recognition, the deferred gain or loss will be released to profit or loss on a rational basis, only to the extent 
that it arises from a change in a factor (including time) that market participants would take into account when pricing 
the asset or liability.					   

(ii) Classification and measurement of financial instruments Financial assets				  

All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of a financial 
asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe established by 
the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial 
assets classified as at FVTPL. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets classified 
as at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.					   

All financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of a financial 
asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial asset within the timeframe established by 
the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs, except for those financial 
assets classified as at FVTPL. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets classified 
as at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss. For all financial assets the amount presented on the 
statement of financial position represent all amounts receivable including interest accruals.		

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at 
amortised cost or fair value on the basis of the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and 
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the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The standard eliminates the previous IAS 39 
categories of held to maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale. Under IFRS 9, derivatives embedded 
in contracts where the host is a financial asset in the scope of the standard are never bifurcated. Instead, the 
whole hybrid instrument is assessed for classification.					   

IFRS 9 specifically requires:

• debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and 
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstand-
ing (SPPI), are subsequently measured at amortised cost;

• debt instruments that are held within a business model whose objective is both to collect the contractual cash flows 
and to sell the debt instruments, and that have contractual cash flows that are SPPI, are subsequently measured at Fair 
Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI);

• all other debt instruments (e.g. debt instruments managed on a fair value basis, or held for sale) and equity investments 
are subsequently measured at FVTPL.

• However, the Bank may make the following irrevocable election /designation at initial recognition of a financial asset on 
an asset- byasset basis:					   

(i) the Bank may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment that is 
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to 
which IFRS 3 applies, in OCI; and					   

(ii) the Bank may irrevocably designate a debt instrument that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria as 
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch (referred to as the fair 
value option).					   

Debt instruments at amortised cost or at FVTOCI 

The Bank assesses the classification and measurement of a financial asset based on the contractual cash flow 
characteristics of the asset and the Bank’s business model for managing the asset.

For an asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, its contractual terms should give rise 
to cash flows that are SPPI.					   

For the purpose of SPPI test, principal is the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition. That principal 
amount may change over the life of the financial asset (e.g. if there are repayments of principal). Interest consists 
of consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding 
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs, as well as a profit margin. The SPPI 
assessment is made in the currency in which the financial asset is denominated.		

Contractual cash flows that are SPPI are consistent with a basic lending arrangement. Contractual terms that 
introduce exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic lending 
arrangement, such as exposure to changes in equity prices or commodity prices, do not give rise to contractual 
cash flows that are SPPI. An originated or an acquired financial asset can be a basic lending arrangement 
irrespective of whether it is a loan in its legal form.					   

An assessment of business models for managing financial assets is fundamental to the classification of a 
financial asset. The Bank determines the business models at a level that reflects how Banks of financial assets are 
managed together to achieve a particular business objective. The Bank’s business model does not depend on 
management’s intentions for an individual instrument, therefore the business model assessment is performed 
at a higher level of aggregation rather than on an instrument-by-instrument basis.			 

The Bank has more than one business model for managing its financial instruments which reflect how the Bank 
manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The Bank’s business models determine whether cash 
flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling financial assets or both.			 
The Bank considers all relevant information available when making the business model assessment. However 
this assessment is not performed on the basis of scenarios that the Bank does not reasonably expect to occur, 
such as so-called ‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’ scenarios. The Bank takes into account all relevant evidence available 
such as:

• how the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are 
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evaluated and reported to the entity’s key management personnel;

• the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business 
model) and, in particular, the way in which those risks are managed; and

• how managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether the compensation is based on the fair value of 
the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected).”					  

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Bank determines whether newly recognised financial assets are part 
of an existing business model or whether they reflect the commencement of a new business model. The Bank 
reassess its business models each reporting period to determine whether the business models have changed 
since the preceding period. For the current and prior reporting period the Bank has not identified a change in its 
business models.					   

When a debt instrument measured at FVTOCI is derecognised, the cumulative

gain/loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. In contrast, for an equity 
investment designated as measured at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain/loss previously recognised in OCI is not 
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss but transferred within equity.

Debt instruments that are subsequently measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI are subject to impairment. See 
note 4.					   

Non-recourse loans					   

In some cases, loans made by the Bank that are secured by collateral of the borrower limit the Bank’s claim to 
cash flows of the underlying collateral (nonrecourse loans). The Bank applies judgment in assessing whether the 
nonrecourse loans meet the SPPI criterion. The Bank typically considers the following information when making 
this judgement:

• whether the contractual arrangement specifically defines the amounts and dates of the cash payments of the loan;

• the fair value of the collateral relative to the amount of the secured financial asset;

• the ability and willingness of the borrower to make contractual payments, notwithstanding a decline in the value of 
collateral;

• whether the borrower is an individual or a substantive operating entity or is a special-purpose entity;

• the Bank’s risk of loss on the asset relative to a full-recourse loan;

• the extent to which the collateral represents all or a substantial portion of the borrower’s assets; and

• whether the Bank will benefit from any upside from the underlying assets.”					   

Financial assets at FVTPL					  

Financial assets at FVTPL are:

• assets with contractual cash flows that are not SPPI; or/and

• assets that are held in a business model other than held to collect contractual cash flows or held to collect and 
sell; or

• assets designated at FVTPL using the fair value option.

These assets are measured at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or 
loss. Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 6- Fair value of financial instruments.	

Reclassifications					   

If the business model under which the Bank holds financial assets changes, the financial assets affected are 
reclassified. The classification and measurement requirements related to the new category apply prospectively 
from the first day of the first reporting period following the change in business model that results in reclassifying 
the Bank’s financial assets. During the current financial year and previous accounting period there was no 
change in the business model under which the Bank holds financial assets and therefore no reclassifications 
were made. Changes in contractual cash flows are considered under the accounting policy on Modification and 
derecognition of financial assets described below.					   

Impairment of financial assets					   
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In line with IFRS 9, the Bank assesses the under listed financial instruments for impairment using Expected Credit 
Loss (ECL) approach:					   

•  Amortized cost financial assets;

•  Debt securities classified as at FVOCI;

• Off-balance sheet loan commitments; and

•  Financial guarantee contracts.					   

Equity instruments and financial assets measured at FVTPL are not subjected to impairment under the 
standard.					   

Expected Credit Loss Impairment Model					   

The Bank’s allowance for credit losses calculations are outputs of models with a number of underlying assumptions 
regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. The expected credit loss impairment 
model reflects the present value of all cash shortfalls related to default events either over the following twelve 
months or over the expected life of a financial instrument depending on credit deterioration from inception. 
The allowance for credit losses reflects an unbiased, probability-weighted outcome which considers multiple 
scenarios based on reasonable and supportable forecasts.					   

The Bank adopts a three-stage approach for impairment assesment based on changes in credit quality since 
initial recognition.	

•  Stage 1 – Where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition of a 
financial instrument, an amount equal to 12 months expected credit loss is recorded. The expected credit loss 
is computed using a probability of default occurring over the next 12 months. For those instruments with a 
remaining maturity of less than 12 months, a probability of default corresponding to remaining term to maturity 
is used.					   

• Stage 2 – When a financial instrument experiences a SICR subsequent to origination but is not considered to be 
in default, it is included in Stage 2. This requires the computation of expected credit loss based on the probability 
of default over the remaining estimated life of the financial instrument.					   
• Stage 3 – Financial instruments that are considered to be in default are included in this stage. Similar to Stage 2, 
the allowance for credit losses captures the lifetime expected credit losses.			 

The guiding principle for ECL model is to reflect the general pattern of deterioration or improvement in the credit 
quality of financial instruments since initial recognition. The ECL allowance is based on credit losses expected 
to arise over the life of the asset (life timeexpected credit loss), unless there has been no significant increase in 
credit risk since origination.		

Measurement of Expected Credit Losses					   

The probability of default (PD), exposure at default (EAD), and loss given default (LGD) inputs used to estimate 
expected credit losses are modelled based on macroeconomic variables that are most closely related with credit 
losses in the relevant portfolio.					   

Details of these statistical parameters/inputs are as follows:					   

PD – The probability of default is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. A default 
may only happen at a certain time over the remaining estimated life, if the facility has not been previously 
derecognized and is still in the portfolio.					   

•  12-month PDs – This is the estimated probability of default occurring within the next 12 months (or over the 
remaining life of the financial instrument if that is less than 12 months). This is used to calculate 12-month ECLs. 
The Bank obtains the constant and relevant coefficients for the various independent variables and computes the 
outcome by incorporating forward looking macroeconomic variables and computing the forward probability of 
default.					   

•  Lifetime PDs – This is the estimated probability of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial 
instrument. This is used to calculate lifetime ECLs for ‘stage 2’ and ‘stage 3’ exposures. PDs are limited to 
the maximum period of exposure required by IFRS 9. The Bank obtains 3 years forecast for the relevant 
macroeconomic variables and adopts exponentiation method to compute cumulative PD for future time periods 
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for each obligor.					   

•  EAD – The exposure at default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account 
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including repayments of principal and interest, 
whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed facilities, and accrued interest 
from missed payments.					   

•  LGD – The loss given default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given 
time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would 
expect to receive, including from the realization of any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the 
EAD.	

To estimate expected credit loss for off balance sheet exposures, credit conversion factor (CCF) is usually 
computed. CCF is a modelled assumption which represents the proportion of any undrawn exposure that is 
expected to be drawn prior to a default event occurring.

It is a factor that converts an off balance sheet exposure to its credit exposure equivalent. In modelling CCF, the 
Bank considers its account monitoring and payment processing policies including its ability to prevent further 
drawings during periods of increased credit risk. CCF is applied on the off balance sheet exposures to determine 
the EAD and the ECL impairment model for financial assets is applied on the EAD to determine the ECL on the 
off balance sheet exposures.	

Forward-looking information					   

The measurement of expected credit losses for each stage and the assessment of significant increases in credit 
risk considers information about past events and current conditions as well as reasonable and supportable 
forecasts of future events and economic conditions. The estimation and application of forward-looking 
information requires significant judgement.					   

The measurement of expected credit losses for each stage and the assessment of significant increases in credit 
risk considers information about past events and current conditions as well as reasonable and supportable 
forecasts of future events and economic conditions. The estimation and application of forward-looking 
information requires that:					   

The Bank uses internal subject matter consultant  to consider a range of relevant forward looking data, including 
macro-economic forecasts and assumptions, for the determination of unbiased general economic adjustments 
in order to support the calculation of ECLs.					   

Macro-economic variables taken into consideration include, but are not limited to, inflation,Exchange rate, Gross 
Domestic Product,debt, stratification  and requires an evaluation of both the current and forecast direction of 
the macroeconomic

cycle.					  

Macro-economic variables considered have  strong statistical relationships with the risk parameters (LGD, EAD, 
CCF and PD) used in the estimation of the ECLs, and are capable of predicting future conditions that are not 
captured within the base ECL calculations.					   

Forward looking adjustments for both general macro-economic adjustments and more targeted at portfolio / 
industry levels. The methodologies and assumptions, including any forecasts of future economic conditions, are 
reviewed regularly.					   

Macroeconomic factors					   

The Bank relies on a broad range of forward looking information as economic inputs, such as: GDP growth, 
debt, household spending , consumer price index, inflation rates and foreign exchange rates. The inputs and 
models used for calculating expected credit losses may not always capture all characteristics of the market at the 
date of the financial statements. To reflect this, qualitative adjustments or overlays may be made as temporary 
adjustments using expert credit judgement.					  

The macroeconomic variables and economic forecasts as well as other key inputs are reviewed and approved 
by management before incorporated in the ECL model. Any subsequent changes to the forward looking 
information are also approved before such are inputted in the ECL model.				  
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The macro economic variables are obtained for 5 years in the future and are reassessed every 6 months to ensure 
that they reflect prevalent circumstances and are up to date.					   

Where there is a non-linear relationships, one forwardlooking scenario is never sufficient as it may result in the 
estimation of a worst-case scenario or a bestcase scenario. The Bank’s ECL methodology considers weighted 
average of multiple economic scenarios for the risk parameters (basically the forecast macroeconomic variables) 
in arriving at impairment figure for a particular reporting period. The model is structured in a manner that the 
final outcome, which is a probability cannot be negative.					   

SICR is assessed once there is an objective indicator of a deterioration in credit risk of customer. In addition, the 
Bank as part of its routine credit processes perform an assessment on a quarterly basis to identify instances of 
SICR.					   

Multiple forward-looking scenarios					   

The Bank determines allowance for credit losses using three probability-weighted forward-looking scenarios. 
The Bank considers both internal and external sources of information in order to achieve an unbiased measure 
of the scenarios used. The Bank prepares the scenarios using forecasts generated by credible sources such as 
Business Monitor International (BMI), International Monetary Fund (IMF), Ministry of Finance  (MF), World Bank 
(WB), Ethiopian Central statistical Agency (ECSA), and United nation conference on trade and development 
(UNCTAD)					   

The Bank estimates three scenarios for each risk parameter (LGD, EAD, CCF and PD) – Base, Upside and Downside, 
which in turn is used in the estimation of the multiple scenario ECLs. The ‘ Base case’ represents the most likely 
outcome and is aligned with information used by the Bank for other purposes such as strategic planning 
and budgeting. The other scenarios represent more optimistic and more pessimistic outcomes. The Bank has 
identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for each portfolio of financial instruments 
and, using an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationships between macro-economic variables, credit 
risk and credit losses.					   

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk (SICR)					   

At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures 
since initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring over the remaining expected life from the 
reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The assessment considers borrower-specific quantitative and 
qualitative information without consideration of collateral, and the impact of forward-looking macroeconomic 
factors.The common assessments for SICR on retail and non-retail portfolios include macroeconomic outlook, 
management judgement, and delinquency and monitoring. Forward looking macroeconomic factors are a key 
component of the macroeconomic outlook. The importance and relevance of each specific macroeconomic 
factor depends on the type of product, characteristics of the financial instruments and the borrower and the 
geographical region.					   

The Bank adopts a multi factor approach in assessing changes in credit risk. This approach considers: Quantitative 
(primary), Qualitative (secondary) and Back stop indicators which are critical in allocating financial assets into 
stages.					   

The quantitative models considers deterioration in the credit rating of obligor/counterparty based on the 
Bank’s internal rating system or External Credit Assessment Institutions (ECAI) while qualitative factors considers 
information such as expected forbearance, restructuring, exposure classification by licensed credit bureau, 
etc.	

A backstop is typically used to ensure that in the (unlikely) event that the primary (quantitative) indicators do not 
change and there is no trigger from the secondary (qualitative) indicators, an account that has breached the 30 
days past due criteria for SICR and 90 days past due criteria for default is transferred to stage 2 or stage 3 as the 
case may be except there is a reasonable and supportable evidence available without undue cost to rebut the 
presumption.					   

Definition of Default and Credit Impaired Financial Assets					   

At each reporting date, the Bank assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and debt financial 
assets carried at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that 
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have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.		
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:		

*	 Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; Others include death, insolvency, breach of

*	 covenants, etc.

*	 A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

*	 The lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having 
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

*	 It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

*	 The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

*	 The purchase or origination of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses. “		
A loan that has been renegotiated due to a deterioration in the borrower’s condition is usually considered to be cred-
it-impaired unless there is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has reduced significantly and 
there are no other indicators of impairment. In addition, loans that are more than 90 days past due are considered 
impaired. 

Modification and derecognition of financial assets					   

A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financial 
asset are renegotiated or otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A 
modification affects the amount and/or timing of the contractual cash flows either immediately or at a future 
date. In addition, the introduction or adjustment of existing covenants of an existing loan would constitute a 
modification even if these new or adjusted covenants do not yet affect the cash flows immediately but may 
affect the cash flows depending on whether the covenant is or is not met (e.g. a change to the increase in the 
interest rate that arises when covenants are breached).					   

The Bank renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to maximise collection and minimise the risk 
of default. A loan forbearance is granted in cases where although the borrower made all reasonable efforts 
to pay under the original contractual terms, there is a high risk of default or default has already happened 
and the borrower is expected to be able to meet the revised terms. The revised terms in most of the cases 
include an extension of the maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan (principal 
and interest repayment), reduction in the amount of cash flows due (principal and interest forgiveness) and 
amendments to covenants. The Bank has an established forbearance policy which applies for corporate and 
retail lending.	

When a financial asset is modified the Bank assesses whether this modification results in derecognition. In 
accordance with the Bank’s policy a modification results in derecognition when it gives rise to substantially 
different terms. To determine if the modified terms are substantially different from the original contractual terms 
the Bank considers the following:					   

• Qualitative factors, such as contractual cash flows after modification are no longer SPPI, change in currency or when 
rights to cash flows between the original counterparties expire because a new debtor replaces the original debtor 
(unless both debtors are under common control), the extent of change in interest rates, and maturity. If these do not 
clearly indicate a substantial modification, then;

 • A quantitative assessment is performed to compare the present value of the remaining contractual cash flows under 
the original terms with the contractual cash flows under the revised terms, both amounts discounted at the original 
effective interest. If the difference in present value is greater than 10% the Bank deems the arrangement is substan-
tially different leading to derecognition. When performing a quantitative assessment of a modification or renegotia-
tion of a creditimpaired financial asset or a purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset that was subject to 
a write-off, the Bank considers the expected (rather than the contractual) cash flows before modification or renegoti-
ation and compares those with the contractual cash flows after modification or renegotiation.”		

In the case where the financial asset is derecognised the loss allowance for ECL is remeasured at the date of 
derecognition to determine the net carrying amount of the asset at that date. The difference between this 
revised carrying amount and the fair value of the new financial asset with the new terms will lead to a gain or 
loss on derecognition. The new financial asset will have a loss allowance measured based on 12-month ECL 
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except in the rare occasions where the new loan is considered to be originated- credit impaired. This applies 
only in the case where the fair value of the new loan is recognised at a significant discount to its revised par 
amount because there remains a high risk of default which has not been reduced by the modification. The Bank 
monitors credit risk of modified financial assets by evaluating qualitative and quantitative information, such as 
if the borrower is in past due status under the new terms.					   

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result in derecognition, 
the Bank determines if the financial asset’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition by 
comparing:

• the remaining lifetime PD estimated based on data at initial recognition and the original contractual terms; with

• the remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms.				  

For financial assets modified as part of the Bank’s forbearance policy, where modification did not result in 
derecognition, the estimate of PD reflects the Banks’s ability to collect the modified cash flows taking into 
account the Bank’s previous experience of similar forbearance action, as well as various behavioural indicators, 
including the borrower’s payment performance against the modified contractual terms. If the credit risk remains 
significantly higher than what was expected at initial recognition the loss allowance will continue to be measured 
at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.					   

If a forborne loan is credit impaired due to the existence of evidence of credit impairment (see above), the 
Bank performs an ongoing assessment to ascertain if the problems of the exposure are cured, to determine 
if the loan is no longer creditimpaired. The loss allowance on forborne loans will generally only be measured 
based on 12-month ECL when there is evidence of the borrower’s improved repayment behaviour following 
modification leading to a reversal of the previous significant increase in credit risk.				  
Where a modification does not lead to derecognition the Bank calculates the modification loss by comparing 
the gross carrying amount before and after the modification (excluding the ECL allowance). Modification losses 
for financial assets are included in the profit or loss account in ‘Losses on modification of financial assets’. Then 
the Bank measures ECL for the modified asset, where the expected cash flows arising from the modified financial 
asset are included in calculating the expected cash shortfalls from the original asset.	

The Bank derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the asset’s cash flows expire 
(including expiry arising from a modification with substantially different terms), or when the financial asset and 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are transferred to another entity. If the Bank 
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the 
transferred asset, the Bank recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it 
may have to pay. If the Bank retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial 
asset, the Bank continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the 
proceeds received.					   

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain/loss that had been recognised in OCI 
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss, with the exception of equity investment designated 
as measured at FVTOCI, where the cumulative gain/loss previously recognised in OCI is not subsequently 
reclassified to profit or loss.					   

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Bank retains an option to repurchase 
part of a transferred asset), the Bank allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the 
part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis 
of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying amount 
allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no 
longer recognised and any cumulative gain/loss allocated to it that had been recognised in OCI is recognised in 
profit or loss.					   

A cumulative gain/loss that had been recognised in OCI is allocated between the part that continues to be 
recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts. This 
does not apply for equity investments designated as measured at FVTOCI, as the cumulative gain/loss previously 
recognised in OCI is not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.				  
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Write off

Loans and debt securities are written off when the Bank has no reasonable expectations of recovering the financial 
asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Bank determines that the borrower does not 
have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the 
write-off. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. The Bank may apply enforcement activities to financial 
assets written off. Recoveries resulting from the Bank’s enforcement activities will result in impairment gains, 
which will be presented in ‘net impairment loss on financial assets’ in the statement of profit or loss.	

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

*	 for financial assets measured at amortised cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets;

*	 for debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: no loss allowance is recognised in the statement of financial position as 
the carrying amount is at fair value. However, the loss allowance is included as part of the revaluation amount in the 
investments revaluation reserve. 

*	 for loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: as a provision; and 

*	 where a financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the Bank cannot identify the 
ECL on the loan commitment component separately from those on the drawn component: the Bank presents a com-
bined loss allowance for both components. The combined amount is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying 
amount of the drawn component. Any excess of the loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn component is 
presented as a provision.”					   

*	 “IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification of financial liabilities. However, although 
under IAS 39 all fair value changes of liabilities designated under the fair value option were recognised in profit or loss, 
under IFRS 9 fair value changes are generally presented as follows:

*	 the amount of change in the fair value that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of the liability is presented in 
OCI; and

*	 the remaining amount of change in the fair value is presented in profit or loss				  

For an explanation of how the Bank classifies financial liabilities under IFRS 9, see below:

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities ‘at FVTPL’ or ‘other financial liabilities’. For all financial 
liabilities the amount presented on the statement of financial position represent all amounts payable including 
interest accruals.”					   

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is (i) held for trading, or (ii) it is designated 
as at FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

• it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

• on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Bank manages together and has 
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.”				  

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading or contingent consideration that may be paid 
by an acquirer as part of a business combination may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

• such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise 
arise; or

• the financial liability forms part of a Bank of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its 
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Bank’s documented risk management or invest-
ment strategy, and information about the banking is provided internally on that basis; or

• it forms part of a hybrid (combined) contract, containing one or more embedded derivatives that significantly modifies 
the cash flows of the contract, or it is clear with little or no analysis that separation of the embedded derivative is not 
prohibited.					   

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on remeasurement recognised 
in profit or loss to the extent that they are not part of a designated hedging relationship. The net gain/loss 
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recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘net 
income from other financial instruments at FVTPL’ line item in the profit or loss account.			 
However, for non-derivative financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the 
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in 
OCI, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an 
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. The remaining amount of change in the fair value of liability is recognised 
in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk that are recognised in 
OCI are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss; instead, they are transferred to retained earnings upon 
derecognition of the financial liability.					   

For issued loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts that are designated as at FVTPL all gains and 
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

In making the determination of whether recognising changes in the liability’s credit risk in OCI will create 
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, the Bank assesses whether it expects that the effects of 
changes in the liability’s credit risk will be offset in profit or loss by a change in the fair value of another financial 
instrument measured at FVTPL. This determination is made at initial recognition. Such financial liabilities are 
detailed in note 2.2.4

Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 4.					   

Other financial liabilities					   

Other financial liabilities, including deposits and borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction 
costs. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating 
interest expense over the relevant period. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net 
carrying amount on initial recognition. For details on EIR see the “net interest income section” above.	

Modification and derecognition of financial liabilities					   

The Bank derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Bank’s obligations are discharged, cancelled 
or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the 
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.					   

When the Bank exchanges with the existing lender one debt instrument into another one with substantially 
different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the 
recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly, the Bank accounts for substantial modification of terms of an 
existing liability or part of it as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new 
liability. To determine if the modified terms of a liability are substantially different to the original terms a similar 
process with modification of financial assets is followed. The modification is assessed at first on a qualitative 
basis, factors such as a change in currency or the introduction of a non-closely related embedded derivative that 
significantly modifies the cash flows are regarded as substantially different. If it is not clear from the qualitative 
assessment that a modification has resulted in a substantial change in a financial liability, a quantitative 
assessment is applied. It is assumed that the terms of the financial liability are substantially different if the 
discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees received 
and discounted using the original effective rate is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted present 
value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.				  

If the modification is not substantial, the Bank recalculates the amortised cost of the modified financial liability 
by discounting the modified contractual cash flows using the original effective interest rate. The Bank recognises 
any adjustment to the amortised cost of the financial liability in profit or loss as income or expense at the date of 
the modification. The financial liability modification gain/loss is not significant for the Bank Modification gains 
are presented in ‘other income’ and modification losses are presented in ‘other expenses’ in the profit or loss 
account.
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Transition

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 have been applied retrospectively, except 
as described below.

Comparative periods generally have not been restated. Differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets 
and financial liabilities resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 are recognised in retained earnings and reserves as 
at 1 July 2018. Accordingly, the information presented for 2018 does not reflect the requirements of IFRS 9 and 
therefore is not comparable to the information presented for 2019 under IFRS 9.			 

• The following assessments have been made on the basis of the facts and circumstances that existed at the date of initial 
application.

• The determination of the business model within which a financial asset is held.

• The designation and revocation of previous designations of certain financial assets and financial liabilities as measured 
at FVTPL. 

• The designation of certain investments in equity instruments not held for trading as at FVOCI.

• For financial liabilities designated as at FVTPL, the determination of whether presenting the effects of changes in the 
financial liability’s credit risk in OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.

• If a debt security had low credit risk at the date of initial application of IFRS 9, then the Bank has assumed that credit risk 
on the asset had not increased significantly since its initial recognition.”					   

For more information and details on the changes and implications resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9, see 
note 2.2.4								      

2.5	 Financial assets and liabilities (continued)					   

Policy applicable before 1 July 2018					   

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or 
equity instrument of another entity.							     

(a) Financial instruments – key measurement terms

Depending on their classification financial instruments are carried at fair value or a mortised cost as described 
below.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The best evidence of fair value is the price in an active 
market. An active market is one in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency 
and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Fair value of financial instruments traded in an active market is measured as the product of the quoted price 
for the individual asset or liability and the number of instruments held by the entity. This is the case even if a 
market’s normal daily trading volume is not sufficient to absorb the quantity held and placing orders to sell the 
position in a single transaction might affect the quoted price.

Valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow models or models based on recent arm’s length transactions 
or consideration of financial data of the investees are used to measure fair value of certain financial instruments 
for which external market pricing information is not available.

Fair value measurements are analyzed by level in the fair value hierarchy as follows: (i) level one are measurements 
at quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, (ii) level two measurements 
are valuations techniques with all material inputs observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as 
prices) or indirectly (that is , derived from prices), and (iii) level three measurements are valuations not based on 
solely observable market data (that is, the measurement requires significant unobservable inputs).

Transaction costs

Incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial instrument. An 
incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the transaction had not taken place. Transaction 
costs include fees and comissions paid to agents (including employees acting as selling agents), advisors, brokers 
and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securities exchange and transfer taxes and duties. Transaction 
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costs do not include debt premiums or discounts, financing costs or internal administrative or holding costs.

Amortized cost

Is the amount at which the financial instrument was recognized at initial recognition less any principal 
repayments, plus accrued interest, and for financial assets less any write – down for incurred impairment losses. 
Accrued interest includes amortization of transaction costs deferred at initial recognition and of any premium 
or discount to the maturity amount using the effective interest method. Accrued interest income and accrued 
interest expense, including both accrued coupon and amortized discount or premium (including fees deferred 
at origination, if any), are not presented separately and are included in the carrying values of the related items 
in the statement of financial position.

The effective interest method

Is a method of allocating interest income or interest expense over the relevant period, so as to achieve a constant 
periodic rate of interest (effective interest rate) on the carrying amount. The effective interest rate is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts (excluding future credit losses) through the 
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, if appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the 
financial instrument. The effective interest rate discounts cash flows of variable interest instruments to the next 
interest reprising date, except for the premium or discount which reflects the credit spread over the floating rate 
specified in the instrument, or other variables that are not reset to market rates. Such premiums or discounts are 
amortized over the whole expected life of the instrument. The present value calculation includes all fees paid or 
received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

(b) Classification of financial assets

Financial assets have the following categories; (a) loans and receivables; (b) available – for – sale financial assets; 
(c) financial assets held to maturity and (d) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, Financial assets at 
fair value through profit or loss have two sub-categories: (i) assets designated as such upon initial recognition, 
and (ii) those classified as held for trading.

Loans and receivables are unquoted non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments other 
than those that the Bank intends to sell in the near term.

Financial assets other than loans and receivables are permitted to be reclassified out of the fair value through 
profit or loss category only in rare circumstances arising from a single event that is unusual and highly unlikely 
to reoccur in the near term. Financial assets that would meet the definition of loans and receivable may be 
reclassified if the Bank has the intention and ability to hold these financial assets for the foreseeable future or 
until maturity.

(c) Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities have the following measurement categories: (a) held for trading which also includes financial 
derivatives and (b) other financial liabilities, Liabilities held for trading are carried at fair value with changes in 
value recognized in profit or loss for the year (as finance income or finance costs) in the period in which they 
arise. Other financial liabilities are carried at amortized cost.

(d)  Financial assets	 							     

(i) Initial recognition and measurement					   

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair 
value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. 
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation 
or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the  
Bank commits to purchase or sell the asset.					   

(ii) Subsequent measurement 					   

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into two categories:

• Loans and receivables

• Available-for-sale financial investments		
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(a) Loans and receivables	 						    

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by 
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the 
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest and similar income in income statement. The losses arising from 
impairment are recognised in income statement in loan impairment charge.

The Bank’s loans and receivables comprise of Agricultural loans, Interest-Free loans, Industry loans, Domestic 
Trade and Service loans, Export loans, Import loans, Construction loans, Transport and communication loans, 
Hotel and tourism loans, Mining, power and water resources loans, Microfinance institution loans, Mortgage 
loans, Consumer and personal loans and Staff loans. 				  

(b) Available-for-sale (AFS) financial assets					   

AFS investments include equity and debt securities. Equity investments classified as AFS are those which are 
neither classified as held–for–trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in this 
category are those which are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in 
response to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions. 

After initial measurement, AFS financial investments are subsequently measured at fair value with unrealised 
gains or losses recognised in OCI and credited in the AFS reserve until the investment is derecognised, at which 
time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in other operating income, or the investment is determined to 
be impaired, when the cumulative loss is reclassified from the AFS reserve to income statement in impairment 
loss on financial investment. Interest earned whilst holding AFS financial investments is reported as interest and 
similar income using the EIR method. Unquoted equity securities whose fair value cannot be reliably measured 
are carried at cost. All other available-for-sale investments are carried at fair value.

The Bank evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell its AFS financial assets in the near term is still 
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Bank is unable to trade these financial assets due to inactive 
markets, the Bank may elect to reclassify these financial assets if the management has the ability and intention 
to hold the assets for foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the AFS category, the fair value carrying amount at the date of reclassification 
becomes its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on the asset that has been recognised in equity 
is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment using the EIR. Any difference between the 
new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining life of the asset using the 
EIR. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to 
profit or loss. Refer to the information below under reclassification.

‘Day 1’ profit or loss					   

When the transaction price differs from the fair value of other observable current market transactions in the 
same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from observable markets, 
the Bank immediately recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value (a ‘Day 1’ profit or 
loss) in ‘Other operating income’. In cases where fair value is determined using data which is not observable, the 
difference between the transaction price and model value is only recognised in the profit or loss when the inputs 
become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.					   

Reclassification of financial assets	 				  

Reclassification is at the election of management, and is determined on an instrument by instrument basis. The 
Bank does not reclassify any financial instrument into the fair value through profit or loss category after initial 
recognition.

For a financial asset reclassified out of the ’Available–for–sale’ category, any previous gain or loss on that asset 
that has been recognised in equity is amortised to income statement over the remaining life of the investment 
using the EIR. Any difference between the new amortised cost and the expected cash flows is also amortised 
over the remaining life of the asset using the EIR. If the asset is subsequently determined to be impaired then the 
amount recorded in equity is reclassified to income statement.
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The Bank may reclassify a non–derivative trading asset out of the ‘held–for–trading’ category and into the ‘loans 
and receivables’ category if it meets the definition of loans and receivables and the Bank has the intention and 
ability to hold the financial asset for the foreseeable future or until maturity. If a financial asset is reclassified, 
and if the Bank subsequently increases its estimates of future cash receipts as a result of increased recoverability 
of those cash receipts, the effect of that increase is recognised as an adjustment to the EIR from the date of the 
change in estimate.								      

Derecognition of financial assets	 				  

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a Bank of similar financial assets) is 
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Bank’s statement of financial position) when:

•  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

•  the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received 
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass–through’ arrangement; and either

 (a) the Bank has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

 (b) the Bank has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has 
transferred control of the asset.

When the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through 
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has 
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the 
asset, the Bank continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Bank’s continuing involvement. 
In that case, the Bank also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are 
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Bank has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower 
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Bank could be 
required to repay.”					   

Impairment of financial assets					   

The Bank assesses at each reporting date, whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a 
Bank of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that has occurred since the 
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’), has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the 
financial asset or the Bank of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include 
indications that the borrower or a Bank of borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty, the probability 
that they will enter Bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, default or delinquency in interest or principal 
payments and where observable data indicates that there is measurable decrease in the estimated future cash 
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.		

Financial assets carried at amortised cost					   

For financial assets carried at amortised cost (such as loans and receivables), the Bank first assesses individually 
whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that are individually significant, or 
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the Bank determines that no objective 
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, it includes the asset in a Bank of 
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that 
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are 
not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured 
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows 
(excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is 
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognised in income statement. 
Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the rate of interest 
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.		
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2.5	 Financial assets and at ammount cost (continued)							     
The interest income is recorded as part of ‘Interest and similar income’. Loans together with the associated allowance 
are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been 
transferred to the Bank. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases 
because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is 
increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a future write–off is later recovered, the recovery is cred-
ited to the ’loan impairment charge’.

The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR. If a loan has 
a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current EIR.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects 
the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral, whether or not 
foreclosure is probable.					   

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are Banked on the basis of the Bank’s 
internal credit grading system, that considers credit risk characteristics such as asset type, industry, geographical 
location, collateral type, past–due status and other relevant factors.

Future cash flows on a Bank of financial assets that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the 
basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the Bank. Historical 
loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions on 
which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that 
do not exist currently. Estimates of changes in future cash flows reflect, and are directionally consistent with, 
changes in related observable data from year to year (such as changes in unemployment rates, property prices, 
commodity prices, payment status, or other factors that are indicative of incurred losses in the Bank and their 
magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly to 
reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.		

In the estimation of credit risk, the Bank estimate the following parameters:			    

(a)Probability of Default					   

This is the probability that an obligor or counterparty will default over a given period, usually one year. This can 
be calculated on portfolio by portfolio basis or collectively depending on availability of historical data.

(b) Loss Given Default					   

Loss Given Default is defined as the portion of the loan determined to be irrecoverable at the time of loan default 
(1 – recovery rate). Our methods for estimating LGD includes both quantitative and qualitative factors.

(c) Exposure at Default	 				  

This represents the amount that is outstanding at the point of default. Its estimation includes the drawn amount 
and expected utilisation of the undrawn commitment at default.			 

Impairment assessment (continued)					   

The Bank assesses its impairment for the purpose of IFRS reporting using a two-way approach which are 
Individual assessment and portfolio assessment.					   

(d) Individual assessment	 				  

The Bank reviewed and revised existing impairment triggers for each loan asset portfolio to ensure that a trigger 
identifies a loss event as early as possible, which would result in the earliest possible recognition of losses within 
the IFRS framework. The Bank then estimated the impairment based on the shortfall between the present value 
of estimated future cash flows and the asset carrying amount.					   

(e) Collective assessment	 				  

Loans and receivables that are not specifically impaired are assessed under collective impairment. For the 
purpose of collective impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar credit risk characteristics 
that are indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to contractual terms.

Collective assessment (Contd)					   

The Bank generally bases its analyses on historical experience. The collective assessment takes account of 
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data from the loan portfolio (such as historical losses on the portfolio, levels of arrears, credit utilisation, loan 
to collateral ratios and expected receipts and recoveries once impaired) or economic data (such as current 
economic conditions, unemployment levels and local or industry–specific problems). The approximate delay 
between the time a loss is likely to have been incurred and the time it will be identified as requiring an individually 
assessed impairment allowance is also taken into consideration. The impairment allowance is reviewed by credit 
management to ensure alignment with the Bank’s overall policy.			 

(ii)Available-for-sale (AFS) financial instruments					   

Available-for-sale financial assets are impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment, resulting from one 
or more loss events that occurred after initial recognition but before the reporting date, that have an impact on 
the future cash flows of the asset. In addition, an available-for-sale equity instrument is generally considered 
impaired if a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the instrument below its cost has occurred. 
Where an available-for-sale asset, which has been remeasured to fair value directly through equity, is impaired, 
the impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. If any loss on the financial asset was previously recognised 
directly in equity as a reduction in fair value, the cumulative net loss that had been recognised in equity is 
transferred to profit or loss and is recognised as part of the impairment loss. The amount of the loss recognised 
in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any previously 
recognised impairment loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount relating to an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, where the instrument is a debt 
instrument, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. An impairment loss in respect of an equity 
instrument classified as available-for-sale is not reversed through profit or loss but accounted for directly in 
equity.								      

Renegotiated loans					   

Where possible, the Bank seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral. This may involve 
extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions. Once the terms have been 
renegotiated any impairment is measured using the original EIR as calculated before the modification of terms 
and the loan is no longer considered past due. Management continually reviews renegotiated loans to ensure that 
all criteria are met and that future payments are likely to occur. The loans continue to be subject to an individual 
or collective impairment assessment, calculated using the loan’s original EIR.			 

Collateral valuation							     

The Bank seeks to use collateral, where possible, to mitigate its risks on financial assets. The collateral comes in 
various forms such as cash via Bank guarantees and real estate. The fair value of collateral is generally assessed, 
at a minimum, at inception and based on the Bank’s reporting schedule.

To the extent possible, the Bank uses active market data for valuing financial assets, held as collateral. Other 
financial assets which do not have a readily determinable market value are valued using models. The Bank 
revalues its property at least after every 3 years and revalues motor vehicles at least once in every 2 years.

Collateral repossessed								      

Repossessed collateral represents financial and non-financial assets acquired by the Bank in settlement 
of overdue loans. The Bank’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset is best used for its internal 
operations or should be sold. Assets determined to be used for internal operations are  initially recognised at 
the lower of their repossessed value or the carrying value of the original secured asset and included in the 
relevant assets depending on the nature and the Bank’s intention in respect of recovery of these assets, and are 
subsequently remeasured and accounted for in accordance with the accounting policies for these categories of 
assets. Assets that are determined better to be sold are immediately transferred to assets held for sale at their fair 
value at the repossession date in line with the Bank’s policy.				  

Financial liabilities								      

Initial recognition and measurement							     



Annual Report 2018/19110

Oromia International Bank S.C.

For the year ended 30 June 2019
Notes to the financial statements

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and 
other financial liabilities.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of other financial liabilities, net of 
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Bank’s financial liabilities include customer deposits and other liabilities. Interest expenditure is recognised 
in interest and similar expense.					   

Subsequent measurement					   

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:	

Financial liabilities at amortised cost					   

Financial instruments issued by the Bank, that are not designated at fair value through profit or loss but are 
classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost, where the substance of the contractual arrangement results 
in the Bank having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, or to satisfy the 
obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of 
own equity shares. 

After initial measurement, financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost 
using the effective interest rate (EIR). Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or 
premium on the issue and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

The Bank’s financial liabilities carried at amortised cost comprise of customer deposits, margin held on letter of 
credit and  long term deposits.							     

Derecognition of financial liabilities					     	

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from these assets have 
ceased to exist or the assets have been transferred and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of 
the assets are also transferred (that is, if substantially all the risks and rewards have not been transferred, the 
Bank tests control to ensure that continuing involvement on the basis of any retained powers of control does 
not prevent derecognition). 

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they have been redeemed or otherwise extinguished.	

2.6	 Offsetting financial instruments						    

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position 
where The Bank has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.The legal enforceable right must 
not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in event of 
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the Bank or the counterparty.				  

2.7	 Interest Free Financing and Investment products before and after 01 July 2018		

In addition to conventional banking products, the Bank  offers its customers certain non-interest based banking 
products which are approved by its Sharia’h Supervisory Committee.

All Interest Free banking products are accounted for in conformity with the accounting policies described below:

With regard to Interest free banking products except  impairment policy, no change is noted in adoption of IFRS 
9 . The impairment policy of  interest free financing  products are similar with the policy stated above before and 
after adoption of IFRS-9					   

(i)  Definition of Key Terms 

Murabaha

An agreement whereby the bank sells to a customer a commodity or a property which the bank has purchased 
and acquired based on a promise received from the customer to buy the item purchased according to specific 
terms and conditions. The selling price comprises of the cost of the commodity and an agreed profit margin.
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Istisna

An agreement between the bank and a customer, whereby the bank  develops and sells a property to the 
customer according to the specifications agreed upon. The bank  may develop the property on its own or 
through a subcontractor, and then hand it over to the customer on a pre-agreed date and against fixed price.

Ijarah

An agreement whereby the bank (lesser) leases an asset to a customer (lessee), for a specific period against 
certain rent installments. Ijarah could end in transferring the ownership of the asset to the lessee at the end of 
the lease period. Also, the bank transfers substantially all the risks and returns related to the ownership of the 
leased asset to the lessee.

Salam 

A contract whereby the bank purchases a fixed quantity of a specified commodity and pays the full Salam price 
of the commodity in advance, whereas the customer delivers the quantity of the commodities in accordance 
with an agreed delivery schedule. The bank makes profit on Salam transactions, when the Salam commodities 
are received from the Salam customer and subsequently sold to a third party at profit

Interest Free Export Financing Facility

A non-profit bearing financing  enables the borrower to use the borrowed amounts for a specific period of time, 
at the end of which the same borrowed amounts would be repaid free of any charges or profits.

Mudaraba

A contract between the bank  and a customer, whereby one party provides the funds (Rab Al Mal) and the other 
party (the Mudarib) invests the funds in a project or a particular activity and any generated profits are distributed 
between the parties according to the profit shares that were pre-agreed upon in the contract. The Mudarib is 
responsible of all losses caused by his misconduct, negligence or violation of the terms and conditions of the 
Mudaraba; otherwise, losses are borne by Rab Al Mal. 			

Musharaka 

A contract between the bank  and a customer to enter into a partnership in an existing project (or to be 
established), or in the ownership of a specific asset, either ongoing basis or for a limited time, during which the 
bank enters in particular arrangements with the customer to sell to him/her its share in this partnership until 
he/she becomes the sole owner of it (diminishing musharaka). Profits are distributed according to the mutual 
agreement of the parties as stipulated in the contract; however, losses are borne according to the exact shares 
in the Musharaka capital on a pro-rata basis.

Accounting policy for Interest Free Financing and Investment Products) 	 			 

a)  Murabaha financing 

Murabaha financing receivables are deferred sale agreements whereby the Bank sells to a customer a commodity 
or an asset, which the Bank has purchased and acquired based on a promise received from the customer to buy. 
The selling price comprises the cost plus an agreed profit margin.  Amounts receivable from Murabaha financing 
receivables are initially stated in the Statement of Financial Position at selling price. And  Subsequently, they 
shall be stated at selling price less unearned income and provision for impairment at the reporting date.

b)  Istisna

Istisna is an agreement between the Bank and a customer whereby the Bank sells to the customer an asset which 
is either constructed or manufactured by the purchaser on behalf of the Bank according with agreed-upon 
specifications, for an agreed-upon price.

 Istisna’a assets in progress represent disbursements made as well as the accrued income as of the date of the 
statement of financial position against assets being either constructed or manufactured. 

After completion of the project, the Istisna asset is transferred to the Istisna receivable account and carried at 
the value of amounts disbursed, plus income accumulated over the manufacturing period, less provision for 
impairment.
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c) Ijarah assets 

Ijarah assets are initially stated in the Financial Statement of the Bank at cost.Subsequently, they shall be stated 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.  Depreciation is charged from the date 
of recognition of ijarah assets on a straight line basis over the period of Ijarah. Impairment of Ijarah assets is 
determined on the same basis as that of operating fixed assets.				  

d)  Salam  Financing

Salam financings are reflected in the Financial Position of the Bank as receivables at the invoiced amount. Profit 
not due for payment is deferred and is recognized on a time proportion basis. 

e)  Interest Free Export Financing Facility 

Interest Free Export Financing Facility is a short term financing given to the borrower for three months  free 
of any charge or profit  and not subject to discounting being a short term facility. Interest Free Export Facility 
Financing is  stated  in the statement of financial Position of the bank at the fair value of the consideration given( 
amounts of disbursement). and Subsequently, they shall be stated at disbursement amount  less impairment (if 
any). 

f)  Mudaraba Investment

Mudaraba investment is based on the profit-sharing and loss-bearing Mudaraba contract where profits are 
shared between the parties based on the terms of the Mudaraba agreement. Initially Mudaraba contracts are 
stated  in the statement of financial Position of the bank at fair value of the consideration given (amount of 
disbursement)  and  Subsequently, they shall be stated at  fair value of the consideration given, less impairment.

g) Musharaka 

In Musharaka based financing, the Bank enters into a Musharaka based on partnership for financing an agreed 
share of fixed asset (e.g. house, land, plant or machinery) with its customers and enters into periodic rental 
payment agreement for the utilization of the Bank’s Musharaka share by the customer. Initially Musharaka and 
Diminishing Musharaka Financing are stated  in the statement of financial Position of the bank at fair value of the 
consideration given (amount of disbursement)  and  Subsequently, they shall be  stated in the financial Position 
of the Bank at disbursement amount less impairment.				 

Allowance for impairment is made against Interest Free financing and investment products when their recovery 
is in doubt taking into consideration IFRS requirements (as explained in Note 2.5.1). Interest Free financing and 
investment products are written off only when all possible courses of action to achieve recovery have proved 
unsuccessful.							     

(iii)  Revenue recognition policy

Income from the following financing and investing receivables is recognized on the as follows policy:

(i) Murabaha 

Murabaha income is recognized on a time apportioned basis over the period of the contract based on the 
outstanding  principal amounts. 

(ii) Istisna

Istisna revenue and the associated profit margin (difference between the cash price to the customer and the 
bank’s total Istisna cost) are accounted for on a time proportion basis.

(iii) Ijara 

Ijara income is recognized on a time apportioned basis over the lease term. 

(V) Salam

Salam profit is internally accounted for on a time-apportioned basis over the period of the Salam contract based 
on the value of the outstanding Salam commodities.
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(vi )Mudaraba 

Income or losses on Mudaraba financing are recognized on an accrual basis if they can be reliably estimated. 
Otherwise, income is recognized on distribution by the Mudarib, whereas the losses are charged to the Bank’s 
Statement of profit and loss  on their declaration by the Mudarib. 

(vi) Musharaka 

Income is accounted for on the basis of the reducing balance of Musharaka on a time apportioned basis that 
reflects the effective yield on the asset. 	

(vii) Forfeited income

According to the Bank’s Fatwa and Sharia’a Supervisory committee, the bank is required to identify any income 
deemed to be derived from transactions not acceptable under Sharia’a principles, as interpreted by Fatwa and 
Sharia’a Supervisory committee, and to set aside such amount in a separate account used to pay for charitable 
causes and activities.

 (iv) Interest Free Banking customers’ deposits and distributions to depositors

a) Interest Free Banking customers’ deposits 

Interest Free Banking customers’ deposits such as Amana, Wadiaha and Mudaraba and other deposits are initially 
measured at fair value which is normally consideration received net of directly attributable transaction costs 
incurred, and subsequently measured at their carrying value. 

b)   Profit distribution 

Profits or losses of Mudaraba based depositors’ accounts are calculated and distributed in accordance with the 
Banking Service Agreement between the Bank and the investment account holders.		

2.8	 Cash and cash equivalents					     			 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date of acquisition, 
including cash in hand, deposits held at call with Banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with 
original maturities of three months or less.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash and restricted balances 
with National Bank of Ethiopia.								      

2.9	 Property, plant and Equipment						      	

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment 
losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the property, plant and equipment if the recognition 
criteria are met. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, 
the Bank recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. 
All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in income statement as incurred.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, 
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the bank and the 
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.		
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost  to their residual values over their 
estimated useful lives, as follows:								      

2.10	 Property, plant and Equipment (continued)				  

Asset class				    Useful life (years)			 

					   
Buildings				    50			 
Furniture and fittings			   10-20			 
Equipment				    5-10			 
Motor Vehicles				    10			 
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Computer and accessories			  7-10			 

The Bank commences depreciation when the asset is available for use. 

Capital work-in-progress is not depreciated as these assets are not yet available for use.  They are disclosed when 
reclassified during the year.								      

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use disposal. Any gain or loss arising on 
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset) is included in income statement when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at 
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.	

2.11	 Intangible assets					     	

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, 
if any. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and the 
related expenditure is reflected in income statement in the period in which the expenditure is incurred .

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite 
lives are amortised over the useful economic life. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an 
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year-end. Changes in the expected 
useful life, or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset, are 
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, which are then treated as 
changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expenses on intangible assets with finite lives is presented 
as a separate line item in the income statement.

Amortisation is calculated using the straight–line method to write down the cost of intangible assets to their 
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

   • Swift software – 6 years

   • Core Banking software – 6 years

   • Mobile and agent banking software – 6 years					   

2.12	 Investment property					     			 
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, are classified as investment 
properties. 

Recognition of investment properties takes place only when it is probable that the future economic benefits that 
are associated with the investment property will flow to the Bank and the cost can be reliably measured.  This is 
usually when all risks are transferred.							     

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The Bank has opted to 
subsequently carry investment property at cost and disclose fair value. Fair value is based on active market 
prices, adjusted if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If this 
information is not available, the Bank uses alternative valuation methods, such as recent prices on less active 
markets or discounted cash flow projections. Valuations are performed as of the reporting date by professional 
valuers who hold recognised and relevant professional qualifications and have recent experience in the location 
and category of the investment property being valued. These valuations form the basis for the carrying amounts 
in the financial statements. 						    

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things, rental income from current leases and 
assumptions about rental income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

The fair value of investment property does not reflect future capital expenditure that will improve or enhance 
the property and does not reflect the related future benefits from this future expenditure other than those a 
rational market participant would take into account when determining the value of the property.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can be 
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measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed when incurred. When part of an 
investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.		

Investment properties are derecognised when they have been disposed. Where the Bank disposes of a property 
at fair value in an arm’s length transaction, the carrying value immediately prior to the sale is adjusted to the 
transaction price, and the adjustment is recorded in the statement of changes in net assets available for benefit.  

2.13	 Non-current assets (or disposal Banks) held for sale and discontinued operations			 

Non-current assets (or disposal Banks) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered 
principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly 
probable. They are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except 
for assets such as deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and investment 
property that are carried at fair value and contractual rights under insurance contracts, which are specifically 
exempt from this requirement.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal Bank) to fair 
value less costs to sell. A gain is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset 
(or disposal Bank), but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not 
previously recognised by the date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal Bank) is recognised at the date 
of derecognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal Bank) are not depreciated or amortised while 
they are classified as held for sale. Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal Bank 
classified as held for sale continue to be recognised.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal Bank classified as held for sale are 
presented separately from the other assets in the balance sheet. The liabilities of a disposal Bank classified as 
held for sale are presented separately from other liabilities in the balance sheet.

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale 
and that represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively 
with a view to resale. The results of discontinued operations are presented separately in the statement of profit 
or loss.

2.14	 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Bank assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Bank estimates the asset’s 
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) 
fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, 
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Banks 
of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no 
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated 
by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Bank bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared 
separately for each of the Bank’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast 
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and 
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an 
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication 
exists, the Bank estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is 
reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount 
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since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset 
does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net 
of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised 
in the income statement.						   

2.15	 Other assets			   			 

Other assets are generally defined as claims held against other entities for the future receipt of money. The other 
assets in the Bank’s financial statements include the following:					   

(a)	 Prepayment				  

Prepayments are payments made in advance for services to be enjoyed in future. The amount is initially 
capitalized in the reporting period in which the payment is made and subsequently amortised over the period 
in which the service is to be enjoyed.					   

(b)	 Other receivables					   

Other receivables are recognised upon the occurrence of event or transaction as they arise and cancelled when 
payment is received.

The Bank’s other receivables are rent receivables and other receivables from debtors.		

2.16	 Fair value measurement				  

The Bank measures financial instruments classified as available-for-sale at fair value at each statement of financial 
position date. Fair value related disclosures for financial instruments and non-financial assets that are measured 
at fair value or where fair values are disclosed are, summarised in the following notes:

•   Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions Notes 4 and Note 15.14.1

•   Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy Note 15.14.2

•   Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost) Note 15.14.2”				  
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that 
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

•   In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

•   In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Bank.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use 
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

The Bank uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are 
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole:

•  Level 1 —  Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

• Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is directly or indirectly observable.

• Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Bank determines 
whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting 
period.



Annual Report 2018/19 117

Oromia International Bank S.C.

For the year ended 30 June 2019
Notes to the financial statements

The Bank’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, 
such as available-for-sale financial assets.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Bank has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of 
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained 
above.			 

2.17	 Employee benefits							     

The Bank operates various post-employment schemes, including both defined benefit and defined contribution 
pension plans and post employment benefits.						    

(a)	 Defined contribution plan				  

The Bank operates two defined contribution plans;

i)   pension scheme in line with the provisions of Ethiopian pension of private organisation employees 
proclamation 715/2011.  Funding under the scheme is 7% and 11% by employees and the Bank respectively;

ii)  provident fund contribution, funding under this scheme is 7% and 14% by employees and the Bank 
respectively;

Both schemes are based on the employees’ salary. Employer’s contributions to this scheme are charged to profit 
or loss and other comprehensive income in the period in which they relate.			 

(b)	 Defined benefit plan					   

The liability or asset recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension plans 
is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan 
assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit 
credit method.				 

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan 
assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit 
credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated 
future cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency 
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related 
pension obligation.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised in the income statement in employee benefit 
expense, except where included in the cost of an asset, reflects the increase in the defined benefit obligation 
resulting from employee service in the current year, benefit changes curtailments and settlements.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in income.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

(c )	 Termination benefits				 

Termination benefits are payable to executive directors when employment is terminated by the Bank before 
the normal retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these 
benefits. The Bank recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either: terminating 
the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal; or 
providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.	

2.18	 Provisions					   

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Bank expects some or 
all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised 
as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is 
presented in income statement net of any reimbursement.
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If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate 
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the 
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as other operating expenses.			 

2.19	 Share capital					   

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options or to the acquisition of a business are 
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.					   

2.20	 Earnings per share					     	

The Bank presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares.  Basic earnings per share 
are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the weighted 
average number of shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or 
loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the 
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.						    

2.21	 Government grants					   

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and 
all attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as 
income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are 
expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over the expected 
useful life of the related asset.

When the Bank receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at nominal amounts 
and released to income statement over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the 
underlying asset by equal annual instalments.						    

2.22	 Leases 					     	

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the 
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use 
of a specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.		

Bank as a lessee					   

Leases that do not transfer to the Bank substantially all of the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of 
the leased items are operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income 
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rental payable is recognised as an expense in 
the period in which they it is incurred.							     

Bank as a lessor									       

Leases where the Bank does not transfer substantially all of the risk and benefits of ownership of the asset are 
classified as operating leases. Rental income is recorded as earned based on the contractual terms of the lease 
in Other operating income. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating operating leases are added to the carrying 
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent 
rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.				  

2.23	 Income taxation								      

(a)Current income tax					   

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based 
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities 
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at 
the end of the reporting period in Ethiopia. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns 
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions 
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.		
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(b)Deferred tax					  

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they 
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill; deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition 
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction 
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax 
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available 
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied 
by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an 
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset when they arise in the same tax reporting Bank and where 
there is both the legal right and the intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously.					   

4	 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions				  
The preparation of the Bank’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying 
disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates 
could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected 
in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Bank’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:

• Capital management Note 5                                                                                                                                                                                     

 • Financial risk management and policies Note 4.1

• Sensitivity analyses disclosures Note 5.6.2”								      

4.1	  Judgements	 				    	

In the process of applying the Bank’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, 
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:	

Operating lease commitments - Bank as lessee					     	

The Bank has entered into commercial property leases. The Bank has determined, based on an evaluation of 
the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not constituting a substantial portion 
of the economic life of the commercial property, that it does not retain all the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.			 

4.2	 Estimates and assumptions								        	
		

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation at the reporting date, that have 
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year, are described below. The Bank based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when 
the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, 
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances beyond the control of the Bank. Such changes 
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.				  
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Fair value  measurement of financial instruments					   

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position 
cannot be  measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation 
techniques including the discounted cash flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable 
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair 
values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in 
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 5.14  for 
further disclosures.									       

Defined benefit plans					   

The cost of the defined benefit pension plan, long service awards, gratuity scheme and post-employment medical 
benefits and the present value of these defined benefit obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. 
An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the 
future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future 
pension increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit 
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting 
date.							     

Depreciation and carrying value of property, plant and equipment					   

The estimation of the useful lives of assets is based on management’s judgement. Any material adjustment to 
the estimated useful lives of items of property and equipment will have an impact on the carrying value of these 
items.									       

Impairment of non-financial assets					  

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, 
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal 
calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar 
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation 
is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include 
restructuring activities that the Bank is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance 
the asset’s performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used 
for the discounted cash flow model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for 
extrapolation purposes. 			 

Taxes					  

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the 
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business relationships and 
the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual 
results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments 
to tax income and expense already recorded. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as 
experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the 
responsible tax authority.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine 
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future 
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.						    
Development cost 					   

The Bank capitalises development costs for a project in accordance with the accounting policy. Initial 
capitalisation of costs is based on management’s judgement that technological and economic feasibility is 
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confirmed, usually when a product development project has reached a defined milestone according to an 
established project management model. In determining the amounts to be capitalised, management makes 
assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of the project, discount rates to be applied and the 
expected period of benefits. The development costs that were capitalised by the Bank relates to those arising 
from the development of computer software.		

5	 Financial risk management					   

5.1	 Introduction					   

Risk is inherent in the Bank’s activities, but is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement 
and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Bank’s 
continuing profitability and each individual within the Bank is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his 
or her responsibilities. The Bank is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. It is also subject to country 
risk and various operating risks.

5.2	 Risk management structure					   

The Board of Directors is responsible for the overall risk management approach and for approving the risk 
management strategies and principles. 

The Board of Directors Risk Management and Compliance Committee (BDRMCC) has the overall responsibility for 
the development of risk strategy and implementing principles, framework, polices and limit. This subcommittee 
is also responsible for managing risk decisions and monitoring risk levels and report on monthly and quarterly 
basis to regulatory organ and the management.

The Risk Management and Compliance unit is responsible for implementing and maintaining risk related 
procedures to ensure an independent control process is maintained. This unit closely works with BDRMCC to 
ensure that procedures are complaint with overall framework.

The risk management function is a carried out in respect of financial risks (credit, market, and liquidity risks) 
and operational risks. The primary objectives of the financial risk management function are to establish risk 
limits, and then ensure that exposure to risks stays within these limits. The Risk Management and Compliance 
Department is also responsible for ensuring that appropriate balance is established between risk and return, 
whilst minimizing any potential adverse effects on the Bank’s financial performance. The operational and legal 
risk management functions are intended to ensure proper functioning of internal policies and procedures to 
minimize operational and legal risks.

The Bank’s risk management methodology polices and assessment procedures are designed to identify, analyze, 
mitigate and manage the risk faced by the Bank. This is accomplished through setting of appropriate risk limits 
and controls, whilst ensuring suitable monitoring of risk levels and compliance with the limits and procedures 
on an ongoing basis. The risk management policies and procedures are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in 
market conditions, and new products and services offered, this is to ensure that “best practices” are implemented 
in the Bank.	

Risk management policies and processes around the assessment, approval, monitoring and control of risks 
are performed by a number of specialized bodies within the Bank, including committees and departments to 
comply with the requirement of the pertinent laws and industry best practices.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the oversight of the risk management framework. This 
includes the management of key risks, along with the review and approval of risk management polices and key 
risk limits such as large exposures, economic and product sector limits. It also delegates certain risk supervision 
authority levels to the Management, the Risk Management Committee, the Credit Committee, the Audit 
Committee and the Asset and Liability Committee (“ALCO”).

The Risk Management and Compliance sub Committee is appointed by and reports directly to the Board of 
Directors.					   



Annual Report 2018/19122

Oromia International Bank S.C.

For the year ended 30 June 2019
Notes to the financial statements

5.2.1	 Risk measurement and reporting systems						    

The Bank’s risks are measured using a method that reflects both the expected loss likely to arise in normal 
circumstances and unexpected losses, which are an estimate of the ultimate actual loss based on statistical 
models. The models make use of probabilities derived from historical experience, adjusted to reflect the 
economic environment. The Bank also runs worst-case scenarios that would arise in the event that extreme 
events which are unlikely to occur do, in fact, occur.

Monitoring and controlling risks is primarily performed based on limits established by the Bank. These limits 
reflect the business strategy and market environment of the Bank as well as the level of risk that the Bank is 
willing to accept, with additional emphasis on selected regions. In addition, the Bank’s policy is to measure 
and monitor the overall risk bearing capacity in relation to the aggregate risk exposure across all risk types and 
activities.					   

5.2.2	 Risk mitigation					   

The bank uses board approved risk tolerance limit as a risk limit control. This risk tolerance limit composed of 
risk limit by economic sector, by credit product, by maturity, by geography and risk grade. There also limitation 
imposed by the regulatory organ such as single borrower limit, related party limit, off balance sheet exposure 
limit and connected counterparties limit to which all banks should comply.

As the credit risk mitigation, the bank established an appropriate risk environment, sound credit strategies, 
policies and procedures. In addition, there is active portfolio management, appropriate credit administration 
and monitoring and effective loan review function.

The other credit risk mitigation measures are obtaining sufficient collateral securities and guarantees for loans 
and advances as the second way out in case of default

5.3	 Financial instruments by category  					   
The Bank’s financial assets are classified into the following measurement categories: available-for-sale and loans 
and receivables and the financial liabilities are classified into other liabilities at amortised cost.

Financial instruments are classified in the statement of financial position in accordance with their legal form and 
substance. 				  

The Bank’s classification of its financial assets is summarised in the table below:			 

FVOCI Amortized Cost Total
30 June 2019 Notes Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
Cash and cash equivalents 16  -    5,120,927  5,120,927 
Loans and advances to customers 17  -    15,323,833  15,323,833 
Interest Free Financing 18  -    1,890,738  1,890,738 
Investment securities:
     - Financial assets at fair value 
through OCI (2018-AFS) 19  95,478  -    95,478 

     -Financial assets at amortized cost 
(2018-Loans and Receivables) 19  -    7,073,001  7,073,001 

Other assets 20  -    837,537  837,537 

Total financial assets  95,478  30,246,036  30,341,514 

Available-For-Sale Loans and 
receivables Total

30 June 2018 Notes Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
Cash and cash equivalents 16  -    5,809,127  5,809,127 
Loans and advances to customers 17  -    9,968,573  9,968,573 
Interest Free Financing 18  -    1,621,293  1,621,293 
Investment securities:  -    -    -   
     - Financial assets at fair value 
through OCI (2018-AFS) 19  68,705  -    68,705 
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     -Financial assets at amortized cost 
(2018-Loans and Receivables) 19  -    4,855,817  4,855,817 

Other assets 20  -    218,291  218,291 

Total financial assets  64,029  15,540,258  15,604,287 

5.4	 Credit Risk	
The Bank takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a 
financial loss for the other party by failing to discharge his/her/its obligation. Exposure to credit risk arises as a 
result of the Bank’s lending and other transactions with counterparties giving rise to financial assets including 
likelihood that borrower or counterparty fails to meet their obligations in accordance with agreed terms.

The bank manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to take or accept 
for individuals counterparties and for economic sector ,product and maturity concentration  and by monitoring 
exposures in relation to such limits.

The Bank’s maximum exposure to credit risk is reflected in the carrying amounts of financial assets on the 
statement of financial position. For guarantees and commitments to extend credit, the maximum exposure to 
credit risk is the amount of the commitment. 

The principal credit risk management methods used is described in the formal Credit Policy adopted and 
implemented by the Bank, These include  the setting of limits and the diversification of the credit portfolio based 
upon defined criterion (such as industry, duration, related persons, region, etc). Credits will also be classified at 
initiation and throughout the life of the loan based upon a risk level determined using best practice rating and 
scoring systems. Such tools will also be used to establish appropriate provisions for potential losses as necessary. 
All restrictions and norms issued by the National Bank of Ethiopia (NBE), related to lending operations, have also 
been carefully considered and embedded into the Bank’s credit policy.

The Bank structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in 
relation to one borrowers, or groups of  borrowers, and to geographical and industry segments. Limits on 
the level of credit risk by product and industry sector are approved regularly by management. Such risks are 
monitored on a revolving basis and are subject to an annual, or more frequent reviews.

The Bank established control over authorization of the loans issued. The credit Committee reviews and approves 
all loans exceeding certain amount and or having exceptional terms. 

Loan applications originated by the relevant client relationship managers are passed on to the relevant credit 
committee for approval of the credit limit. Exposure to credit risk is also managed, kin part, by obtaining collateral 
and corporate and personal guarantees. In order to monitor credit risk exposures, regular reports are produced 
by the Credit management,Interest free banking and compliance and risk management department’s. Based 
on a structured analysis, deteriorating creditworthiness is reported to, and reviewed by, the Management and 
Board of Directors.

The Bank does not use formalized internal credit ratings for retail loans to monitor exposure to credit risk. 
Management monitors and follows up on past due balances on monthly basis.

The Bank’s credit monitoring and recovery office reviews the ageing analysis of outstanding loans and follows 
up on past due balances on monthly basis. Management therefore, considers it appropriate to provide ageing 
and other information about credit risk.

Credit risk for off-balance sheet financial instruments is defined as the possibility of sustaining a loss as the result 
of another party to a financial instrument failing to perform in accordance with the terms of the loan contract. 
The Bank uses the same credit policies in assuming conditional obligations as it does for on-balance sheet 
financial instruments, through established credit approvals, risk control limits and monitoring procedures.“

4.3.1	 Management of credit risk					   

In measuring credit risk of loans and receivables to various counterparties, the Bank considers the character and 
capacity of the obligor to pay or meet contractual obligations, current exposures to the counter party/obligor 
and its likely future developments, credit history of the counterparty/obligor; and the likely recovery ratio in case 
of default obligations-value of collateral and other ways out. Our credit exposure comprises wholesale and retail 
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loans and receivables which are developed to reflect the needs of our customers. The Bank’s policy is to lend 
principally on the basis of our customer’s repayment capacity through quantitative and qualitative evaluation. 
However we ensure that our loans are backed by collateral to reflect the risk of the obligors and the nature of 
the facility.

5.4.2	 Credit related commitment risks					  
The Bank holds collateral against loans and receivables to customers in the form of bank guarantees and 
property. Estimates of fair value are based on the value of collateral assessed at the time of borrowing.	

5.4.3	 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or credit enhancements			 

(a)	 Types of credit exposure					   

The banks maximum exposure to credit risk at 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018 is represented by the net carrying 
amounts in the statement of financial position.

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Birr'000 Birr'000

Cash and cash equivalents 5,120,927 5,809,127
Loans and advances to customers 15,323,833 9,968,573
Interest Free Financing 1,890,738 1,621,293
Investment securities:
     - Financial assets at fair value through OCI (2018-AFS) 95,478 68,705
     -Financial assets at amortized cost (2018-Loans and Receiv-
ables) 7,073,001 4,855,817

Other assets 837,537 218,291
  

Total financial assets 30,341,514 22,541,806

Credit risk exposures relating to off balance sheets are as follows:

Loan commitments 2,242,471 1,451,049

Financing commitment on Interest Free Banking 1,799,804 1,197,882
Letter of credit net of margin held 455,292 361,294
Commitment on letter of credit net of urbun held 39,800 105,350
Guarantees 1,365,208 855,316

Total off balance sheet exposure 5,902,575 3,970,891
Total maximum exposure  36,244,089 26,512,697

(b)	 Assets obtained by taking possession of collateral

Details of financial and non-financial assets obtained by the Bank during the year by taking possession of 
collaterals held as security against loans and receivables at the year end are shown below.

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Buildings  28,863  29,930 
Motor vehicles  -    -   

 28,863  29,930 

The Bank’s policy is to pursue timely realisation of the collateral in a timely manner. The Bank does not generally 
use the non-cash collateral for its own operations.

(c)	 Loans and advances to customers at amortised cost,

(i)	 Gross loans and receivables to customers per sector is analysed as follows:,
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 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 

Birr'000 Birr'000

Agriculture  226,738  206,345 
Industry  1,486,938  1,051,846 
Domestic trade and services  4,681,099  2,907,290 
Export  3,860,093  2,687,653 
Import  1,060,543  595,749 
Construction  1,858,505  1,016,354 
Transport and communication  250,135  264,832 
Hotel and tourism  957,211  681,631 
Mining, power and water resources  -    -   

Microfinance institution  42,535  42,514 

 Mortgage Loan- Staff  588,619  352,801 
 Mortgage  Loan- Customer  333,748  70,415 
Personal Loan -Staff loans  87,061  59,873 
Emergency staff loans  123,533  103,319 
Consumer Loans- Customer  39,332  19,867 

Gross Loans and advances  15,596,090  10,060,489 

(ii) Interest free financing per sector is analysed as follows:

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Murahabah Financing- Agriculture  100,505  87,399 
Murahabah Financing- Construction  251,261  122,620 
Murahabah Financing- Agriculture Merchandize  -    -   
Murahabah Financing- Industry  330,038  185,195 
Murahabah Financing- DTS  648,393  408,963 
Murahabah Financing- Export  -    -   
Interest Free Export Facility Financing  208,425  481,990 
Murahabah Financing- Import  158,561  169,402 
Murahabah financing  -    -   
Murahabah Financing- Hotel and Tourism  18,177  11,796 
Murahabah Financing- Transport and Communication  107,117  118,309 
Muruhabah Financing-  Consumer and Personal  -   -

Gross Interest Free Financing  1,822,477  1,585,674 

(iii)	 Gross loans and receivables to customers per National Bank of Ethiopia’s impairment guidelines is analysed as 
follows:,

30 June 2019 30 June 2018
Birr'000 Birr'000

Pass  14,651,264  9,359,467 
Special mention  389,441  311,619 
Substandard  254,324  219,973 
Doubtful  146,258  88,471 
Loss  154,803  80,958 
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Gross Loans and Advances  15,596,090  10,060,488 

(iv)	 Interest Free Financing  per National Bank of Ethiopia’s impairment guidelines is analysed as follows:

30 June 2019 30 June 2018

Birr'000 Birr'000
Pass  1,554,596  1,106,606 
Special mention  162,779  401,619 
Substandard  54,275  28,351 
Doubtful  8,515  22,396 
Loss  42,312  26,703 

Gross Interest Free Financing  1,822,477  1,585,675 

5.4.4	 Credit quality analysis					   
The following table sets out information about the credit quality of financial assets measured at amortised 
cost, FVOCI debt investments (2019) and available-for-sale debt assets (2018). Unless specifically indicated, for 
financial assets, the amounts in the table represent gross carrying amounts. 

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the amounts in the table represent the amounts 
committed or guaranteed, respectively 					   

Explanation of the terms ‘Stage 1’, ‘Stage 2’ and ‘Stage 3’ is included in Note 2.5 		

	 (i) Loans and advances to customers at amortized cost 					   

Birr'000 2019 2018
 Credit risk 
exposure

Stage 1                  
12 Month ECL

Stage 2                      
Life time ECL

Stage 3            
Life time ECL TOTAL Total

Stage  1 – Pass  14,651,264  -    -    14,651,264  9,359,467 
Stage 2 – special 
mention  -    389,441  -    389,441  311,619 

Stage 3 - Non 
performing  -    -    555,386  555,386  389,402 

Total gross expo-
sure  -    -    -    -    10,060,488 

Loss allowance  (127,455)  (11,819)  (132,982)  (272,257)  (91,916)
Net Carrying 
amount  14,523,809  377,622  422,404  15,323,833  9,968,573 

(ii) Interest Free Financing measured at amortized cost

Birr'000 2019 2018

Financing risk exposure Stage 1                  
12 Month ECL

Stage 2                      
Life time ECL

Stage 3            
Life time ECL

Total Total

Stage  1 – Pass  1,554,596  -    -    1,554,596  1,106,606 

Stage 2 – special mention  -    162,778.54  -    162,779  401,619 

Stage 3 - Non performing  -    -    105,102.28  105,102  77,450 

Total gross exposure  1,554,596  162,778.54  105,102.28  1,822,477  1,585,675 

Loss allowance  7,930  7,165  38,331  53,427  (41,509)

Net Carrying amount  1,546,666  155,613.21  66,771.34  1,769,051  1,544,165 

(iii)  Other financial assets

Birr'000 2019
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Credit risk exposure Gross exposure  Loss allowance  Net carrying 
amount 

cash and cash equiv-
alents

 5,120,927  (181.00)  5,120,746 

Investment secuities 
(debt instruments)

 7,073,001  (354.00)  7,072,647 

Other receivables 
and financial assets

 837,537  (5,926.00)  831,611 

Totals  13,031,465  (6,461.00)  13,025,004 

(iv) other financial assets (continued)

Birr'000 2018

Credit risk exposure Gross exposure  Loss allowance  Net carrying 
amount 

cash and cash equiv-
alents

 5,809,127  -    5,809,127 

Investment secuities 
(debt instruments)

 4,855,817  -    4,855,817 

Other receivables 
and financial assets

 236,526  (18,235)  218,291 

Totals  10,901,470  (18,235.30)  10,883,235 

v) Loans and advances to corporate customers  					   

The general creditworthiness of a corporate customer tends to be the most relevant indicator of credit quality 
of a loan extended to it. However, collateral provides additional security and the Bank generally requests that 
corporate borrowers provide it. The Bank may take collateral in the form of a first charge over real estate, floating 
charges over all corporate assets and other liens and guarantees.				  

Because of the Bank’s focus on corporate customers’ creditworthiness, the Bank does not routinely update the 
valuation of collateral held against all loans to corporate customers. Valuation of collateral is updated when the 
loan is put on a watch list and the loan is monitored more closely. For credit-impaired loans, the Bank obtains 
appraisals of collateral because it provides input into determining the management credit risk actions.	

vi) Investment securities designated as at FVTPL 					   

At 30 June 2019, the Bank had no exposure to credit risk of the investment securities designated as at FVTPL

5.4.4	   Amounts arising from ECL

i) inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairement 					   

See accounting policy in note  2.5					   

ii) Significant increase in credit risk					  

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased significantly since 
initial recognition, the Bank considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available 
without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on 
the Bank’s historical experience and expert credit assessment and including forward-looking information.	
The objective of the assessment is to identify whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred for an 
exposure by comparing:					   

“• the remaining lifetime probability of default (PD) as at the reporting date; with

• the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated at the time of initial recognition of the 
exposure (adjusted where relevant  for changes in prepayment expectations).

• the Bank uses three criteria for determining whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk:

• quantitative test based on movement in PD;
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•  qualitative indicators; and

•  a backstop of 30 days past due,				  

iii) Credit risk grades					   

The Bank allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a variety of data that is determined to be 
predictive of the risk of default and applying experienced credit judgement. Credit risk grades are defined using 
qualitative and quantitative factors that are indicative of risk of default. These factors vary depending on the 
nature of the exposure and the type of borrower.					   

Credit risk grades are defined and calibrated such that the risk of default occurring increases exponentially as 
the credit risk deteriorates so, for example, the difference in risk of default between credit risk grades 1 and 2 is 
smaller than the difference between credit risk grades 2 and 3.Each exposure is allocated to a credit risk grade 
on initial recognition based on available information about the borrower. Exposures are subject to ongoing 
monitoring, which may result in an exposure being moved to a different credit risk grade. The monitoring 
typically involves use of the following data;					   

a. Term loan exposures	 				  

• Information obtained during periodic review of customer files – e.g. audited financial statements, management 
accounts, budgets and projections. Examples of areas of particular focus are: gross profit margins, financial 
leverage ratios, debt service coverage, compliance

•Data from credit reference agencies, press articles, changes in external credit ratings

•Actual and expected significant changes in the political, regulatory and technological environment of the 
borrower or in its business activities

•Internally collected data on customer behaviour – e.g. utilisation of credit card facilities

•Affordability metrics

b. Overdraft exposures	 				  

• Payment record – this includes overdue status as well as a range of variables about payment ratios

•  Utilisation of the granted limit

•  Requests for and granting of forbearance

•  Existing and forecast changes in business, financial and economic conditions			 

iv) Generating the term structure of PD					   

Credit risk grades are a primary input into the determination of the term structure of PD for exposures. The Bank 
collects performance and default information about its credit risk exposures analyzed by type of product and 
borrower as well as by credit risk grading. The Bank employs statistical models to analyse the data collected and 
generate estimates of the remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these are expected to change as a result 
of the passage of time.		

v) Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly

The Bank assesses whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition at each reporting date. 
Determining whether an increase in credit risk is significant depends on the characteristics of the financial 
instrument and the borrower. 

The credit risk may also be deemed to have increased significantly since initial recognition based on qualitative 
factors linked to the Bank’s credit risk management processes that may not otherwise be fully reflected in its 
quantitative analysis on a timely basis. This will be the case for exposures that meet certain heightened risk 
criteria, such as placement on a watch list. Such qualitative factors are based on its expert judgment and relevant 
historical experiences.					   

The credit risk may also be deemed to have increased significantly since initial recognition based on qualitative 
factors linked to the Bank’s credit risk management processes that may not otherwise be fully reflected in its 
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quantitative analysis on a timely basis. This will be the case for exposures that meet certain heightened risk 
criteria, such as placement on a watch list. Such qualitative factors are based on its expert judgment and relevant 
historical experiences.					   

As a backstop, the Bank considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs no later than when an asset is 
more than 30 days past due. Days past due are determined by counting the number of days since the earliest 
elapsed due date in respect of which full payment has not been received. Due dates are determined without 
considering any grace period that might be available to the borrower.					   
If there is evidence that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk relative to initial recognition, then 
the loss allowance on an instrument returns to being measured as 12-month ECL. Some qualitative indicators of 
an increase in credit risk, such as delinquency or forbearance, may be indicative of an increased risk of default 
that persists after the indicator itself has ceased to exist. In these cases, the Bank determines a probation period 
during which the financial asset is required to demonstrate good behaviour to provide evidence that its credit 
risk has declined sufficiently. When contractual terms of a loan have been modified, evidence that the criteria for 
recognising lifetime ECL are no longer met includes a history of up-to-date payment performance against the 
modified contractual terms. 					   

The Bank monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify significant increases in credit risk by regular 
reviews to confirm that:

•   the criteria are capable of identifying significant increases in credit risk before an exposure is in default;

•   the criteria do not align with the point in time when an asset becomes 30 days past due;

•   the average time between the identification of a significant increase in credit risk and default appears 
reasonable;

•  exposures are not generally transferred directly from 12-month ECL measurement to credit- impaired; and

•  there is no unwarranted volatility in loss allowance from transfers between 12-month PD (Stage 1) and lifetime 
PD (Stage 2).			 

vi) Definition of default

The Bank considers a financial asset to be in default when:

• the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Bank in full, without recourse by the Bank to actions 
such as realising security (if any is held);

•  the borrower is more than 90 days past due on any material credit obligation to the Bank.

• Overdrafts are considered as being past due once the customer has breached an advised limit or been advised 
of a limit smaller than the current amount outstanding; or

• it is becoming probable that the borrower will restructure the asset as a result of bankruptcy due to the 
borrower’s inability to pay its credit obligations.			 

In assessing whether a borrower is in default, the Bank considers indicators that are:

•   qualitative: e.g. breaches of covenant;

•  quantitative: e.g. overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same issuer to the Bank; and

•  based on data developed internally and obtained from external sources.

•   Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their significance may vary over 
time to reflect changes in circumstances.			 

The definition of default largely aligns with that applied by the Bank for regulatory capital purposes 	

vii) Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Bank incorporates forward-looking information into both the assessment of whether the credit risk of an 
instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and the measurement of ECL.

For each segment the Bank formulates three economic scenarios: a base case, which is the median scenario , 
and two less likely scenanios, one upside and one downside. for each sector, the base case is aligned with the 
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macroecnomic molel’s information value output, ameasure of the predicive power of the predicitive power of 
the mode, as well as base macroeconmic projections for identified macroeconomic variables for each sector. 
The upside and downside scenarios are based on a combination of a measure of historical macroeconomic 
volatilites. 					   

External information considered includes economic data and forecasts published by Business Monitor 
International, an external and independent macroeconmic date body, This is in addition to industry-level, semi 
annual NPL trends across statically comparable sectors.					   

Periodically, the Bank carries out stress testing of more extreme shocks to calibrate its determination of the 
upside and downside representative scenarios. A comprehensive review is performed at least annually on the 
design of the scenarios by a panel of experts that advises the Bank’s senior management.			 
The Bank has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses foreach portfolio of financial 
instruments and, using an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationships between macro-economic 
variables and credit risk and credit losses.					   

The key drivers for credit risk for each of the Bank’s economic sectors is summarized below:		
	

Sector/Product Macroeconomic factors

Agriculture and 
Consumer loans

INFLATION: Con-
sumer price index, 
2010 = 100, ave

EXCHANGE 
RATE: ETB/USD, 
ave

GDP EXPENDI-
TURE: Exports 
of goods and 
services, USDbn

DEBT: Govern-
ment domestic 
debt, ETBbn

STRATIFICA-
TION: House-
hold Spending, 
ETBbn

Domestic Trade & 
Services, Transport 
& Communication, 
Financial Institu-
tions

GDP: GDP per 
capita, USD

GDP EXPENDI-
TURE: Imports 
of goods and 
services, USDbn

INFLATION: Con-
sumer price index, 
2010 = 100, eop

EXCHANGE 
RATE: ETB/
USD, ave

FISCAL: Total 
revenue, USDbn

Housing& Con-
struction, Industry 
&Manufactur-
ing,  and Hotel & 
Tourism

GDP EXPENDI-
TURE: Exports 
of goods and 
services, USD per 
capita

FISCAL: Current 
expenditure, 
USDbn

DEBT: Govern-
ment domestic 
debt, ETBbn

- -

Export and Import GDP EXPENDI-
TURE: Exports 
of goods and 
services, ETBbn

GDP EXPENDI-
TURE: Imports 
of goods and 
services, ETBbn

EXCHANGE 
RATE: Real ef-
fective exchange 
rate, index

GDP EX-
PENDITURE: 
Private final 
consumption, 
USDbn

DEBT: Total gov-
ernment debt, 
USDbn

The economic scenarios used as at 30 June 2019 included the following key indicators for Ethiopia for the years 
2019 to 2023:						    

Macro-economic factor 2019 2020 2021

INFLATION: Consumer price index, 2010 = 100 317.4 349.1 384

GDP: GDP per capita, USD 836 928 1019

GDP EXPENDITURE: Exports of goods and services, 
USD per capita

54.9 59.8 66.6

GDP EXPENDITURE: Exports of goods and services, 
ETBbn

179.8 213.8 260.3

EXCHANGE RATE: ETB/USD 29.23 31.1 33.15

GDP EXPENDITURE: Imports of goods and services, 
USDbn

16.6 16.9 17.1

FISCAL: Current expenditure, USDbn 7.8 8.3 8.9
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GDP EXPENDITURE: Imports of goods and services, 
ETBbn

485.3 526.5 568.4

INFLATION: Consumer price index, 2010 = 100 296.3 326 358.6

DEBT: Government domestic debt, ETBbn 642.7 752 872.3

EXCHANGE RATE: Real effective exchange rate, index 123.13 121.01 117.74

GDP EXPENDITURE: Private final consumption, 
USDbn

58.9 66.2 73.5

STRATIFICATION: Household Spending, ETBbn 1707.6 1926.3 2149.3

FISCAL: Total revenue, USDbn 10.5 10.9 11.4

DEBT: Total government debt, USDbn 57 65.2 75.4

Predicted relationships between the key indicators and default rates on various portfolios of financial assets 
have been developed based on analysing semi – annual historical data over the past 5 years.		

viii) Modified financial assets

The contractual terms of a loan may be modified for a number of reasons, including changing market conditions, 
customer retention and other factors not related to a current or potential credit deterioration of the customer. 
An existing loan whose terms have been modified may be derecognised and the renegotiated loan recognised 
as a new loan at fair value in accordance with the accounting policy set out.			 

When the terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result in derecognition, the 
determination of whether the asset’s credit risk has increased significantly reflects comparison of: its remaining 
lifetime PD at the reporting date based on the modified terms; withthe remaining lifetime PD estimated based on 
data on initial recognition and the original contractual terms.					   

When modification results in derecognition, a new loan is recognised and allocated to Stage 1 (assuming it is not 
credit-impaired at that time).					   

The Bank renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulties (referred to as ‘forbearance activities’) to 
maximise collection opportunities and minimise the risk of default. Under the Bank’s forbearance policy, loan 
forbearance is granted on a selective basis if the debtor is currently in default on its debt or if there is a high risk 
of default, there is evidence that the debtor made all reasonable efforts to pay under the original contractual 
terms and the debtor is expected to be able to meet the revised terms.				  

The revised terms usually include extending the maturity, changing the timing of interest payments and 
amending the terms of loan covenants. Both retail and corporate loans are subject to the forbearance policy. 
The Bank Credit Committee regularly reviews reports on forbearance activities.			 

For financial assets modified as part of the Bank’s forbearance policy, the estimate of PD reflects whether the 
modification has improved or restored the Bank’s ability to collect interest and principal and the Bank’s previous 
experience of similar forbearance action. As part of this process, the Bank evaluates the borrower’s payment 
performance against the modified contractual terms and considers various behavioural indicators.	

Generally, forbearance is a qualitative indicator of a significant increase in credit risk and an expectation of 
forbearance may constitute evidence that an exposure is credit-impaired. A customer needs to demonstrate 
consistently good payment behaviour over a period of time before the exposure is no longer considered to 
be credit-impaired/in default or the PD is considered to have decreased such that the loss allowance reverts to 
being measured at an amount equal to Stage 1.					   

ix) Measurement of ECL					   

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables:

•    probability of default (PD);

•    loss given default (LGD); and

•    exposure at default (EAD).					  
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ECL for exposures in Stage 1 is calculated by multiplying the 12-month PD by LGD and EAD. Lifetime ECL is 
calculated by multiplying the lifetime PD by LGD and EAD.					   

The methodology of estimating PDs is discussed above under the heading ‘Generating the term structure of PD’.

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Bank estimates LGD parameters based on the 
history of recovery rates of claims against defaulted counterparties. The LGD models consider the structure, 
collateral, seniority of the claim, counterparty industry and recoverycosts of any collateral that is integral to the 
financial asset. 			

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Bank derives the EAD from the current 
exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the current amount allowed under the contract and 
arising from amortisation. The EAD of a financial asset is its gross carrying amount at the time of default. For 
lending commitments, the EADs are potential future amounts that may be drawn under the contract, which 
are estimated based on historical observationsand forward-looking forecasts. For financial guarantees, the EAD 
represents the amount of the guaranteed exposure when the financial guarantee becomes payable. For some 
financial assets, EAD is determined by modelling the range of possible exposure outcomes at various points in 
time using scenario and statistical techniques.					   

As described above, and subject to using a maximum of a 12-month PD for Stage 1 financial assets, the Bank 
measures ECL considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual period (including any borrower’s 
extension options) over which it is exposed to credit risk, even if, for credit risk management purposes, the Bank 
considers a longer period. 					   

The maximum contractual period extends to the date at which the Bank has the right to require repayment of 
an advance or terminate a loan commitment or guarantee.

However, for overdrafts that include both a loan and an undrawn commitment component, the Bank measures 
ECL over a period longer than the maximum contractual period if the Bank’s contractual ability to demand 
repayment and cancel the undrawn commitment does not limit the Bank’s exposure to credit losses to the 
contractual notice period. These facilities do not have a fixed term or repayment structure and are managed 
on a collective basis. The Bank can cancel them with immediate effect but this contractual right is not enforced 
in the normal day-to-day management, but only when the Bank becomes aware of an increasein credit risk at 
the facility level. This longer period is estimated taking into account the credit risk management actions that 
the Bank expects to take, and that serve to mitigate ECL. These include a reduction in limits, cancellation of the 
facility and/or turning the outstanding balance into a loan with fixed repayment terms. 

Where modelling of a parameter is carried out on a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped on the 
basis of shared risk characteristics that include:

*	 instrument type;

*	 credit risk grading;

*	 collateral type;

*	 LTV ratio for retail mortgages;

*	 date of initial recognition;

*	 remaining term to maturity;

*	 industry; and

*	 geographic location of the borrower.			 

“The groupings are subject to regular review to ensure that exposures within a particular group remain 
appropriately homogeneous.				  

x) Loss allowance  					   

The following tables show reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of the loss allowance by class 
of financial instrument. Comparative amounts for 2018 represent the allowance account for credit losses and 
reflect the measurement basis under IAS 39.				 
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2019

Birr'000 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Loans and advances to customers and 
Interest Free Financing  at amortised 
cost (on balance sheet exposures) 

 -    -    -    133,426 

Balance as at 1 July 2018  57,359  7,313  94,626  25,872 

Day one IFRS 9 transition adjustment  13,507  (2,408)  (11,098)  -   

Adjusted balance at 1 July 2018  70,866  4,905  83,527  159,298 

Transfer to stage 1  13,507  (2,408)  (11,098)  -   

Transfer to stage 2  (816)  1,575  (759)  -   

Transfer to stage 3  (1,345)  (459)  1,804  -   

Net remeasurement of loss allowance  2,324  2,373  80,691  85,388 

New financial assets originated  56,723  8,656  36,997  102,376 

Financial assets derecognised  (17,719)  (4,158)  (36,688)  (58,566)

Balance as at 30 June 2019  110,031  12,891  165,573  288,496 

2019

Birr'000 Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

Loan commitments and financial 
guarantee contracts (off balance 
sheet exposures)

Balance as at 1 July 2018  -    -    -    -   

Day one IFRS 9 transition adjust-
ment

 11,980  -    1,533  13,513 

Adjusted balance at 1 July  11,980  -    1,533  13,513 

Transfer to stage 1  -    -    -    -   

Transfer to stage 2  (354)  354  -    -   

Transfer to stage 3  -    -    -    -   

Net remeasurement of loss 
allowance

 4,664  223  3,418  8,305 

New financial assets originated  15,230  5,517  809  21,555 

Financial assets derecoginzed  (6,131)  (0)  (159)  (6,291)

Balance as at 30 June 2019  25,389  6,093  5,740  37,083 

2019

In Birr'000 Cash and balances 
with banks

Investment securi-
ties (debt instru-

ments)
Other receivables 

and financial assets Total

Other financial assets (debt 
instruments)  -    -    -    -   

Balance as at 1 July 2018  -    -    18,235  18,235 
Day one IFRS 9 transition 
adjustment  196  243  (14,970)  (14,530)

Adjusted balance at 1 July 2018  196  243  3,265  3,705 
Net remeasurement of loss 
allowance  (15)  111  2,661  2,757 

Balance as at 30 June 2019  181  354  5,926  6,461 
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Credit quality analysis for loans and advances comparative information under IAS 39 summarized as 
follows;	

(a) credit quality of loans and receivables					   

Neither past due 
nor impaired

Past due but not 
impaired

Collectively Im-
paired 

Individually 
impaired Total

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
30 June 2018
Agriculture  152,433  30,251  12,355  11,306  206,345 
Industry  1,016,749  6,154  6,484  22,459  1,051,846 
Domestic trade and 
services  2,617,169  106,606  114,269  69,246  2,907,290 

Export  2,630,270  22,321  9,023  26,039  2,687,653 
Import  545,574  33,050  17,125  -    595,749 
Construction  927,466  53,367  17,224  18,297  1,016,354 
Transport and communi-
cation  237,623  11,648  15,560  -    264,832 

Hotel and tourism  588,918  45,525  9,327  37,861  681,631 
Mining, power and water 
resources  -    -    -    -    -   

Microfinance institution  42,514  -    -    -    42,514 

Mortgage Loan- Staff  350,386  1,160  1,255  -    352,801 

Mortgage Loan- Customer  69,382  1,033  -    70,415 
Personal Loan-Staff  59,482  391  -    -    59,873 
Emergency staff loans  103,319  -    -    -    103,319 
Consumer loans- Cus-
tomer  18,182  1,147  538  -    19,867 

Gross  9,359,467  311,619  204,193  185,209  10,060,489 
Less: Impairment allow-
ance   (41,462)  (1,457)  (24,111)  (24,885)  (91,916)
Net  9,318,005  310,162  180,082  160,324  9,968,573 

(i) Loans and receivables - neither past due nor impaired					   

The credit quality of the portfolio of loans and receivables that were neither past due nor impaired can be 
assessed by reference to the customer’s ability to pay based on loss experience.  Loans and receivables in this 
category are short term loans past due for less than 30 (thirty) loans and medium and long term loans past due 
for less than 180 (one hundred eighty) days.					  

 30 June 2018 
 Birr'000 

Neither past due nor 
impaired

 9,359,467 

Collective impairment  (41,462)
Loan and receivables (net)  9,318,005 

(b) credit quality of loans and receivables (continued)					   

(ii) Loans and receivables - past due but not impaired	

30 June 2018

Birr'000

Past due up to 90 days  311,619 
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Collective impairment  (1,457)

Loan and receivables 
(net)  310,162 

(iii) Loans and receivables - collectively impaired 					   

Past due by 90 - 180 days  122,677 
Past due by 180- 360 days  58,182 
Past due  by more than 360 days  23,334 
Collective impairment  (24,111)
Loan and receivables (net)  180,082 

Loans and receivables that have been classified as neither past due nor impaired or past due but not impaired 
and collectively impaired  are assessed on a collective basis.					   

(iv) Loans and receivables -individually impaired loans 					   

30 June 2018
Birr'000

Substandard  97,297 
Doubtful  30,289 
Loss  57,623 
Specific impairment  (24,885)
Loan and receivables (net)  160,324 

(v) Allowance for impairement

 30 June 2018 
 Birr'000 

Specific impairment  24,885 
Collective impairment  67,031 
Total allowance for impair-
ment  91,916 

(c) credit quality analyis of interest free financing  products comparative information under IAS 39 summarized as 
follows;					   

 Neither past due 
nor impaired 

 Past due but not 
impaired 

 Collectively 
Impaired  

 Individually 
impaired  Total 

 30 June 2018  Birr'000  Birr'000  Birr'000  Birr'000  Birr'000 

 Murahabah Financing- Agri-
culture  59,317  24,304  3,777  -    87,399 

 Murahabah Financing- Con-
struction  104,763  17,856  -    -    122,620 

 Murahabah Financing- Industry  168,352  16,841  2  -    185,195 
 Murahabah Financing- DTS  300,396  97,560  11,008  -    408,963 
 Interest Free Export Facility 
Financing  221,542  218,826  8,075  33,546  481,990 

 Murahabah Financing- Import  134,319  19,428  319  15,336  169,402 
 Murahabah financing  -    -    -    -    -   
 Murahabah Financing- Hotel 
and Tourism  11,796  -    -    -    11,796 

 Murahabah Financing- Trans-
port and Communication  106,120  6,803  5,386  -    118,309 
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 Muruhabah Financing-  Con-
sumer and Personal  -    -    -    -   

 Gross Financing   1,106,606  401,619  28,569  48,882  1,585,674 
 Profit receivable from Murubaha Financing  262,420 
 Less: Deferred profit  (185,291)
 Less: Impairment allowance  (5,167)  (2,205)  (3,194)  (30,944)  (41,509)
 Net carrying amount  1,101,439  399,413  25,375  17,938  1,621,294 

(i) Interest Free Financing - neither past due nor impaired					   

The credit quality of the portfolio of Interest Free Financing and receivables that were neither past due nor 
impaired can be assessed by reference to the customer’s ability to pay based on loss experience.Interest Free 
financing and receivables in this category are short term Financing  past due for less than 30 (thirty) Interest Free 
financing and medium and long term financing  past due for less than 180 (one hundred eighty) days.	

 30 June 2018 
 Birr'000 

 Neither past due nor 
impaired 

 1,106,606 

 Collective impairment  (5,167)

 Net carrying amount  1,101,439 

(c) credit quality analyis of interest free financing  products (continued)				  

(ii) Interest free financing -past due but not impaired					   

30 June 2018
Birr'000

Past due up to 90 days  401,619 
Collective impairment  (2,205)
Interest Free Financing 
(net)  399,413 

(iii) Interest free financing- collectively impaired					   

Past due by 90 - 180 
days  11,083 

Past due by 180- 360 
days  15,782 

Past due by More than 
360 days  1,703 

Gross  28,569 
Collective impairment  (3,194)
Interest Free Financing 
(net)  25,375 

(iv) Interest Free Financing -individually impaired financing 	

 30 June 2018 
 Birr'000 

Substandard  17,268 
Doubtful  6,614 
Loss  25,000 
Specific impairment  (30,944)
Interest Free Financing (net)  -    17,938 
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(v) Allowance for impairment 					   

 30 June 2018 
 Birr'000 

Specific impairment  30,944 

Collective impairment  10,566 

Total allowance for 
impairment  -    41,509 

5.4.5	 Credit quality analysis					     				  

(a)	 Credit quality of cash and cash equivalents 							     

The credit quality of cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments  that were neither past due nor 
impaired at as 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018 and are held in Ethiopian banks have been classified as  non-
rated as there are no credit rating agencies in Ethiopia. However, cash and cash equivalents that held in 
foreign banks can be assessed by reference to credit rating agency designation as shown in the table below;	
	

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

AAA+  -    -   
AA  -    -   
B  -    -   
BBB  1,291,200  1,287,479 
Not rated  3,829,727  4,521,648 
Total  5,120,927  5,809,127 

5.4.6	 Statement of Prudential adjustments					     		
	

Provisions under prudential guidelines are determined using the time based provisioning prescribed by the 
National Bank of Ethiopia (NBE) Directives. This is at variance with the forward looking model required by 
IFRS-9. As a result of the differences in the methodology/provision, there will be variances in the impairments 
allowances required under the two methodologies.

The proclamation ‘Financial Reporting Proclamation No.847/2014 stipulates that Banks would be required to 
make provisions for loans as prescribed in the relevant IFRS Standards when IFRS is adopted.

However, Banks would be required to comply with the following:

(a) Provisions for loans recognised in the income statement should be determined based on the requirements of IFRS. 
However, the IFRS provision should be compared with provisions determined under the NBE Directives and the 
expected impact/changes in other reserves should be treated as follows:

• Prudential provisions is greater than IFRS provisions; the excess provision resulting should be transferred from 
the general reserve (retained earnings) account to a “regulatory risk reserve”.

• Prudential provisions is less than IFRS provisions; IFRS determined provision is charged to the statement of 
comprehensive income. The cumulative balance in the regulatory risk reserve is thereafter reversed to the 
general reserve( retained earnings) account

(b) The non-distributable reserve should be classified under Tier 1 as part of the core capital.”			 

During the period  ended 30 June 2018, the Bank transferred an amount of Birr 121,540 million to the regulatory 
risk reserve. This amount represents the difference between the provisions for credit and other known losses as 
determined under the NBE Directives, and the impairment reserve as determined in line with IAS 39 as at year 
end.
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In line with the same directive of the NBE, the Bank compared the provision based on the Directive with 
impairment under IFRS-9 for comparative periods and hence the bank transfered an amount of Birr 121,540 
million to retained earnings from the regulatory risk reserve as the impairment balance under IFRS was higher 
for the year 30 June 2019.					   

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Total impairment based on IFRS  325,683  133,426 
Total impairment based on NBE 
Directives  302,422  254,966 
Variation  23,261  (121,540)

In line with the directive of the NBE, the Bank compared the provision for other assets  based on the Directive 
with impairment for other assets under IFRS-9 for same period and hence the bank transfered an amount of Birr 
16,008  million from  retained earnings to  the regulatory risk reserve as the impairment balance under IFRS was 
lower for the year 30 June 2019.					   

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Total Impairment for other Assets 
Based on IFRS  6,636.92  -   

Total Impairement for other Assets 
Based on NBE directives  45,906.26  -   

Excess amount for Other Assets 
Provission  (39,269.34)  -   
Amount Transferred to Regulatory 
Risk Reserve  (16,008.30)  -   

As per the requirements of IFRS , banks should recognize interest income on the written down amount of the loan 
after the impairment loss, on an accrual basis, using the EIR. However,  As per the requirement of National Bank 
of Ethiopia, banks should derecognized  interest income on impaired exposures, special attention should be 
paid to impaired exposures with a higher number of days past due (e.g. more than 90 days past due).	

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 

Birr'000 Birr'000

Write backed Suspended interest  41,351  24,065 
Realized interest from last year Non impaired 
loans and advances  (14,586)  -   
Net amount transferred to regulatory risk resrve  26,764  24,065 

		

5.4.7	 Credit concentrations					     				  

The Bank monitors concentrations of credit risk by economic sector. An analysis of concentrations of credit 
risk at 30 June 2019 and  30 June 2018. The Bank concentrates all its financial assets in Ethiopia.		
	

Domestic and 
Trade Services Export  Housing and 

construction  Others 

 30 June 2019 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Cash and cash equivalents  5,120,927 
Loans and receivables  4,681,099  3,860,093  1,858,505  5,196,393 



Annual Report 2018/19 139

Oromia International Bank S.C.

For the year ended 30 June 2019
Notes to the financial statements

Interest Free Financing  648,393  208,425  251,261  714,398 
Investment securities:
  - Financial assets at fair value through OCI 
(2018-AFS)  -    -    -    95,478 

     -Financial assets at amortized cost 
(2018-Loans and Receivables)  -    -    -    7,073,001 

Other financial assets  -    -    -    837,537 
Total financial assets  5,329,492  4,068,518  2,109,766  19,037,734 

Domestic and 
Trade Services Export  Housing and 

construction  Others 

 30 June 2018 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Cash and cash 
equivalents  -    -    -    5,809,127 

Loans and receivables  2,907,290  2,687,653  1,016,354  3,449,192 
Interest Free Financing  408,963  481,990  122,620  572,102 

Investment securities:  -    -    -   

 - Financial assets at fair value through 
OCI (2018-AFS)  -    -    -    68,705 

     -Financial assets at amortized cost 
(2018-Loans and Receivables)  -    -    -    4,855,817 

Other financial assets  -    -    -    218,291 

Total financial 
assets  3,316,253  3,169,643  1,138,974  14,973,234 

5.4.8	Nature of security in respect of loans and advances to customers				  
	

 Secured against 
real estate  Cash  Machinery Vehicles Others

30 June 2019 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Agriculture  526,113  -    4,493  -    -   
Domestic trade  8,716,190  852  16,620  62,526  6,652 
Export  4,016,838  3,000  77,077  193,088  146,615 
Financial Institution  33,049  2,100  -    -    -   
Hotel and tourism  2,694,872  -    -    -    15,918 
Housing and construc-
tion  3,784,579  -    148,122  89,738  -   

Import  1,529,263  500  7,500  77,249  -   
Industry  2,507,733  12,647  -    2,350  72,253 
Mines, Power and Water 
Resource  -    -    -    -    -   

Mortgage Consumer 
Loan  549,772  -    740  -    -   

Mortgage Staff Loan  1,438,248  -    -    500  -   
Personal Consumer Loan  147,127  -    -    11,565  357 
Personal Staff Loan  196,047  -    -    2,365  -   
Transport and communi-
cation  514,404  -    -    171,376  -   

Total  26,654,235  19,099  254,552  610,757  241,796 
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 Secured against 
real estate  Cash  Machinery Vehicles Others

30 June 2018 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Agriculture  228,769  -    7,710  154,170  -   
Domestic trade  6,230,866  -    2,076  276,288  66,610 
Export  2,865,362  3,000  3,333  153,491  389,043 
Financial Institution  19,972  -    -    -    -   
Hotel and tourism  2,512,490  -    -    4,533  25,428 
Housing and construction  2,362,172  -    66,988  100,212  10,622 
Import  1,939,451  -    15,267  150,249  15,609 
Industry  2,307,086  100,050  20,271  26,991  272,371 
Mines, Power and Water 
Resource  -    -    -    -    -   

Mortgage Consumer Loan  231,891  -    -    3,757 
Mortgage Staff Loan  921,874  -    -    2,921  112 
Personal Consumer Loan  88,904  -    -    2,550  -   
Personal Staff Loan  253,139  -    -    1,250  -   
Transport and communication  729,804  -    9,099  248,665  103 

Total  20,691,779  103,050  124,744  1,125,077  779,898 

5.4.9	 Nature of security in respect of Interest Free Financing

 Secured against 
real estate  Cash  Machinery Vehicles Others

30 June 2019 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Agriculture  238,123  -    -    -    -   
Construction  1,218,092  -    -    -    -   
Domestic Trade  Services  1,263,908  -    -    -    -   
Export  621,725  -    -    -    30,000 
Hotel and Tourism  2,776  -    -    -    -   
Import  580,641  -    -    -    -   
Industry  748,009  -    -    -    -   
Mortagage  18,619  -    -    -    -   
Transport and Communication  322,964  -    -    3,375  -   

Total  5,014,858  -    -    3,375  30,000 

 Secured against 
real estate  Cash  Machinery Vehicles Others

30 June 2018 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Agriculture  158,766  -    -    -    -   
Construction  550,037  -    -    -    -   
Domestic Trade  Services  1,177,605  -    -    -    10,000 
Export  704,283  12,831  3,075  17,409  -   
Hotel and Tourism  29,059  -    -    -    -   
Import  108,258  -    -    -    -   
Industry  255,098  -    -    -    -   
Transport and Communication  143,227  -    -    -    -   
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Total  3,126,334  12,831  3,075  17,409  10,000 

5.4.10	 Collateral held and their financial effect					   
The general creditworthiness of a customer tends to be the most relevant indicator of credit quality of a loan 
extended to it. However, collateral provides additional security and the Bank generally requests that corporate 
borrowers provide it. Staff loans are secured to the extent of the employee’s continued employment in the Bank.

The Bank may take collateral in the form of a first charge over real estate, liens and guarantees. The Bank does not 
sell or repledge the collateral in the absence of default by the owner of the collateral. In addition to the Bank’s 
focus on creditworthiness, the Bank aligns with its credit policy guide to periodically update the validation of 
collaterals held against all loans to customers. 

For impaired loans, the Bank obtains appraisals of collateral because the fair value of the collateral is an input to 
the impairment measurement.

The fair value of the collaterals are based on the last revaluations carried out by the Bank’s in-house engineers. 
The valuation technique adopted for properties is in line with the Bank’s  valuation manual and the revalued 
amount is similar to fair values of properties with similar size and location.

The fair value of collaterals other than properties such as share certificates, cash, NBE bills etc.  as disclosed at the 
carrying amount as management is of the opinion that the cost of the process of establishing the fair value of 
the collateral exceeds benefits accruable from the exercise. 	

5.4.11 	 Write-off policy 

The Bank writes off Loans and Advance balance, and any related allowances for impairment losses, when 
Bank determines that the Loans and advances or security is uncollectible and after approval is obtained. This 
determination is made after considering information such as the occurrence of significant changes in the 
borrower’s / issuer’s financial position such that the borrower / issuer can no longer pay the obligation, or that 
proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay back the entire exposure. For smaller balance standardized 
loans and advances, write-off decisions generally are based on a product-specific past due status. There was no 
amount write off during the year.

5.5.1	 Management of liquidity risk
The day-to-day liquidity management is performed by the Accounting and Treasury Department with in a 
comprehensive framework set by the Assets and Liabilities Committee, and monitored independently by the 
Risk Management and Compliance Department. The Bank monitors and reports liquidity risk daily, paying 
particular attention to ensuring that there are optimal levels of cash and cash equivalent instruments to fund 
increases in assets, unexpected decreases in liabilities, as well as meeting legal requirements, while optimizing 
the cost of carrying any excess liquidity.

To manage liquidity risk, the Bank performs daily monitoring of future expected cash flows on clients’ and 
banking operations’ which forms part of the asset and liability management process. The Bank also has to 
comply with minimum levels of liquidity required by the National Bank of Ethiopia (NBE). This ratio is calculated 
as the ratio of highly-liquid assets to liabilities payable on demand. The ratio was  19.72% as at 30 June 2019 and 
31.02% as at June 30,2018 whereas the minimum percentage required by the NBE is 15%.

The Bank seeks to maintain a stable funding base primarily consisting of amounts due to other banks, corporate 
and retail customer deposits. The Bank invests the funds in diversified portfolios of liquid assets, in order to 
be able to respond quickly and smoothly to unforeseen liquidity requirements. The liquidity management of 
the Bank requires consideration of the level of liquid assets necessary to settle obligations as they fall due, 
maintaining access to a range of funding sources, maintaining funding contingency plans, and monitoring 
liquidity ratios against regulatory requirements including minimum levels of liquidity required by the NBE.

The Accounting and Treasury Department receives information about the liquidity profile of the financial assets 
and liabilities. The Accounting and Treasury Department then provides for an adequate portfolio of short-term 
liquid assets, made up of short-term deposits with banks to ensure that sufficient liquidity is maintained within 
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the Bank as a whole.

5.5.2	 Maturity analysis of financial liabilities

The table below analyses the Bank’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining 
period at the statement of financial position date to the contractual maturity date. The cash flows presented are 
the undiscounted amounts to be settled in future.

0 - 30 days 31 - 90 days 91 - 180 days 181 - 365 days Over 1 year 
 30 June 2019 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Deposits from customers  16,825,637  3,365,127  1,121,709  673,025  448,684 
Interest Free customers' 
deposits  3,116,207  623,241  207,747  124,648  83,099 

Debt securities issued  -    -    -    -    -   
Borrowings  -    -    -    -    -   
Other liabilities  1,002,263  -    -    -    -   

Total financial liabilities  20,944,108  3,988,369  1,329,456  797,674  531,783 

0 - 30 days 31 - 90 days 91 - 180 days 181 - 365 days Over 1 year 
 30 June 2018 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Deposits from customers  12,685,304  2,537,061  845,687  507,412  338,275 
Interest Free customers' 
deposits  2,259,958  451,992  150,664  90,398  60,266 

Debt securities issued  -    -    -    -    -   
Borrowings  -    -    -    -    -   
Other liabilities  870,061  -    -    -    -   

Total financial liabilities  15,815,322  2,989,052  996,351  597,810  398,540 

5.6	 Market risk					   
Market risk is defined as the risk of loss risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market risk factors  such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices, 
credit spreads and their volatilities. Market risk can arise in conjunction with trading and non-trading activities 
of a financial institutions. 

The Bank does not ordinarily engage in trading activities as there are no active markets in Ethiopia. 

5.6.1	 Management of market risk
The bank manages and control market risk exposures within acceptable limits, while optimizing the return 
on risk. The Risk Management and Compliance Department is in charge of managing market risk, regularly, to 
identify any adverse movement in interest rate and foreign currency exchange rate. 

(i)	 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the potential loss on the bank arising from mismatch between positions, which are subject to 
interest rate adjustment within a specified period, or in any other interest rate relationship.  The Bank’s lending, 
funding and investment activities give rise to interest rate risk. The bank conduct thorough and stress testing on 
unexpected changes in the general level of interest rate, market interest rate, key assumptions and parameters, 
and monitor interest rate risk factor on ongoing basis. 
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The table below sets out information on the exposures to fixed and variable interest instruments.	

 30 June 2019 Fixed Floating Non-interest 
bearing Total

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
Assets
Cash and balances with 
banks  1,793,437  -    3,327,490  5,120,927 

Loans and advances to 
customers  15,323,833  -    -    15,323,833 

Interest Free Financing  -    -    1,890,738  1,890,738 
Investment securities  7,073,001  -    -    7,073,001 
Total  24,190,271  -    5,218,228  29,408,499 

Liabilities
Deposits from customers  22,434,183  -    -    22,434,183 
Interest Free customers' 
deposits  -    -    4,154,943  4,154,943 

Debt securities issued  -    -    -    -   
Borrowings  -    -    -    -   
Other liabilities  -    -    1,002,263  1,002,263 
Total  22,434,183  -    5,157,206  27,591,389 

5.6.2	 Management of market risk (continued)	

 30 June 2018 Fixed Floating Non-interest 
bearing Total

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
Assets
Cash and balances 
with banks  2,076,501  -    3,732,626  5,809,127 

Loans and advances 
to customers  9,968,573  -    -    9,968,573 

Interest Free Fi-
nancing  -    -    1,621,293  1,621,293 

Investment secu-
rities  4,855,817  -    -    4,855,817 
Total  16,900,891  -    5,353,919  22,254,810 

Liabilities
Deposits from 
customers  16,913,738  -    -    16,913,738 

Interest Free cus-
tomers' deposits  -    -    3,013,277  3,013,277 

Other liabilities  -    -    870,061  870,061 
Total  16,913,738  -    3,883,338  20,797,076 

			 

The sensitivity of the income statement is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the profit or loss 
for a year, based on the floating rate non–trading financial assets and financial liabilities held at 30 June 2019 
and  30 June 2018 . The total sensitivity of equity is based on the assumption that there are parallel shifts in the 
yield curve.	
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“Increase
(decrease)

in basis points”
“Sensitivity of
profit or loss”

“Sensitivity of
equity”

 30 June 2019 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
10%  (6)  (6)

-10%  6  6 

Increase
(decrease)

in basis points
“Sensitivity of
profit or loss”

“Sensitivity of
equity”

 30 June 2018 Birr’000 Birr'000 Birr'000
10%  (144)  (144)

-10%  144  144 
(ii)	 Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate due 
to the changes in foreign exchange rates. 

The Bank is exposed to exchange rate risks to the extent of balances and transactions denominated in a currency 
other than the Ethiopian Birr. The Bank’s foreign currency bank accounts act as a natural hedge for these 
transactions. Management has set up a policy  to manage the Bank’s foreign exchange risk against its functional 
currency.

The table below summarises the impact of increases/decreases of 10% on equity and profit or loss arising from 
the Bank’s foreign denominated deposits and cash and bank balances.

The total foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities exposed to risk as at year end was Birr 708,888 
million  (30 June 2018: Birr 807,346 million).

	 Foreign currency denominated balances

30 June 2019
USD EURO  GBP Total

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
Financial assets

Cash and bank balances  1,365,000  17,502  3,777  1,386,279 

Financial liabilities

Deposit from customers  666,072  11,203  117  677,391 
Net foreign currency 
denominated balances  698,928  6,299  3,660  708,888 

30 June 2018
USD EURO  GBP Total

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
Financial assets

Cash and bank balances  1,231,763  106,580  1,250  1,339,593 

Financial liabilities
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Deposit from customers  525,328  6,680  239  532,247 
Net foreign currency 
denominated balances  706,435  99,900  1,011  807,346 

Sensitivity analysis for foreign exchange risk
The sensitivity analysis for currency rate risk shows how changes in the fair value or future cash flows of a 
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market rates at the reporting date.

The sensitivity of the Bank’s earnings to fluctuations in exchange rates is reflected by varying the exchange rates 
at 10% and its impact on Profit and Loss as shown below:

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

10% appreciation  in exchange rate for USD  69,893  70,643 
10%  depreciation in exchange rate for USD  (69,893)  (70,643)

10% appreciation  in exchange rate for 
EURO  630  9,990 

10%  depreciation in exchange rate for 
EURO  (630)  (9,990)

10% appreciation  in exchange rate for GBP  366  101 
10%  depreciation in exchange rate for GBP  (366)  (101)

5.7	 Capital management
The Bank’s objectives when managing capital are (i) To ensure that the bank has adequate capital and effective 
plans to prudently manage its capital and meets regulatory requirements; (ii) To ensure that the Bank’s risk 
appetite is based on a capital adequacy ratio sufficient for the Bank to continue its business activities;(iii)  To 
ensure that Bank’s capital is adequate to absorb unforeseen losses and thus provide a source of protection 
to depositors and other creditors in the event of difficulties; (v) Establishing and implementing sound and 
prudent policies governing the quantity and quality of capital required to support the bank (vi) Developing and 
implementing appropriate and effective policies to monitor, on an ongoing basis, bank’s capital requirements 
and capital position to ensure that the institution meets its capital requirements and will continue to meet its 
future capital requirements.

5.7.1	 Capital adequacy ratio
According to the Licensing & Supervision of Banking Business Directive No. SBB/50/2011 of the National Bank 
of Ethiopia, the Bank has to maintain capital to risk weighted assets ratio of 8% at all times, the risk weighted 
assets being calculated as per the provisions of Directive No SBB/9/95 issued on August 18, 1995.		
The capital adequacy ratio is the quotient of the capital base of the Bank and the Bank’s risk weighted asset 
base.	

Capital includes capital contribution, retained earnings, legal reserve and other reserves to be approved by the 
National Bank of Ethiopia.

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Capital
Capital contribution  2,393,675  1,614,643 
Retained earnings  613,086  383,233 
Legal reserves  642,233  457,285 
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Regulatory Risk Reserve  66,838  145,605 
 3,715,832  2,600,766 

Risk weighted assets
Risk weighted balance for on-balance sheet 
items  27,370,016  20,258,258 

Credit equivalents for off-balance Sheet 
Items  1,793,153  1,177,753 

 29,163,169  21,436,011 

Risk-weighted Capital Adequacy Ratio 
(CAR) 13% 12.13%

TIER 1 CARMinimum required capital 8% 8%
Excess 4.74% 4.13%

5.8	 Operational risks 
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the banks 
processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit, market and 
liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of 
corporate behavior. Operational risks arise from all of the bank’s operations and are faced by all business entities.  

The bank’s objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage 
to the bank’s reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that restrict initiative 
and creativity. 

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational risk is 
assigned to senior management within each business unit. This responsibility is supported by the development 
of overall bank standards for the management of operational risk in the following areas: 

a) Requirements for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorization of transactions 

b) Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions, 

c) Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements ,

d) Documentation of controls and procedures ,

e) Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and 
procedures to address the risks identified, 

f ) Requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action,

g) Development of contingency plans,

h) Training and professional development, 

i) Ethical and business standards ,

j) Risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective. 

Compliance with bank standards is supported by a programme of periodic reviews undertaken by Internal 
Audit. The results of Internal Audit reviews are discussed with the management of the business unit to which 
they relate, with summaries submitted to the Audit Committee and senior management of the bank. 

5.9	 Strategic risk 					   
Strategic risk arises from choosing a wrong strategy, unsuccessful implementation of strategy, changes in 
the competitive environment or responding too slowly to changes. Strategic risks are minimized by means of 
regular updates of strategic and annual plans. Analyses of the condition and development of the OIB, as well as 
other analyses and estimates concerning the development of the sector, competition and financial operating 
environment are utilized in the planning.
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5.10	 Sharia Non-compliance Risk
This potential loss is arising from the failure to comply with the Sharia rules and principles. The bank manages 
this risk by strictly adhering to Sharia rules and principles, own policy and procedures and NBE directives.

5.11	 Rate of return
A variable rate of return on investment account holders introduces uncertainty regarding the real value of 
deposit. Asset preservation in terms of minimizing the risk of loss due to a lower rate of return may be important 
factors in depositors’ withdrawal decisions. From the bank perspective, this introduces a “withdrawal risk” that is 
linked to the lower rate of return relative to other financial institution.

The bank will manage the rate of return risk  by putting in place appropriate systems for identifying and 
measuring  the factors  which give raise  to rate of return risk.

5.12	 Displaced Commercial Risk
It is the risk that the bank may confront commercial pressure to pay returns that exceeds the rate that has been 
earned on its assets financed by investment account holders. The bank forgoes part or its entire share of profit in 
order to retain its fund providers and dissuade them from withdrawing their funds

5.13	 Equity investment risk
“This is the risk arising from entering in to a parternership for the purpose of undertaking or participating 
in a particular financing or general business activity as described in the contract, and in which the provider 
of finance shares in the business risk. This risk type is relevant under Mudharabah and Musharakah contract. 
While investment made via Mudharabah and Musharakah instruments may contribute substantially to IFBWS 
earnings, they entail significant counterparty, market, liquidity, credit and other risks, potentially raising giving 
rise to volatility in earning and capital.

As the risk mitigation instrument IFBW may require the Mudarib or Musharakah partner to provide collateral or 
guarantee.  

5.14	 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
IFRS 13 requires an entity to classify measured or disclosed fair values according to a hierarchy that reflects the 
significance of observable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, which comprises of three levels as described below, based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole.

15.14.1	 Valuation models
IFRS 13 specifies a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those valuation techniques 
are observable or unobservable. Observable input reflect market data obtained from independent sources; 
unobservable inputs reflect the Bank’s market assumptions.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised 
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement as a whole.

● Level 1: Inputs that are quoted market prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

●Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) .This category includes instruments valued using: quoted 
market prices in active markets for similar instruments; quoted prices for identical or similar instruments in markets 
that are considered less than active, or other valuation technique in which all significant inputs are directly or indi-
rectly observable from market data.

In conclusion, this category is for valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the 
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fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

● Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). This cate-
gory includes all assets and liabilities for which the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data 
and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect on the asset or liability’s valuation. This category includes instru-
ments that are valued based on quoted prices for similar instruments for which significant unobservable adjustments 
or assumptions are required to reflect differences between the instruments.

5.14.2	 Financial instruments not measured at fair value - Fair value hierarchy	
The following table summarises the carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities at the reporting date by 
the level in the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised. The amounts are based 
on the values recognised in the statement of financial position.

Carrying 
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

 30 June 2019 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
Financial assets
Cash and balances with banks  5,120,927  5,120,927  -    -    5,120,927 
Loans and advances to custom-
ers  15,323,833  -    -    15,323,833  15,323,833 

Interest Free Financing  1,890,738  -    -    1,890,738  1,890,738 
Investment securities  7,168,479  -    -    7,168,479  7,168,479 
Total  29,503,977  5,120,927  -    24,383,050  29,503,977 

Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers  22,434,183  -    -    22,434,183  22,434,183 
Interest Free customers' de-
posits  4,154,943  -    -    4,154,943  4,154,943 

Other liabilities  1,002,263  -    -    1,002,263  1,002,263 
Total  27,591,389  -    -    27,591,389  27,591,389 

Carrying amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
 30 June 2018 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
Financial assets
Cash and balances 
with banks  5,809,127  5,809,127  -    -    5,809,127 

Loans and advances to 
customers  9,968,573  -    -    9,968,573  9,968,573 

Interest Free Financing  1,621,293  -    -    1,621,293  1,621,293 
Investment securities  4,924,522  -    -    4,924,522  4,924,522 
Total  22,323,515  5,809,127  -    16,514,388  22,323,515 

5.14.3	 Financial instruments not measured at fair value - Fair value hierarchy

Financial liabilities
Deposits from customers 16,913,738  -    -   16,913,738 16,913,738
Interest Free customers' 
deposits 3,013,277  -    -   3,013,277 3,013,277

Other liabilities 870,061  -    -   870,061 870,061
Total  20,797,076  -    -    20,797,076  20,797,076 

15.14.4	 Valuation technique using significant unobservable inputs – Level 3
The Bank has no financial asset measured at fair value on subsequent recognition.
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15.14.5	 Transfers between the fair value hierarchy categories
During the three reporting periods covered by these annual financial statements, there were no movements 
between levels as a result of significant inputs to the fair valuation process becoming observable or 
unobservable.	

5.15	 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities	
There are no offsetting arrangements. Financial assets and liabilities are settled and disclosed on a gross 
basis.	

6  30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Interest income from Loans and advances

Interest income earned on deposits  62,107  40,218 
Interest on Investment securities  179,421  124,948 
Interest on Agriculture loans  36,485  33,304 
Interest on Industry loans  202,572  108,578 
Interest on Domestic loans  602,160  459,708 
Interest on Export loans  424,539  233,139 
Interest on Import loans  136,115  107,003 
Interest on Import Bills  -    8,276 
Interest on Construction loans  237,467  169,975 
Interest on Mortgage loans  56,956  31,603 
Interest on Personal loans  9,879  5,950 
Interest on Transport loans  45,401  52,972 
Interest on Hotel and Tourism loans  134,535  112,790 
Interest on Microfinance loans  6,848  4,817 
Interest on Mines, Power and Water loans  -    -   
Interest Earned -on Non- Performing Loan  41,383  3,345 
Interest On Staff Loans  42,204  8,942 

Total  2,218,072  1,505,568 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
7 Birr'000 Birr'000

Income from Interest free financing and invest-
ment products

 -   
Income From Murabaha Financing  163,133  115,675 
Income from Interest Free Banking-Agriculture  928  1,481 
Income from Interest Free Banking-Industry  4,502  2,328 
Income from Interest Free Banking-DTS  5,194  6,640 
Income from Interest Free Banking-Import  1,227  (1,909)
Income from Interest Free Banking-Construc-
tion  3,985  6,132 

Income from Interest Free Banking-Transport 
and communication  857  2,638 

Income from Interest Free Banking-Hotel and 
Tourism  1,338  3,840 

Income from Interest Free Banking-Export  159  -   
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Income from Interest Free Banking-Mines 
,Power & Water  63  -   

Total  181,386  136,825 

Included within various line items under interest income for the year ended 30 June 2019 is a total of Birr 24,512 
million (30 June 2018: Birr 3,256 million) relating to impaired financial assets.

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

8 Interest expense

Interest on fixed time deposits  191,942  133,525 
Interest on saving deposits  644,568  409,217 
Interest on demand deposits  293  690 
Interest on NBE Borrowing  -    -   
Interest due to local banks  -    -   

 -   

Total  836,803  543,432 

9 Distribution to depositors- Interest Free Banking Products
Profit share on Mudharaba deposits  13  166 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Net fees and commission income

Fee and commission income

Miscellaneous income  28,675  23,706 
Commission on letters of credit  36,544  30,158 
Inspection and estimation income  25,027  15,339 
Service charge  3,443  4,379 
Commitment fee  12,054  3,049 
Opening commission  127,517  100,210 
Extension commission  30,254  29,887 
Confirmation commission  14,988  15,006 
Service charge- Foreign  372,323  280,379 
Swift charges  3,379  3,438 
Interest free banking commissions  -    -   

 654,204  505,551 
Fee and commission expense

 -    -   

Net fees and commission income  654,204  505,551 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

10 Other operating income
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Dividend income  6,572  5,038 
Gain on disposal of assets  1,572  133 
Sundry income  8,815  110,246 
Rental income  14,272  16,502 
Gain on foreign exchange  146,410  188,544 

Total  177,641  320,463 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

11 Loan impairment charge 

Loans and receivables - charge for the year 
(Conventional Banking)  143,146  8,971 

Interest Free Financing - charge for the 
year (Interest Free Banking)  9,775  9,374 

Loans and receivables - reversal of provi-
sion (note 15a)  -   

Total  152,921  18,345 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

12 Impairment losses on other assets

Other assets - charge for the year (note 17)  2,881  11,378 

Interest free financing-charge for the year  -    -   

Other assets - reversal of impairment losses (note 
17)  -   

Total  2,881  11,378 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

13 Personnel expenses

Salaries and wages  497,981  405,059 
Pension costs – Defined 
contribution plan  64,030  51,193 

Bonus  75,539  78,105 
Other staff expenses  100,779  72,348 
Prepaid staff benefit expense  42,204  8,942 
Leave expense  18,171  7,024 

Total  798,704  622,671 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

14 Other operating expenses
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Insurance  7,449  6,392 
Repair and maintenance  14,652  12,524 
Sundry Expenses  37,973  22,442 
Professional Expenses  982  2,168 
Occupancy Cost  140,146  104,085 
Promotional  and Related Ex-
penses  49,952  29,481 

Office Expenses  45,124  39,248 
Employee Travel Expenses  19,323  14,300 
Wages  32,858  22,006 
Water  3,901  2,901 
Bank  2,491  2,493 
Bonus expense  -    -   
Severence pay  7,639  6,212 
Legal  -    -   
Impairment on non-current assets  -    -   
Transport  2,461  1,776 
Loss on disposal of assets  143  1,220 
Amortization of lease  330  127 

Total  365,424  267,375 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

15 Company income and deferred  tax

15 (a)	Current income tax

Company income tax  261,555  212,313 
Prior year (over)/ under provision  -    1,391 
Deferred income tax/(credit) to 
profit or loss  (6,062)  (3,368)

Total charge to profit or loss  255,493  210,337 
Tax (credit) on other comprehensive 
income  -    -   

Total tax in statement of compre-
hensive income  255,493  210,337 

15(b)	Reconciliation of effective tax to statutory tax
The tax on the Bank’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the 
statutory income tax rate as follows:

 30 June 2019  30 June 
2018 

Birr'000 Birr'000
Profit before tax  1,001,346  938,042 

Add :   Disallowed expenses
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Entertainment  2,584  1,764 
Donation  260  229 
Penalty  -    229 
Sponsorship  3,529  426 
General Assembly  1,214  1,007 
Management Meeting and Promotion  2,329  1,552 
Severance Expense  7,990  6,212 
Legal Case  83  -   
10th Year Anniversary  4,735  -   
Third Party Payment for Motor 
Vehicle  246  -   

Adjustment for Inter branch Trans-
action  69  -   

Provision for Other Asset  7,666  -   
Provision for loans and advances as 
per IFRs  155,802  21,741 

Depreciation for accounting purpose  73,211  66,998 
Amortization for accounting purpose  -    -   

Total disallowable expenses  259,718  100,158 

Less  : 
 Depreciation for tax purpose  80,958  73,573 
 Provision for loans and advances for 
tax as per NBE (80%)  60,155  76,827 

Interest income taxed at source 
foreign  -    -   

Dividend income taxed at source  6,572  5,038 
Interest income taxed at source-NBE 
Bills  179,421  124,948 

Interest income taxed at source-Local 
Deposit  62,107  40,218 

Legal Provission taxed last year  -    115 
Write back suspended Interest Taxed 
previous year  -    9,770 

 389,215  330,490 
Taxable profit  871,850  707,710 
Current tax at 30%  261,555  212,313 

15 (c) Current income tax liability Birr'000 Birr'000

Balance at the beginning of the year  210,658  88,748 
Current year provision  261,555  212,313 
Prior year (over)/ under provision  -   
WHT Notes utilised  250  264 
Payment during the year  210,658  90,139 

Balance at the end of the year  261,305  210,658 

15(d)	Deferred income tax					     				  

“Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be 
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available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

The analysis of deferred tax 
assets/(liabilities) is as follows:

To be recovered after more than 
12 months  (7,840)  (13,902)

To be recovered within 12 
months  -    -   

Total  (7,840)  (13,902)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities, deferred income tax charge/(credit) in profit or loss (“P/L), in equity 
and other comprehensive income are attributable to the following items:	

Deferred income tax assets/
(liabilities):  “ At 30 June 

2018 “ 
 Credit/ (charge) 

to P/L
Credit/ (charge) to 

equity 30 June 2019

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Property, plant and equipment  (21,980)  1,860  -    (20,120)
Provisions  -    -    -    -   
Unrealised exchange gain  -    -    -    -   
Tax losses charged to profit 
or loss  -    -    -    -   

Post employment benefit 
obligation  8,078  4,202  -    12,280 
Total deferred tax assets/
(liabilities)  (13,902)  6,062  -    (7,840)

Deferred income tax assets/
(liabilities):

“ At 30 June 
2017 ”

Credit/ (charge) 
to P/L

Credit/ (charge) to 
equity

 “ 30 June 
2018 “

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Property, plant and equipment  (22,756)  776  -    (21,980)
Provisions  -    -    -    -   
Unrealised exchange gain  -    -    -    -   
Tax losses charged to profit or 
loss  -    -    -    -   

Post employment benefit 
obligation  5,486  2,592  -    8,078 
Total deferred tax assets/(lia-
bilities)  (17,270)  3,368  -    (13,902)

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

16  Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash in hand  1,503,709  1,887,786 
Balance held with National 
Bank of Ethiopia  1,823,781  1,844,840 

Deposits with local banks  502,237  789,022 
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Deposits with foreign banks  1,291,200  1,287,479 

Total  5,120,927  5,809,127 

Maturity analysis  30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Current  3,750,927  4,809,127 
Non-Current  1,370,000  1,000,000 

Total  5,120,927  5,809,127 

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows are the same as on the statement of financial position 
as the Bank had no bank overdrafts at the end of each reporting period.				  

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
17 Birr'000 Birr'000

Loans and advances to customers

Agriculture  226,738  206,345 
Industry  1,486,938  1,051,846 
Domestic trade and services  4,681,099  2,907,290 
Export  3,860,093  2,687,653 
Import  1,060,543  595,749 
Construction  1,858,505  1,016,354 
Transport and communication  250,135  264,832 
Hotel and tourism  957,211  681,631 
Mining, power and water resources  -    -   
Microfinance institution  42,535  42,514 
Mortgage loan staff   588,619  352,801 
Mortgage Loan Customer  333,748  70,415 
Personal Loan Staff  87,061  59,873 
Emergency staff loans  123,533  103,319 
Consumer loans  39,332  19,867 

 -    -   
Gross amount  15,596,090  10,060,489 

Less: Impairment allowance (note 15a)  -   
 - Specific impairment  -    (24,885)
 - Collective impairment  -    (67,031)
 - Stage 1  12 month ECL  (127,455)  -   
 - Stage 2  Life time ECL  (11,819)  -   
 - Stage 3  Life time ECL  (132,982)  -   
Total Loss allowance  (272,257)  (91,916)
Total carrying amount  15,323,833  9,968,573 

Maturity analysis  30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Current  10,420,207  6,736,302 
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Non-Current  4,903,627  3,232,271 

Total  15,323,833  9,968,573 

17(a)	 Impairment allowance on loans and advances to customers				  
A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses for loans and receivables as at  01 July 2018 is as folllows: 

 30 June 2018  Stage 1                               
12 month ECL 

 Stage 2                               
Life time ECL 

 Stage 3                               
Life time ECL 

Day 1 change in 
ECL  allowance

Specific allowance for 
impairment  24,885  -    -    -   -24,885

Collective allowance for 
impairment  67,031  -    -    -   -67,031

Stage 1  12 month ECL  -    60,285  -    -   60,285
Stage 2  Life time ECL  -    -    5,023  -   5,023
Stage 3  Life time ECL  -    -    -    63,803 63,803

Total  91,917  60,285  5,023  63,803  37,194 

 A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses for loans and receivables as at 30 June 2019 is as 
folllows: 	

As at 01 July 2018  Charge for the 
year 

As at 30 June 
2019

Stage 1  12 month ECL  60,285  67,170 127,455
Stage 2  Life time ECL  5,023  6,797 11,819
Stage 3  Life time ECL  63,803  69,179 132,982

Total  129,111  143,146  272,257 

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses for loans and receivables by class as at 30 June 2018 is as 
follows:

Specific allowance for impair-
ment

 As at 30 June 
2017 

Charge for the 
year

As at 30 June 
2018

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Transport and communication  59  (59)  -   
Housing and construction loans  749  (160)  590 
Hotel and tourism loans  30,416  (29,707)  710 
Export loans  12,659  4,466  17,125 
Domestic trade loans  7,282  (5,145)  2,137 
Mortgage  494  (494)  -   
Staff loans  337  (337)  -   
Industry  853  1,986  2,839 
Import  1,660  (1,660)  -   
Agriculture  -    1,485  1,485 
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Total  54,509  (29,624)  24,885 

Collective allowance for impairment  As at 30 June 
2017 

Charge for the 
year

As at 30 June 
2018

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Agriculture  7,097  (4,235)  2,863 
Industry  2,748  789  3,537 
Domestic Trade & Service  35,864  (14,217)  21,647 
Export  45,198  (24,948)  20,251 
Import  5,158  (1,022)  4,136 
Construction  13,512  (6,199)  7,314 
Transport and Communication  3,917  (762)  3,154 
Hotel and Toursim  6,923  (3,392)  3,532 
Microfinance  -    -    -   
Mines, Power,and Water  -    -    -   
Mortgage Loan Customer  80  (44)  36 
Mortgage Loan Staff  157  197  354 
Personal and Consumer - Customer  22  48  70 
Personal and Consumer - Staff  53  (22)  31 
Emergency  Staff Loan  125  (15)  110 

Total  120,855  (53,823)  67,031 

Interest Free Financing  30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
18 Birr'000 Birr'000

Murahabah Financing- Agriculture  100,505  87,399 
Murahabah Financing- Construction  251,261  122,620 
Murahabah Financing- Agriculture 
Merchandize  -    -   

Murahabah Financing- Industry  330,038  185,195 
Murahabah Financing- DTS  648,393  408,963 
Murahabah Financing- Export  -    -   
Interest Free Export Facility Financing  208,425  481,990 
Murahabah Financing- Import  158,561  169,402 
Murahabah financing  -    -   
Murahabah Financing- Hotel and 
Tourism  18,177  11,796 

Murahabah Financing- Transport and 
Communication  107,117  118,309 

Muruhabah Financing-  Consumer 
and Personal  -    -   

 -    -   
Gross amount  1,822,477  1,585,674 

Profit receivable from Murubaha 
Financing  399,065  262,420 
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Less: Deferred profit  (277,377)  (185,291)
Less: Impairment allowance (note 
15a)
 - Specific impairment  -    (30,944)
 - Collective impairment  -    (10,566)
 - Stage 1  12 month ECL  (7,930)
 - Stage 2  Life time ECL  (7,165)
 - Stage 3  Life time ECL  (38,331)
 Total Loss allowance  (53,427)  (41,509)
Total carrying amount  1,890,738  1,621,293 

Maturity analysis  30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Current  1,247,887  1,206,889 
Non-Current  642,851  414,404 

Total  1,890,738  1,621,293 

18(a)	 Impairment allowance on Interest Free Financing 	
A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses for Interest free financing as at  01 July 2018 is as folllows: 

 30 June 2018  Stage 1                               
12 month ECL 

 Stage 2                               
Life time ECL 

 Stage 3                               
Life time ECL 

Day 1 change 
in impairment 

allowance

Specific allowance for 
impairment  30,944  -    -    -   ( -30,944 )

Collective allowance for 
impairment  10,566  -    -    -   ( -10,566 )

Stage 1  12 month ECL  -    9,005  -    -   9,005
Stage 2  Life time ECL  -    -    2,291  -   2,291
Stage 3  Life time ECL  -    -    -    32,356 32,356

Total  41,509  9,005  2,291  32,356  2,142 

A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses for Interest free financing as at 30 June 2019 is as folllows: 

As at 01 July 2018  Charge for the 
year 

As at 30 June 
2019

Stage 1  12 month ECL  9,005  (1,075) 7,930
Stage 2  Life time ECL  2,291  4,875 7,165
Stage 3  Life time ECL  32,356  5,975 38,331

Total  43,651  9,775  53,427 
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A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses for interest free financing as at 30 june 2018 by class is 
as follows:

Specific allowance for impair-
ment

 As at 30 June 
2017 

Charge for the 
year

As at 30 June 
2018

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Murahabah Financing- Export  21,627  2,408  24,035 
Murahabah Financing- Import  -    6,909  6,909 

Total  21,627  9,317.08  30,944 

Collective allowance for 
impairment

 As at 30 June 
2017 

Charge for the 
year

As at 30 June 
2018

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000

Murubaha Financing -Agri-
culture  1,120  (20)  1,100 

Murubaha Financing- Industry  452  57  509 
Murubaha Financing -DTS  3,407  (880)  2,527 
Murubaha Financing -Export  8,427  (4,647)  3,779 
Murubaha Financing- Import  1,022  (392)  630 
Murubaha Financing - Con-
struction  1,077  (404)  674 

Murubaha Financing - Trans-
port and Comm.  1,721  (428)  1,293 

Murubaha Financing- Hotel 
and Toursim  156  (102)  54 

Murubaha Financing -Personal  6  (6)

Total  17,388  (6,823)  10,566 

  30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

19 Investment securities

Financial assets at fair value 
through OCI
Financial assets at fair value 
through OCI (2018-AFS)  95,478  68,705 

 95,478  68,705 
Financial assets at amortized 
cost (2018-Loans and Receiv-
ables)
NBE Bills  7,062,601  4,845,419 
Ethiopian Government bonds  10,400  10,398 
Gross amount  7,073,001  4,855,817 
Less individual allowance for 
impairment  -    -   

Carrying amount  7,073,001  4,855,817 

The equity investments made by the Bank is as summarised below:
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The primary valuation technique adopted  by the bank in undertaking the valuation of the investee companies 
is the market approach. This is because the financial information available on the investee companies consists of 
historical audited financial statements.

As at 30 June 
2019

Investment Number of shares 
'000

Net changes in 
equity invest-

ments at FVOCI
Balance of FVOCI

 Percentage 
shareholding ( at 

FV ) 
Oromia Insurance S.C  12,500  5,179  17,679 18.5%
Gutu Oromia Business 
S.C  3,250  -    3,250 3.4%

Elemtu Integrated 
Dairy Industry S.C  10,000  (10,000)  -   0.0%

Elemo Kiltu House 
Buliding  500  268  768 0.8%

OIB ODA Real Estate 
PLC  10,000  (4,205)  5,795 6.1%

Ethio Switch S.C  12,002  14,800  26,802 28.1%
TPO Printing and 
Publishing S.C  15,000  -    15,000 15.7%

Tsehay Industry S.C  15,526  7,565  23,091 24.2%
Sheger Micro Finance  3,200  (107)  3,093 3.2%

Grand Total  81,978  13,500  95,478 100%

As at 30 June 
2018 As at 01 July 2018

Investment Number of shares 
'000

FV day 1 adjust-
ment gain/(loss) Balance of FVOCI

 Percentage 
shareholding ( at 

FV ) 
Oromia Insurance S.C  12,500  7,269  19,769 22.0%
Gutu Oromia Business 
S.C  3,250  -    3,250 3.6%

Elemtu Integrated 
Dairy Industry S.C  10,000  (10,000)  -   0.0%

Elemo Kiltu House 
Buliding  500  47  547 0.6%

OIB ODA Real Estate 
PLC  10,000  (3,413)  6,587 7.3%

Ethio Switch S.C  11,370  (2,118)  9,252 10.3%
TPO Printing and 
Publishing S.C  7,500  -    7,500 8.3%

Tsehay Industry S.C  12,572  29,361  41,933 46.7%
Sheger Micro Finance  1,013  -    1,013 1.1%

Grand Total  68,705  21,147  89,852 100%
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Investment Balance of FVOCI 
01 July 2018

Balance of FVOCI 
30 June 2019

Net changes in 
equity invest-

ments during the 
year

Oromia Insurance S.C  19,769  17,679  (2,090)
Gutu Oromia Business 
S.C  3,250  3,250  -   

Elemtu Integrated Dairy 
Industry S.C  -    -    -   

Elemo Kiltu House 
Buliding  547  768  221 

OIB ODA Real Estate 
PLC  6,587  5,795  (792)

Ethio Switch S.C  9,252  26,802  17,549 
TPO Printing and Pub-
lishing S.C  7,500  15,000  7,500 

Tsehay Industry S.C  41,933  23,091  (18,842)
Sheger Micro Finance  1,013  3,093  2,080 

Grand Total  89,852  95,478  5,626 

Additional investment during the year

Investment 30 June 2018 Addition for the 
year 30 June 2019

Oromia Insurance S.C  12,500  -    12,500 
Gutu Oromia Business 
S.C  3,250  -    3,250 

Elemtu Integrated 
Dairy Industry S.C  10,000  -    10,000 

Elemo Kiltu House 
Buliding  500  -    500 

OIB ODA Real Estate 
PLC  10,000  -    10,000 

Ethio Switch S.C  11,370  632  12,002 
TPO Printing and 
Publishing S.C  7,500  7,500  15,000 

Tsehay Industry S.C  12,572  2,954  15,526 
Sheger Micro Finance  1,013  2,187  3,200 

Grand Total  68,705  13,273  81,978 

As at 30 June 
2018

Investment Number of shares 
'000

 Percentage 
shareholding 

Oromia Insurance 
S.C  12,500 18.2%

Gutu Oromia 
Business S.C  3,250 4.7%
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Elemtu Integrated 
Dairy Industry S.C  10,000 14.6%

Elemo Kiltu House 
Buliding  500 0.7%

OIB ODA Real 
Estate PLC  10,000 14.6%

Ethio Switch S.C  11,370 16.5%
TPO Printing and 
Publishing S.C  7,500 10.9%

Tsehay Industry 
S.C  12,572 18.3%

Sheger Micro 
Finance  1,013 1.5%

Grand Total  68,705 100%

Maturity analysis  30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Current  837,369  392,628 
Non-Current  6,235,632  4,463,189 

Total  7,073,001  4,855,817 

 30 June 2019  30 June 
2018 

Birr'000 Birr'000
20 Other assets

Financial assets

Accounts receivables  (1,198)  508 
Uncleared effects- Local  57,806  43,465 
Uncleared effects-Foreign  70,484  60,427 
Accrued interest receivable on Gov-
ernment Bonds  -    -   

Accrued interest receivable on NBE 
Bills  -    -   

Accrued receivables-Share compa-
nies  -    -   

Miscellaneous  97,429  66,577 
Guarantee for Overseas Employment 
Agencies  619,653  65,549 
Gross amount  844,174  236,526 

Less: Specific impairment allowance ( note 17a)
          ECL for other financial asset

 -    (18,235)
 (6,637)  -   

Carrying amount  837,537  218,291 

Non-financial assets

Prepayments  443,305  437,750 
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Prepaid staff asset  156,751  92,697 
Prepaid staff loans  -    -   
Branches under opening  8,771  30,947 
Inventory  20,382  11,790 
Total  629,209  573,184 

Gross amount  1,466,746  791,474 

Maturity analysis  30 June 2019  30 June 
2018 

Birr'000 Birr'000

Current  1,020,769  372,013 
Non-Current  445,977  419,462 

Total  1,466,746  791,474 

20(a)	 Impairment allowance on other assets
A reconciliation of the allowance for impairment losses for other assets is as follows:

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Balance at the 
beginning of the 
year

 18,235  6,858 

(Reversal)/charge 
for the year (note 
10)

 (18,235)  11,377 

Balance at the 
end of the year  -    18,235 

20(b)	Inventory
A breakdown of the items included within inventory is as follows:

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Fixed asset in 
store  -    -   

Supplies stock 
account- IFB  -    -   

Supplies stock 
account  20,382  11,790 

 20,382  11,790 

Swift Software Core Banking 
Software

Mobile and agent 
banking software Total

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
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20 Intangible Assets

Cost:

As at 30 June  2018  -    40,703  -    40,703 
Acquisitions  1,002  1,002 
Internal development  -   
Transfer from 
property, plant and 
equipment

 -   

As at 30 June 2019  -    41,704  -    41,704 

Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment Losses

As at 30 June  2018  -    33,739  -    33,739 
Amortisation for the 
year  4,409  4,409 

Impairment losses  -   
As at 30 June 2019  -    38,148  -    38,148 

20	 Intangible Assets (Contd)

Net book value
As at 30 June  2018  6,964  6,964 
As at 30 June 2019  3,556  -    3,556 

Property, plant 
and equipment Buildings  Motor 

vehicles 
 Furniture 

and fittings 
 Computer and 

accessories 
 Office 

equipment 
 Construction 

in progress  Total 

Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000 Birr'000
21 Cost:

As at 30 June  
2018  334,027  188,268  94,348  138,485  98,328  3,031  856,487 

Additions  101,228  301  18,247  61,761  17,629  199,166 
Disposals  -    -    -    -    -   
Reclassification  -    -    -    -    -   
As at 30 June 
2019  435,255  188,569  112,595  200,246  115,957  3,140  1,055,762 

Accumulated 
depreciation

As at 1 July 2018  18,401  73,530  28,589  51,001  42,375  -    213,896 
Charge for the 
year  7,990  17,515  9,361  20,119  13,817  -    68,802 

Impairement  -    -    -    -    -    -   
Disposals  -    -    417  475  127  -    1,019 
As at 30 June 
2019  26,391  91,045  38,367  71,595  56,319  -    281,678 
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Net book value
As at 01 July  
2018  315,627  114,738  65,759  87,484  55,953  3,031  642,591 
As at 30 June 
2019  408,864  97,524  74,228  128,651  59,638  3,140  774,084 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

22 Non-current assets held for sale

Balance  at the beginning of the year  32,185  27,813 
Additional Repossessed collateral 
from the borrower  for the year  -    6,860 

Transfer  to  property, plant and 
equipment  -    (507)

Transfer from  property, plant and 
equipment  -    -   

Disposals of  Repossessesd collateral  (1,067)  (141)
Disposals of   property, plant and 
equipment  (176)  (1,839)

Fair value gain/(loss) on assets held 
for sale  -    -   

Balance at the end of the year  30,942  32,185 

Oromia International Bank S.C. took over collateral of some customers and these were recorded in the books as 
Assets classified as held for sale as the Bank had no intention to make use of the property for administrative use. 
Management initiated a plan to dispose of these assets to willing buyers and expects to have completed the 
transaction before the end of the next financial period.

These assets have been valued by in-house engineers responsible for collateral valuation using the market 
approach determined using Level 3 inputs.

There is no cumulative income or expenses in OCI relating to assets held for sale.

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

23 Deposits from customers

Demand deposits  7,223,812  6,080,985 
Saving deposits  12,830,259  9,474,568 
Fixed Time deposits  2,380,112  1,358,185 
Foreign Currency Ac-
counts  -    -   

Gross amount  22,434,183  16,913,738 

Maturity analysis  30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000
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Current  21,985,499  16,575,463 
Non-Current  448,684  338,275 

 22,434,183  16,913,738 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

25 Other liabilities

Financial liabilities

TT payable  10,647  11,862 
CPO & Certified Cheques issued  237,678  234,787 
Account Payable Miscellaneous  27,376  17,574 
Income tax payable  5,575  4,316 
Tax payable on interest  7,176  4,984 
Pension payable  3,037  2,238 
Tax on capital gain  94  107 
VAT payable  51  137 
Witholding tax payable  1,308  1,136 
Stamp duty charges  3,416  1,313 
Exchange payable to NBE  8,950  8,030 
Accrued Interest On Fixed Time 
Deposit  -    -   

Audit fee  413  328 
Dividend Payable  36,601  49,531 
Letter of credit margin payables  642,689  523,770 
Hamish Jiddya Payable  8,722  6,274 
Charity Fund Payable  6,992  2,727 
Uncleared effects- Foreign  -    -   
Uncleared effects-Local  -    -   
Deferred Murabaha profit
Cost Sharing Payable  27  53 
Legal provisions  -    -   
Directors Share on Profit  1,511  894 

 1,002,263  870,061 
Non-financial liabilities

Other provisions  -    -   
Accrued leave payable  55,547  41,771 
Deferred Income-rent  4,643  4,393 
Unearned income  30,667  32,456 
Bonus provision  74,402  78,105 

 165,259  156,725 

Gross amount  1,167,522  1,026,786 
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25  Other liabilities       
(confirmed)

Maturity analysis  30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Current  1,167,522  1,026,786 
Non-Current  -    -   

 1,167,522  1,026,786 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Retirement benefit obligations

Defined benefits liabilities:
– Severance pay  40,934  26,925 
Liability in the statement of 
financial position  40,934  26,925 

Income statement charge in-
cluded in personnel expenses:
– Severance pay 7,058 5,858
– Long service awards 
Total defined benefit expenses  7,058  5,858 

Remeasurements for:
– Severance pay  6,951  2,779 

 6,951  2,779 

The income statement charge included within personnel expenses includes current service cost, interest cost, past 
service costs on the defined benefit schemes.

Maturity analysis  30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Current  7,058  5,858 
Non-Current  33,876  21,067 

 40,934  26,925 

Severance pay
The Bank operates an unfunded severance pay plan for its employees who have served the Bank for 5 years and 
above and are below the retirement age (i.e. has not met the requirement to access the pension fund). The final 
pay-out is determined by reference to current benefit’s level (monthly salary) and number of years in service and 
is calculated as 1 month salary for the first year in employment plus 1/3 of monthly salary for each subsequent 
in employment to a maximum of 12 months final monthly salary.

Below are the details of movements and amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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24 Retirement benefit obligations (contin-
ued)

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

A Liability recognised in the financial 
position  14,009  8,637 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
B Amount recognised in the profit or loss Birr'000 Birr'000

Current service cost  4,214  3,195 
Interest cost  3,776  3,017 

 7,990  6,212 

C Amount recognised in other comprehen-
sive income:
Remeasurement (gains)/losses arising 
from changes in demographic assump-
tions

 -    -   

Remeasurement (gains)/losses arising 
from changes in the economic assump-
tions

 2,633  2,949 

Remeasurement (gains)/losses arising 
from experience  4,318  (170)

Tax credit /(charge)

 6,951  2,779 

The movement in the defined benefit obligation over the years is as follows: 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

At the beginning of the year  26,925  18,288 
Current service cost  4,214  3,195 
Interest cost  3,776  3,017 
Remeasurement (gains)/ losses  6,951  2,779 
Benefits paid  (932)  (354)

At the end of the year  40,934  26,925 

The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:	

i) Financial Assumption Long term 
Average

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Discount Rate (p.a) 11.25% 12.31%
Long term Salary Increases(p.a) 12.00% 12.00%
Inflation Rate 10.00% 10.00%
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Net pre-retirement rate -0.67% 0.28%

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

27 Ordinary share capital

Authorised:
 Ordinary shares of Birr 
1000 each  3,000,000  3,000,000 

Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of Birr 
1000 each  2,385,981  1,606,949 

28	 Earnings per share					   
Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the profit after taxation by the weighted average number 
of ordinary shares in issue during the year.					   

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Profit after tax  745,853  727,705 

Weighted average number 
of ordinary shares in issue  1,996,465  1 ,387,385 

Basic & diluted earnings per 
share (Birr)  0.374 0.525 

28	 Earnings per share (Contd)
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. There were no potentially dilutive 
shares at the reporting date ( 30 June 2019:nil and 30 June 2018: nil), hence the basic and diluted loss per share 
have the same value.

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

29 Retained earnings

At the beginning of the year  383,710  173,760 
Profit/ (Loss) for the year  745,853  727,705 
Prior year (over)/ under pro-
vision  -    1,391 

Reversal of loans and IFB 
financing loss allowance rec-
oginzed as per IAS 39

 133,426  -   

Day one IFRS 9 transition 
adjustment for loans and IFB 
financing

 (172,762)  -   

Reversal of other assets loss 
allowance recoginzed as per 
IAS 39

 18,017  -   
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Day one IFRS 9 transition 
adjustment for other assets  (3,756)  -   

Directors share on Profit  (1,511)  (894)
Transfer to legal reserve  (184,948)  (181,926)
Dividends paid  (54,276)  (39,443)
Dividends held in payable 
account  (18,737)  (27,370)

Dividend capitalised  (310,698)  (147,971)
Transfer to regulatory risk 
reserve  (41,351)  (121,540)

Transfer from regulatory risk 
reserve - Suspended interest  14,586  -   

Transfer to regulatory risk re-
serve- Provission other Assets  (16,008)

Transfer from  regulatory risk 
reserve for excess NBE pro-
vissions no longer required on 
application of IFRS 9

 121,540  -   

 -    -   

At the end of the year  613,086  383,710 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

30 Legal reserve

The NBE Directive No. SBB/4/95 requires the Bank to transfer annually 25% of its annual net profit to its legal 
reserve account until such account equals its capital. When the legal reserve account equals the capital of the 
Bank, the amount to be transferred to the legal reserve account will be 10% (ten percent) of the annual net profit.

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

At the beginning of the year  457,285  275,359 
Transfer from profit or loss  184,948  181,926 

At the end of the year  642,233  457,285 

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

31 Regulatory risk reserve

At the beginning of the year  145,605  33,835 
Transfer to retained earnings 
for excess NBE provissions no 
longer required on application 
of IFRS 9

 (121,540)  121,540 

Transfer from retained earnings- 
write backed suspended Interest  41,351  -   

Transfer to retained earnings  (14,586)  -   
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Transfer from retained earnings- 
Provission for Other Assets  16,008 

Adjustment of Regulatory risk 
reserve against loan account  -    (9,770)

At the end of the year  66,838  145,605 

31	 Regulatory risk reserve (Contd)
The Regulatory risk reserve is a non-distributable reserves required by the regulations of the National Bank of 
Ethiopia(NBE) to be kept for impairment losses on loans and receivables in excess of IFRS charge as derived using 
the expected credit loss model.

Where the loan loss impairment determined using the  National Bank of Ethiopia (NBE) guidelines is higher 
than the loan loss impairment determined using the expected credit loss model under IFRS, the difference is 
transferred to regulatory risk reserve and it is non-distributable to the owners of the Bank.

Where the loan loss impairment determined using the National Bank of Ethiopia (NBE) guidelines is less than 
the loan loss impairment determined using expected credit loss model under IFRS, the difference is transferred 
from regulatory risk reserve to the retained earning to the extent of the non-distributable reserve previously 
recognised.

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Notes Birr'000 Birr'000

32 Cash generated from operating 
activities

Profit before tax  1,001,346  938,042 

Adjustments for non-cash 
items:
Depreciation of property, plant 
and equipment 21  68,802  53,866 

Amortisation of intangible 
assets 20  4,409  13,132 

Gain/(Loss) on disposal of prop-
erty, plant and equipment 21

Impairment on loans and 
advances 17  180,340  (83,448)

Impairment on interest free 
financing 16  11,917  2,494 

Impairment losses on other 
assets 20  (11,598)  11,378 

Retirement benefit obligations 26  (6,951)  (2,779)
Adjustment on De-Recognised 
Property, Plant and equipment  1,129  -   

Adjustment of Property, Plant 
and equipment  -    -   

Fair Value adjustment for equity 
investment 18  (13,500)  -   

Adjustment of  Provision for 
Legal 
Prior Period Adjustment  (9,770)
Changes in working capital:
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-Decrease/ (Increase) in loans 
and advances to customers 17  (5,535,601)  (2,839,955)

-Decrease/ (Increase) in interest 
free financing 18  (281,362)  (565,376)

-Decrease/ (Increase) in other 
assets 20  (663,674)  (146,913)

-Decrease/ (Increase) in non 
current assets held for sale 20  1,243  (4,372)

-Increase/ (Decrease) in deposits 
from customers 23  5,520,445  5,482,191 

-Increase/ (Decrease) in Interest 
Free customers' deposits 24  1,141,666  983,195 

-Increase/ (Decrease) in Other 
liabilities 22  121,999  1,945 

-Increase/ (Decrease) in Retire-
ment benefit obligations 24  14,009  8,637 

-Decrease/ (Increase) in Re-
stricted Deposit 15  (370,000)  (320,000)

 1,184,620  3,522,268 

In the statement of cash flows, profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (PPE) comprise:

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Proceeds on disposal  -    -   
Net book value of property, 
plant and equipment disposed 
(Note 19)

 -    -   

Gain/(loss) on sale of property, 
plant and equipment  -    -   

33	 Related party transactions
Oromia International Bank S.C. is a wholly owned private financial institution. A number of transactions were 
entered into with related parties in the normal course of business. These are disclosed below:

31a Transactions with 
related parties

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Deposits  152,035  10,684 
Loans  17,358  16,440 

Total  169,393  27,124 

31b	 Key management compensation	
Key management has been determined to be the members of the Board of Directors  and the Executive 
Management of the Bank.  The compensation paid or payable to key management for is shown.  There were 
no sales or purchase of goods and services between the Bank and key management personnel as at 30 June 
2019	
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 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

 Basic Salary (short term employee 
benefit)  5,802  5,608 

Representation Allowance (short 
term employee benefit)  330  342 

Provident fund (short term em-
ployee benefit)  804  722 

Bonus (short term employee 
benefit)  707  1,418 

Directors Allowance  1,008  607 
Directors' Share on profit  1,511  894 

Total  10,162  9,590 

Compensation of the Bank’s key management personnel includes salaries, non-cash benefits and contributions 
to the post-employment defined benefits plans.

32	 Contingent liabilities

32a	 Claims and litigation
The Bank is a party to numerous legal actions brought by different organizations and individuals arising from 
its normal business operations. The maximum exposure of the Bank to these legal cases as at 30 June 2019 is 
Birr 59,246,553 . No provision has been made in the financial statements as the Directors believe that it is not 
probable that the economic benefits would flow out of the Bank in respect of these legal actions.

32b	 Guarantees and letters of credit
The Bank conducts business involving performance bonds and guarantees. These instruments are given as a 
security to support the performance of a customer to third parties. As the Bank will only be required to

meet these obligations in the event of the customer’s default, the cash requirements of these instruments are 
expected to be considerably below their nominal amounts.

The table below summarises the fair value amount of contingent liabilities for the account of customers:

 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 
Birr'000 Birr'000

Guarantees Issued and Outstanding  1,321,037  812,261 
Commitments on Letter of Credit 
net of Margin Paid  455,292  361,294 

Commitments on Letter of Credit 
net of Urbun Held  39,800  105,350 

TCG Issued and Outstanding  44,171  43,055 
"Loan Approved but not Disbursed 
and 
IFB Financing approved but not yet 
Financed"  1,618,896  841,079 

Unutilized Overdraft and Other 
Facility  1,478,840  1,129,592 

Undrawn IFB Export Facility 
Financing  944,539  678,260 
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Total  5,902,575  3,970,891 

33 Commitments
 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 

Birr'000 Birr'000

Share Subscribed but not paid  -    9,615 
Capital projects  68,943  67,080 

Total  68,943  76,695 

34	 Operating lease commitments - Bank as lessee

The Bank leases various properties under non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The lease terms are between 
two and five years, and majority of these lease agreements are renewable at the end of the each lease period at 
market rate.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:	
 30 June 2019  30 June 2018 

Birr'000 Birr'000

No later than 1 year  14,802  15,821 
Later than 1 year and no 
later than 2 years  32,355  155,027 

Later than 2 years but not 
later than 5 years  139,000  54,509 

Total  186,157  225,358 

35	 Events after reporting period
In the opinion of the Directors, there were no significant post balance sheet events which could have a material 
effect on the state of affairs of the Bank as at 30 June 2019 and on the profit for the period ended on that date, 
which have not been adequately provided for or disclosed.

37	 Segment reporting
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Bank that is engaged in providing products or services within 
a particular economic environment which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other 
segments . Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the 
chief operating decision maker. 

The chief operating decision maker is the person or Bank that allocates resources to and assesses the performance 
of the operating segments of an entity. 

The Bank has determined the Board of Directors as its chief operating decision maker. All transactions between 
business segments are conducted on commercial terms  basis with intra-segment revenue and costs being 
eliminated at Bank level.

Segment information

IFRS 8 requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the 
Bank that are regularly reviewed by the Board of Directors in order to allocate resources to the segment and to 
assess its performance. 						    
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Information reported to the Bank’s Board of Directors for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of 
segment performance is focused on products and services. 

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Bank’s accounting policies described in 
note 2.

 For management purposes, the Bank has been organised into two operating segments based on products and 
services, as follows:

1. Interest Free Banking- All Islamic banking products offered to customers are included under the Islamic Banking 
segment. These products inlcude  Wadiah deposits, Amanah deposits and mudarabah investments.	

2. Conventional Banking- The conventional banking segment comprises of corporate and commercial banking 
customers in various sectors which include agriculture, manufacturing, domestic trade, construction, hotel and 
tourism, microfinance institutions, mortgage loans and personal loans

37	 Segment reporting (continued)
The Executive Management Committee monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the 
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance 
is evaluated based on operating profits or losses and is measured consistently with operating profits or losses 
in the consolidated financial statements. However, income taxes are managed on a group basis and are not 
allocated to operating segments.

Transfer prices between operating segments are based on the Bank’s internal pricing framework.

No revenue from transactions with a single external customer or counterparty amounted to 10% or more of the 
Bank’s total revenue in 2019 or 2018.

Profit segments

At 30 June 2019

Conventional 
Banking

Interest Free 
Banking Banking

Segment adjust-
ments Bank

Birr "000 Birr "000 Birr "000 Birr "000
Interest income  2,218,072  -    -    2,218,072 
Income from Interest free 
financing and investment 
products

 -    181,386  -    181,386 

Interest expense  836,803  836,803 
Distribution to depositors- In-
terest Free Banking Products 13 13

Net interest income and 
income from Interest Free 
Banking products net of distri-
bution to depositors

 1,381,269  181,373  -    1,562,642 

Fee and commission income  591,682  62,522  -    654,204 
Fee and commission expense  -    -    -    -   
Net fees and commission 
income  591,682  62,522  -    654,204 

Other operating income  177,460  181  -    177,641 
Loan impairment charge  143,146  9,775  -    152,921 
Impairment losses on other 
assets  2,881  -    -    2,881 

Inter–segment revenues/ex-
penses

Net operating income  31,433  (9,594)  -    21,839 
Armotisation of intangible 
assets  4,409  -    -    4,409 
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Depreciation of property and 
equipment  68,802  -    -    68,802 

Personal and Other operating 
expenses  1,146,621  17,507  1,164,128 

Segment Profit before tax  784,552  216,794  1,001,346 

Income tax expense  190,455  65,038  255,493 
Segment profit after tax  594,097  151,756  745,853 

Assets
"Additions to property and
equipment"  199,166  -    199,166 
"Additions to other
intangible assets"  1,002  -    1,002 
Total assets  27,335,836  4,443,472  31,779,308 
Total liabilities  23,842,837  4,223,890  28,066,727 

37	 Segment reporting (continued)

At 30 June 2018

Conventional 
Banking

Interest Free 
Banking Banking

Segment adjust-
ments Bank

Birr "000 Birr "000 Birr "000 Birr "000
Interest income  1,505,568  -    -    1,505,568 
Income from Interest free 
financing and investment 
products

 -    136,825  -    136,825 

Interest expense  543,432  -    -    543,432 
Distribution to depositors- In-
terest Free Banking Products  -    166  -    166 

Net interest income and 
income from Interest Free 
Banking products net of distri-
bution to depositors

 962,136  136,659  -    1,098,795 

Fee and commission income  421,539  84,012  -    505,551 
Fee and commission expense  -    -    -    -   
Net fees and commission 
income  421,539  84,012  -    505,551 

Other operating income  318,246  2,217  -    320,463 
Loan impairment charge  8,971  9,374  -    18,345 
Impairment losses on other 
assets  7,729  3,649  -    11,378 

Inter–segment revenues/ex-
penses  -    -    -    -   

 -    -    -    -   
Net operating income  301,547  (10,807)  -    290,740 
Armotisation of intangible 
assets  13,132  -    -    13,132 

Depreciation of property and 
equipment  53,866  -    -    53,866 

Personal and Other operating 
expenses  874,845  15,201  -    890,046 

 -    -    -    -   
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Segment Profit before tax  743,379  194,663  -    938,042 
 -    -    -    -   

Income tax expense  151,938  58,399  -    210,337 
Segment profit after tax  591,440  136,264  -    727,705 

Assets
"Additions to property and
equipment"  105,246  -    -    105,246 
"Additions to other
intangible assets"  8,467  -    -    8,467 
Total assets  20,514,270  3,282,462  -    23,796,732 
Total liabilities  18,047,097  3,158,667  -    21,205,764 


